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Unless otherwise specified, references in this annual report to
other documents, including but not limited to other reports and
websites, including our own, are for information purposes only.
The contents of such other documents and websites are not
incorporated by reference in this annual report nor otherwise
considered to be a part of it.

Unless the context requires otherwise, '‘Banco Santander' means
Banco Santander, S.A., and 'Santander’, 'the Group' and
‘Santander Group' mean Banco Santander, S.A. and subsidiaries.



Consolidated directors' report

6

14
16
32
64
112
123
124
129

137
160

164

168
170
177
182

190
238
241
264
267
275

Business model and strategy

Responsible banking

Our approach

The new business environment

Inclusive and sustainable growth

Key metrics

Further information

Non-financial information Law content index

UNEP FI Principles for Responsible Banking
reporting index

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) content index

Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB) content index

Independent verification report

Corporate Governance
2020 Overview
Ownership structure

Shareholders. Engagement and general
meeting

Board of directors

Management team

Remuneration

Group structure and internal governance
Internal control over financial reporting (ICFR)

Other corporate governance information

Auditor's report and consolidated
financial statements

504 Auditor's report

516 Consolidated annual accounts

533 Notes to the consolidated

annual accounts

796 Appendix

310
312
315
317
357
401

403
404
412

420
422
428
437
461
476
479
486
492
494

496
840

Economic and financial review
Economic, regulatory and competitive context
Group selected data

Group financial performance

Financial information by segments

Research, development and innovation
(R&D&)

Significant events since year end
Trend information 2021

Alternative performance measures (APM)

Risk management and compliance
Risk management and compliance overview
Risk management and control model

Credit risk

Market, structural and liquidity risk

Capital risk

Operational risk

Compliance and conduct risk

Model risk profile

Strategic risk

Glossary

General information



& Santander Annual report 2020

e
AN

i

Contents

2020 consolidated
directors’ report

This report was approved unanimously by our

board of directors on 22 February 2021.

Our approach to this document

We changed the layout of our consolidated directors’ report in
2018 by including the contents previously provided in these
documents which we ceased to prepare separately:

- Annual report
- Consolidated directors’ report

- Annual corporate governance report (CNMV format
document)

- Report of the board committees
- Sustainability report

Auditors’ reviews

As required by law, contents of our 2020 consolidated
directors' report has been subjected to three types of reviews
by our independent statutory auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., summarized as
follows:

- PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. has verified that
the information in this report is consistent with our
consolidated financial statements, and that its contents
comply with the applicable regulations. For more details,
see ‘Other information: Consolidated management report
section of the 'Auditor’s report' within 'Auditor's report and
consolidated annual accounts'.

- Annual report on our directors’' remuneration (CNMV format
document)

The consolidated directors’ report also includes all
information required by Spanish Act 11/2018 on non-financial
information and diversity. It can be found in the 'Responsible
banking' chapter, which constitutes the consolidated non-
financial information statement.

This report's format presents information more clearly,
avoiding repetition and raising the level of disclosure.

- PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. has issued a
verification report, with limited assurance, on the non-
financial and diversity information required by Spanish Act
11/2018 included in this report. To read that report, see the
'Independent verification report' in the 'Responsible

banking' chapter.

- PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. has issued an
independent reasonable assurance report on the design and
effectiveness of Banco Santander's internal control over
financial reporting, found in section 8.6 of the 'Corporate

governance' chapter.

Non-IFRS and alternative performance measures

This report contains, in addition to financial information
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and derived from our consolidated financial
statements, alternative performance measures (APMs) as
defined in the Guidelines on Alternative Performance
Measures issued by the European Securities and Markets
Authority (ESMA) on 5 October 2015 and other non-IFRS
measures. These financial measures that qualify as APMs and
non-IFRS measures have been calculated with information
from Santander Group; however, those financial measures are
not defined or detailed in the applicable financial reporting
framework nor have been audited or reviewed by our
auditors.

We use these APMs and non-IFRS measures when planning,
monitoring and evaluating our performance. We consider
these APMs and non-IFRS measures to be useful metrics for
our management and investors to compare operating
performance between accounting periods.

Nonetheless, these APMs and non-IFRS measures should be
considered supplemental information to, and are not meant
to substitute IFRS measures. Furthermore, companies in our
industry and others may calculate or use APMs and non-IFRS
measures differently, thus making them less useful for
comparison purposes.

For more details on APMs and non-IFRS measures, see section
8 of the 'Economic and financial review'.
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Forward-looking statements

Banco Santander advises that this annual report contains
“forward-looking statements” as per the meaning of the US
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
statements may be identified by words like expect, project,
anticipate, should, intend, probability, risk, target, goal,
objective, estimate, future and similar expressions. Found
throughout this report, they include (but are not limited to)
statements on our future business development, economic
performance and shareholder remuneration policy. However,
a number of risks, uncertainties and other important factors
may cause actual developments and results to differ
materially from our expectations.

The following important factors, in addition to others
discussed elsewhere in this annual report, could affect our
future results and could cause materially different outcomes
from those anticipated in forward-looking statements:

- general economic or industry conditions of areas where we
have significant operations or investments (such as a worse
economic environment; higher volatility in capital markets;
inflation or deflation; changes in demographics, consumer
spending, investment or saving habits; and the effects of
the covid-19 pandemic on the global economy);

- exposure to various market risks (particularly interest rate
risk, foreign exchange rate risk, equity price risk and risks
associated with the replacement of benchmark indices);

- potential losses from early repayments on our loan and
investment portfolio, declines in value of collateral securing
our loan portfolio, and counterparty risk;

Economic
and financial review

Risk management
and compliance

political stability in Spain, the United Kingdom, other
European countries, Latin America and the US;

- changes in legislation, regulations, taxes, including
regulatory capital and liquidity requirements, especially in
view of the UK exit of the European Union and increased
regulation in response to financial crisis;

- our ability to integrate successfully our acquisitions and
related challenges that result from the inherent diversion
of management'’s focus and resources from other strategic
opportunities and operational matters; and

- changes in our access to liquidity and funding on acceptable
terms, in particular if resulting from credit spread shifts or
downgrades in credit ratings for the entire group or
significant subsidiaries.

Numerous factors could affect our future results and could
cause those results deviating from those anticipated in the
forward-looking statements. Other unknown or unpredictable
factors could cause actual results to differ materially from
those in the forward-looking statements.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as at date of
approval of this annual report and are informed by the
knowledge, information and views available as at the date of
this report. Banco Santander is not required to update or
revise any forward-looking statements, regardless of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Past performance is not indicative of future results

Statements about historical performance or accretion must
not be construed to indicate that future performance, share
price or earnings (including earnings per share) in any future

XHTML electronic format and XBRL tags

This annual report has been prepared in eXtensible HyperText
Markup Language (XHTML) format, and the consolidated
financial statements it includes have been tagged with
eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL), in
accordance with Directive 2004/109/EC and Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815.

No offer

Neither this annual report nor any of the information
contained herein constitutes an offer to sell, or the solicitation
of an offer to buy, any securities.

period will necessarily match or exceed those of any prior
period. Nothing in this annual report should be taken as a
profit forecast.

Banco Santander has elected to follow these requirements for
the 2020 financial year, albeit they will take effect for
accounting periods from 1 January 2021.

To view the XBRL tags, you must open this document using an
appropriate viewer. You can find this document with an XBRL
viewer on Banco Santander's corporate website.
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The Santander Way remains unchanged...
2> & I8,
Our purpose Our aim as a bank Our how
To help people and To be the best open financial Everything we do should be
businesses prosper services platform, by acting Simple, Personal and Fair

responsibly and earning the
lasting loyalty of our people,
customers, shareholders and
communities

... continuing to deliver for all our stakeholders

gresssn s D cerrrsennsnn i ————— .
An engaged ... generates
and motivated customer
team.. loyalty...

We create value for
all our stakeholders

...leading to
strong financial
results for our

shareholders.. :

i ...sowe can support
: our

. communities

For further information about our corporate culture, see chapter 1 'Responsible Banking'. In this chapter, data as of 2020, unless indicated otherwise.
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Helping people and businesses prosper whilst adopting ESG practices

& Environmental: supporting the green transition

Helping customers go green

Going green ourselves

EUR 33.8 bn EUR 6.9 bn EUR 1 bn Carbon neutral
Green Finance since AUM Social Responsible green bond issued (2nd in our own operations
2019 Investment since 2019)

/)
0==> social: building a more inclusive society

Financially empowering people Supporting society

4.9 mn EUR 469 mn 4.0 mn 225 k
people1 since 2019  Credit to microentrepreneurs people helped scholarships granted
in 2020 since 2019 since 2019

1. People financially empowered through Santander initiatives.

—
000
Creation of a solidarity fund to face the covid-19 impact
EUR 54 mn donated by employees and the bank to provide
Communities essential health equipment and materials

We contribute more than
ever to the wellbeing of
society at large

EUR 30 mn through Santander Universities

EUR 21 mnto support vulnerable communities

[@J Governance: doing business the right way

A strong culture

86%
employees proud to work
for Santander

An independent, diverse Board

40% >60%
women on Group Independent directors
board
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Our business model
1. Our scale = Local scale based on three geographic regions, A
where we maintain a leadership position in our . TOP 3 bank
Local scale and core markets. in 9 of our core markets

global reach
= Global reach backed by our global businesses,

enabling greater collaboration across the Group to @ @ % @ '
generate higher revenue and efficiencies.
DOeC

A. Market share in lending as of Sep-20 including only private owned banks. UK benchmark covers mortgage market.

2. Customer focus > We serve 148 million customers, in markets with a
total population of more than one billion people.

p  relationshi Q T 3 Loyal customers
ersonal relationships . il
that increase customper - We have over 100,000 people talking to our Op (gere)
loyalty customers every day in our extensive branch in customer

network and contact centres. satisfaction (NPS)? . 228

. . : = 81%
- Digital sales represented 44% of total. Increasing in 6 markets ] I i
digital adoption (mobile customers +6.1 mn YoY) 2014 2020

B. NPS - Customer Satisfaction internal benchmark of active customers' experience and satisfaction audited by Stiga / Deloitte.

3. Diversification - Balanced geographic diversification between Europe  North America South America
mature and emerging markets.

0] hic and . IR

bt?;iﬁggga?\?erlsi?i:ation - Business diversification between customers 37% 21% G‘,_'%

make us more resilient segments (individuals, SMEs, mid-market -—

under adverse companies and large corporates).

circumstances ) ;
- Global businesses that strengthen our local Global businesses (SCIB and WM&)

franchises. 7S @

PagoNxt

Note. Underlying attributable profit contribution by region, excluding Santander Global Platform (which will upgrade to PagoNxt) and Corporate Centre.

In 2020, Grupo Santander delivered a Group net operating income
Resilient profit resilient operating income within the — p—
generation environment arising from the covid-19 - 4 2428 . 232423 24
throughout the crisis, supported by a disciplined capital
cycle allocation in accordance with our strategic

priorities S s i e B

Net operating income = Total income - Operating expenses.
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The Santander of Tomorrow - 3 priorities for profitable growth

QO

" .
. . ..
. . .

.

Building on our technology to further strengthen our customers’ loyalty and access new
fee-based revenue pools

New operating model leveraging our global scale to deliver a
One Santander better customer experience, supported by common culture and
higher degrees of commonality, technology being one

2 PagoNxt Our Group technology “backbone” solutions with payments
at the core

Openbank and Santander Consumer Finance driving profitable
growth in Europe and new markets
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1. One Santander: @
Creating a better bank for our customers with a new operating model...
- ... strengthening our ... by creating a
cu;';;'?:‘z\;'ggrs?cre relationship with common operating
customers... model

Simplify mass market
value proposition

Shared processes and best-
in-class technology

Vv Vv WV

New distribution model

Medium term goal: Medium term goal: Medium term goal:
Top 3 NPS in 9 countries Digital sales/total >50% Efficiency ratio A c.40%

®

...inorder to drive customer growth and higher productivity and profitability @

Medium term goals:

- Focus on capital efficient growth opportunities . C
) i ) Underlying RoTE :
- Leverage PagoNxt global solutions with particular focus on SMEs 10%-12%

B
Europe and merchants

- Re-invent our branch network (Work Cafés), expand Santander
Personal, deploy common mobile app

Efficiency ratio A
c.45%

Underlying RoTE <P,

North - Expand collaboration to Commercial Banking, Auto and other retail 11-13%

. segments . o
America g .4 shared services Efficiency ratio :

c.40%
.. . Underlying RoTE <
_)

South Expand Getnet a‘nd Superdigital to other c?untrles 19%-21%

X -> Common operating model for Consumer Finance L. LA
America Efficiency ratio :

- Focus on revenue growth opportunities (e.g. Agribusiness) c.35%

A. Medium term goals for the efficiency ratio do not represent guidance. The actual efficiency ratio may vary materially in the medium term.

B. Excluding SCF+Openbank, which would have an efficiency ratio of ¢.39% and a RoTE of 13%-15%. Europe, including SCF+Openbank, would have an efficiency ratio
of c.43% and a ROTE of 12%-13%.

C. Medium term goals for underlying RoTE do not represent guidance. The actual underlying RoTE may vary materially in the medium term.

D.Adjusted RoTE for excess capital in the US.

We have integrated ESG criteria into our new strategic priorities: One Santander Europe
has focused on 2020 on rebuilding after covid-19, supporting people (especially more
vulnerable communities, in financial distress) and helping customers transition to the
green economy.

10
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2. PagoNxt: @

PagoNxt will help Santander banks deliver payment solutions seamlessly,
faster and with better value

Payments is a sizeable and fast growth market in which Santander already has significant scale

Our key assets for
growth acceleration
We serve more
customers than - Single, autonomous company providing payment Getnet i
any other bank solutions to merchants and consumers
- Targeting Santander’s existing ecosystem and open One Eb-| ]I!r
market & Trade
- Technology-focused to deliver differentiated user s superdigita|
experiences
148 mn - Strategic, close partner of Santander local banks Q PaymentsHub
Customers
Leveraging on ’.;/
Scale | Efficiency | Globalreach mercury

Focused in 3 business verticals to accelerate growth, leveraging on scale,
‘being global’ and efficiency

To become a world leading acquirer providing end-to-end best-in-class solutions
for in-store and online merchant payments

Goal

-I Our merchant payment Market growth Santander’s scale
MERCHANT services on one global +11% EUR 80 bn >1.1mn .60 mn
platform are now being used Expected annual Merchant acquiring Active Merchant Active credit and
across the Group as Getnet growth global revenue pool business debit cards
in e-commerce customers

To deliver fast, efficient trade finance, supply chain and FX payments solutions
for international SMEs that were once only accessible to corporates

Goal

2 Market growth Santander’s scale
Significant investments in 4 +3% EUR 350 bn e >200k
iz key assets: Ebury, One Trade, Annual growth International trade Group SME Group SME
Mercury and PaymentsHub international trade revenue pool customers customers trading

int.

To deliver simple, highly engaging payment solutions for individuals
in order to become embedded in our customers’ daily lives

Goal

3

CONSUMER

With a high growth in active
customers and transactions

Leveraging our Superdigital Solution for the unbanked in 9
value in 2019

proposition Latin America

We have integrated ESG criteria into our new strategic priorities: Developed consumer
solutions (such as Superdigital) within PagoNxt scope will benefit individual lives
through financial inclusion and domestic and international payments for all.

11
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3. Digital Consumer Bank: @

Combining the scale and leadership of SCF in Europe with the platform of Openbank.
Our vision is to become the largest digital consumer bank in the world

Openbank Santander Auto

Global consumer financing
business serving offline and
e-commerce merchants

Largest full-service global Auto loan and leasing business
digital bank in the world + serving OEMS and dealers

>55K merchant Pos 1.2 mn customers >7 5K pealer & 0EM POS

¢.EUR 20 bn woans ¢.EUR 10 bn Deposits ¢.EUR 85 bn woans

Digital Banking APIs Openbank technology and data capabilities grow revenues
(SaaS model) by adding services and improving productivity

Our ambition: to grow revenues and x2 PAT *in the medium term and build the most
innovative consumer lending business in Europe

Great potential... ... to build a new paradigm...

= Common apps, data and systems Medium term goals

& c.18 mn infrastructure across regions

tand i

r_s.ﬂ-'].:r?u:.:..rw Atctlve - Single streamlined operating
customers model across auto, consumer C,1 5% Underlying RoTE E
lending and retail in 15+ countries
- Simplified license and common o . L c
4 5 compliance model 39 /0 Efficiency ratio
Cwm .

Operban Avg. products

per customer | - New auto, consumer lending and
retail banking country launches

A. Underlying.
B. Medium term goals for underlying RoTE do not represent guidance. The actual underlying RoTE may vary materially in the medium term.
C. Medium term goals for the efficiency ratio do not represent guidance. The actual efficiency ratio may vary materially in the medium term.

We have integrated ESG criteria into our new strategic priorities: Digital Consumer
Bank is developing business solutions with a positive environmental impact. We have
developed green finance solutions for consumers, such as clean vehicles, solar panels
or heating systems amongst others.

12
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STARTING FROM Mercedes and Angel

SCRATCH WITH TUIIO i | 1 W preparing a delivery

; at EL Sazén de Angel
After becoming in Tizayuca, Hidalgo

unemployed, Mercedes > TN e (Mexico).

Cruz started a small 7 s “

homemade food i) ) T I
4 business that changed

her life. Her desire for

self-improvement and

entrepreneurial spirit

turned a small loan into

a big story. Tuiiois an

initiative of Santander

Finance for AlL, our

strategy to contribute to

financialinclusion and

empowerment.

Responsible
Danking

2020 Consolidated non-financial information statement

14



Responsible Corporate Economic
banking governance and financial review

Our approach
What our stakeholders tell us
Challenges and opportunities
Governance and priorities
Our response to covid-19
2020 highlights

The new business environment
A strong and inclusive culture
A talented and motivated team
Acting responsibly towards customers
Responsible procurement

Shareholder value

Inclusive and sustainable growth
Meeting the needs of everyone in society
Supporting the green transition
Environmental and social risk analysis
Financial inclusion and empowerment
ESG investment in Wealth Management and Insurance
Supporting communities
Higher education
Community investment

Tax contribution
Key metrics
Further information
Non-financial information law content index
UNEP FI Principles for Responsible Banking reporting index
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) content index
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) content index

Independent verification report

16
18
20
22
26
28

32
34
38
52
60
62

64
66
71
87
91

101
100
102
108
110

112
123
124
129
129
160
164

Risk management
and compliance

15



{0

& Santander Annual report 2020
Contents

Our approach

By delivering on our purpose to help people and
businesses prosper, we grow as a business and can help
society address its challenges.

"At Santander, we've always known we have a
responsibility to support society — and | have no doubt
that we'll continue to fulfil it. We are determined to help
businesses and communities across the world build back
better —and use this as an opportunity to address global
challenges such as inequality and climate change. This is
the right thing to do - the responsible thing to do, and
the path to generate value for our shareholders.

In 2020, the covid-19 pandemic forced us to face yet
another challenge —an economic crisis that devastated
millions. As we look ahead, governments and companies
must come together to build back better, so that we
emerge from this crisis stronger, supporting inclusive and
sustainable growth around the world. Banks have a
critical role to play. We are part of the solution. We have
a crucial duty and an essential role: to support our
employees, our customers, and to deliver sustainable
returns to you, our shareholders”.

Ana Botin, Group executive chairman.

By being responsible, we build loyalty

In our day-to-day business, we make
00 00 ... Santander sure we don't just meet our legal and
E.El DD treats me regulatory requirements, but also
People Customers responsibly exceed people's expectations by being
Q Simple, Personal and Fair in all we do.
000
GII ... Santander We focus on areas where our activity
T acts responsibl can have a major impact on helping
Communities Shareholders in Solziety y people and businesses prosper.
I'm loyal to Santander because...

16
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00
o) People

EUR 10,783 million

Staff costs”

95%

of employees are full-time

53.7%

of employees are women

00
ClCl Customers

EUR 916,199 mittion

loans outstanding (net)

Eur 497,987

million to households

Eur 319,853

million to companies

Eur 21,227

million to government
agencies

EurR 77,132

million to others®

EUR 469 miltion

to microenterprises via
microfinance programmes

Shareholders

Total shareholder
remuneration

market value at year end, second highest bank in the

eurozone

000

Communities

EUR 204 mittion

invested in communities

EUR 1710 mittion

invested in universities

EUR 94 million

invested in community
programmes and projects

IT~ Suppliers

EUR 5,230 mittion

paid to suppliersD

4,592

suppliers selected under our global procurement

model

94.7%

local suppliersD

Jo N
\/of

Tax contribution

EUR 6,443 miltion

Total taxes paid by the group

A. From group consolidated financial statements.

EUR 2,946 million

corporate income tax

B. Including financial business activities and customer prepayments.
C. The maximum allowed in accordance with the limits set by the European Central Bank (ECB) in its recommendation last December.
D. Data refers exclusively to purchases negotiated by Aquanima.

EUR 3,497 miltion

other taxes

17
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What our stakeholders tell us

To build a more responsible bank, understanding and
responding to all our stakeholders is fundamental.

Listening to our stakeholders and
creating value

Loyalty is key to lasting value. Earning and retaining it
depends on our ability to understand all our stakeholders'
concerns and respond to their needs. By listening to them and
measuring their perceptions of Grupo Santander, we not only
identify issues, but also find opportunities to add value.

Grupo Santander has several approaches to gauging
stakeholder opinion. We run surveys and speak-up channels
for our employees. We engage our customers through
interactive platforms. We also respond to demands from top
analysts, investors and indexes interested in environmental,
social and governance (ESG) matters.

We keep pace with new regulations and best practices
worldwide. We take part in consultations with authorities,
sector associations and other organizations that influence
sustainable development policymaking. We assess
externalities to identify risks and opportunities to our
business, appraise our impact on the community and create
value for society and the environment.

We are also involved in major local and international
initiatives to support inclusive and sustainable growth (see
‘Joint initiatives to promote our agenda’ in ‘Governance and
priorities’).

83%

of employees think
Santander provides
the flexibility they
need to be
productive

22,500

employees surveyed
in the 2020 global
pulse survey

1,432
agreements with
universities and
academic
institutions

2,283
partnerships with
social institutions
and entities

86%

of employees feel

Santander's
response to the
pandemic is
effective

4,390

complaints through

ethical channels

322

social media
profiles and 23
million followers

00
Q0

People

00
a0

Customers

Key dialogue channels
for stakeholders

000

(1D

Communities Shareholders

18

3 millions

of surveys to
measure customer
satisfaction

shareholders
surveyed about
Santander being
Simple, Personal
and Fair

queries handled by
email, phone,
WhatsApp and
online

42,670

banked individuals
surveyed about
Santander being
Simple, Personal and
Fair

464,310
complaints received

shareholders and
investors participated
in studies and
qualitative surveys

meetings with

shareholders and
contacts with

institutional investors
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Materiality assessment: Identifying the
issues that matter

Grupo Santander analyses the environmental, social and
governance issues our stakeholders care about the most.
Every year, we run quantitative and qualitative assessments
of our value chain, gathering information from internal and
external sources, including the dialogue channels mentioned
above. We weight inputs on their level of materiality, which is
revised every year to reflect reality.

The matrix below, which shows the topics our stakeholders
consider most relevant for Santander, helps us focus our
priorities, initiatives and programmes across the Group. In
2020, we addressed these issues in order to strengthen our
responsible business practices and ethical behaviour, tackle
climate change, support the transition to a low-carbon
economy, promote financial inclusion and create a diverse
and talented team, while managing and developing it.

Group material topics matrix"

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

Analysis inputs

- External

+ 2020 megatrends (WBCSD)

« Customer satisfaction (Net Promoter Score drivers)

+ ESG analyst and index evaluations (including roadshows)

+ Public opinion (social media and digital press analysis)

+ Reporting trends in the banking sector (peers' material
issues, RepRisk Rating and others)

+ Requirements of regulators and international institutions
(World Bank, WEF, UNEP FI, ...)

+ ESG reporting standards requirements (GRI, SASB)

= Internal

+ Santander's strategic view (public commitments, internal
communications, workshops, top risk analysis)

+ Responsible banking agenda (responsible banking,
sustainability and culture committee; Culture, and Inclusive
and Sustainable Banking steering groups, messages from
the chairman and CEO)

+ Employee feedback (surveys)

LOW MEDIUM

Compliance and

]
Ethical Behaviour

Risk Management ®
[+H]
g _
g ESG Products Talent Management
- and Services : and Development
™ Climate ®
=
g _ SHmLegy Customer ®
] Satisfaction
Innovation and ®
- Digitalization

Environmental

Cybersecurity and ; - : -
~|  Corporate Data Protection FRdltprnt Dlver5|5y‘,AlfnTllI;|s!on
Governance @ ] @® and Wellbeing

= ® & Simple, Personal and Fair

Protecting Products and Services

Human Rights Community Financial Inclusion

Investment and Empowerment
I | I I
Internal relevance

@ Challenge 1 New business environment

Changes in the analysis from 2019
We've redefined certain material topics:

+ Talent Management and Development includes incentives
linked to ESG criteria.

« Diversity, Inclusion and Wellbeing includes health and
welfare-related aspects.

« Financial Inclusion and Empowerment includes financial
literacy.

- Simple, Personal and Fair (SPF) products and services refers
to responsible practices towards customers.

« Climate Strategy covers the integration of climate change
into the climate change risks & business opportunities
strategy.

Challenge 2 Inclusive and sustainable growth

We've added inputs to the materiality assessment: 2020
megatrends from the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development (WBCSD), social media, Net Promoter Score
(NPS) drivers for customers, new employee surveys and
insights from Responsible Banking workshops.

Three topics - Diversity, Inclusion and Wellbeing, ESG
Products and Services, and Financial Inclusion and
Empowerment - gained significance in 2020.

A. Issues such as food waste, light and noise pollution, and biodiversity are not
material to the group.

19
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Challenges and opportunities

Grupo Santander operates in a fast-changing world, full of new challenges and
opportunities. Our materiality assessment identified two core challenges: the new
business environment, and inclusive and sustainable growth. By addressing these,
we embed our approach to the environment, society and governance in all we do.

Challenge 1
New business environment

Adapting to an evolving world

The economy is changing fast. Digital technology is
transforming markets as well as business models. In
this highly competitive environment, companies

must work in new ways to ensure responsible
business practices.

&

Santander, like all businesses, needs a
motivated, diverse and skilled
workforce that is able to deliver

what customers want, while
harnessing the power of new
technology. We operate in a fast-
moving highly regulated business
environment. Our task is to exceed our
stakeholders' expectations by doing the
basics brilliantly, every day. Key to this
is having a strong culture - a business
in which all we do is Simple, Personal
and Fair.

For more details on our strategy, see
'Challenge 1: New business environment'
in this chapter.
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Challenge 2
Inclusive and sustainable growth

Helping society achieve its goals

Growth should satisfy the needs of today without
hampering future generations' ability to meet their
own. A balance should always be struck between
economic growth, social welfare and environmental
protection. Financial institutions can contribute to
this by managing their operations responsibly, and
lending responsibly to help society achieve its goals.

We can play a major role to promote
inclusive and sustainable growth.
‘Inclusive’ means meeting customer
needs, helping people open businesses
and create jobs, promoting financial
empowerment and getting people the
education they need. 'Sustainable'
means financing renewable energy and
smart infrastructure and tech to tackle
climate change. We take the social and
environmental risks and rewards of our
operations into account, contributing to
greater balance in the economy and
society.

&

For more details on our strategy, see
'Challenge 2: Inclusive and sustainable
growth' in this chapter.
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Integrating ESG issues that matter into our strategy to meet the two identified challenges.

Material issues

Impact on our value chain

Challenge 1 Corporate governance Robust, diverse and transparent corporate governance leads to more
New business responsible and sustainable strategies.
environment : - —
Ethical behaviour A strong corporate culture and policies and procedures ensure we behave
ethically and safeguard all our stakeholders' interests.
Compliance and risk Well-defined compliance and risk management procedures help reduce the
management risks an organization faces. The participation of all employees in risk
management is crucial and reinforces the risk culture (Risk Pro).
Talent management and career The right talent management and career development programmes inspire
elopment loyalty and cement responsible banking practices.
Diversity, inclusion and A diverse workforce that reflects the make-up of society is critical to success in
wellbeing an ever-changing environment. Our employees wellbeing must be a priority.
Innovation and digitalization Investing in technology puts us at the cutting edge of our industry and
strengthens our value proposition.
Customer satisfaction Focus on customer experience drives us to improve our services and builds
loyalty.
SPF products and services Responsible products and services tailored to customers in a way that is
Simple, Personal and Fair promote inclusiveness and lasting loyalty.
Cybersecurity and data Innovative and robust cybersecurity mechanisms protect customer data and
protection boost confidence in our business.
Human rights Preventing the risk of our activities having a negative impact on human rights is
key to the development of a responsible business model.
Cha[[enge 2 Financial inclusion and A financial system that is accessible and understandable to all builds trust,

. empowerment i iti i
Inclusive and P bolsters tpe economy and creates new business opportunities, helping
sustainable communities prosper.
growth - : - .

Climate strategy Banks play a key role in the transition to a low-carbon economy by managing

their financial risks and helping finance the green agenda. Our contribution is
vital under the Paris Agreement framework.

ESG products and services

Financial products and services with social and environmental value added
criteria help us do business responsibly. Funding renewable energy and green
initiatives better positions our bank and society to counter the effects of
climate change.

Environmental footprint

Environmental footprint reduction helps us lead the transition towards a low-
carbon economy.

Community investment

Our commitment to education and the wellbeing of the communities we serve
contributes to growth and progress across broader society.
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Governance and priorities

All our activity is guided by principles, frameworks and policies
to ensure we behave responsibly in all we do. We revised and

strengthened our responsible banking governance to help us

tackle the two challenges we identified.

Core policies that integrate ESG criteria into our business model, to make us a more responsible bank

{0
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General code
of conduct

Corporate
culture policy

General
sustainability
policy

Human rights
policy

Environmental,
social & climate
change risk
management
policy

Sensitive sectors
policy

Brings together
the ethical
principles and
rules of conduct
all Group
employees must
follow, and is
central to our

Establishes the
guidelines and
standards to
ensure a consistent
group culture.

Outlines our
general
sustainability
principles and
voluntary
commitments
aimed at
generating long-

Sets out how we
protect human
rights, in line with
the UN Guiding
Principles on
Business and
Human Rights.

Details how we
identify and
manage
environmental,
social and climate
change risks, in oil
and gas, energy,
mining and metals,

Provides
guidelines for
assessing and
deciding on our
participation in
industries which
carry reputational
risk.

compliance term value for our and in soft

function. stakeholders. commodities.
Other policies that support our responsible banking strategy

Consumer Code of Cybersecurity Third-party  Tax Conflicts Financing  Policy on Global
protecction conductin  policy certification policy of interest  of political contributions mobility
policy security policy policy parties for social policy
markets policy purpose

A. Includes the Group's Diversity & Inclusion Principles and the Corporate Volunteering Standard. The responsible banking function's
B. It replaces the sectoral policies on energy, mining and metals and soft commodities. % core policies can be found on our
C. Includes financial consumer protection principles. corporate website.

D. Includes principles on the responsible behaviour of suppliers.

Policy changes in 2020

In addition to update them as
every year, we merged the policies
on oil and gas, energy, mining and
metals, and soft commodities into
the Environmental, social and
climate change risks
management policy.

We published our Financing of
political parties policy and the
Policy on contributions for social
purpose on our corporate website.

All local boards adopted our
General sustainability, Corporate
culture and Human rights policies.
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Strategic framework

L

Governance

- The board of directors approves and supervises the general policies and strategies on our corporate culture, values,
responsible business and sustainability. It also makes sure all the group’s employees act ethically by following the
laws, customs and good practices of the industries and countries where we operate.

- The responsible banking, sustainability & culture committee assists the board with oversight of the group's
responsible banking agenda and strategy.

The committee is supported by two steering groups:

* The Culture steering group promotes our culture, The Santander Wayj, is %
embedded in all we do and ensure consistency in corporate and local actions.

See section 4.9 '‘Responsible

« The Inclusive & Sustainable Banking steering group reviews initiatives on social banking, sustainability and
and financial inclusion; promotes education and training; supports the transition culture committee activities in

2020’ in the 'Corporate

to a low-carbon economy; and backs investments to benefit society. Governance' chapter

Responsible banking network

- The corporate responsible banking unit coordinates and drives the responsible banking agenda. A senior advisor on
responsible business practices supports this unit and reports directly to the executive chairman.

- Our subsidiaries' sustainability and culture units execute their responsible banking agendas, ensuring they are
aligned with our corporate strategy and policies.Their responsible banking governance is led by a senior manager,
who is part of the group-wide Responsible banking network.

- Guiding principles for subsidiaries and global business units ensure our responsible banking agenda is embedded
across the group.

- The Responsible Banking network meets every two months. In addition, the corporate responsible banking unit and
local units hold regular bilateral meetings. In 2020, the network ran the second Responsible Banking workshop with
responsible banking representatives from all businesses and geographies.

- New working groups ensure we focus, and promote collaboration on financial education, sustainable finance,
climate change, simplification and other areas.

Strategic priorities: Embedding ESG in our busines model

What? How?
(E) Contribute to the Paris = Pursuing a climate strategy that plays a part in achieving the Paris Agreement goals
Agreement and a low- - Helping our customers transition to a low-carbon economy with value-added
carbon economy products and services to manage environmental and social risks

- Minimizing our environmental footprint

(S) Have a best-in-class, - Cultivating a workplace that attracts and retains diverse talent
inclusive proposition to = Providing value propositions to meet the needs of our broad customer base
maximize our social impact - Fostering financial inclusion and empowerment
= Supporting society through Santander Universities and other community programmes

(G) Do things the right way = Promoting our strong culture, The Santander Way
through robust and = Listening to our stakeholders
transparent processes = Applying best-in-class policies based on ethical behaviour
= Ensuring sound corporate governance and risk management
= Implementing Simple, Personal and Fair practices with customers and suppliers

We have 11 targets that place responsible banking at the heart of our business strategy (see section '2020 highlights'
in this chapter).
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Helping society tackle global challenges:
2030 agenda
Our activity and investments contribute to several United
Nations' Sustainable Development Goals and support the S U STAI NAB LE
Paris Agreement's aim to fight climate change. DEVELOPMENT
We ran an analysis of the contribution of our agenda to SDGs. -‘!’“’%
It also has revealed which goals are most relevant to Grupo -'.é S
Santander’s activity, commitments, strategic focus, and other a“w’
external factors.
SDGs where our activity and community investment carry the most weight
1o We want to reduce poverty and boost the QUALITY Our pioneering Santander Universities
POVERTY welfare and economy of the countries we EDUCATION programme helps universities and students

services and community investment
programmes empower millions each year.

operate in. Our financial inclusion products and

prosper, promoting education,
entrepreneurship and employment. Also,
Santander Scholarships is one of the world's
largest private education grant funds.

|

CENDER We promote an inclusive and diverse
EQUALITY workplace, ensuring equal opportunity as a

strategic priority. We also run initiatives to
drive diversity.

We're the global leader in renewable energy
financing, and also finance energy efficiency
projects; low-emission, electric and hybrid
vehicles; and other cleaner transport solutions.

[RVSMI™ Our skilled and committed team allows us to
el respond to customers' needs, help

entrepreneurs create businesses and jobs, and
‘I' strengthen local economies.

Our products and services give society's most
vulnerable better access to financial services,
and we teach them the concepts and skills
they need to manage their finances effectively.

10 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

VN
(=)

v

We finance sustainable infrastructure and
5| promote access to affordable housing to
guarantee basic services and inclusive
economic growth.

We tackle climate change by reducing our own
carbon footprint and helping our customers
transition to a sustainable economy.

13 oo

We promote transparency, the fight against
el COrTuption and the need for robust institutions
0 for sustainable development. We have policies
_z and codes of conduct that regulate our activity
bz and behaviour, and frame our commitments
towards more a more responsible banking
system.

16 Lo

We participate in prominent local and

17 PARTHERSHIPS . . T .
international initiatives and working groups.

FOR THE GOALS

&

A. In the coming months we will publish a detailed analysis and results of this analysis on our corporate website.
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Joint initiatives to promote our agenda

We drive our responsible banking agenda through a number
of local and international initiatives and working groups,
including:

- UNEP Finance initiative. We are a founding signatory to the
United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking and
signed up to the Collective Commitment to Climate Action
(CCCA) to transition the financial sector to a low-carbon
economy faster. In 2020, we participated in Phase Il of the
UNEP FI project on the TCFD's recommendations for banks,
alongside 38 other financial institutions from six
continents. We also reported on the progress made to
accelerate the adoption of low-carbon and climate-resilient
technologies and business models in society.

+ United Nations Global Compact. We've been part of the
Global Compact network since 2002. In 2020, we joined the
United Nations Global Compact's gender equality
programme. We also joined the Target Gender Equality
(TGE) programme, launched in 19 countries with the goal of
increasing the number of women on company boards and
in executive roles.

+ World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD). Our Group Executive Chairman, Ana Botin, sits on
the WBCSD's executive committee. In 2020, we supported
the Vision 2050 and Future of Work initiatives and signalled
our intention to participate in the new Scaling Positive
Agriculture project under the Food, Land & Water
Programme.

+ Banking Environment Initiative (BEI). We continued to
participate in the Bank 2030 initiative, aimed at building a
roadmap for the banking industry to help society in the
transition towards a low-carbon economy.

Other international and local initiatives that Santander supports

> UN Women's Empowerment Principles >

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

+ CEO Partnership for Economic Inclusion. We're part of a
private-sector alliance for financial inclusion, led by Queen
Maxima of the Netherlands, Special Representative of the
United Nations, to promote inclusive financing for
development. Amid the covid-19 pandemic, we attended a
meeting with participants' CEOs to explore ways to make
low-income customers and small businesses more resilient
to the crisis.

- Equator Principles. We analyse the environmental and
social risks of our lending according to the Equator
Principles and help draw up common criteria.

We joined the Green Recovery Alliance of the European
Union and the Consultative Group of the Taskforce on
Scaling Voluntary Carbon Markets.

Santander Brasil drew up a comprehensive plan with Itad
Unibanco and Bradesco to promote the sustainable
development of the Amazon. The plan includes ten measures
targeting the three areas considered the top priority for the
region: environmental conservation and the development of a
bioeconomy; investment in sustainable infrastructure; and
the guarantee of basic human rights.

Santander US joined the Hispanic Promise, a non-legally
binding sign of intention to create a more inclusive and
equitable work environment for Hispanic workers. This
initiative launched at the 2019 World Economic Forum and
has been endorsed by more than 150 companies.

International Wildlife Trade Financial
Taskforce

) The Valuable 500

Round Table on Responsible Soy

UN Principles for Responsible
Investment

IS

Working group on Sustainable Livestock

CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project)

Climate Leadership Council

UN Global Investors for Sustainable
Development (GISD) Alliance

VvV WV WV

VvV V VWV

The Wolfsberg Group
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Qur response to covid-19

As a responsible bank, in 2020 we did all we could to
protect the health of our teams and customers, while
helping reduce the economic impact of the crisis.

Contingency plans:

Our Comprehensive Special Situation
Corporate Framework centralizes
governance in crises like covid-19

Special Situations Management
Committee for conducting and
monitoring the management of events.

Regular dry runs to raise awareness of,
and prepare for, certain stress situations.

00
a0)

People:

Our priority was to keep our 191,000
employees healthy and safe

Teleworking: more than 100,000
employees at the height of the pandemic,
gradual returns to the workplace with
safety measures, and more flexible work-
life balance policies.

Support measures: Salary advances and
other financial provisions, office equipment
and healthcare supplies delivered to
homes, and psychological support.

Health and safety protocols: Testing and
health monitoring, as well as track and
trace on mobile apps.

#SafeTogether

Flexiﬁé}i{ing

See section 'A talented and
engaged team' in this chapter.

Ensuring business continuity:
As an essential service, we guaranteed our

{0

Contents

operations would continue with the same standards

of quality

Special measures in all our countries:

« Social distancing and shift patterns

« Designation of critical staff

« Segregation of technology infrastructure

00
L)

Customers:

We supported our customers in three areas:

Preserving their health, guaranteeing
uninterrupted service on all channels and
promoting their financial resilience

Stronger channels:

Call centres
New digital solutions

Easy access to government-backed lines of

credit.

Branches: Special business hours, shifts,
selective closures and spaces adapted to
safety measures.

Support for the most vulnerable: Liquidity

and credit facilities; grace periods and
payment holidays; reduced fees; and

covid-19 cover in health insurance policies.

‘Meeting the needs of everyone in society’ and ‘Financial
| inclusion and empowerment’ in this chapter.

% | See sections 'Acting responsible towards our customers’,

See section ‘3.3 covid-19 credit risk management' in
the 'Risk management and compliance' chapter.

A. Both the Corporation and relevant Subsidiaries shall constitute this Committee. And shall be invoked by the top senior executive to strategically steer and

manage a Special Situation
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We delivered a co-ordinated response across the Group, and
created a common branding - All. Together. Now.

000

Communities:

We collaborated on global initiatives to
tackle the pandemic, raising more than
EUR 100 million

Together Solidarity Fund for
healthcare supplies.

Senior management commitment:
Pay cut taken by the Group executive
chairman, CEO, board directors and
top two executive segments in the
Group

Support through Santander
Universidades to projects facing
health and educational challenges
due to the crisis.

Online scholarships
#YoMeQuedoEnCasa for more than
20,000 young people

Cooperation with the public sector:
Tracing app in Mexico (with BBVA)
and management of ICO loans.

See section 'Supporting communities’ in this
chapter.

Euromoney recognized
Santander's management of

AT
EUR |1”i¢| covid-19 and support for SMEs

AWARDA FOR EXCELLENT

2

000

Shareholders:

We met our obligations towards
shareholders.

We held a virtual April 2020 AGM.

We adapted our dividend policy to ECB
recommendations.

We held a hybrid October 2020 AGM, where
we approved a new remuneration proposal
charged against the 2079 and 2020 results.

more than

30,000

new shareholders
since Dec. 2019

% See section ‘Shareholder value'.

with the Group objetives and the covid-19 crisis’ in the
Corporate governance chapter.

% See section 1.3 'Alignment of executive compensation

- Always informed: www.santander.com

- Ask Ana: Regular talks and Q&As with employees
hosted by the Group executive chairman. We held
10 meetings, which attracted 140,000 connections/
views

-> Work Café: 65 online events with more than
200,000 attendees

- Esto lo superamos juntos (We'll get through this
together): Local websites with helpful information
and resources to navigate the crisis
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2020 highlights

Our 11 public commitments to build a more
responsible bank

Grupo Santander works to maintain a strong culture,
developed by a skilled, motivated and diverse workforce, able
to deliver the right solutions for our customers' needs while
improving the communities we serve. We offer financing our
customers can afford and support education that increases
their financial resilience. We also strive to foster the global
transition to the green economy, while reducing our own
environmental footprint.

Our public commitments

{0
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In 2019, we disclosed 11 public commitments which reflect
our ambitions for the responsible banking agenda. Our
pledges help us integrate ESG aspects into business
management, and are set out to be SMART (Specific,
Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time-bound) so we can
fulfil the UN SDGs intrinsic to our operations, and make
progress towards the targets set out in the Paris Agreement
on climate change.

In 2020, we made significant progress, achieving carbon
neutrality and fulfilling four of our 2021 commitments one
year early.

2018
Top 10 company to work for 4
Women on the board 33%
Women in senior leadership positions® (%) 20%
Equal pay gap© 3%
Financially empowered peopleD
Green finance raised and facilitated® (EUR)
Electricity used from renewable energy sources’ 43%

. o . G
Becoming carbon neutral in our own operations

Reduction of unnecessary single-use plastics in
corporate buildings and branches

Scholarships, internships and entrepreneurship
programmes‘

People helped through our community programmesJ

A. According to external indexes in each country (Great Place to Work, Top
Employer, Merco, etc.).

B. Senior leadership positions make up 1% of the total workforce.
C. Equal pay gap based on same jobs, levels and functions.

D.Unbanked, underbanked or financially vulnerable individuals receive tailored
finance solutions and can increase their knowledge and resilience through
financial education.

m

. Includes Grupo Santander's contribution to green finance: project finance;
syndicated loans; green bonds; capital finance; export finance, advisory
services, structuring and other products, to help customers transition to a
low-carbon economy. EUR 220bn committed from 2019 to 2030.
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2019 2020 2021 2025
5 6v 6
40% 40% v 40% - 60%
22.7% 23.7% 30%
2% 1.5% ~0%
2.0mn 4.9mn
19bn 33.8bn 120bn
50% 57% >> 60% 100%

0% v
75% 98% >>> 100%
69k 225k v 200k
1.6mn 4.0mn<v  4mn

Cumulative target From... to...

F. In countries where we can confirm electricity from renewable sources at
properties occupied by Grupo Santander.

G.In our core geographies (G10).

H. The reported percentage takes our core geographies (G10) into account.
Specific measures taken to cope with the covid-19 situation that might have
involved use of plastics has not been penalized in the calculation of this
percentage

. Beneficiaries of Santander Universities (students given a Santander
scholarship will do a work placement in an SME or take part in
entrepreneurship programmes Grupo Santander endorses).

J. Beneficiaries of our community investment programmes (not including

Santander Universities and financial education initiatives).
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...and promote inclusive and
sustainable growth

+ The corporate culture policy approved by the Group
board in December 2019 was approved by all local
boards in 2020.

+ Our new 5-year D&l strategy raises awareness and
introduces new enablers to cultivate an inclusive
workforce in terms of gender, LGBTI, people with
disabilities, age, ethnicity, religion and educational
background.

+ Our new, simple and easy-to-access escalation
channel, Canal Abierto, is available in all our
countries, offering full anonymity to users.

+ Our new global simplification network mapped all
our simplification initiatives and introduced
consistent plans, KPIs and qualitative ways of
measuring progress and impact.

+ Our new pilot programme offers better assessment
and onboarding for c. 400 core suppliers based on
ESG criteria.

+ Salesforce remuneration scheme: we significantly
increased the weight of conduct/quality on variable
remuneration (40% or more). Customer satisfaction
and service quality are the basic pillars of this
model.

+ Thematic reviews on overdrafts, packaged accounts
and revolving cards.

+ We updated our climate strategy, committing to: i)

aligning our power generation portfolio with the
Paris Agreement by 2030; ii) stop providing financial
services to power generation customers with a
revenue dependency on coal of over 10% in 2030;
iii) reduce our worldwide exposure to coal mining
production to zero by 2030; iv) and the ambition to
be net zero carbon emissions by 2050.

+ Local boards approved the most recent

sustainability and human rights policies.

+ Our second EUR 1 billion green bond launched

under our Sustainable & Green Bonds framework.
We also released an initial report on the first
issuance.

We offset our all emissions from our operation, thus
become carbon neutral.

We released our first reports for the UNEP FI
Collective Commitment on Climate Action.

We joined the Green Recovery Alliance of the
European Union and the Consultative Group of the
Taskforce on Scaling Voluntary Carbon Markets.

We mapped solutions and products for our new
Green Book.

Santander CIB created a new ESG team to expand
our ESG solutions.

Santander Brasil partnered with Bradesco and Itau
Unibanco on sustainable development in the
Amazon.

« Our global financial education site further

reinforced our financial empowerment objectives.
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Our efforts have been recognized the world over

Member of
Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices

Powered by the S&P Global CSA

Member of Dow Jones Sustainability Index

The Dow Jones Sustanibility Index (DJSI World) listed
Grupo Santander for the 20th year in a row, with top
marks in financial inclusion, crime prevention, tax
strategy, customer relationship management,
environmental reporting, operational eco-efficiency and
social reporting. We also improved our FTSE4Good and
Sustainalytics scores.

One of the world's best places to work

Great Place to Work put Grupo Santander among the
world's 25 best workplaces for the second year, out of
more than 10,000 organizations worldwide that ensure
exceptional employee experiences and high-trust
relationships rooted in fairness and equality. The institute
also named us one of the Best Places to Work in Latin
America.

EUROMONEY

RWARDS FOR EXCELLENCE

o
o

Best bank for diversity and inclusion,

and for SMEs

Euromoney gave Santander its global ‘Best Bank for
Diversity and Inclusion” award for the first time, in
addition to our third global ‘Best Bank for SMEs' award in
five years. The magazine highlighted the breadth and
ambition of our diversity and inclusion programmes. It
also presented us with its "Excellence on Leadership"
award for our covid-19 response in Europe.

30

. 2021,

Bloomberg

" Gender-Equality |
3 Index

Among top 10 in Bloomberg Gender- Equality Index

Grupo Santander 7th in the Bloomberg Gender- Equality Index
(BGEI) scoring above average in every category. Top score
achieved in equal pay and gender pay parity. The BGEl is a
golden seal for companies around the world that show a firm
public commitment to equality and women in the workplace
through policymaking, visibility and transparency.

ELUROPE

2020

Top Employers 2020

Top Employers recognizes the excellent work environment of
our bank in Spain, Poland, the UK and Chile, and of Santander
Consumer Finance in Germany, the Netherlands, Austria, Italy,
Poland and Belgium. As Santander has won awards in more
than five European countries, it also received the Top
Employers Europe certification.

Best
Global
Brands
2020

2
€
8
£
8
E

One of the 100 most valuable brands in the world

Thanks to our work helping communities prosper in a way that
is Simple, Personal and Fair, we have been recognized as the
biggest bank in the eurozone and the sixth bank in
Interbrand’s 2020 Best Global Brands ranking.
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Local Awards

%UK

The Times listed Santander UK as one of the Top 50
employers for Women 2020.

‘ Chile

Santander Chile was named a Leading Company in
Sustainability by ALAS20, as well as being made a
member of DJSI Chile, DJSI MILA Pacific Alliance and DJSI
Emerging Markets

@ Mexico

Santander Mexico placed ninth in TOP Companies' Stper
Empresas 2020 ranking. It is a member of the new S&P/
BMV Total Mexico ESG Index and DJSI MILA Pacific
Alliance. It was also named by International Finance
magazine as the Best Bank for Financial Inclusion in
Mexico for the TUIIIO microfinance programme, which
also received socially responsible company honours from
Centro Mexicano para la Filantropia (Cemefi) and Alianza
por la Responsabilidad Social Empresarial (AliaRSE).

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance
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= Argentina

Great Place to Work named Santander Argentina one of the
five best companies for women.

0 Brazil

Santander Brasil was chosen by Great Place To Work as one of
the 10 best companies for women and for the 11th year
running featured in the indice de Sustentabilidade Empresarial
(ISE) portfolio.

W poland

Santander Polska featured among Wprost magazine's “best
employers in times of crisis”.

°Portugal

Great Place To Work named Santander Portugal the “Best
Bank to work for in Portugal” and we ranked third overall in its
category for companies with over 1,000 employees.
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The new business
environment

To meet the challenge of the new business environment,
we're focusing on...
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Our strong and
inclusive culture:

The Santander Way

A strong corporate culture is
critical to succeeding in today's
competitive, fast-moving
environment.

A talented and Acting responsibly
engaged team towards our customers
The more prepared and motivated We develop our products and

our workforce is, the stronger its services responsibly, and aspire to
commitment to helping people deliver excellent customer

and business prosper will be. Our service.

team reflects the diversity of the
communities where we operate.

Responsible Shareholder value
procurement We have clear and robust

Our procurement processes apply governance that manages risks
ethical, social and environmental and opportunities prudently and
criteria to ensure we operate in a devises long-term strategy to
sustainable way. safeguard the interests of our

shareholders and broader society.
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The Santander Way is our purpose, our aim and
how we do business. It's our bedrock for building
a more responsible bank.
Being more responsible requires
a strong culture
Santander's corporate culture is critical to building a more
responsible bank. By fulfilling our purpose of helping people
and businesses prosper, our business grows and creates value
for everyone.
The Santander Way
Our values
Our Simple | Personal | Fair
purpose
Corporate behaviours
To help people and
businesses prospers. i -
e LK x
Show Truly Talk Keep
respect listen straight promises
Our risk pro
sl ﬂ‘
our o
aim “
Actively Bring Support Embrace
To be the best open collaborate  passion people change
financial services
platform by acting ) )
responsibly and earning Leadership commitments
the lasting loyalty of our . o Inspiring and executing
peop[e’ customers, Belng open and inclusive T
shareholders and .
communities. Encouraging the team to Leading by example
prosper
To live The Santander Way and be Simple, Personal and Fair “Just as important as what we do is
in everything we do, we have eight corporate behaviours how we do it"

embedded in every stage of the employee lifecycle, from
recruitment and training to performance reviews and
compensation. In addition, our principles on diversity and
inclusion (D&l) strengthen our relations with our broad base
of stakeholders, making sure we are fully inclusive.
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Cultural transformation:
an ongoing journey

We understand a strong culture takes time to embed. Since
The Santander Way launched in 2015, we've strived to ensure
everything we do for our customers, employees, shareholders
and communities is Simple, Personal and Fair. This ambition
is reflected in the standards we uphold across Grupo
Santander.

By virtue of our talented and engaged workforce, guided by
clear governance, we've made great strides to strengthen our

Economic
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and compliance

culture and values. Our employee engagement scores have
increased by 12 percentage points (pp) since 2014. 86% of
employees said they felt proud to work for Santander (+8 pp
since 2014). 81% would recommend working at Santander
(+10 pp since 2014), and 84% (+13 pp vs 2014) said their job
gives them purpose and motivation to build a bank that is
even more Simple, Personal and Fair.

Culture plan 2020: objectives and achievements

Objectives

Achievements

Drive our D&l strategy with
enablers of an inclusive

workplace

Diversity and
Ch —

inclusion

Implement global minimum
standards on parental leave

+ Women make up 23.7% of senior management
(up from 22.7%) and 40% of the board of
directors.

+ Cultural diversity increased from 50% to 66%
among senior managers .

The percentage of employees with disability rose
from 1.8% to 1.9%.

The board approved a D&l strategy.

.

Among top 10 in the 2027 Bloomberg Gender-
Equality Index and named the World's Best Bank
for D&l by Euromoney.

Q)) Speaking up %

our core markets

Implement ethical channels in

+ Our ethical channels with global minimum
standards were implemented across our
footprint.

Uphold customer protection

Acting
O O responsibly S
OO0 towards our
customers

principles

Lay down corporate guidelines
on vulnerable customers

We mapped out initiatives and rolled out
guidelines on vulnerable customers in our core
countries.

Responsible Banking unit’s 3-year strategic plan
incorporated progress indicators to measure
responsible practices towards customers.

We implemented covid-19 measures for
customers, sharing best practices.

We completed our 3-year plan to include
customer satisfaction indicators within salesforce
remuneration schemes.

; for suppliers

é Responsible
procurement

suppliers

Enhance governance for critical

Roll out an ESG pilot programme . oy pilot programme assessed c. 400 key

suppliers according to environmental, social and
governance (ESG) criteria.

We improved our risk management model.

QD Simplification %

simplification

Improve metrics about

Our global simplification network mapped 115
projects.

Key performance indicators applied to T00% of
projects.

Identify and map out projects - 100% of the projects align with how we measure
that streamline processes

simplification through our Global Engagement
survey or Net Promoted Score (NPS) results.

We developed a global project in Legal within 10
countries with more than 30 initiatives that
managed to shorten some contracts in 50%,
procedures in 20% and have also reduced the
number of contractual models.

A. Cultural diversity considers race and ethnicity, nationality, age, experience and career background locally and abroad.
For more details on diversity and inclusion and speaking up, see the next section titled "A talented and engaged team". Further information on the Simple, Personal
and Fair approach towards customers and suppliers can be found under the "Acting Responsible Towards Customers" and "Responsible procurement" sections

respectively.
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Risk pro: Our risk culture

Prudent risk management is essential to any responsible
bank. This requires clear policies, processes and lines of
accountability. Over the years, banks have been subject to
greater scrutiny by the European Central Bank (ECB) and
other regulators who pay close attention to how the financial
institutions they oversee understand risk at all levels.
Therefore, at Santander we make risk management
everyone's business.

While risks and regulatory requirements for banks often
change tune,Grupo Santander’s risk management has
consistently ensured excellent, sustainable growth, owing to
our robust risk culture called Risk pro (or | AM Risk in the UK
and the US).

In Risk pro, everyone is responsible for managing the risks
they encounter,regardless of level or role. Therefore, 10% of
our common performance management model,
MyContribution, is based on daily risk management.

As one of the common standards of our corporate culture
policy, Risk pro instils prudence and vigour into our risk
management, proving more effective than ever in the
covid-19 crisis.

Promoting and enhancing our risk culture

In 2020, Grupo Santander's risk culture grew stronger. The
Risk and the Compliance & Conduct divisions worked together
to embed Risk pro in recruitment, onboarding, day-to-day
operations and leadership across all businesses.
Communications and mandatory training have acted as key
levers that continue to drive the importance of ethical
behaviours in our day-to-day work.

We do this through such initiatives as Risk Pro Heroes (to
recognize employees' efforts to escalate risk); the speak up
channels in place across our footprint to encourage the
reporting of reputational and business risks; and the Risk pro
Week/Month. In 2020, we ran a joint Risk pro Week for the
first time involving the UK, Mexico, Chile, Argentina, Peru,
Colombia and the Corporate Centre in Spain, cultivating
employees' appreciation for risk management in everyday
functions with informative materials, messages, videos and
webinars.

To measure our progress in embedding Risk pro in Grupo
Santander, we reviewed risk profile assessments (RPAs)
completed by local teams and simplified the metrics of the
Risk pro dashboard, which gave us better insight into local
adoption of our risk culture across our footprint. We also
improved group-wide cooperation and shared best practices
thanks to six new working groups that devised an operating
model based on local risk management.
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Risk management: The bedrock of a responsible bank

Grupo Santander's risk management and compliance model,
driven by our core values, culture, ethical behaviours and
responsible banking strategy, consists of three lines of
defence:

1. Business and support units
2. Risk management and compliance
3. Internal audit

The board of directors is in charge of controlling risks and
setting risk appetite. It receives expert support from its risk
supervision, regulation and compliance committee.

Building a responsible bank rests on our analysis and
handling of risks to our reputation, regulatory compliance,
conduct, digitalization, society, the environment and climate
change. In 2020, Grupo Santander continued efforts to
identify, analyse and spread awareness on climate-change
risks on the TCFD's recommendations (for more details, see
the section on sustainable finance).

see section 2.5 in the 'Risk Management and

For more details on environmental and social risks,
% Control' chapter.

money laundering and terrorism financing, see section 7.2.
'Compliance and conduct risk management' in the 'Risk
management and compliance' chapter.

% For more details on our prevention of corruption, bribery,

'Performance review and remuneration’ in 'A talented and

For more details on MyContribution model see
% engaged team' section.

risk pro

Everyone’s business
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Cybersecurity is critical in the digital age. Cyber attacks and
fraud pose systemic risks to financial services. Customers
expect their data to be secure and ethically processed.

Cybersecurity is built into our culture to foster crucial
behaviours that protect our bank and our customers'
information. The group culture steering approved an initiative
to include cyber security as part of the 10% risk objective of
the employees' performance management. With global
cyber threats on the rise, we gave training to payment
operators, developers, executives and board members, and
launched an updated version of our mandatory
cybersecurity training course. Our awareness initiatives on
digital channels help customers and our communities stay
safe online. We started a global cybersecurity campaign
under the UEFA Champions League and Copa Conmebol
Libertadores sponsorship, using football analogies to share
our five cyber tips. We continue raise cyber awareness for
personal and business customers through our websites, social
media and online workshops.

Cybersecurity is the
responsibility of everyone who
works with Santander

93%

of employees can
identify risks in their job
every day

91%

of employees see cyber
security as a top priority

We work with public and private organizations to promote
knowledge sharing and collaboration on cybersecurity. We
lead efforts in key geographies to increase information
exchanges with government agencies and financial
institutions. We also champion the creation of international
exchange mechanisms to help combat cyber crime.

Our cybersecurity and IT conduct policy is fundamental in our
cybersecurity endeavours to protect our bank and our
customers. It outlines how Santander equipment and
Information Technology (IT) services should be used. It
highlights areas of risk and misconduct. It explains how our
rules can avoid, mitigate and manage reputational and
commercial risks. It also sets out how Grupo Santander and
subsidiaries must handle the technology, work tools and
information we provide employees with to prevent legal,
reputational and cyber-related incidents.

1 &

For more details on our
cybersecurity plan, see section
'6.2 Operational risk
management' in the 'Risk
management and compliance'
chapter.

For more details on employees'
cybersecurity training, see the

section 'A talented and engaged
team' in this chapter.

75%

of employees feel
encouraged by managers
to report important
information, even bad
news

79%

of employees say they
can report unethical
conduct without fear of
retaliation

Source: Global Engagement survey 2019. Next survey expected in May 2021
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Contents
Our team reflects the diversity of our communities and
adapts to the new business environment, inspiring
customer loyalty and meeting society's needs.
Our people, the cornerstone of our strategy
Beeerernneeenennn e senanaens O ................................................................................ O
Talent management Performance reviews and remuneration
Robust talent management means attracting and Our performance reviews and remuneration
retaining the best talent while encouraging our align with our culture.
people to learn and develop.
Diversity and inclusion Employee experience
A diverse and inclusive workforce is A motivated workforce builds the best
pivotal to our cultural transformation work environment that promotes
and to delivering our strategy. wellbeing, flexible working schemes and
speaking up.
Our goal Achievement in 2020
Treating our employees responsibly builds stronger teams willing to go
the extra mile for our customers and guarantees the returns our
shareholders expect. This way, we can invest more in our communities
while making our people proud to be part of Grupo Santander in a
virtuous circle of loyalty that drives our success.
Last year, we set out to be among the top 1q\companies TO 1 0
to work for in 6 of our geographies by 2021. p
company in .
6 geographies
A. According to a leading external source in each country (Great Place to Work, Top Employer, B. Spain, Portugal, Argentina, Mexico, Uruguay and Chile, using
Merco, etc.). the latest publications at our disposal. In Portugal and

Argentina the rankings used only consider companies with
more than 1,000 employees.
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Talent management

Our talent management strategy helps us attract and retain
the most talented and skilled employees. It also contributes
to accelerating our transformation by fostering their
continuous development. Several projects further this
objective:

« Strategic Workforce Planning (SWP) identifies employee
challenges and gaps in skills and expertise. It helps us
create action plans to make sure each area has the skills it
requires.

+ Skill Model helps define common job profiles across the
group. As the skills we require become increasingly similar
across geographies, it is an opportunity to define common
role requirements that can help our employees understand
what is critical in their jobs and focus on new areas to drive
our transformation.

- Dojo tackles the transformational challenge of our training
and career development. It brings all our global
subsidiaries under one training platform that up-skills and
re-skills employees faster.

+ Workday is our new global HR platform. It gives us an
overview of people's skills and expertise, and allows us to
collaborate and communicate more easily.

These programmes are complemented by local initiatives to
cultivate talent according to each geography's specific
requirements.

Talent attraction

We must attract talent that will drive our transformation
while boosting skills and streamlining processes.

In 2020 we integrated our countries into our global career
website, where applicants can now find our openings across
the globe in just one place.

We also relaunched a section in our intranet, Global Job
Posting, which opens internal vacancies from our countries to
all our employees. Our new search engine simplified
employee experience and increased access to more than 800
job descriptions in various geographies, fostering the
functional and geographical mobility that is key to talent
development. We also explored innovative technology
solutions to support our digital transformation, maximize
efficiency in recruitment processes and enhance applicants'
experience.
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Talent management figures 2020 2019
Total employees (thousand)® 191 196
% employees with a permanent contract” 97.9 97.9
% employees working full time® 94.9 94.9
Employees joining/leaving (turnover) 12.6 17.6
% of workforce promoted 6.7 8.3
Average length of service (years)" 10.2 10.2
% coverage of collective agreementsA 74.5 74.5

A. At year end

&

For more details, see the
'Key metrics’ section in this
chapter.

Attracting tech/digital professionals

Our employee value proposition, The Santander Effect, drives
the impact the tech and digital experts we recruit can have on
our organization.

Santander Global Technologies launched Be Tech! with
Santander, an initiative to find and onboard 500 new
employees with different digital backgrounds and degrees in
STEM disciplines. The critical in-house knowledge and skills
we are gaining, as well as new ways of thinking and problem-
solving, is enriching our capabilities in Cloud, Data and
Cybersecurity.

In Poland, our SantanderTech programme offers a six-month
work experience to students and recent graduates with
projects that give them a unique advantage in their career
development.

39



& Santander  Annual report 2020

Career development

Santander's transformation is boosted by our continuous
learning approach. Our training and development
programmes help employees acquire new skills, sharpen old
ones, increase performance and productivity, and become
better leaders.

These are our main talent and career development
programmes:

- Talent reviews to assess our employees’ potential and
support the professional growth of highly promising
individuals.

Succession planning: Our strategic approach is critical to
ensuring Santander’s future success by identifying potential
replacements for key roles and provide them with valuable
development opportunities.

Action Learning Programme Santander (ALPS) for senior
managers. ALPS fosters business leadership and problem-
solving in a collaborative environment. 2020 marked its
third year, with 35 executives taking part.

Young Leaders engages 280 emerging leaders from 22
countries who possess outstanding expertise in digital and
innovation, and uphold our Simple, Personal and Fair (SPF)
culture. Participants work with senior managers to
implement Santander’s strategy and share new ideas.

Top Talent focuses on accelerating the development of our
most senior leaders. Participants reflect on their managerial
style and are given individual feedback and support to
create a development plan based on their key strengths and
areas of improvement.

Santander, a great company to work for

{0
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Corporate mobility

Mobility is vital to developing our employees and making our
teams more diverse. Our main mobility programmes are:

+ Global Job Posting offers employees the chance to apply
for jobs in other countries, companies and divisions of
Grupo Santander. Since 2014, it has posted over 5,700
openings.

Division Talent Mobility Programmes: CIB, Accounting and
Control, Internal Audit and other businesses and functions
have international mobility programmes to expose
employees to new realities and projects, boosting their
career development.

Mundo Santander has been one of Grupo Santander's
flagship talent programmes since 2008. It supports the
development of +2,000 employees who have taken part in
strategic assignments in other countries for 3 to 6 months.
Due to current travel restrictions, Mundo Santander was re-
designed in 2020, so participants could work virtually on
international projects in the future to foster their career
development under these new circumstances.

"Mundo Santander was a fantastic opportunity
to connect with colleagues from other countries,
and learn different perspectives on how we do
business"

Styvenson Pefia, Corporate Centre

In 2019, we set the target to be a top 10 employer in six of
the countries we operate in by 20271. We changed our target
from being a "top bank" to being a "top company to work for"
to stay ahead of the competition in attracting the best talent.

We featured in the Great Place To Work list of the 25 best
companies to work for in the world for the second year in a
row, out of more than 10,000 organizations from 92
countries. We are also the highest ranked bank worldwide.
The ranking considered us one of the Best Places to Work in
Latin America, as well as naming Santander Argentina one of
the five best companies for women and Santander Brasil one
of the ten best companies for women.

We received the Top Employers 2020 certification in Chile,
Spain, Poland, the UK and in our SCF units in Germany, the
Netherlands, Austria, Italy, Poland and Belgium. This honour
recognizes excellent working conditions and contributions to
personal and professional development. Thanks to the
achievements made in Europe, we obtained the Top
Employers Europe 2020 certification.
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Furthermore, Santander México ranked ninth in TOP
Companies' Super Empresas 2020 ranking. The Times listed
Santander UK as one of the Top 50 employers for Women
2020, and Santander Polska featured among Wprost
magazine's best employers in times of crisis.

EMPLOYERS
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Learning and development

We value continuous learning so our employees can adapt to
a fast-paced, ever-changing environment. We have a global
induction, training and development policy to:

- transform our business.

+ manage talent, encourage innovation, share knowledge and
identify key employees in various areas.

« embed our culture in line with the governance standards of
Grupo Santander, which include the corporate culture policy
and the code of conduct.

In 2019, we laid the groundwork for two transformational
projects, Skill Model and Dojo, to support our Strategic
Workforce Planning and enhance the skills required to future-
proof the workforce. Skill Model identifies common job
profiles across our markets to drive simplification and
consistency, leveraging internal know-how and helping
Santander track what their employees know to facilitate
talent management. Dojo tackles transformational training
and development challenges by creating common learning
paths and learning objectives and bringing all our
geographies under one global training platform through
academies and badges (certifications) to up-skill and re-skill
employees faster.

In 2020, Dojo launched and, by October, it had reached 2,167
employees from Retail and Consumer in 11 geographies with
a minimum viable product (MVP) that includes three initial
academies (Agile, Engineering and Cloud), a Customer &
Commercial Academy (to launch in the first quarter of 2021),
and the first Badges (certifications) in Agile framework
fundamentals, Agile for Teams, Agile Metrics, and Scaling
Agile at Santander. Today, Dojo covers 243 skills with more
than 38,000 learning activities.

Global training
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In 2020, we trained employees in third-generation human
rights issues, namely diversity and inclusion, health and
safety, relations with customers and suppliers, the
environment and the fight against corruption.

Likewise, and as a result of the covid 19 pandemic, Banco
Santander has promoted the use of digital channels to
continue the training of its employees

Main Group data 2020 2019
Millions invested in training 61.3 102.6
Investment per employee (euros) 320.7 522.3
% employees trained 100.0 100.0
Hours of training per employee 30.9 40.7
Employee satisfaction (over 10) 8.2 9.3

For more details, see the

'Key metrics' section in
this chapter.

Our main initiatives are:

- The Risk Pro Banking School and Academy and other
risk management centres help establish the best
strategies for our employees and promote a strong,
uniform risk culture.

- The Global School of Internal Audit offers practical
solutions designed to adapt to business and regulatory
changes.

- The Technology & Operations School has rolled out the
Agile, Engineering Excellence and Cloud Academies at
Dojo, as well as the first virtual Advanced Operations
Programme and the Cybersecurity programmes for key
roles within Grupo Santander.

- Global mandatory online training strengthens our
commitment to complying with financial regulation.
Available in all of our countries, we integrate it into
performance and incentive schemes. Courses cover
topics such as cybersecurity, Risk pro, financial crime,
data protection, conduct risk (i.e. Cyber Heroes, an
online programme to reinforce the direct role we all play
in protecting Santander, our people and our customers).
Each local unit has other mandatory courses based on
local regulations and requirements.

- Leaders' Experience is an executive business and cultural
transformation programme to help participants (849 senior
leaders and 280 young leaders) acquire the tools and skills
they need to accelerate the transformation of Grupo
Santander.

- The Faro Community has been created to leverage our
global footprint and direct our executives’ focus to
accelerate Grupo Santander's transformation.Grupo
Santander

- Through our Responsible Banking endeavours, we've
designed a new e-Learning course that raises awareness
about the damaging effects of climate change on the
economy. We also began a series of virtual talks by leading
experts about climate change and what it means for banks,
to which all senior managers were invited. In addition, our
board members received climate-related training.

Some subsidiaries and global units had additional training
on climate change, as well as on sustainability, sustainable
finance, and diversity and inclusion.
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Sharing best practice

We leveraged our global scale to improve our performance
faster with these group-wide initiatives:

- Risk Pro/l AM Risk Culture Workshop to discuss
subsidiaries' progress and establish a global Risk Pro
Culture collaboration model.

- First Workshop to create global communities and
promote a collaborative culture across Grupo Santander,
adding value through knowledge sharing. The workshop
was organized by the Compliance and Conduct
Collaboration Community

-> Non-Financial Risk Workshops on topics pertaining to
Santander Consumer Finance.

- Managing Retail Credit Risk through the covid-19 crisis to
share core lessons learned from the payment holidays
offered to retail customers.

Social dialogue and restructuring

Grupo Santander promotes and upholds all employment
regulation and trade union rights, including the International
Labour Organization's main standards, on freedom of
association and the right to collective bargaining. We are in
constant dialogue with employees’ legal representatives,
with bilateral meetings and special committees where parties
can share information, raise concerns and queries, and
negotiate.

Our restructuring processes are an example of how we
promote social dialogue. In recent years, Grupo Santander has
had to undergo restructuring in Spain, Argentina, Portugal,
Poland, the UK and other core geographies, consistently
implementing internal and external flexibility measures to
lessen the impact on employees and support their transition
to new employment:

Restructuring

When restructuring affects jobs, we always:

- Negotiate with local trade unions and legal representatives
to ensure employees' rights are upheld.

- Pay severance above the amount required by law, in
keeping with agreements with trade unions.

- Help employees find new roles in Santander or other
companies.

- Consider employees' special circumstances (i.e. disability,
children with severe disease, etc.) and offer special support.
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2™ Responsible Banking Workshop to outline Grupo
Santander’s future responsible banking strategy. Our
Responsible Banking team also holds regular video
conferences with country teams to introduce new initiatives
and share best practices.

= Our global D&l network, which shared their local good
practices and voted on one initiative to implement globally.

- Common Culture Workshop focused on setting priorities
and learning from best practices.

- Simplification network established to identify and share
local initiatives globally, enabling us to set a common
simplification methodology while tracking progress
towards clear targets.

- Customer Experience (CX) community created to support
subsidiaries in achieving the public commitment to be in
Top 3 NPS. It acts as a forum to share best practices
towards customers, contents and tools. It also helps
implement local customer experience plans.

r
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IAssisting off-boarded employees

Santander Poland executed a restructuring plan to adapt to
the new landscape. To ease the transition to new
employment and provide emotional support, we created a
protection package to help leavers realise their potential. It
gives them information on the job market and ways to search
for opportunities, as well as encouraging them to contact
prospective employers.

We launched communication campaigns, with webinars,
online consultations and new helplines. We also offered
support to managers through a change experience
framework, which they could draw on to outline their
employees' journey.

External relocation programme

We restructured the organization in 2076 and 2018 alongside
strategic partner Lee Hecht Harrison (LHH) to help those
affected decide what to do after leaving the company. The
programme committed to achieving 100% reassignmentA and
also assisted employees interested in retirement, starting up
a business, specialized training and other options. The
measures were available to all leavers and their closest
relatives free of charge and for as long as it took them to find
anew job.

Due to the pandemic, in early 2020 the bank committed to
not placing any employees on furlough (known as ERTE in
Spain).

In December, we announced further workforce restructuring,
set for completion in 2021. Around 3,500 employees will
leave organization and another 1,500 employees will be
reassigned within the Group.

A.In 2016 and 2018, 100% of active job seekers found employment through
our outplacement programmes.
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Performance review and remuneration

Our comprehensive remuneration framework combines fixed
and variable schemes based on employees’ and company
achievements. Short- and long-term variable remuneration
reflects what we have accomplished (group-wide quantitative
and qualitative targets, as well as individual and team
targets) and how (e.g., behaviour, leadership, sustainability,
commitment, growth and risk management), in addition to
pension plans, banking products and services, life insurance
and medical insurance and other competitive benefits our
employees can choose. Fixed remuneration schemes reflect
local market conditions. To set pay, we strictly apply the
benchmarks and collective agreements in force in each
country and community.

To comply with EU regulations on compensation, we class
1,389 employees who make decisions that may have a
material impact on Grupo Santander's capital as identified
staff. They are subject to a variable remuneration deferral
policy that defers a significant amount of their variable pay
(40%-60% depending on their responsibilities) for three to
seven years in accordance with internal and local regulations.
50% is delivered in shares and subject to potential reduction
(malus) or recovery (clawback).
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Main initiatives in 2020:

= Inclusion of our responsible banking targets (including
being a "top-10" company to work for; women senior
managers, financially empowered people; green finance;
and ethical channel standards) as a qualitative metric in
our executive remuneration bonus scorecard.

- Mitigation of remuneration-related risks.

= Increase awareness of fair pay practices in terms of equal
pay and gender pay gap reduction.

& &

For more details on
remuneration data, see the ‘Key
metrics’ section of this chapter.

For more details on board
remuneration, see section 6 of
the 'Corporate governance
chapter'.

MyContribution

MyContribution is our common performance management
model. Performance management is key to enriching our
culture and ensuring colleagues perform to the best of their
abilities in keeping with their career goals. Our model applies
to senior managers; employees who take risks deemed
“critical" under policies on governance, regulations and
remuneration; and employees at the Corporate Centre and in
Spain, Brazil, Mexico and Santander Consumer Finance. We
plan to implement it in other core markets in 2021.

MyContribution has three components:

+ What: 50% is based on employees' individual goals set in
line with group-wide strategy.

50%
What

Individual goals that link to the
organisational strategy.

"What | do day to day” to achieve
business results, demonstration
of how | contribute to the Group’s
Purpose and Aim.

MY —
CONTRIBUTION

+ How: 40% is based on how employees deliver on objectives
and foster the values of Simple, Personal and Fair, the eight
corporate behaviours and the four leadership
commitments, which combine to form The Santander Way.

+ Risk: 10% is based on how employees manage risk in their
day-to-day role.

MyContribution is updated regularly. It now highlights our risk
culture with a separate category created in 2020 to assess it.

. 40%
), e HOW

Common key elements that demonstrate
"how" | go about achieving my "what" -
The Santander Way

o 10%
Risk

Common risk goal for all levels and roles,

to show how | manage "
risk pro

my risks in my day to day.
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Diversity and inclusion

Our commitment to a diverse and inclusive work environment
is a cornerstone of our corporate strategy. Our global D&l
executive working group and D&l expert network of local
representatives perform a vital role in driving and cascading
the importance of diversity and inclusion across Grupo
Santander.

To recruit, manage and develop talent that reflects broader
society, we developed a diversity and inclusion (D&l)
strategy in 2020. It sets out to consolidate an inclusive
workforce in terms of gender, LGBTI, people with disabilities,
and cultural diversity (age, ethnicity and race, nationality,
educational and professional background, and international
experience) by:

encouraging leaders to get involved: their commitment to
being open and inclusive and to promoting diversity will
help consolidate our diverse and inclusive culture.

increasing awareness: promoting diversity and shaping our
culture through global standards and actions such as
FlexiWorking, parental leave, training, employee networks
and the celebration of international days.

promoting balance: special focus on increasing the number
of women in management and in development
programmes.

Initiatives and achievements in 2020

Gender Cultural
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53.7%

of employees are women
-1 pp vs 2019

23.7%

of senioAr managers are
women ,+1 pp vs 2019

39.2

Average age of the
workforce, + 0.6 pp vs
2019

1.9%

of emploxees have a
disability , +0.1 pp vs 2019

Data at year end.
A. Senior managers are 1% of total headcount
B. Data from Mexico not included as it is confidential information.

86%

of employees believe Santander treats employees fairly
regardless of their age, family, marital status, gender
identity, disability, race, colour, religion or sexual
orientation. +1 pp vs 2018.

C. 2019 Global engagement survey. Next survey expected in May 2021

Euromoney gave Santander its first-
ever global ‘Best Bank for Diversity
and Inclusion’ award, highlighting
the breadth and ambition of our
diversity and inclusion programmes

LGTBI

- 3-year roll-out of maternity and
paternity leave minimum standards:
Maternity standards improved in
Argentina as well as in Mexico, where
we also implemented secondary parent
leave. In 5 geographies, our standards
have been met or exceeded; roll-out
will continue in other markets until 2022

- An objective to achieve gender balance
in training and development
programmes

-> GPTW named Santander one of the Best
Workplaces for women 2020 in Brazil

senior managers

- Our definition of cultural diversity
expanded to include race, age and
international background

= Cultural diversity in senior managers
increased from 50% to 66%

- Black inclusion action plan rolled out in
the UK to raise the number of Black

= "Through our eyes" talks organized in
the US for employees to share
experiences, encouraging often hard
conversations about racial and social

- Embrace network leaders from each
geography met together in July to share
best practices and set the first global
LGBTI network objectives for 2021

- Survey conducted in Mexico to find out
how LGBTI individuals feel in the bank,
in addition to LGBTI inclusivity
workshops

-> Collaboration with the Office of Ethics

and Employee Relations in Poland to
encourage speaking up

and Argentina

- First global meeting of the Santander
Women Network held with
representatives from Spain, Argentina,
Chile, the US, the UK, Santander
Consumer Germany and Santander
Consumer Nordics. Our objective is to
extend the network to all subsidiaries to
act as a counseling body regarding local
gender initiatives

- New communication guide in
Argentina, which covers gender and
includes a protocol against gender
violence

- Management skill programme for
Women launched in Chile to incorporate
more women managers

injustice. This initiative was voted to be
rolled out globally in 2021, adapted to
local circumstances

People with disabilities

Empowerment

- Global mapping to share countries' best

practices for people with disabilities
- Celebration of the People with
disabilities week across the group

- Paid work experience launched in UK, in
addition to tailored career support
programme for students with autism

- Inclusive recruitment methodology
applied in Portugal

Diversity and Inclusion report in our corporate

% For more details on our D&l initiatives, see the

website.
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- Compulsory online diversity and
inclusion training for senior managers
to promote inclusive leadership and raise
awareness

- Panels organized in Mexico on positive
masculinity and inclusive leadership

- Monthly seminars on D&l and gender
diversity in Argentina
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Gender equality

Grupo Santander continues to prioritize equal opportunity for
men and women. Although 53.7% of employees are women,
we recognize the figure is lower in leadership roles and we're
taking significant measures to bring in more women leaders
at all levels.

In 2019, we set diversity targets for senior managers Ain
2020 our initiatives continued to promote gender equality,
covering issues ranging from work-life balance and parental
leave standards, to recruitment, career development, equal
pay and awareness. Across our footprint, we applied the
global minimum standards for parental leave approved at the
end of 2019. They include initial paid maternity leave of at
least 14 weeks in Argentina, Mexico and the US as well as
secondary parental leave of at least 4 weeks in Brazil, Chile,
Mexico, Poland and Uruguay.

Grupo Santander is also taking measures to fight sexual
harassment, which has been explicitly included within our
global code of conduct. In Spain, we have an equality plan
with protocols against sexual and gender-based harassment.

A. Senior managers are 1% of total headcount.

Equal pay

Our strategy also prioritizes pay parity between men and
women, which we measure in terms of the equal pay gap
and the gender pay gap.

Gender pay gap: 31.7%
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Our targets

Gender diversity Equal pay gap

2025
40-60% : 5

2021 2025
Women members
on our Group Board

Women senior : g B
managers® :
Progress 2020

Gender diversity

2019 2020 2019 2020

Women members
on our Group Board

Women senior
managers*

Taanar

Grupo Santander is one of the
leading companies in the
Bloomberg Gender-Equality
Index, achieving the top score in
equal pay and gender pay parity.

Bloomberg .':5

L Gender-Equality |
" Index ;

Equal pay gap: 1.5%

What it measures:

The gender pay gap measures differences in compensation
between women and men in an organization, business, industry
or the broader economy, irrespective of the type of work. At
Santander, fewer women hold senior and business
management roles than men (something we are focussed on
addressing), while more women work in retail banking and
support roles.

We calculate the gender pay gap as the difference of median of
remuneration paid to male and female employees expressed as
a percentage of the male remuneration. Our remuneration
schemes factor in base salary and variable pay, but not
corporate benefits/in-kind compensation or local allowances.

Our progress:

Santander addresses the gender pay gap with a methodology
based on best practices and common guidelines for the group
and local units. We are extremely committed to fostering a
diverse and inclusive working environment. We maintain
rigorous standards for promotions, recruitment, succession
planning, implicit bias training and talent pipelines to
strengthen diversity, with communications from executives as
well as mentoring, networking and other actions aimed at
achieving greater balance in the organization. Local units have
action plans in place based on their own characteristics and
conditions.

The gender pay gap slightly increased from 31% in 2019, owing
to a larger sample size coming from enhancements to our
methodology and its comprehensiveness.

What it measures:

The equal pay gap gauges "equal pay for equal work" for
women and men in the same job at the same level. Our
comparison does not consider certain factors, such as tenure,
years of service, previous experience or background.

Our progress:

Grupo Santander set up fair pay programmes to reduce the
equal pay gap. They include systematic reviews tied to
remuneration cycles (merit-based promotions and bonuses),
work reorganization and career development plans to recruit,
engage, and retain diverse talent.

Our equal pay gap, which stood at 2% in 2019, declined this
year as a result of our strong commitment and wide-ranging
action plans across the organization. We will continue
conducting robust reviews and analyses of pay data to detect,
understand and act on any gaps.
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People with disabilities

Grupo Santander has plans in place to include, and increase
accessibility for, people with disabilities, which we believe is a
question of talent, ethics and responsibility. While their
inclusion promotes their independence, freedom and dignity,
it also enriches the teams they join.

Our D&l strategy sets two objectives to foster the inclusion of
people with disabilities:

+ To meet (or exceed) the legal quota for employees with
disabilities in a direct way, increasing the 2019 headcount
of employees with disabilities by 1% in countries without a
legal quota by 2025".

+ To comply with local accessibility laws, requiring the AA-

level accessibility standards dictated by the Web
Accessibility Initiative (WAI) for all new digital products.

W Differently abled

Since 2018, the Differently abled programme has been
preparing organizations to employ people with disabilities to
promote inclusive and diverse workplaces. This year, the
project focused on spreading awareness about the rights and
needs, and benefits of employees with disabilities, in addition
to tearing down barriers and creating an environment where
they could feel free to talk about their disability.

Differently abled's recruitment and other activities, which
help strengthen our brand as a socially responsible employer,
include:

-> workshops, webinars, guides and articles on the Intranet
for employees and hiring managers (e.g., on how to recruit
people with disabilities, best practices, rights of people
with disabilities).

= benefits for employees with disabilities (one-off financial
support for health-related purposes.

- assistance with disability certificate applications.

-> cooperation with universities, foundations and other
external organizations to employ people with disabilities.

-> awareness campaigns to mark the International Day of
Persons with Disabilities inside and outside Grupo
Santander.
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In 2020, these global initiatives increased the number of
employees with disabilities in Grupo Santander from 1.8% in
2019 to 1.9%:

« Aglobal mapping to share countries' best practices across
the group.

+ Recruitment of talent with disability benchmarks through
trainee programmes.

+ Volunteering and mentoring for people with disabilities.
+ Awareness campaigns.

« AA-level digital accessibility criteria required in the
validation of Grupo Santander websites and apps.

Fundacién Universia is a core partner in Grupo Santander's
efforts to include people with disabilities.

A. This measure exempts countries where it is not legal to collect disability
data.

(“e~ Promoting the inclusion of people
@ with disabilities

Santander Argentina carried out a series of initiatives to raise
awareness and promote the inclusion of people with
disabilities:

- We ran training for blind people and people with
intellectual disabilities.

- We included training about disability and ran sign language
courses for employees on our education platform,
Academia.

- We implemented initiatives on adapted sports, sign
language and inclusive design to celebrate the People with
Disabilities Week.

- We created a network for colleagues with disabilities and
allies to share experiences, propose ideas and act as their
own ambassadors.
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Employee experience

Our motivated workforce is vital to ensuring
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commitment and success in helping people and

businesses prosper

1. Speaking up, active listening and taking action

As aresponsible bank, everyone should feel able to suggest
better ways of doing things and alert management when
things go wrong or they suspect misconduct.

Promoting speak up without fear

This means: What we do:

How we do it:

Management of risks and ethical
concerns, internal governance

Ethical channels and whistleblowing
lines, committees and forums

processes

Ideas, solutions, simplification, improved

Agile working, Validate (open innovation
platform)

Engage

feedback

Recognition, performance management,

StarMeUp, MyContribution; Employee
pulse surveys

Our listening strategy

In line with our corporate behaviours, we truly listen to
colleagues and encourage them to speak up and talk straight.
We take action driven by feedback, data and experience,
rather than process, with advanced reporting and network
analysis to bring about change. The many large-scale internal
listening exercises we undertake, such as all-employee
surveys (our Global engagement survey is bi-annual), pulse
surveys (global and local) and crowdsourcing initiatives
(such as Validate, our open innovation platform) are
supplemented by performance check-ins and appraisals,
exit interviews, incident tracking and whistleblowing
channels. We're also reviewed by Top Employer, Great Place
To Work and other certifications that place importance on
how we listen to our employees.

In 2020, our listening approach covered financial crime, covid
and other topics. Additionally, employees participated in a
global pulse survey on our corporate purpose, employee
Net Promoter Score (eNPS), simplification, collaboration
and covid. Simplification and collaboration had been the two
areas with the lowest scores on the 2019 Global engagement
survey.

According to the results of our global pulse survey, our
employees are committed to our purpose to help people and
business prosper, and believe Santander responded
effectively to the pandemic's economic and business-related
challenges, and the bank has been taking appropriate action
to ensure employees stay safe and healthy. Our people also
indicated a willingness to retain some mode of remote
working in the future, which our global FlexiWorking
framework will support.

In terms of simplification and collaboration, the main areas of
improvement were streamlining processes, improving IT
capabilities, access on internal portals to find information and
clearer guidelines and procedures.

Amid the first wave of the pandemic in March, we held open,
virtual Ask Ana meetings with Group Executive Chairman Ana
Botin so everyone could remain up to date with current affairs
at the bank and ask questions on pressing matters. Although
most meetings highlighted the pandemic, they also looked at
strategy, business, diversity and other topics. In 2020, we
held 10 Ask Ana meetings, which attracted 140,000
connections/views.

86 % of employees

agree Santander's response
to economic and business
challenges has been
effective during the
pandemic

78 % of employees

say they're open to
remaining under some
type of remote working
model

+ 22,500

employees surveyed, of which
51% responded

A. 2020 global pulse survey results

47



& Santander Annual report 2020

Ethical channels

We have Canal Abierto, our ethical channel model, in place
in our core markets. In 2020, it was launched in Portugal and
Argentina and at Openbank. Its purpose is to enable
employees to report violations of the general code of
conduct and actions that fail to uphold our corporate
behaviours. It promotes eight minimum standards, including
easy access, anonymity, third-party management and
awareness. In 2020, we focused on implementing them
across Grupo Santander, especially through:

support and sponsorship by the Group executive chairman
and local CEOs for employees to use the channels to speak
up about misconduct;

acceptance of complaints about non-ethical conduct that
runs counter to Simple, Personal and Fair behaviour;

Enhanced measures to prevent conflicts of interest during
investigations; and

the common minimum standards were part of the criteria
on the Responsible Banking executive remuneration
scorecard.

For uniform channel management and reporting, Grupo
Santander enacted the Canal Abierto policy in 2020. It
includes common standards, management criteria,
guarantees for users and local initiatives all channels must
meet to promote the channel's use among employees. It also
sets a taxonomy of cases that can be reported, including
sexual harassment.

Canal Abierto helped us hear and handle approximately 300
concerns from employees about covid-19 in 2020 (7% of
total complaints). Overall, they were about hygiene

{0
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measures, non-compliance with social distancing, quarantine,
staff resources and managers' responses to the pandemic.
189 were deemed substantiated, and 25 led to disciplinary
action. This improved our crisis management and other
internal procedures.

In 2020, we received 4,390 issues mainly related to labour
relations (+3 pp vs 2019), including 28 that alleged workplace
discrimination (six of which led to sanctions, including three
dismissals); fraud and conflicts of Interest (-7 pp vs 2019) and
products and financial services marketing (no change yoy). On
average, issues were processed in 35 days. No cases of
corruption or human rights violations were confirmed.

‘@' Mexico

In 2020, our Mexico team's Linea Etica (ethical channel)
added a covid category for employees to report violations of
internal health protocols, hygiene measures and potential
infections. This was driven by a strong communications
campaign, timely follow-ups on filed complaints, action plans
and disciplinary measures.

Approximately 147 complaints were received and resolved
during the pandemic. The number of complaints fell
significantly in the final months as a result of mitigating
actions. Internal controls helped remind everyone of the
company's and employees' obligations and disciplinary
measures. In the most serious cases, those engaged in
behaviours increasing the risk of contagion were warned,
suspended or dismissed.

Types of issues received 2020 2019
12% Issues received 4,390 4,473
:?]iléi?igaeggwned well-founded for 3,787 3,534
7% Disciplinary actions 1,083 920
3% which led to dismissal 315 294
1%

68%

B AMLand Terrorism
financing

Il Labour relations

[l Fraud and Conflicts of Interest

. . . Corporate Behaviours
W Products and financial services

marketing Others
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2. Corporate benefits

We offer several benefits for employees across all
geographies. Each country establishes programmes adapted
to local conditions. Benefits range from free services for
employees and family members, to discounts on products
and services. During the pandemic, we extended those
services to guarantee our employees' wellbeing in all our
countries to help our people stay physically and mentally
healthy during lockdown. We adapted health cover to new
circumstances and needs. In Spain, we reinforced our medical
services and launched a new advice programme with health,
social and legal experts. In Brazil, we had a 24-hour remote
medical assistance service available for all employees and
their relatives.

For more details on our initiatives
promoting employees' wellbeing, see
"Our wellbeing" in this section

3. The way we work

We promote our employees' work-life balance through
flexible working and health and wellbeing programmes.

FlexiWorking

Our global FlexiWorking framework consists of formal and
informal measures addressing where, when and how much
we work:

"Where we work" incorporates home/remote working and
other measures.

"When we work" considers compressed hours/days, flexible
start/end and break times, and alternative working
patterns.

"How much we work" is about part-time working, special
leave, flexible holidays, job sharing and other measures.

The agreements we have signed with major trade unions
provide measures to improve employees' work-life balance.
We made a pledge to promote practical time management
and the use of technology that helps our employees better
organize work and upholds their right to "disconnect
digitally” when they are away from the workplace.

As part of our covid-19 response in Spain, we implemented
automated tools advising employees to avoid sending emails
or hosting meetings outside working hours. FlexiWorking
ultimately enabled over 100,000 employees to work
remotely during the peak of the pandemic, while
maintaining strong levels of wellbeing (as seen through our
regular pulse surveys).

Economic
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w Corporate benefits in Argentina

Santander Argentina offers benefits to employees in different
areas:

- Family: Nursery subsidies, schools camps and scholarships
for employees' children.

-> Health: Excellence plan for all employees, with permanent
access to doctors, dentists, psychologists, social welfare
officers and other health professionals.

- Financial products: Reduced interest rates, credit cards
without extra costs, access to mortgages with beneficial
conditions, etc.

During covid-19, they also offered discounts at supermarkets
and petrol stations, favourable lending conditions to buy cars
and motorcycles, discounts on internet bills and material to
facilitate remote working.

83%

of employees say Santander is
providing the appropriate flexibility
they need to be effective and
productive.

A. 2020 global pulse survey results.

To adapt the way we work and fulfil employee expectations,
we are working on a project to review our global flexible
working proposal according to subsidiaries' realities, gaining
flexibility in the workplace and with new digital capabilities.
Changes will be gradually implemented in 2021 and
afterward.

Agile methodologies

We implement agile methodologies to foster collaboration,
accelerate decision-making and drive change through remote
teams in several countries. In 2020, we focused on
implementing them in Brazil, Portugal and Poland.

In Poland, 1,400 employees are now working in agile units.
The significant improvements this brought about include
greater cooperation between IT and business areas, higher
engagement and transparency.
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4, Volunteering

Volunteering builds a strong team spirit and a sense of
purpose, while helping the communities we serve. The
corporate volunteering standard in our corporate culture
policy entitles employees to spend a certain number of
working hours each month or year volunteering.

We hold two important group-wide volunteering events for
employees each year: our Santander Week, observed in all
our countries at the same time, and International
Volunteering Day. Locally, the group’s subsidiaries organize
multiple volunteering programmes as part of their

community investment commitments.

We continued supporting communities despite

the pandemic

Our collaboration and commitment to social organizations did
not waver during the pandemic. Our volunteers in every
market continued to devote their time to promote a more
inclusive society. When we couldn't run our regular
volunteering programmes face-to-face, we delivered them
virtually. We also launched several social initiatives covering

new needs.

Santander also set up the Together solidarity fund to raise
money for the most urgent needs generated by the pandemic,
such as medical equipment and research. Employees in all our
countries made personal contributions to this fund.

% For more details, see the 'Supporting
Communities' section in this report.

Annual report 2020
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Madaes da Favela programme

the country.

+26,000

employees participating
in community activities

In 2020, more than 46,000 collaborators from Santander
Brasil participated in the Mdes da Favela project, organized
by the NGO Central Unica des Favelas (CUFA). They put
together a 12-hour live festival to help single mothers from
disadvantaged communities. More than 20 TV and radio
channels streamed the event, which raised over R$3 million.
Santander Brasil matched this amount to bring the total to
R$7.2 million. The initiative benefited 11,000 women across

hours volunteered

Volunteering initiatives during covid-19

)

=" |n Uruguay, we gave talks
through Santander Universities to
groups affected by the pandemic.
They included a session on “How to
do business during the covid-19
crisis”, where leading business school
figures shared content and useful
insights into how to cope in this new
landscape.

“ In Chile, volunteers provided

online guidance and support to
students from disadvantaged
communities to continue their
education.
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i In Spain, the Minutos en
compania campaign (together with
Adopta un abuelo and Fundacién
United Way) gave training to 75
volunteers who called elderly people
living alone or in care homes or
hospitals to Lift their spirits (12,300
minutes in one month).

@ |n Argentina, volunteers
provided assistance to the elderly,
buying them food, and providing
emotional support and assistance.
Volunteers also gave talks on financial
education to different audiences and
mentored young people in social
vulnerability situations.

' In Poland, our people sewed over
15,000 protective masks and donated
them to health centres, care homes and
other institutions. The material used to
make the masks was sent to employees'
homes.

i L

@ In the UK, over 2,500 employees
volunteered with Alzheimer's Society and
Age UK to make social phone calls to
lonely and vulnerable people, pledge
social actions to support people affected
by dementia, support local services , and
help older people get online and develop
their digital skills.
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Keeping our employees safe, healthy and well has always
been a core priority for us — and especially in 2020. On top of
the measures we took to protect our employees, we have
collective bargaining and other sector and bank agreements
that include provisions on employee health and occupational
risk prevention such as check ups and testing on a regular
basis or following prolonged absence.

Our structure and resources are designed to mitigate work-
related risks. We have appointed a global head of health and
safety to coordinate and centralize all initiatives on
employees' wellbeing. We also work with employee
representatives to regularly revise our occupational risk
prevention plans, which we implement through:

regular workplace assessments of health and safety risks
and preventative measures to eliminate or control them.

considering health and safety issues when designing,
contracting for or acquiring offices, furniture, equipment,
products and IT equipment.

procedures to control and guarantee safe working
conditions, which are developed by the Occupational Risks
prevention area in collaboration with other units. They
consist of the identification of risk factors affecting
employees' health and safety; the assessment of risks that
cannot be avoided; and the adoption and scheduling of
preventive measures.

information and theoretical/practical learning for
employees.

integration of occupational risk prevention into
management to embed it in all operations that may impact
on employees' health and safety.

In 2020, to guarantee our employees' wellbeing during the
covid-19 pandemic, our protocols and prevention measures
consisted in:

- delivering masks, gloves and protective screens to office
and branch-based employees; applying strict personal
hygiene protocols; and reorganizing spaces to ensure social
distancing. In Spain, we committed EUR 15 million to
sanitary material purchases and disinfection activities, and
performed more than 70,000 tests. In addition, we
provided employees and their families with less expensive
tests and protective equipment.

offering information and training on covid-19 prevention,
with a specific site on our corporate Intranet featuring
coronavirus updates and Q&A sessions with our executive
chairman.

executing a corporate de-escalation plan with prevention
measures and guidelines for all geographies that fit local
government indications and included monitoring of
employees' health via apps, tests and surveys.

3.1%

« AB
absenteeism

10,305

thousand hours missed
due to non-
occupational illness and
accidents

Severity rate®
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BeHealthy

Reach Your Potential |at Home |

BeHealthy

We are committed to being one of the healthiest companies
in the world. We offer employees health and wellness
benefits, and raise awareness through our global BeHealthy
wellness programme.

BeHealthy has four key dimensions: Know Your Numbers, Eat
Well, Move and Be Balanced.

In response to covid-19, we created the BeHealthy at Home
brand to empower and enable colleagues to be healthy and
look after their families. Our teams gave advice on working
and exercising at home and on nutrition. In the UK, we created
a podcast series called The Wellbeing Podcast, which featured
leaders discussing key topics during the pandemic. In Poland
the CEO launched a challenge to burn more calories than him
in a steps challenge.

Our global partnership with Gympass saw the launch of
Gympass W (a digital platform to access 1:2:1 live sessions
with fitness trainers, cooking classes and much more).

We also launched a series of videos based on the book by
Chief Wellbeing Officer Dr MacGregor, with messages about
wellbeing and encouraging action through experiments,
quizzes and other activities.

87%

of employees say Santander is taking
appropriate steps to ensure
employees stay safe and healthy

A. 2020 Global Pulse survey results

0.07 o

For more details on absenteeism data, see
the 'Key metrics' section in this chapter.

A. Days missed due to work-related accidents and non-occupational illness or accidents for every 100 days worked.
B. Santander UK does not count hours not worked due to covid-19 as absences so they will not affect the remuneration objectives set prior to the health crisis.
C. Hours missed due to occupational accidents involving leave for every 100 hours worked.
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Acting responsibly
towards our customers

Being responsible means offering our customers products
and services that are Simple, Personal and Fair. We need to
do the basics brilliantly and solve problems fast, while
learning from mistakes.

As a responsible bank, our customers are at the centre of everything we do

We focus on
our customers

00

it

We listen to them and
enhance their experience
with us.

Transforming customer experience

In 2020, we reinforced our customer experience (CX) strategy
to ensure we offer the best service, always. The diverse CX
initiatives we ran focused on active listening.

We aim to become a leader in customer satisfaction (top 3 in
NPS) in all our geographies. Supported by our new global
multidisciplinary team, we prioritize projects with the
greatest impact on NPS, and oversee improvements to the
customer experience wherever we operate.

We created that team based on four pillars:

« Strategy: To unify Grupo Santander's CX vision, we started
to create common CX guidelines that will boost customer
journeys and touchpoints, ensuring customers remain at the
centre of our efforts.

+ Analytics: To enhance the team's performance and bearing
on our business, we evolved CX metrics in line with local
initiatives to ensure all our plans are customer-centric,
based on data and action-driven.

52

We protect
our customers

By identifying vulnerabilities
and avoiding product
mis-selling.

We manage
their complaints

In case something goes wrong,
we act and learn from it.

« Community: Working as one team helps us serve our

customers better. We created a global CX community to
generate synergies and share best practices, knowledge
and tools across Grupo Santander.

+ CX plans: We helped devise and execute local plans to

improve customer experience. We also focused on
improving customers' emotional experience through
Emotional hub in Mexico, the C+ Santander model in
Argentina and other initiatives.
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The Emotional hub initiative seeks to listen to our customers
to understand and improve their emotional experience. We
combine customer and employee interviews with design-
thinking to build an emotional map that helps us uncover
sensitive issues which we can address. We identified much-
needed enhancements for full service, customization, and
product and process simplification. We listened to 600,000
customers and more than 1,000 employees, who gave us a
holistic view of their emotional experience.

We use interactive channels to listen to, and better
understand, our customers. Our customer centres in Chile,
Mexico, Spain and Portugal enable us to get to know more
about what they think of our products and services and the
way we do things. Meanwhile, our corporate Consumer
Protection function shares best practices across Grupo
Santander through CuVo (Customer Voice), a monthly global
working group formed by all our customer-facing areas.

In 2020, we continued to simplify our processes and product
catalogue. In Portugal, we streamlined our product portfolio
by reducing the number of accounts and bank cards from 141
in 2019 to 38in 2020. We also created the Santander One
account, which brought together several accounts into one
and helped increase transparency, offering subscription-
based plans and free, essential services to loyal customers; it
was launched in Spain and will be progressively implemented
in all our European units.

Expanding our new branch models
and promoting inclusiveness

Q

We are constantly adapting our branches to customer
needs. In 2020, we opened Work Cafés in Poland and the
US, and took steps to make our branches and channels
more accessible and inclusive. In Spain and Portugal, we
use universal design principles (induction loops, tactile
paving, accessible toilets, etc.) to fit out our Smart Red
branches and Work Cafés. Santander Polska's Barrier-Free
Service includes branch accessibility measures and sign-
language video calls with customer service advisers.

We are working tirelessly to adapt our ATMs for the visually
impaired: 95% of Santander Brasil's machines are braille-
enabled; 1,286 have been adapted in Argentina; more than
2,000 in Portugal are equipped with voice command; and
1,300 in Poland are speaker-driven and braille-enabled.

The C+Santander (Customer+Santander) is a data-driven
model for decision-making to create memorable customer
experiences by transforming perceptions into data; data into
knowledge; and knowledge into action. We measure every
touch point via NPS to keep a close track of customer claims.
We then correlate them with business performance
indicators, generating a constant flow of data each area can
use to focus on delivering customer strategies that can make
the greatest difference.

Thanks to this approach, we moved into the top 3 in NPS in
2020. We also developed experience guidelines on how to
approach customers in personal and digital interactions.

w Poland, a case study on simplification

As part of our Agile transformation, Santander Polska
simplified products and processes. This significantly improved
how we design and market our products and services, while
solving customers' problems with easier processes. So far, we
have:

-> developed new digital cash loans, reducing the time and
steps to complete the transaction and vastly increasing
new cash lending.

- set up a new way to open accounts in branches that only
takes 2.5 minutes (as opposed to the 33 minutes
previously) and only requires a signature for completion,
halving the number of clicks.

= created 15-minute SME smart loans (down from 90
minutes) without a loan application. The process is
omnichannel and can be completed in a single tool.
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Customer satisfaction
Our strategy sets out to inspire loyalty in our customers. We Our customers' expectations changed largely because of
conduct more than a million customer surveys per year to covid-19. Therefore, we focused on improving our service at
monitor their opinions and experiences with Santander and contact centres and digital channels (which have been the
see how we can adapt our products and services to improve most widely used channels during the pandemic). We also
their experience. worked on simplification, which we found to have a profound
To measure customer loyalty and satisfaction, Santander impact on NPS.
uses the Net Promoter Score (NPS). NPS is an indicator that
summarizes our relationship with customers. It depends on Eib
three main drivers we care about and constantly work to
improve: service, product and price, and image. It contributes
to the variable remuneration schemes of most employees. In TO 3
2020, our NPS was in the top 3 in 6 out of 9 geographies. LA
Loyal customers in 2020 are 22.8 million, up 6% from last 6 of 3 countries
year. A.Santander US has a different objective and does not account for the metric.

S & £ © o O F O &
2018 50 30 30 20 30 50 30 10 30 90
2019 40 20 20 20 30 40 30 20 40 90
2020 30 20 1° 3° 20 50 10 6° 40 90

Internal NPS benchmark to measure customer satisfaction, audited by Stiga / Deloitte

Main peers by country: Argentina: Galicia, BBVA, ICBC, HSCB, Macro and Nacion; Brazil: Itat, CEF, Bradesco, Banco do Brasil; Chile: BCI, Banco de Chile, Itat, BBVA,
Banco Estado; Uruguay: Brou, Itat, BBVA, Scotiabank; Spain: BBVA, Caixabank, Sabadell, Bankia; Poland : ING, Millenium, MBank, Bank Polski, Bank Pekao; Portugal:
BPI, Millenium BCP, CGD, Novo Banco; UK: NationWide, Barclays,Halifax, Natwest, Lloyds, HSBC, TBS, RBS; Mexico: Scotiabank, Banorte, Bancomer, HSBC, Banamex;
US: JP Morgan, Bank of America, Capital One, PNC, M&T Bank, TD Bank, Citigroup, Ctizens, Wells Fargo.

We monitor  SERVICE

al[ NPS Branch General service, waiting time, branch assistance, layout
drivers —
Channels Mobile, internet, ATM, CDM, contact centre, personal manager
Personal Personal attention, kindness, employee professionalism
Simple User-friendliness, speed and agility
Communications Clear statements, information on offers and deals, coherent information
Problems Percieved issues
Others Data protection
IMAGE Strong and sound, social responsible, innovative, trustworthy, transparent
PRODUCT & PRICE  Simple product and service proposition, fees and charges, benefits, credit cards
Group NPS by channel®

S R ]

56 45 68

Branch Contact Center Internet Mobile

Branch: Does not include Chile

Internet: Does not include UK, Chile and Uruguay

Mobile: Does not include Uruguay

A.Based on the results of surveys made to customers 48h after their interaction with the Bank. It presents a pondered average of the Group's active customers.
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Protecting consumers and helping
vulnerable customers

Being responsible means offering our customers products and
services that are Simple, Personal and Fair. Our daily
operations must be brilliant, and we must go beyond legal
minimums to give our customers an exceptional experience.

Consumer protection policy and principles

To further embed our customer focus, the Compliance &
Conduct function implemented the consumer protection
policy. It sets out principles we expect our teams to follow,
ensuring high ethical standards in our relationship with
customers.

Consumer protection principles

To apply our consumer protection principles to our day-to-day
practices - reflecting our aspiration to be Simple, Personal
and Fair in all we do - this year we implemented a reporting
process in all geographies. By using customer voice and
business indicators, it allows us to identify customer
outcomes and local gaps (e.g., poor assistance, incidences

Consumer protection principles

Economic
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with fees and ATM issues) and develop plans to tackle them.
We plan to add artificial intelligence to the process to gain
insights we can use to increase customer protection.

The Compliance and Conduct function repeatedly identifies
potential risks to customer protection from new regulations
or problems with products or services. It carries out thematic
reviews for the entire group, assesses the situation and
makes decisions to improve and mitigate risks. In 2020,
thematic reviews focused on responsible business practices in
account packages, revolving cards, and overdrafts. Their
findings and suggested best practices for transparency,
disclosure to customers, sales, commissions, loan approval
and credit conditions, were shared across geographies. Next
year, we expect subsidiaries to close the gaps identified
against the group's responsible business standards. In
general, all subsidiaries are well positioned to fulfil those
standards.

We also ran awareness campaigns and workshops on
product governance and consumer protection that matched
strategic priorities.

13

Treat customers fairly Complaints handling

Consideration of
special customers'

N

Data protection Customer-centric design

of products and services

circumstances and
prevention of over-

indebtedness
© 05 il
Responsible pricing Financial education Transparent Responsible innovation ~ Safeguarding of assets

communication

Vulnerable customers

Our global vulnerable customers and over-indebtedness
prevention guidelines, approved in 2019, aim to ensure a
consistent group-wide approach in guaranteeing fair
treatment to customers, with empathy according to their
particular circumstances, and in avoiding over-indebtedness.
For example, when validating a product or service, we must
specify if we can offer it to a vulnerable customer.

Although most countries have laws that state when a
customer can be considered vulnerable, our definition is
wider and covers circumstances beyond financial stress,
mindful of the various personal factors that lead to a state of
vulnerability.

By the end of 2020, all subsidiaries had locally approved the
vulnerable customers guidelines. This puts us in a good
position to face regulatory trends as we continue to build a
more solid vulnerable customer model.

e "Here & Now" for our elderly customers

To support elderly customers during the covid-19 pandemic
(especially those unfamiliar with digital channels), Santander
Portugal launched Here & Now. This initiative is a personal
contact and community programme and free service for
employees to help elderly customers with digital channels,
payments, and daily tasks like making purchases at the
chemist. We contacted more than 55% of our customers over
the age of 65 (more than 150,000 people), many of whom
told us things like “You've called me more than two of my
three children” and “I thought that this type of service was
only given to rich people”.

We also distributed 580 tablets and communication cards to
care homes across the country, so residents could talk to their
families during the Christmas holidays.
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Product governance

Santander's governance structure enables us to protect
customers' interests.

Our Product Governance and Consumer Protection function
in our Compliance & Conduct division sets standards to
manage products and consumer protection properly. Our
product governance forum, which involves the Responsible
Banking unit, ensures the products and services we market
meet the needs of identified target segments, are available
on the right channels and deliver the desired outcomes for
customers. Our product validation assesses whether a
product can be categorized as ESG and is considerate of
vulnerable customers.

Salesforce cultural transformation

We include customer satisfaction indicators in our
remuneration schemes so the first line of defence are
incentivized to meet customers' rising expectations. Our
three-year transformation plan (which started in 2018)
continued to revise the remuneration of our salesforce.
Corporate Compliance & Conduct, with the collaboration of
HR and local teams, monitored the implementation of local
action plans to confirm significant improvements. The action
plan covers governance; variable/fixed remuneration ratios;
linear business objectives that do not promote specific
products; the weighting of quality components against
adequate diversification of conduct metrics; and other topics.

Conduct in collections and recoveries

In the first half of 2020, we developed plans in all
geographies to increase focus on collections and recoveries
conduct. This improved our conduct in that regard, while
strengthening controls over transparency, data protection,
vulnerable customers, training and remuneration practices in
collections and recoveries.

Our plans focus on:

- boosting controls to mitigate conduct risks (fair treatment
to customers and end-to-end customer management).

+ re-designing communications with customers to make
them more transparent and to enhance data protection
controls.

« identifying and referring vulnerable customers.
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In 2020, our product governance focused on:

- digital contracting and contents: This includes the scope,
consistency, presentation format and access to information
on digital channels (Online Banking/Mobile Banking). We
paid special attention to pre-contractual information,
withdrawal rights, complaints handling and post-sale
information.

responsible consumer credit lending: To ensure credit
terms are reasonable and prevent over-indebtedness, we
focused on revolving cards and drafted an internal guide to
regulate conduct standards that must be observed.

In executing this plan (especially in 2020), we have
significantly increased the weight of conduct/quality on
variable remuneration (equal to or above 40%). Customer
satisfaction and quality are the basic pillars of this model.

Our employees' knowledge and skills are key to ensuring the
highest quality customer service. As part of our continuous
improvement process, in 2020, several group subsidiaries
updated their conduct risk with customer training material
(part of global mandatory employee training) and a specific
course on conduct standards in collection and recovery.

« enhancing quality assurance and third party risk
management to ensure a fair customer journey with
qualitative conduct indicators.

« providing specific conduct training to all employees
involved in debt collection.

Our efforts accelerated owing to covid-19. With the
pandemic, defaults are likely to increase, making it even more
important that our processes ensure our customers are
treated fairly.

consumer protection and conduct and collection
&recovery, see section 7.2. 'Compliance and
conduct risk management' in the 'Risk
management and compliance' chapter.

% For more details on product governance,
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Data protection

Grupo Santander is committed to collecting, storing and
processing personal data safely and securely. Our compliance
programme guarantees robust risk-related management of
data. It includes:

- corporate-based criteria as general lines of action to meet
regulatory requirements.

- local subsidiaries' responsibility to fulfil the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) and local regulation on data
protection.

- a solid governance model (available on the corporate
website), consisting of:

« corporate and local policies.

- a data protection officer (DPQO) and/or managers in each
unit where necessary. We formally disclosed appointees
to local authorities.

+ a corporate oversight programme based on a bi-annual
monitoring forum chaired by the Group chief compliance
officer, where subsidiaries report on compliance status,
management indicators and half-year evaluations.

Economic
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Other items that bolster our commitment to personal data
protection are:

« ahomogeneous group-wide monitoring model, which
includes monthly reporting on performance indicators.

« data protection integrated into the annual Internal Audit
review programme. The number of units reviewed by
internal audit since 2018 is 38 (and counting).

a corporate data protection management tool that records
group-wide data protection activities (c. 6,000 treatments).

promotion of corporate initiatives and the exchange of best
practices among units, including workshops and training
courses.

special training for DPOs and privacy "champions".

constant monitoring of regulatory developments to update
and consolidate criteria, methodologies and documentation.

employee training and awareness.

Principles of action in our relationship with political parties

In our goal to be a responsible bank, Grupo Santander
maintains a good relationship with all its stakeholders. Grupo
Santander is governed by principles of transparency, honesty
and impartiality in its interactions with political parties and
other entities with public and social purposes that are also
political in nature.

Since 2016, our policy on financing political parties
(available on our corporate website), which our board's
executive committee approved, applies to all our subsidiaries
worldwide. It prohibits making monetary or in-kind election
donations and contributions. In the commercial relationship,
Grupo Santander prohibits full or partial debt forgiveness for

political parties and their affiliates, even though they can
negotiate the terms of debt with our subsidiaries at interest
that can never be below market rate. Furthermore, this policy
applies to political parties' electoral candidates to the extent
local laws provide.

Grupo Santander rejects any and all acts of corruption by
employees and managers in our relations with political
parties and any other entities with public and social purposes.

According to our policy, in 2020 Grupo Santander did not
make any donations or contributions to political parties.
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Delivering for customers during the covid-19 crisis

Through this unprecedented crisis, Grupo Santander has
worked hard to help our customers overcome financial
challenges. In addition to facilitating regulatory and
governmental assistance, the measures we took to maintain
high-quality, accessible services and relieve financial distress
included:

expanding the terms and scope of grace periods and
payment holidays for all customers (beyond legal
requirements).

helping channel government liquidity to SMEs and
businesses.

expanding insurance cover for pandemic-related claims in
line with payment holidays.

making sure we continued to deliver quality service to
customers during lockdowns, mainly through better online
channels (at call centres, ATMs and on new apps) and
branch recalibration.

Our Product Governance and Consumer Protection teams
verified those measures locally to ensure transparency and
avoid additional costs for customers, which special concern
for our most vulnerable customers.

Health and safety

We implemented measures to guarantee our customers'
health and safety at all times. We adapted our branches and
encouraged the use of digital channels via "Stay at home"
notices, tools, tutorials and cyber tips, plus coronavirus
helplines for frequently asked questions. We undertook
initiatives to support and protect elderly customers, people in
rural areas, at-risk patients and other special groups. We set
up priority services and business hours for elderly customers.

We increased our call centres' capabilities through plans in all
countries to facilitate working from home and channel
deflection, optimize resource use and anticipate customers'
needs. This increased our global service volume by 21% on
average.
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% Customer approach during covid-19 in the UK

Santander UK provided product support such as payment
holidays on mortgages, credit cards and personal loans; early
access to savings with no penalties; and waivers and reduced
rates on overdrafts. We also undertook these initiatives to
ensure vulnerable customers could access services and to
help relieve their financial challenges:

- Reaching Out, a programme where branch employees
made thousands of phone calls to customers who might be
vulnerable or at risk of financial exclusion, check on their
wellbeing and provide additional support. We provided
these calls from April-November 2020, reaching over
81,500 customers.

- A coronavirus helpline for customers unable to visit
branches or access the Internet.

- A new and improved online chat service on the Santander
website, mobile app and online banking, providing easy-to-
access information and keeping phone lines free for
customers who needed to use them.

-> Access to cash for self-isolating customers, whereby an
authorized third party could obtain cash on their behalf.

- Guidance to identify the signs of domestic/financial abuse
and inform customers on ways of reaching out for help.

everyone in society' and 'Financial inclusion
and empowerment' in this chapter and 3.3

‘Covid-19 credit risk management’ in the Risk
chapter.

% For more details, see 'Meeting the needs of
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Complaints management

Our complaints management and analysis sets standards for
all units to properly handle complaints, ensuring regulations
are met and complaints and interaction logging is firmly
embedded in all customer contact channels to provide the
best possible service. More than this, we use complaints to
improve our service and products, so that complaints do not
arise in the first place.

In 2020, we focused on resolving complaints at the first point
of contact with customers and better complaints handling
based on customer feedback. We also improved mitigation
plans, governance and root-cause analysis to effectively
identify opportunities for issue reduction and proactive
resolution. We worked to boost the capability of not only our
specialist teams, but all teams, to increase reporting. We
took 267 corrective and preventive actions involving ATMs,
fraud, web/ mobile app access and use, and more customer-
centric debt collections.

We closely monitored our subsidiaries to analyze complaints
trends driven by the pandemic and, as relief measures expire,
to take actions to ensure the best possible outcome for our
customers.
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We closely monitored our subsidiaries to analyze complaints
trends driven by the pandemic and, as relief measures expire,
to take actions to ensure the best possible outcome for our
customers.

Our performance during the crisis proved successful.
Covid-19-related complaints (2-4% of complaints group-
wide) were very low compared with the number of relief
measures we managed to implement in short timeframe. In
addition to adjusting systems and tools, we closely monitored
our subsidiaries to analyse complaint trends driven by the
pandemic and take actions ensuring the best possible
outcome for our customers once relief measures expired.

section 7.2. 'Compliance and conduct risk
management' in the 'Risk management and
compliance' chapter and our Culture report in our
corporate website.

% For more details on complaints management, see

Type of complaints” (%) Average resolution time” (%) Resolution™® (%)
28.9% 22.3%
0,
1.6% 9.5% 9.7% 10.1% 32.7%
2.3%
36.0% 21.6% 20.4% 37.6% 67.3%
Bankin

. procedgres . rl.Dnaeyt?:gdnSts . 1-5days . 15-30days . In favour of the Bank
M Loans Others B 5-10days g"oog‘;;';a” [ In Favour of the customer
B 1nvestments Insurance B 10- 15 days

A. Personal Protection Insurance (PPI) Complaints excluded from the volume, distribution by product, and resolution term figures. Regarding uphold ratio, UK has
been fully excluded since PPIs represent about 80% of the formal complaints received.
B. Complaints metric follows the criteria established by the Group, homogeneous in all geographies.

Process enhancement

&J®. Santander UK continued to improve customer

gl issues resolution in 2020. Complaints and
dissatisfaction inflow reduced 25% YoY. A
dedicated knowledge tool that provides customer-
facing employees with better access to information
and enables them to solve customer problems
faster, helped enhance customer experience via
first-line contact in branches and telephone
channels.

The strategy followed cases escalated by
customers to the Financial Ombudsman Service. An
ongoing collaborative relationship with the
Ombudsman resulted in an overturn reduction of
6% in H1'20 vs H2'19 to 24%. Inflows also declined
by 14% to 5,200 cases in the same period.

g At Santander US, we monitored customer complaints
—— closely, with bi-weekly reports issued to senior
~ managers and regulatory agencies (OCC and CFPB) in
order to assess customer impacts and implement
service changes. Complaint volumes remained stable
throughout the year, with fluctuations correlating
with servicing changes.

Santander prioritizes support for vulnerable
populations and developed processes to manage
complaints from service members, elderly customers
and people with disabilities. Specialized training and
partnerships with the legal team for response review
were key to ensuring the correct resolution of
complaints.
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Responsible procurement

Our suppliers have an impact on society and the environment.
That's why we expect them to act responsibly and uphold
ethical, social and sustainable standards just as we do.

Being responsible also

involves our suppliers Risk control

LLLKL

Our third-party certification policy sets out a common
methodology for all countries to select, approve and evaluate
suppliers. In addition to price, quality of service and other
traditional criteria, it includes ESG (environmental, social and
governance) factors, such as diversity and inclusion, human
rights and sustainability, which are covered by its responsible
behaviour principles for suppliers. These principles apply to
our 8,651 critical suppliers each year.

We are working to implement various controls and/or audits
to make sure suppliers comply with our policy and corporate
values. In 2020, to reinforce our commitment, we launched
two pilot initiatives to assess ESG performance:

« ESG criteria in third-party on-boarding: We assessed
approximately 400 selected suppliers according to ESG
criteria in Spain, Portugal, the UK, Poland, the US, Mexico,
Brazil, Argentina and Chile. The questionnaire consisted of
18 new ESG questions including carbon footprint; gender
and disability inclusion; flexible working; minimum wage;
and good corporate governance practices. As a result of the
pilot, ESG criteria will be implemented in critical suppliers'
on-boarding from 2021.

ESG criteria in third-party negotiations: We used the
questionnaires from bidding processes to collect
information on suppliers' ESG impact in labour-intensive
service categories (such as travel and energy).

60

Third-party certification policy

Responsible behaviour principles for suppliers

Whistleblowing channels

Grupo Santander works with 8,651 certified suppliers (-12%
vs 2019)*. 21.8% were certified for the first time in 2020
(+5.1 pp vs 2019). Through Aquanima’, we entered into 8,875
agreements (+ 2% vs 2019) with 4,592 suppliers (-3% vs
2019), of whom 94.7% are companies that operate in the
same geographical area of service. 96.5% of our total services
(+0.8 pp vs. in 2019) are locally sourced, reflecting our
support for local economies.

We have escalation channels for suppliers in our core
markets, and plan to roll this out to all geographies in the
coming period.

During the covid-19 pandemic, we took actions to address the
most urgent needs of our suppliers, particularly vulnerable
suppliers. These included continuing to pay for basic services,
providing liquidity through lines of credit, paying invoices
early and reducing payment periods. We prepared
recommendations for subsidiaries based on local best
practices to make sure these efforts were consistent
throughout the group.

A. Aninternal audit in 2020 to condense the group's external suppliers led to a
reduction in the percentage of approved suppliers against 2019.
B. Aquanima is a Santander subsidiary specialized in procurement.
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Risk control

- In 2020, we launched a new supplier risk management
platform in our core markets. It is designed to streamline
and integrate third-party management and key
information. It allows us to combine all supplier
certification data.® It currently collects data available on
10,252 third parties and18,789 services. It has 5,366
internal users.

-> We unified and grew our group-wide supplier risk
assessment team. The team analyses the behaviour of our
most important suppliers in Cybersecurity, Business
Continuity, Physical Security, Facilities and Data Privacy.

-> We keep records of our key suppliers and service providers
by geography based on those five risk areas.

-> We closely monitor, and regularly report on, the status of
our 'high-risk' suppliers to senior managers.

B. Pending completion in the UK and US. Poland currently operates its own
system.
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Collaborating with suppliers to tackle
covid-19

During the pandemic, the measures Santander Espaiia took to
support suppliers and communities included:

= maintaining payments to suppliers even when the service
could not be provided, to make sure their employees
continued to receive wages.

= continuing to purchase meals from our caterers (even
though our employees were working remotely) and serving
them to healthcare professionals at makeshift hospitals in
Madrid.

= using our internal transport services to take healthcare
professionals from hotels to hospitals.
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We build lasting loyalty among our four million shareholders

by delivering profitable and sustainable growth

Communication with shareholders

We aim to align our interests with our shareholders’, creating
long-term value and maintaining their trust and the trust of
broader society. We provide shareholders and investors with
information that meets their expectations and upholds our
values and corporate culture. We communicate with them
continually, making sure their opinions are taken into account
by the Board.

Shareholder remuneration

In December, shareholders received the new shares related to
the share capital increase, equivalent to EUR 0.10 per share,
as a complementary payment from 2019. Each shareholder
received a free allotment right of new shares for each share
they hold and had the option of either selling in the market or
receiving new shares. As a result, total remuneration for
20179 rose to EUR 0.20 per share.

With regard to the dividend payment against 2020, the
board of directors intends to pay a cash dividend of EUR
2.75 cents per share, the maximum allowed in accordance
with the limits set by the European Central Bank (ECB) in its
recommendation last December.

The board's intention is to restore a payout of 40-50% of the
underlying profit, in cash, in the medium term. With respect
to the remuneration against the 2021 earnings, the
intention is to resume payments once the European Central
Bank recommendations so allow, in line with the
announcement of April 2020.

Share capital ownership

Banco Santander shares

Banco Santander is listed on five markets: Spain, Mexico and
Poland; the US (as American Depository Shares), and the UK
(as CREST Depository Interest).

>4

million
shareholders
(+30,000 vs 2019)

communication with shareholders, see
sections 1.4 'Active communication with
shareholders during the pandemic' and 3.1
‘Shareholder engagement' in the Corporate
Governance chapter.

% For further details about Santander Group's

shareholder remuneration, see section '3.3
Dividends' in the Corporate Governance
chapter.

% For further details on Santander Group's

section '2.6 "Stock market information'in the
Corporate Governance chapter.

% Fot further details on Santander share, see

Geographical distribution of chare capital

58.10% 1.05%
76.03%
40.85%
M Board" B Retail shareholders [l MStitutional B Americas

investors

1.65%

&

For more information, see
section 2.1. 'Share capital' in
the Corporate Governance
chapter.

22.32%

M Europe I Rest of the world

A. Shares owned or represented by directors. For more details on shares owned and represented by directors, see 'Tenure and equity ownership' in section 4.2 and
subsection A.3 in section 9.2 'Statistical information on corporate governance required by the CNMV' of the 'Corporate Governance' chapter.
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Engagement with shareholders, investors and analysts

In 2020, the Shareholder and Investor Relations team

prioritized:

- digital transformation: simpler online platform to
delegate and cast votes at general meetings; new
electronic channels for participating in general meetings
(such as telephone lines and digital platforms at branches);
means provided/help for shareholders to exercise their
rights at the October 2020 AGM in accordance with
Directive (EU) 2017/828; new virtual forums and events to
report on Grupo Santander's strategy and quarterly results,
and improvements to virtual service channels and
WhatsApp Business.

- constant, clear communication with shareholders,
investors, analysts and rating agencies.

- reporting about the group and share performance.

- offering personal attention to shareholders via online
and face-to-face channels and gather their opinions with
diverse surveys.

-> exclusive products and benefits on
yosoyaccionista.santander.com. Grants for shareholders
and relatives with disability (60 grants given in 2020) and
other initiatives.

- enhancement of Grupo Santander’s image in the markets.
Shareholders and Investors Relations area dedication has
been recognized by important publications of the sector, as
IR Magazine and Institutional Investor. Our efforts in the
integration of new channels (Whatsapp business) were
recognized by AEERC and OZ.

27,446

opinions from
shareholders, analysts
and investors through
studies and qualitative
surveys

1,137

contacts with institutional
investors (including 19
meetings with ESG investors
and analysts, and 58 calls
about corporate governance)

210

events with
shareholders

132,857

queries managed by email,
phone, WhatsApp and virtual
meetings

>1,300

communications using

For further details, see
% sections 1.4 'Active
mainly digital channels

shareholder engagement
during the pandemic’ and
3.1 'Shareholder
engagement’ in the
Corporate Governance
chapter.

ESG indices and analysts

Our sustainability performance is regularly assessed by
renowned indices and ESG analysts. We use their findings
internally to identify improvement opportunities.

For 20 years in a row, Banco Santander has featured on the
Dow Jones Sustainability World Index (DJSI World). In 2020, we
are again among the 25 banks included in the index made up of
323 companies. Our score was 83 points out of 100, just six
points below the leader, ranking us 14" We obtained the top
score (100) in financial inclusion, anti-corruption policy and
measures, fiscal strategy, customer relationship management,
environmental reporting, and social reporting.

Sustainalytics improved our ESG risk rating score. From 32.7,
considered high risk, to 27.1 medium risk. It recognized us for
above average preparedness measures to address resilience,

human capital, data privacy and security issues.

In 2020, Santander improved CDP by two notches, from C to B,
reaching "Management level" in the financial sector group, which
implies a coordinated action on climate issues.

In 2021, Santander is leading among our global peers in the
Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index (BGEI). We are 7" overall and
5" among banks. This remains well above average (+18.67) and
above financial services scores (+16.93 pp), with top mark in
equal pay and gender pay parity.

We have, once again, been named a constituent of the
FTSE4Good Index Series, raising our score to 4.3 out of 5.
Furthermore, according to the ISS-ESG Corporate Rating, our ESG
performance is above the sector-specific Prime threshold. We are
also assessed by other ESG analysts such as MSCl and V.E (Vigeo
Eiris.

ESG analyst valuations”

Vs.last
Rating/Scoring 2020 year 2019 Vs. Sector average

S&P Global 95" percentile, 14"
CSA 83 v 86 out of 253 banks
MsCIB BBB — BBB Average among 192

banks

th .
Sustainalytics  27.1 A 32.7 30 percentile, 283 of

978 banks
V.E (Vigeo 74" percentile, 8" of
EirisS 62 W 63 3ygiersified banks
Decile rank of 2 out of
ISS-ESG C = C 285 banks, equivalent
to 80th percentile
Among 28% of all
cop B A c banks scoringa B
1% global bank and 5"
BGEI 85.13 v 90.39 from 126 financial

institutions

A.Source:Most recent ratings for each ESG analyst in 2020.

Sustainalytics has developed a new methodology for measuring risk. Thus, a
higher score indicates higher risk. 1st percentile is the lowest risk.

V.E (Vigeo Eiris) conducted an “ESG Performance Review" in which key ESG
indicators are updated. A comprehensive assessment will take place in 2021.

B. Please review page 123 for MSCI disclaimer

section 3.1 of the 'Corporate Governance' chapter.

% For more details on communication with ESG analysts, see
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Inclusive and
sustainable growth

We play a major role in supporting inclusive
and sustainable growth
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Meeting the needs
of everyone in
society

We develop innovative,
simple and personalized
solutions to respond to
customer demands and meet
the needs of everyone in
society.

Environmental and
social risk analysis

We manage the
environmental and social
risks of our customers'
activities in sensitive sectors
such as energy, mining and
metals, and soft
commodities.

Supporting
communities

We support education and
social welfare in the
communities where we
operate, with a special focus
on higher education as the
driving force behind society's
progress. We also run
multiple social and cultural
support programmes.

Financial inclusion
and empowerment

We help people who are at
risk of financial exclusion by
giving them access to basic
financial services, boosting
entrepreneurship and
employment, and providing
them with the skills they
need to manage their
finances efficiently

Tax
contribution

We pay our fair share in taxes
everywhere we operate,
contributing to the growth
and progress of our
communities.

Supporting green
transition

We contribute to the
transition towards a more
sustainable economy by
managing climate-related
risks and opportunities,
building a comprehensive
sustainable and green finance
proposition; and reducing our
environmental footprint.

ESG investment
in Wealth
Management
and Insurance

Working under the highest
international ESG standards,
we embed ESG in our
decision-making, offering a
sustainable value proposition
for customers, and an active
ESG engagement.
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Meeting the needs

of everyone in society

We want to increase loyalty through products and services that enable all
our customers to manage their finances in the best possible way, while

helping them make more sustainable decisions.

Our value proposition aims to meet the broad needs of our customers

Innovative, simple and personalized solutions

-

Households SMEs Large

Against the backdrop of the economic and social crisis caused
by covid-19, we resolved to provide customers with solutions
for them to continue pursuing their goals and navigate such
testing times.

We ran ambitious initiatives to protect our customers' health;
to ensure that services continued; and to offer tailored
financial solutions to provide liquidity to people and
companies affected by the pandemic. We rapidly facilitated
state-backed lines of credit and adapted various products and
services to local circumstances. We also eased financing
conditions with payment holidays of up to several months in
most of our geographies.

66

sector

—

Total customers

148 million

Loyal customers

22.8 million

Customer loans

EUR 916 billion

Customer deposits

EUR 849 billion

{0
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We bolstered our digital proposition for retail customers
and corporates, focusing the lion's share of our efforts on
expanding Openbank and our mobile payment services.
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Covid-19: Supporting our customers

The key during the crisis was to maintain financing levels to
combat the effects of covid-19, meet our customers' most
pressing needs and implement measures to protect our most
vulnerable customers, which included:

- providing liquidity and credit facilities with favourable terms
and conditions;

« suspending certain banking fees and commissions;
« temporarily increasing credit card and overdraft limits;
+ granting mortgage payment holidays; and

« proactively supporting vulnerable customers and opened a
new helpline for all customers.

By the end of the year, these initiatives had supported more
than 6 million customers in all our geographies, including
payment holidays to 4.8 million customers worth EUR 112
billion, which represents 12% of our lending portfolio.

In 2020, loans and advances to customers fell 3% (excluding
the exchange rate impact, loans were up 5% against 2019).
By segment, household lending decreased 4.2% year on year;
and lending to enterprises and entrepreneurs remained at
2019 levels.

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

Households”

Loans to customers at 31 December 2020, net of impairment losses

EUR million
Residential 324,152
Consumer loans 157,118
Other purposes 16,717
Total 497,987
Companies and entrepreneursA

EUR million
Large companies 167,390
SMEs and entrepreneurs 132,359
Other purposes 20,104
Total 319,853

A. See note 10. 'Loans and advances to customers' of the Auditor's report and
consolidated financial statements.

empowerment' in this chapter and 3.3

Covid-19 credit risk management’ in the Risk
chapter.

% For more details, see 'Financial inclusion and

Specific measures individual countries took as part of our covid-19 response

Spain: Advanced pensions to retirees and lent nearly
EUR 100 billion to entrepreneurs, sole traders, SMEs
and companies through internal resources and ICO
lines of credit (in which we have the biggest share).

Q Poland: Pledged PLN 2 billion to support SMEs in
fighting covid-19 and deferred selected fees and
charges for customers who suspended their business
operations.

° Portugal: Channelled EUR 120 million (31%) on the

first covid-19 state-backed aid line "Capitalizar 2018",
as well as EUR 4 billion in lending to SMEs for short-
term treasury needs, with no changes to the spread or
related fees.

% UK: Participated in the government-backed

Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Scheme
(CBILS) and the Bounce Back Loan Scheme (BBLS),
with no interest to be paid on either loan for the first
12 months.

Argentina: Lent ARS 1 billion (EUR 14.2 million) to
SMEs to support teleworking.

A,
(@
-
@ Chile: Gave USD 6 billion in pre-approved lending for
consumer, mortgage and business customers.

@ Brazil: Launched A Gente Banca, a new product to
provide newsstands with loans to renovate their
premises.

(&) Mexico: Participated in government-backed lines of
¥ credit to help one million micro-enterprises, in
addition to four-month loan repayment deferrals.

@ US: Lent USD 25 million to Community Development
Financial Institutions (CDFIs) to benefit small
businesses.
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Working with multilateral institutions

We continued our work with multilateral entities to offer our
customers more lines of credit under better conditions.

In Spain, we signed seven agreements worth a total of EUR
1.205 billion with the EIB Group (including the European
Investment Fund, or “EIF"), combining senior loans with

portfolio guarantees and synthetic securitization transactions.

Those agreements allowed Santander to provide additional
liquidity and investment capacity for SMEs and mid-caps to
tackle the pandemic, renew their transport fleet or become
more sustainable.

In Portugal, a guarantee agreement with the EIF is allowing
us to furnish agricultural and agro-industry companies and
entrepreneurs with up to EUR 100 million in working capital
and investment capacity in the processing, marketing and
development of agricultural products, and to help young
farmers invest in their business. The EIB Group also
participated in the Banco Santander Consumer Portugal's first
STS securitisation in the Portuguese market, providing EUR
587 million for SMEs and mid-caps to renew their transport
fleets, including the acquisition of less-polluting vehicles.

Digital solutions for better financial management

We are constantly developing smarter and more accessible
products and services for our customers, and enhancing
existing ones, including our fully digital bank Openbank and
our mobile payment services (Global Trade Services, Global
Merchant Services, Superdigital, Pago FX).

Openbank

Openbank continued to grow in 2020 by broadening its
proposition in Portugal, Germany and the Netherlands.
Customers in those countries are now able to trade shares in
4,000 companies listed on 25 markets, as well as dealing in
exchange-traded funds. They can also use the Digital Wealth
Manager (for new and experienced investors), which includes
funds that follow socially-responsible investment criteria.

All Openbank cards are linked to charitable causes our
customers can choose from among the bank's selected
organizations. Every time customers pay with their Solidarity
Card, they can round their payments up and donate the
difference.
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In Brazil, a USD 100 million loan facility from the IFC supports
projects that promote the use of renewable energy and
energy efficiency, as well as Santander’s working capital
lending programme to Brazilian SMEs, with at least 10% of
the proceeds earmarked for female entrepreneurs.

In Poland, a synthetic securitization agreement signed with
the EIB Group is allowing us to provide around PLN 2.8 billion
in new funding to SMEs and mid-caps against the backdrop of

the covid-19 outbreak.

In the last four years, Grupo Santander has signed
agreements worth EUR 11.1 billion with the European
Investment Bank Group (EIB), the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), the International
Finance Corporation (IFC), the Multilateral Investment
Guarantee Agency (MIGA), the Council of Europe
Development Bank (CEB) and the Development Bank of Latin
America (CAF).

Global Trade Services

Grupo Santander helps SMEs access trade finance, supply
chain, payments, foreign exchange and other global services.

In 2020, we strengthened our SME international trade
operations by investing in Ebury, one of the world's leading
payment, FX and cash management platforms for SMEs,
providing them with the necessary tools for cross-border
expansion.

We also invested EUR 30 million to become the majority
shareholder in Mercury TFS, an innovative company
specializing in digital trade finance solutions, with 130
employees and operations in Spain, Mexico, Chile and
Colombia.

Global Merchant Services

We also give online and offline retailers the ability to accept
various forms of payment, helping them better manage and
grow their businesses. These value-added services are based
on Getnet, a leading platform in Latin America, giving
merchants from micro-enterprises to multinationals a unique
experience.
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Santander Cash Nexus: global connectivity for Banco Santander's largest

multinational corporate customers

Through Santander Cash Nexus, Santander Corporate &
Investment Banking (SCIB) offers a standardized digital
service in our core geographies. It helps customers be more
efficient with greater control over their transactions.

We offer a simple, competitive solution that digitalizes and
centralizes cash management for international businesses.
Customers in more than 15 countries have a single point of
entry to streamline their operations and make payments in
the formats and channels that best fit their models.

Mouro Capital. Helping fintechs grow.

In 2020, it launched Santander Cash Nexus Sign, which gives
access to Santander Cash Nexus on any mobile device so
customers can sign for transactions safely, anywhere and
anytime.

In March, Global Finance magazine named Santander Cash
Nexus the "Best Payment Hub Solution" in its “Best Treasury
& Cash Management Providers” category.

Mouro Capital, the successor to Santander Innoventures, is an
independent venture capital firm that invests in fintechs and
adjacent businesses (artificial intelligence, payment solutions,
access to credit and financial inclusion).

With USD 400 million in allocated funds, it will manage the
portfolio of Santander Innoventures, which since 2014 has
invested in 36 startups in Europe and the Americas.

The fund will continue to deploy capital and remain a key
driver of our ambition to be the best banking partner to
startups, generating tangible value through strategic
collaborations. Today, 70% of the fund's current portfolio
companies work with Santander.
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Supporting the green transition

Tackling climate change is a key objective at Grupo Santander. We support the
climate change goals of the 2015 Paris Agreement. Our ambition is to achieve net
zero by 2050 and we have set our first decarbonization targets.

Main lines of action

Aligning our portfolio to meet
the Paris Agreement goals

4

We have the ambition to achieve
net zero by 2050 supported by
first decarbonization targets:
eliminate all exposure to
thermal coal mining worldwide

Supporting our customers
in the green transition

We are building a complete
Sustainable and Green finance
proposition across the group. We
are a world leader in the financing
of renewable energy projects.

Reducing
our environmental impact

We are strongly committed to

protecting the environment by

reducing our footprint and have
become carbon neutral.

and align power generation
portfolio by 2030.

To help our customers make the transition to the
green economy and to raise or facilitate the
mobilization of EUR 120 bn between 2019 and 2025,
and EUR 220 bn between 2019 and 2030, in green
finance to help tackle climate change.A

A. Includes our overall contribution to green finance: project finance,
syndicated loans, green bonds, capital finance, export finance, advisory
services, structuring and other products to help our customers in the
transition to a low-carbon economy.

Climate change is a global issue that the Paris Agreement of
December 2015 seeks to combat by accelerating the actions
and investments needed for a sustainable, low-carbon future.
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Progress

Green finance
Raised or facilitated®

120 bn

2019 2025

B. 2020 SCIB's contribution to the green finance target includes: Project Finance
(lending): 5.1 bn; Financial Advisory: 3.2 bn; Green bonds (DCM): 2.8 bn; Project
Bonds (renewables): 0.9 bn; Export Finance (ECA): 0.8 bn; M&A: 2.3 bn; Equity
Capital Markets: n/a. For a total of 15,2 bn. Information obtained from public
sources, such as Dealogic, Inframation news, TXF or Mergermarket league
tables. All roles undertaken by Banco Santander in the same project are
accounted for. Other sustainable finance components, such as financial inclusion
and entrepreneurship, are excluded.

While climate risk is not new, it's an emerging driver of risk
that impact banks' credit, market and operational risks,
among others. The transition to a low-carbon economy
presents banks with a big opportunity; according to the OECD,
annual investment of USD 6.9 trillion to 2030 will be required
to meet the Paris Agreement goals.
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Our approach

Santander recognizes the actions we take this decade will be
key to address the climate emergency. To contribute in a
practical and tangible manner, we will focus on aligning our
portfolio to Paris Agreement goals, starting with most
material sectors as regards climate exposure. To drive
alignment, we will continue working to better understand
sectors and portfolio transition pathways, step by step
towards our ambition of net zero by 2050. To achieve this we
will support our customers in the green transition, engaging
with them and developing financial products and services.
Lastly, we will ensure that Santander's own operations
remain being carbon neutral, by continuing to reduce our
own emissions, increasing the use of renewable energy and
offsetting remaining emissions by using certified providers as
we started to do in 2020.

Our Strategy

+ We publicly support the Paris Agreement and joined the
UN Collective Commitment to Climate Action (CCCA). Our
ambition is to achieve net zero carbon emissions across
the Group by 2050.

Central to our climate strategy are:

o setting sector portfolio alignment targets to fulfill the
CCCA.

o the green finance target: to raise or facilitate EUR
120bn in green finance between 2019 and 2025 and
EUR 220bn by 2030.

o the pledge to be carbon neutral in 2020 and to source
our entire electricity supply from renewable energies by
2025.

= We are now working on a roadmap to be Net zero by 2050
prioritizing the most climate material sectors where data
and methods are available. We will share progress on this
ambitious goal in our Climate Finance Report at the end of
st half of 2021.

+ In 2020, we fine-tuned our internal risk taxonomy and
updated our heat map, which plots each sector’s climate-
related risks (transition and physical) on a five-point scale
to measure the materiality of those sectors on the group's
balance sheet. This enables us to manage the emergence
and concentration of climate change risks by sector, and it
has been a critical input when defining our strategy. For
more details on the materiality assessment, please see the
Risk management section below.

Economic Risk management
and financial review and compliance

We made strides to fulfil regulatory requirements by working
to implement the European Banking Authority (EBA)
guidelines and standards as well as supervisory expectations
of the European Central Bank in particular their Guide on
climate-related and environmental risks disclosed in 2020

Disclosing our approach is key to helping markets and other
stakeholders assess how we incorporate climate within our
processes and policies and report on our climate
performance. We take the Task force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) as the guiding reference in this
regards. Our Climate finance report 2019-June 2020
included information on, and expanded on, TCFD. Later in the
year we will disclose our updated Climate finance report.

See our latest update on the TCFD's four-pillar framework
(Strategy, Governance, Risk management and Metrics &
Targets ) below.

Further details on our Climate

% Report 2019-June2020
available at our corporate
website.

+ As part of the initial steps in building a roadmap towards
our net zero ambition and to fulfil our CCCA, we have until
September 2022 to (1) issue a statement indicating the
sector(s) we are proposing to align with the Paris
Agreement, and (2) set specific alignment targets. After
analysing a number of inputs, based on the materiality
assessment and using the PACTA methodologyA as an
initial approximation, we have committed to aligning our
power generation portfolio with the Paris Agreement by
2030. To deliver on this commitment, we are devising a
two-pronged coal phase-out strategy: (1) Stop providing
financial services to power generation customers with a
revenue dependency on thermal coal of over 10% by
2030; and (2) Reduce our exposure to thermal coal mining
to zero by 2030. For more details, see the 'Aligning our
portfolio to meet Paris Agreement Goals' section.

+ Going forward, we will continue to assess the alignment of
the most concerning sectors regarding climate change (oil
and gas, mining and Metals, and car manufacture within
Transport) in view of the data and methodologies
becoming available and robust.

A. PACTA (Paris Agreement Capital Transition Assessment) from 2 Degrees
Investing Initiative.
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= In 2020, to help deliver on our green finance target we + In our own operations we have reduced CO, emissions and
raised or facilitated EUR 15.2 bn (EUR 33.8 bn since 2019) offset the emissions we have been unable to reduce,
and harnessed climate finance opportunities by working on becoming carbon neutral in 2020. Furthermore, 57% of our
diverse initiatives. For more details see next section electricity supply comes from renewables energies. Please
"Supporting our customers in the green transition." see "Environmental Footprint" section below for more

details.
o SCIB created an ESG solutions team to boost its

sustainable finance proposition, reinforcing their long-

We defined climate-related timescales and embedded them

standing leadership in renewables financing and advisory in our strategic process; short term is up to a year aligned
services. with budget; medium term is 3-4 years aligned with
financial planning; long term is 5-7 years aligned with
> We set up a sustainable finance working group co-led by strategic planning; and, for ad hoc analysis, longer term is
SCIB and Responsible Banking, aimed at providing key over 7 years.
insights on four areas: green buildings, clean mobility,
renewables and sustainable agro. o Our three-year planning includes climate risks and
opportunities to embed climate change in our long-term
> We made great progress in developing an internal Green business strategy for the Group.

Book compiling all the green features of our products, as
well as an internal classification system to identify ESG in
general purpose lending.

o

We issued our second EUR 1 billion green bond, which
will be used to finance and refinance renewable wind and

solar power.
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- The responsible banking, sustainability and culture
committee (RBSCC) helps the board oversee the
Responsible Banking strategy, which includes climate
change. It meets every quarter and in 2020 was formed of
eight board members: seven external directors (majority
independent) and the executive chairman; its chair is an
independent board member. All members are appointed in
light of their knowledge and experience relating to the
committee's mission.

+ In 2020, the RBSCC held four meetings, three of which
included climate change as a topic (the minimum is two
meetings covering climate). The committee also conducted
reviews of climate-related financial risks and
opportunities, roadmaps to fulfil TCFD and ECB
expectations, our sustainable finance proposition (to
ensure we help our customers transition to a low-carbon
economy), plans for business lines and the progress of our
carbon footprint and green finance commitments. The
committee issues a yearly report on the actions taken and
reviewed. For more details, see the 'Corporate governance'
chapter.

+ The board took part in a second climate change training
programme that included modules on the Paris Agreement
and Net Zero. In Santander UK, the board and executive
committee attended a climate change workshop delivered
by external experts, which covered climate science,
regulatory requirements and the TCFD recommendations.
See below details on staff and management training.

+ The executive management of the Responsible Banking
agenda lies with the Inclusive & Sustainable Banking
Steering group (I&SBS), which promotes the transition to a
low-carbon economy and fosters sustainable consumption.
The I&SBS feeds into the RBSCC and meets every six weeks
aprox. It is formed of nine permanent executive members
and two rotating members (country heads). In 2020, the
I&SBS held seven meetings and addressed topics such as
ESG performance, TCFD progression, smart infrastructures,
climate change, sustainable finance in specific geographies
and carbon offsetting.

- The management committee of the Group discuss twice a
year on the progress of the Responsible Banking agenda
(including climate change), with a focus on TCFD
implementation and ESG business opportunities.

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

+ In 2020, the strategy committee of the Group approved
the climate change project as one of the bank’s strategic
projects, the progress of which will be reviewed twice a
year according to the established roadmap.

We included responsible banking objectives as a qualitative
metric in our 2020 executive remuneration scorecard,
aligning it with our public commitments, including the
Green Finance target.

Climate change is also part of our general sustainability
policy, which we reviewed in 2020 and linked to the
environmental, social & climate change risk management
policy, where we set out the climate-specific lending criteria
described further in the Risk management section.

The climate change agenda and governance, and the
implementation of TCFD recommendations, are designated
to specialist working groups (see box below).

The climate working group, co-led by SCIB, Risk and
Responsible Banking, met regularly in 2020 to monitor and
make headway with the climate project, based on a
roadmap with defined milestones. With members from
different functions and geographies, it receives feedback
from executive directors as part of the I&SBS.

In Q1 2020, the Risk division completed a review of its
governance in relation to climate change. The review
considered the terms of reference of governing bodies, their
forward-looking agendas and the risk framework. In the
annual review, all policies and internal procedures were re-
examined, and specific references to climate change risk
management were introduced.

4.9 'Operations of the responsible banking,
sustainability and culture committee' in the
Corporate governance chapter.

% For more details on the RBSCC, see section

For more details on our policies and
% governance, see the 'Governance and

priorities' section of this chapter.

Our General sustainability policy is available
% at our corporate website.
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Climate working group
comprises key functions and
geographies to support the
implementation of the TCFD
and CCCA roadmap.

Public Policy
Sustainability working
group

advises on regulatory
developments and
coordinates the group's
response to public
consultations.

Risk division climate
change working group
involves different risk areas
to develop and implement
the risk-specific tasks set
out in the TFCD roadmap.

Santander UK climate
change working group
coordinates the plan to
comply with the PRA's
supervisory statement on
climate change risk
management.

Management and staff training

SCIB ESG working group
has a broad agenda that
includes climate-based
business positioning and
opportunities.

Sustainable finance
working group
incorporates areas and
countries to provide key
insights on green buildings,
clean mobility, renewable
energies and sustainable
agro.

Sustainable bond
steering group

oversees the issuance,
management and reporting
of Grupo Santander’s
sustainable bonds.

Footprint working group
looks at how we measure
and reduce our internal
carbon footprint, as well as
offsetting our remaining
CO, emissions.

To help the management team deliver on the challenges
ahead and on our pledge to support customers in their
transition towards a greener economy, we launched the
“Climate Dialogues” programme for senior managers to
discuss critical climate-related topics with renowned experts.
In 2020, we held three sessions, with up to 940 participants in
one single session, including 12 Promontorio executives. The
programme will continue throughout 2021, with the first

session held in January.

Based on the Banking Environment Initiative's (BEI) Bank
2030 vision, Santander, BEIl and the University of Cambridge
organized a workshop on “How to accelerate the financing
of the low-carbon economy”, attended by more than 100
people mainly from SCIB and Risk. The session provided a
complete picture of the financial sector's role in the energy
transition and encouraged participants to come up with ideas
to make the most of the opportunities arising from a low-

carbon economy.
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Furthermore, we released a climate change eLearning
module, available to all geographies to raise awareness of
the negative impact climate change has on the economy.

To boost knowledge and expertise within the bank, we also
created briefings on climate-related financial risks and
opportunities for the power, oil and gas, mining, and steel
industries. The aim is to support areas that make strategic
climate change-related decisions, as well as identifying and
exploring relevant topics regarding the impact on credit
(including policy and regulation), the markets and technology.
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Risk management

Grupo Santander's regularly updated framework for the
identification, assessment, management and reporting of
climate change-related financial risks helps increase our
understanding of the risks and opportunities in our
portfolios and enhances our forward-looking analysis.

The correct assessment of environmental and climate
change risks helps shape business strategy, deploy capital
efficiently and meet the expectations of European
regulators and supervisory authorities, as well as the
Financial Stability Board and the United Nations.

Our top risk identification and assessment includes climate
change and is updated quarterly to reflect the
environmental agenda.

The general risk framework categorizes Grupo Santander's
key risks, with environmental and climate-related financial
risks (physical or transition-led) identified as factors that
could impact the existing risks in the medium and long
term.

In 2020, we adapted our risk appetite and related policies
to reflect the group's strategy in this regard.

Our internal risk taxonomy identifies sectors that are
exposed to climate change risks through physical and/or
transition impacts, while our heat map assesses each
sector’s climate-related vulnerability on a five-point scale.

This risk classification, based on the main activity of our
customers (according to the NACE” code) and
complemented with exposure data for each of the sectors
and geographies, is the basis for the quantitative and
qualitative measurement of the most relevant climate
change-related risks, and is used to develop relevant risk
metrics and to inform decision making on climate change-
related risks.

Based on an in-depth review of our exposures to climate
change-related transition risk, we conduct a quarterly
materiality assessment focusing on the group's main
portfolios.

The assessment shows that the most concerning sectors
exposed to climate change are conventional power, oil and
gas, mining and metals, and transport, while SCIB
represents approximately 90% of our total exposure to
rated companies. See figure on the top right.

Other sectors classified as medium risk in the assessment
are manufacturing, construction, agriculture and water
supply. In SCIB, its exposure amounts to ~EUR 57bn. SCIB
exposure represent ~70% of the total exposure to rated
corporates.

Retail mortgages and real estate represent exposure of
approximately EUR 350bn (of which EUR 308.5 bn are retail
mortgages, mainly in the UK and Spain), and are classified
as moderate risk.

A. NACE: Statistical Classification of Economic Activities in the European

Community.
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SCIB® exposure to climate most concerning sectors
Data as of December 2020, EUR Bn

~€9bn renewables 27 _?6
Project Finance
included
8
18
Power Oil & Gas Mining Transport Most
generation & Metals concerning
s _Scale of risk
Very High Medium Moderate Low

Most concerning

B. Business in scope: SCIB (excluding Export Finance). Exposure = REC before
provisions (on and off balance sheet lending + guarantees + derivatives PFE)

Exposure to most concerning carbon intensive sectors represents
approximately ~10% of the Group’s balance-sheet

= In 2020, Santander UK analysed the climate-related risks
of its mortgage portfolio using scenarios from the UK
Climate Programme. When assessing the most viable
physical risk - flooding -, we found that 95% of our
mortgage lending is on properties with negligible or very
low risk of flooding. See table below.

Flood Risk® Number of properties %
High; >1:30 2,906 0.24
Medium: between 1:30 and 1:100 10,021 0.81
Low; >1:1000 49,678 4.02
Very low; >1:10,000 69,523 5.63
Negligible ; <1;10,000 1,102,435 89.3
Total Properties 1,234,563 100.00

C. Flood Risk is expressed as a ratio, where 1 in 30 year (1:30) flood event
refers to the likelihood of flooding occurring in a given year.

= Our Economic Research department analyses climate
scenarios and the economic impact of climate change
(current and future global warning) by reviewing external
sources such as information published by the Network for
Greening the Financial System, as well as its own
assumptions. It uses Integrated Assessment Models and
internal tools to create feasible scenarios and data
including GDP, energy consumption and emissions.

approach and progress, see section 2.6
'Environmental and social risk' of the Risk
management and compliance chapter.

% For more details on our risk management

Further details on our Climate Report 2019-
% June2020 available at our Corporate Website.
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Metrics and targets

We produce climate-related metrics to disclose data
regarding our business operations; our loan portfolio in
relation to the most concerning sectors; our position in
market rankings; green financing; and impact metrics such as
the emissions we counteract in financing renewable energy.

We now include metrics based on the results of our climate
materiality assessment, disclosing our exposure to the most
concerning sectors (see data above).

Our report sets out metrics that track our performance and
the achievement of our objectives, as well as how we manage
climate-change related risks and opportunities. We continue
to identify and develop new metrics for future disclosures.

Regarding our own operations, we disclose performance data
on scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions as mentioned in the
Environmental Footprint section, along with other climate
relevant metrics like energy consumption. We also report
against our targets on renewables and carbon neutrality.

In 2020, Santander became carbon neutral in its own
operations, by continuing to reduce its own
emissions, by increasing the use of renewable energy
and by offsetting the remaining emissions.

Aligning our portfolio to meet the Paris
Agreement goals

Santander publicly supports the Paris Agreement on climate
change. We joined the UN Collective Commitment to Climate
Action (CCCA) when it launched in 2019. Further to this we
are now setting the ambition to be net zero by 2050. Later
on the year, and in particular in our climate finance report
which will be published after the first semester of 2021, we
will provide further details on the roadmap towards this
ambition which we will be improving in scope and detail as
we progress on this journey.

We aim to contribute in a practical and tangible manner to
Paris by aligning our portfolio with Paris. Alignment means
embedding climate into our strategy and governance, in how
we manage risks and opportunities. We are committed to
supporting people and businesses in their transition towards
a green economy.

Managing climate change risk and opportunity requires
collaboration between internal functions and with external
stakeholders to build and acquire knowledge. We are joining
forces with financial authorities and sector associations by
participating in formal consultations and industry forums. We
also collaborate with peers and take part in debates to come
up with financial solutions that support the UN Sustainable
Development Goals and the Paris Agreement.

Progress on the Collective Commitment to Climate Action

To fulfil UNEP FI Collective Commitment to Climate Action
(CCCA), we need to set and publish sector-specific, scenario-
based targets to align our portfolio with the Paris Agreement
goals. Santander has been working towards this aim and in
September 2020 published its first CCCA progress report.
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Concerning our business activity, the next section of this
chapter provides information about our performance and
support to our customers in their transition to a low carbon
economy. It does also include progress against our
commitments, namely regarding our green finance target.

In 2020, to help deliver on our green finance target
we raised or mobilized EUR 15.2 bn (33.8 bn EUR
since 2019).

Regarding our scope 3 emissions related to financing, in 2020
we engaged with data providers, methodology-setting
organizations and peers to further our understanding towards
developing useful metrics. We are adopting a granular
approach and providing emissions intensity data for the
power generation sector (see below), where we will focus
our efforts initially. Further below we provide information
about our second PACTA exercise and more details about
decarbonization targets as part of our TCFD disclosures.

We continue to apply the methodology from the PACTA (Paris
Agreement Capital Transition Assessment) 2 Degrees
Investing Initiative, which focuses on high climate impact
sectors. We undertook a second exercise to analyse our SCIB
power generation portfolio (a material sector within our
portfolio from a climate risk perspective).

For that second analysis, we focused on our SCIB loan book
with our power generation corporate customers, excluding
project finance. Our power generation project finance
portfolio, which represents 32% of our total power
generation portfolio, is made up of 92% renewable energy.
Ultimately, we chose to focus on corporate customers as it's a
key area for us to engage with customers and further support
them in their transition to a low-carbon economy.

Our power generati/?n portfolio compares well against the
corporate economy , with a larger share of renewables
(Santander 21% vs corporate economy 15%) and hydro (27%
vs 19%) and a smaller percentage exposure to coal (12% vs
29%). Projecting our portfolio to 2025 (using the PACTA
methodology), our position improves when compared to
corporate economy with increased share in renewables (27%
vs 18%) and also lower share in coal (9% vs 26%), which is
fairly consistent with a Paris aligned pathway.

www.unepfi.org/wordpress/wp-content/
uploads/2020/09/Santander_CCCA-
report_website092020.pdf

% Our first CCCA progress report is available at

A. Corporate economy: represents the aggregate/combined production of all
assets in the Asset Resolution's database, which captures approximately 70%
of total world CO, emissions (CO, is the largest greenhouse gas (GHG)
contributor to human induced climate change). Considering the inclusion of
other GHG (such as nitrous oxide and methane - relevant in agriculture), the
database captures approximately 60% of total GHG emissions. Based on data
from the 2018 World Energy Outlook from the International Energy Agency.


www.unepfi.org/wordpress/wp-content

Responsible Corporate Economic Risk management
banking governance and financial review and compliance
Power Generation
Production capacity across technologies (%)
2020 2025
15% 21% 27% 28%
19% 20%
27%
= 25%
26% 26% °
5%
5%
25% o 24% 23%
29% A 26% . 5
o o
12% 10%
Corporate Santander Corporate Santander Paris Aligned
Economy (A) Economy (A) Pathway
B coal M oil Gas Hydro Nuclear [ Renewable

A. Corporate Economy: represents the aggregate/combined production of all assets in the Asset Resolution's database, which captures approximately 70% of total
world CO, emissions (CO, is the largest greenhouse gas (GHG) contributor to human induced climate change). Considering the inclusion of other GHG (such as
nitrous oxide and methane - relevant in agriculture), the database captures approximately 60% of total GHG emissions. Based on data from the 2018 World Energy

Outlook from the International Energy Agency.

Power Generation portfolio alignment
Following our analysis and with the approval of the board:

We committed to aligning our power generation portfolio
with the Paris Agreement by 2030.

As part of this, we're taking further steps by committing to:

Stop providing financial services to power generation
clients with a revenue dependency on thermal coal of over
10% in 2030.

We will also work on a future pathway in line with the UNEP
FI CCCA approach, where we will continue assessing
alignment for our most concerning sectors with respect to
climate, considering the data and methodologies available,
and participating in working groups to further the
development of alignment methodologies and approaches in
the financial sector.

The carbon intensity of our current power
generation portfolio for corporate customers is of
309.6 ngOZ/KWhB as a measure of physical intensity

B. Includes top 20 companies representing 85% of power generation portfolio.
S&P Trucost Limited © Trucost 2021 has been used as the primary source of
information for 2019 emission and production metrics, complemented with
public information obtained directly from companies’ annual reports.

By comparison, the world average carbon intensity of electricity generation
is of 475 gCO,/kWh according to the International Energy Agency

Coal phase-out

We took further steps to reduce our exposure to coal-related
sectors and committed to cut our worldwide exposure to
thermal coal mining to zero by 2030.

Net Zero by 2050

Our ambition is to be net zero carbon emissions by 2050 in
terms of its own operations (Scope 1 and 2, which are already
carbon neutral) and Scope 3 emissions across our the Groups.
Later on the year, and in particular in our climate finance
report to be disclosed by end the first semester, we will
provide further details on the roadmap towards this ambition.

UNEP Fl engagement on the TCFD Pilot project and the

Collective Commitment to Climate Action

We remain engaged with the UNEP FI on climate. Since 2018,
we have participated in the TCFD recommendations pilots | &
I, making headway with an internal methodology to assess
climate change-related impacts on our credit risk exposures,
and are very much looking forward to continuing our
involvement in the next stages of the pilot. As part of the
Collective Commitment to Climate Action, we participate in

the working groups aimed at strengthening the initiative and
further developing it.

social risk' section of the Compliance and

For more details, see 2.6 'Environmental and
% conduct risk management.
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Supporting our customers

Corporate and Investment Banking

Santander Corporate and Investment Banking (SCIB) aims to
become a reference point in sustainable finance by providing
ESG solutions in all our markets.

Leveraging a solid track record in renewable energies and
strong product capabilities, SCIB is branching out to fully-
integrated ESG advisory services across all sectors and
products, serving an increasing appetite from corporates and
investors.

Strengthening our long-standing leadership in renewable
energy financing and advisory services

For the last 10 years, we have been the leading bank in
financing renewable energies, and rank in the Top 3 by
number of deals and Top 5 by deal value globally. Within this
period, we have participated in 143 renewable energy finance
deals, investing a total of more than USD 6 billion.
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Santander Corporate and Investment Banking
(SCIB) aims to become a reference in sustainable
finance through ESG solutions.

Global Renewable Energy Project Finance Volume by MLA -
FY 2020

Rank  Mandated Arranger Vol. (USDm) NO.  %share

1 Banco Santander 6,284 143 6.7
2 Bank 1 5,638 73 6.0
3 Bank 2 5,511 63 5.9
4 Peer 1° 3,779 76 4.0
5 Bank 3 3,737 52 4.0
6 Bank 4 3,436 54 3.7
7 Bank 5 2,962 28 3.2
8 Peer 2 2,601 32 2.8
9 Peer 3 2,589 40 2.8
10 Bank 6 2,313 24 2.5

A. As indicated by Dealogic and Bloomberg New Energy Finance league tables
for project financing within the Lead Arranger category.
B. Peers are banks that due to their size and market capitalization are
comparable to Santander, including BBVA, BNP Paribas, Citi, HSBC, ING, Itau,
Scotia Bank and UniCredit.

Banco Santander issues second green bond worth EUR 1 billion

In 2019, we created a Global Sustainable Bonds Framework
and a Global Green Bonds Framework in line with the 2018
Green and Social Bond Principles. These frameworks are
aligned with, and support, our Responsible Banking strategy,
reflecting our intention to deploy additional capital for green,
social and sustainable projects.

In October 2019, we set our global sustainable issuance plan
in motion with a seven-year, EUR 1 billion green bond to fund
wind and solar power projects, in line with UN Sustainable
Development Goals 7 and 13.
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In June 2020, we issued a second green bond; a seven-year,
EUR 1 billion senior non-preferred issuance. The net proceeds
will be divided between existing wind and solar assets on our
balance sheet and new assets that will be added in our core
markets (Europe, US and Latin America). The re-financing
share will be less than 50% during the term of the bond.

Santander, S.A. Global Sustainable Bond Framework (updated in

Banco Santander, S.A. Green Bonds Framework and the Banco
% 2020) are available at our corporate website.
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Renewable energy projects

In 2020, we helped finance greenfield renewable energy
projects with a total installed capacity of 13,765 MW,
preventing the emission of 60 million tons of COZA. We also
contributed to the expansion, improvement and maintenance
of existing renewable energy infrastructure projects
(brownfield), with a total installed capacity of 8,106 MW
(Further details in the graphs below).

Our renewable energy project finance portfolio (greenfield
and brownfield) totalled EUR 11.6 billion at the end of the
year, approximately half of our project finance portfolio and
spread over 307 transactions.

Financing of renewable Financing of renewable

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

The renewables projects have a generation
capacity equivalent to thg yearly consumption of
10.3 million households.

A. Emissions which the MW financed in 2020 will prevent over the course of the
projects’ useful lifespans. International Energy Agency emissions factors
(source updated in 2019 with data from 2017) have been used.

B. Calculated using data on final electricity consumption for the residential
sector by country published by the International Energy Agency (source
updated in 2020 with data from 2018).

energy (greenfield) energy (brownfield) Breakdown of MW financed by type of renewable energy
(MW financed) (MW financed)®
16,785 % Wind  77% --  77%35% 77% 46%
13,765 energy 2018 2019 2020
L
o 70 Solar 229, 100% 22%54%  18% 33%
6,689 8,106 TLL energy 2018 2019 2020
o - () o o o
GBF other® 1% 1%11% 5% 21%
1,200 2018 2019 2020
||
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
Greenfield Brownfield
Breakdown of renewable MW financed by country in 2020°
(greenfield and brownfield)
— E1 3 & ‘ & () W 9
3,796 MW 5,455 MW 706 MW 882 MW 1,587 MW 497 MW 242 MW 0 MW 0 MW
681 MW 630 MW 2,169 MW 0 MW 17 MW 0 MW 0 MW 3,510 MW 306 MW
USA United Spain Chile Brazil France Poland Portugal Germany
Kingdom

C. In 2020, the MW attributable to Banco Santander according to its share in each project was: 19% of total for greenfield and 23% for brownfield.
D. Others greenfield: Taiwan (600 MW). Others brownfield: Italy (61 MW); Uruguay (52 MW); The Netherlands (600 MW); Sweden (80 MW)
E.Includes biomass for 2018 and hydropower for 2019, and solar-wind energy for 2020.

Renewable energy projects financed in 2020

«=. \Ne closed one of the largest deals in the Spanish

w» renewable energy market worth EUR 567.8 million,
under a hybrid structure format, including a bank
loan and project bonds.

4ll». We participated in the financing of an Offshore Wind

«fl» Farm, which will become the world's biggest. It will
generate 2.4 GW of green energy to supply c. 3.3% of
the UK's demand, powering four million homes per
year.
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Evolving our ESG product offering

We demonstrate our commitment to inclusive and
sustainable growth and to the transition to a low-carbon
economy through various products and services.
Incorporating ESG into financial instruments for sustainable
projects has extended to traditional bank loans, revolving
credit facilities, bonds and even derivatives.

In 2020, we participated in 53 Green and ESG loan

transactions in Europe, and ranked third in Refinitiv's
European league table.

Green and ESG Loans, Europe - 2020 YTD
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Our aim is to support our customers in defining
and executing their strategy to transition
towards sustainable models. As part of this, we
have intensified and upgraded our dialogue and
engagement on topics ranging from
sustainability strategy to disclosure, financing
needs, ESG ratings, specific solutions and new
technologies.

Landmark deals in 2020

Rank  Lender Vol. (EUR m) Total Deals

1 Peer 1 99,308 81 First ESG-linked Facility in the aerospace
2 Peer 2 72,532 56 sector

3 Banco Santander 70,622 53 SCIB acted as ESG Coordinator, supporting the company in
4 Bank 1 70,293 50 setting targets, developing pricing mechanisms, and on
5 Bank 2 64,691 30 communication to banks and the wider market.

6 Bank 3 56,151 32 —

7 Bank 4 53,997 24 (\9)

8 Bank 5 52,648 33 First ever gender bond in Mexico

J Bank6 20,503 34 SCIB acted as joint lead manager and bookrunner in the
10 Peer 3 49,790 47

In recent years, we have developed frameworks that
are the building blocks of our ESG product offering:

- Sustainable Guarantees Framework, with a second party

opinion from VIGEO (2019)

- Social Loans Framework in Argentina, with a second party
opinion from Sustainalytics (2020)
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financing of a portfolio of new and existing loans targeting
women as beneficiaries in three areas: financial inclusion,
employment and entrepreneurship.

G First Polish sustainability bond and swap

SCIB took on the roles of coordinator, lead arranger and
bookrunner in financing a Polish group's transformation to
zero-emission power generation.

O

First sustainability linked bond in Brazil

SCIB acted as a bookrunner for the first sustainability linked
bond in Brazil, and second globally, for a pulp and paper
producer aiming to reduce GHG emissions.
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Retail and commercial banking

In 2020, we completed our internal Green Book, which
compiles all products with specific green features of the
Group according to international standards such as the Green
Bond Principles. This initial classification will be enhanced
with the EU Taxonomy and other global guidelines.

The Green Book products are specifically tailored to two main
segments: individuals and SMEs/Corporates.

This enables us to identify how much finance we direct
towards green assets through products with specific green
features, and to promote green finance to our retail customer
base.

In parallel, we are developing an internal classification
system based on the EU Taxonomy and other international
standards, to identify and manage the volumes of green
financing in our standard credit.

Some of these green products include:

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

Green book

Products for individuals and/or

SMEs /corporates Countries

£0¢

Green mortgages

200:

Loan for energy efficiency

200c

Loan/lease for renewable

energy installations -l 2
- iy @
_—
Gl
. -
Loan/lease for clean transportation —
O w
_—
Loan for low carbon agriculture “&‘
Loan to foster circular economy

Crédito Pessoal
para energias

@  Hipoteca Fija/ ner
renovaveis

‘a’ Variable Online

Loan that incentivizes the
acquisition of renewable
energy generation or energy
efficient equipment.

Product that gives benefits
for acquiring proprieties
with an A or A+ energy
efficiency certificate.

Mutltilateral financing for energy efficiency and
renewable energy projects

In Spain, thanks to the EIF's involvement in a synthetic
securitization initiative, we aim to provide EUR 10 million in
new climate-related investments. Similarly, we will allocate
up to EUR 51 million to low-carbon and zero-emission
vehicles in Portugal with the EIF's support. We are also
helping renewable energy and energy efficiency projects in
Brazil with a USD 50 million loan facility alongside the IFC.

In 2020, we entered into three financing agreements with
MDBs to contribute EUR 104 million to green financing
projects. In the last four years, the Group has signed
agreements with multilaterals such as the EIB (European
Investment Bank), EBRD (European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, IFC (International Finance Corporation),
MIGA (Multilateral Investment Guarantee Agency ), CEB
(Council of Europe Development Bank) and the CAF-
Development Bank of Latin America to provide over EUR
1,360 million in support of green finance in Spain, Poland,
Portugal, Brazil and Peru.

L&) (DC Sustentavel
W ko leasing

Product for electric and
hybrid vehicles with
benefits such as financing
up to 36 months, 30% off
the first lease fee, customer
support, insurance, etc.

Financing for renovations
and projects using
renewable energy and
energy efficient
installations, as well as
accessibility, ergonomic and
air quality upgrades.

AENOR sustainability seal for small
and medium-sized companies

Santander Espana created the first AENOR-assessed seal that
gives Spanish SMEs' a sustainability rating to set them apart
in the eyes of their customers and suppliers.
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Embedding ESG in all key areas of the bank

Leveraging on a solid track record in renewable energy and
strong product capabilities across our platform, we are now
moving towards fully-integrated ESG solutions, serving an
increasing appetite from corporate and institutional
customers. To better support our customers in achieving their
own ESG objectives, in 2020 SCIB created a dedicated team to
boost its sustainable finance proposition.

This new global team works closely with product teams such
as Global Transaction Banking, Project Finance and Markets,
to provide strategic solutions as well as product and financing
structures tailored to specific industries, geographies and
market sectors, helping our customers in their transition
towards a more sustainable business model.
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“The creation of this team further reinforces our
contribution to Grupo Santander's responsible
banking commitment to support inclusive and
sustainable growth. We want to back our
customers in their ESG transformation journey,
helping them define and achieve their global
sustainability objectives.”

José M. Linares, SEVP (Senior Executive Vice President) and
Global Head of Santander CIB

Playing an active role in shaping the external environment

- We shared insights on sustainable finance practice with the Banking Environment Initiative (BEI) to help with
its Bank 2030 research report, which seeks to shed light on how banks can accelerate the transition to a low-
carbon economy and to create a vision for the banks of 2030.

= The report is a significant contribution to the banking sector as it identifies barriers and opportunities for
banks in the transition, which requires asset and behavioural transformation. We also work with the BEI on
the 'Soft Commodities' Compact and the fight against deforestation.

- Grupo Santander participates in the Paris Agreement Capital Transition Assessment (PACTA) bank pilot led by
the 2 Degrees Investing initiative (2Dii), which aims to provide information on the alignment of selected
z& portfolios with regard to climate scenarios as proxies to the Paris Agreement.

= Our Credit Risk team worked alongside SCIB and Responsible Banking to supply data for the project, and is
actively collaborating with SCIB to use the results in a forward-looking assessment of climate-related risks

and opportunities in wholesale portfolios.

- We are an active member of the Global Investors for Sustainable Development Alliance (GISD Alliance), a

GISDiisms ™
Development.

working group created as part of the UN's strategy for Financing the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable

-> SCIB collaborates on analysing how to invest in Colombia's clean energy, water and sewage sectors, as well

as how to structure SDG-linked financing in the 4G road infrastructure programme. It is also involved in the

call for action around covid bonds.

@ - We participate in the EBF-UNEP FI working group created to develop voluntary guidelines for banks on
‘_ﬁt’ applying the EU taxonomy to their lending portfolios.

Additionally, SCIB hosted key panels related to sustainability
to raise awareness among its customers and investor network
at events:

- October 2020: Santander International Banking Conference
- A sustainable and resilient Recovery, meeting the climate
challenge while addressing economic and social needs

- December 2020: Santander Chile ESG Webinar - Moving
towards a sustainable capital market
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- January 2021: 25th Santander Latin American Conference -
New frontiers for sustainable finance and ESG as an asset
class

- February 2021: XXVII Santander Iberian Conference - ESG,
An opportunity for industrial companies

- February 2021: UN PRI Panel - Deforestation as a Credit
Risk - with Santander invited speaker (Santander Global
Head of E&S Risk)
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Environmental footprint

We are strongly committed to protecting the environment by
reducing our environmental footprint. Our environmental
management strategy focuses on three main areas:

+ Reduce CO, emissions and offset the emissions we have
been unable to reduce.

+ Reduce and responsibly manage our waste.

« Increase awareness of environmental issues among
employees and other stakeholders.

Since 2001, we've been measuring our environmental
footprint through energy consumption, waste and emissions.
And, since 2011, we've used strict criteria to draw up energy
efficiency and sustainability plans to ensure we keep
environmental impact to a minimum, yielding these results:

« Energy consumption reduced by 21%.
« Atmospheric emissions reduced by 61%.

« Paper consumption reduced by 75%.

We have also made two commitments involving all G10
countries:

« From 2020 on, Grupo Santander will be carbon neutral by
investing in projects to offset our emissions.

+ By 2025, 100% of the electricity we consume will come
from renewable sources”.

A. In those countries where it is possible to certify renewable sourced electricity

for the properties occupied by the Group.

Projects to offset CO, emissions
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Becoming carbon neutral

Grupo Santander's plan to become carbon neutral comprises
five projects in five countries that provide us with the carbon
credits we need to offset emissions. We drew up an internal
plan and put out a call to tender to select the projects to
obtain the required carbon credits. We then assigned to each
country unit a project through which it could offset its
emissions.

Projects include renewable energies, reforestation and fuel
switching and are certified under the sector's most
recognized international standards, like the Gold Standard,
the Verified Carbon Standard (VCS) or the Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM). This collaborative, international initiative
reflects our commitment to protecting the environment,
fighting climate change and reducing our environmental
footprint.

Use of energy from renewables sources

57% of the energy used in our buildings is renewable, with
100% green energy in Germany, Spain, Portugal and the UK.
We continue to work towards 60% target for 2021 and 100%
by 2025.

Thanks to the purchase of green energy, the emissions
reduction due to electricity consumption was 21%. In terms of
total emissions, this acquisition enabled us to reduce our
emissions by 12%.

‘& Reforestation

Planting of native species in over 1,000
hectares scorched by forest fires in
Alcoroches (Guadalajara).

‘@' Wind energy
Wind farm with 309 MW of installed

capacity, including a social project to
aid the development of local

. Hydropower

Hydropower plant with a capacity of
182 MW that helps the community
through job creation.

communities in Oaxaca.

. Reduction of N20 & Recovering energy from

emissions

Eradication of the N,O produced at a
nitric acid plant, reducing its impact on
the atmosphere.

greenhouse gases

Capture of the methane produced at a
landfill site in Spartanburg (South
Carolina) to be converted into biogas
for clean energy.
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Certified environmental management system

We measure and manage the direct” environmental impact of
our activities through environmental management systems
implemented in most of our buildings, which are externally
audited under IS0 14001.°

We also have:

= LEED PLATINUM certification in three buildings in Poland
(Atrium I, Warszawa Atrium Il and Poznan Business
Garden).

= LEED GOLD certification in ten buildings in: Germany
(Santander Platz and An der Welle 5), Brazil (Torre
Santander and the two Campinas Data Centres), Spain
(Tripark, Abelias, Luca de Tena and the Santander North
Data Centre) and Poland (Robotnicza, 11 Street).

LED lighting

In 2020, we replaced 4,500 fluorescent lamps with LED lights
in our Alhambra and Monteprincipe corporate buildings in
Spain, reducing our energy consumption reduction by
400,000 kWh.

A. Aspects such as light or noise pollution are not considered material.
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Single-use plastics

The #Plasticfree project is part of Grupo Santander's public
responsible banking commitments. It aims to eliminate
unnecessary single-use plastics in our offices and buildings in
2021.

At the end of 2020 we met 98% of our target, with all G10
countries working together.

Environmental awareness

The group organizes global and local awareness campaigns to
involve employees in reducing consumption and waste.

Via our internal Santander Today channel, we provide them
with guides and other information to enable them to join the
challenge of reducing the organization's environmental
impact.

We also participated for the eleventh consecutive year in
Earth Hour, an international initiative to raise awareness of
the impact we as people have on our environment, by turning
off the lights in our most iconic buildings.

B. The bank has buildings with ISO 14001 certification in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Spain, Mexico and the UK.

2020 environmental footprintc

Var. 2019-2020 (%)
2,064,113 M°

Var. 2019-2020 (%)

194,159 T CO, teq

water consumed from -29.7 Lemissi ket based -41.6
the supply system total emissions (market based)
920 MILL. KWH O T as s 24,818 T CO, teq
total electricity renewabte ’ direct emissions
energy

8902 T 83% 128,633 T CO,
: 't | d recycled or -46.0 indirect electricity emissions

otal paper consume certified paper (market based)

Scope 2

! 'd dboard wask -38.9 indirect electricity emissions
paper and cardboard waste (location based)

! ! -13.1 Scope 3 indirect emissions from employees

total internal energy consumption

travelling to work

C. The environmental footprint table, with two-year historical data and the consumptions and emissions per employee, can be found in section 'Key Metrics’ on this

chapter.
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Environmental and social

risk analysis

We give great importance to managing the environmental and social risks that could arise
from our customers' activities in sensitive sectors such as energy, mining and metals, and

soft commodities.

Environmental, social & climate change risk
management policy

The group's environmental, social & climate change risk
management policy sets out the principles and criteria for
identifying and analysing these risks in the oil and gas,
electricity, and mining and metals sectors, as well as for soft
commodity businesses. It also specifies activities within those
sectors that we will not support (prohibited activities), as well
as those which require detailed assessments of their
environmental and social impact.

The policy replaces our separate sector policies on energy, oil
and gas, energy, mining and metals, and soft commodities,
and is aligned with, and applied alongside, the Group's
human rights and sustainability policies (available at our
Corporate Website).

We also have a defence sector policy outlining the criteria for
the group's operations with companies that perform defence-
related activities.

In addition, the Group employs the precautionary principle in
order to analyse and manage its main environmental risks
throughout its value chain, considering both the direct
impacts on the assets where it carries out its activity, as well
as the indirect ones derived from it.

E&S risk governance and management

Grupo Santander has full-time E&S risk and green analysts
whose work includes annual E&S reviews of Santander
Corporate & Investment Banking (SCIB) customers in every
market where we operate.

The E&S risk management (ESRM) area has three functions:

Project analysis under the Equator Principles: in 2020, we
updated our socio-environmental project risk analysis
procedure, which are based on three lines of defence and
integrated into credit admission process.

When an opportunity is identified, the business team uses a
set of internal tools updated by the ESRM team to carry out a
preliminary project screening that determines:

« the risk level and a preliminary classification under the
Equator Principles’ categorization system.

« if socio-environmental due diligence is required, as well as
its scope according to the potential risks the project entails.

> For medium-risk projects, the business unit uses a set of
analytical tools designed by ESRM in accordance with
applicable international guidelines like the IFC
Performance Standards, which also oversees the process.

= High-risk projects are directed to the ESRM team for
analysis in accordance with applicable international
guidelines like the IFC Performance Standards.

Annual customer analysis: We analyse SCIB customers under
the scope of the E&S Risk Management Policy at the moment
of onboarding and during the annual renewal of credit limits.

The analysis is initiated by the business managers, supported
by questionnaires designed by the ESRM team. The local
green analyst then reviews the questionnaires and conducts
any further analysis required, before issuing a
recommendation. The E&S risk global team oversees this
entire process.

In 2020, these analyses included a detailed review of climate
change-related items. In Argentina, Brazil, Peru and Uruguay,
we conducted analyses on customers from sectors other than
those covered under the environmental, social & climate
change risk policy.

Other operations: ESRM also supports the business and risk
teams on the analysis of other operations that may entail
environmental or social risks, such as mergers and
acquisitions, trade finance in high-risk sectors and all other
project finance operations that are not covered by the Equator
Principles.

In Brazil, the team also analyses operations related to
guarantees, mortgages and customers' property portfolios.

governance, see the 'Risk management

For more details on the policies and their
% and compliance' chapter.

change risk management policy will be

The environmental, social & climate
% available on our corporate website.
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Equator Principles

In 2020, we continued adapting our tools and procedures to
the Equator Principles IV, which entered into force in October.
We trained our business teams on the changes that those
new procedures may entail when analysing and evaluating
project finance operations.

We continue to contribute to the development of the
Principles through participation in working groups.

We analysed 68 projects that fell within the Equator
Principles scope.

Protecting human rights

Grupo Santander's corporate culture respects and promotes
human rights. We are a signatory to the United Nations
Global Compact and the Equator Principles, as well as a
founding member of the Wolfsberg Group.

Our human rights policy is inspired by our general code of
conduct, consumer protection policy, corporate culture policy
and environmental, social & climate change risk management
policy. It sets out principles and commitments on actions and
operations with a potential impact on human rights,
underscoring:

- zero tolerance for discrimination against employees,
customers and suppliers or for forced labour and child
exploitation;

respect for employees’ freedom of association, collective
bargaining, health and working conditions; and

support for our communities alongside government
agencies, civilian organizations, international bodies and
other institutions with a view to ensuring a healthy, clean
and safe environment while fighting corruption.

Human rights protection in our financing operations

When analysing the environmental and social risks of
operations, we follow the best practices defined by the
Equator Principles to identify any threats to, or impact on,
human rights.

According to the risk category projects must comply with the
IFC Performance Standards, observing employment rights
and impact management on local communities. For projects
with an identified impact on human rights, specific mitigation
measures must be implemented as a condition for accessing
the finance, and regular reviews are carried out to ensure
compliance.

With the entry into force of the Equator Principles IV, we have
aligned our due diligence processes with the United Nations
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.
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Equator Principles
Project Finance

Category A B C

TOTAL 1 59 8

)f.ﬂ_.;

} Sector

Infrastructure 0 1 0
Oil & gas 1 0 0
Energy 0 58 8

1-7..

@ Region
Americas
United States 0 9 0
Chile 0 4 0
Brazil 1 0 0
Europe
Spain 0 26 8
United Kingdom 0 14 0
France 0 1 0
Poland 0 2 0
Asia
Taiwan 0 1 0

Type
Designated countries 1 58 8
Non-designated countries 0 1 0

Independent review

Yes 0 57 8
No 1 2 0

A. Inaccordance with the definition of designated countries included in the
Equator Principles, i.e, those considered to have a solid framework of
environmental and social governance, legislation and institutional capacity to
protect their inhabitants and the environment.

& &

For more details on our human
rights policy, visit our corporate
website.

Further details on how we manage
human rights through our value
chain, see 'Learning and
development' and 'Ethical channels'
in 'Atalented and engaged team
section'. You can also find out more
in the 'Responsible procurement’
section.
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Ensuring full compliance with human rights in our operations

Energy project in Southeast Asia

The financing for the construction and operation of an
energy generation plant was approved in January 2020.
Before Financial Close and with the construction already
started, several gaps were identified against local legislation
and IFC Performance Standards related with contractor’s
working conditions and labour rights.

In order to correct this situation, Financial Close was
conditioned to the commitment of the client to implement a
Remedial Action Plan to address these issues within a
reasonable timeline. This situation was closely monitored by
ESRM during 2020 with the support of an Independent E&S
Consultant that conducted on-site inspections. Most of the
items in the Remedial Action Plan were fully implemented
by the end of 2020.

Energy project in the Middle East

We finance this project as part of a syndicate. During its
implementation, we detected working conditions in breach of
both local legislation and the IFC Performance Standards (pay
less than minimum wage, excessive overtime, lack of proper
lodgings, etc.).

The syndicate held a meeting with the company to draw up a
remedial action plan (RAP), and the company created a team
to conduct regular, systematic due diligence including
contractors” operations.

On-site inspections were carried out in early 2020 and
significant progress was noted.

Protecting the Amazon

Q

Our environmental, social & climate change risk policy also
details the following procedures to analyse and measure the
potential impact of our customers on the environment,
including the illegal deforestation of the Amazon in Brazil:

« All loan requests by farmers and ranchers to Santander
Brasil are checked for government-issued embargoes due
to illegal deforestation. If the financing is granted, we then
check for new deforestation-related embargoes daily.

The requests are screened to make sure that the
properties do not overlap with officially-recognized
indigenous peoples’ reserves and parks.

Annual ESG reviews of more than 2,000 customers,
including meat processors, soy traders and farmers, as
well as logging companies.

There is constant dialogue with major Brazilian companies
on the challenges posed by deforestation.

Santander Brasil's requirement for all lumber companies
in the Amazon to carry the Forest Stewardship
Certification (FSC) or an equivalent in order to be a
customer, becoming the first bank to require it.

+ Involvement in forums that debate on, and propose,
solutions to stop deforestation in Brazil. In July 2020, we
announced a plan to promote sustainable development in
the Amazon, including better controls over the value chain
of meat processing firms and to enlist them to help end
deforestation. Dubbed Plano Amazonia, it is a collaboration
effort between the three largest private banks in Brazil, and
it opened a constructive dialogue with the Government
around this agenda.

+ The plan prioritizes three things: preserving the
environment and promoting the bio-economy; investing in
sustainable infrastructure; and guaranteeing the
fundamental rights of those living in the Amazon.

Following an update to the environmental, social & climate
change risk management policy in 2020, special care must
now be taken when financing retail customers carrying out
farming and ranching activities within the Amazon biome.
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We help people get access to the financial system, set up and grow
micro-businesses, and acquire the skills to manage their finances
through financial education. Our aim is to financially empower 10
million people between 20179 and 2025.
Santander Finance for All is Grupo Santander’s initiative to support financial inclusion
and empowerment, comprising three areas:
Access Finance Resilience
T Vs =
~7 el
We help people access and We provide tailored finance to We help people improve their
use basic financial services individuals and SMEs with financial knowledge, making
through simple payment difficulties obtaining credit or in economic concepts more
platforms and cash-in/cash- financial distress. understandable and helping
out services in remote and . . them make better decisions.
small communities. 2,023,411 people financially
empowered in 2020 716,071 people financially
825,454 people financially empowered in 2020

empowered in 2020

Target Progress

We believe we can help more people prosper and
enjoy the benefits of growth by empowering them
financially, giving them access to tailored financial . .
products and services, and improving their financial Financially

resilience through education. We aim to financially empowered people 3

empower 10 million people between 2019 and 10 mn
2025.% 2019 2020 2025

A. To assess our contribution to financial inclusion, we use a methodology that sets out the principles, definitions and criteria for counting people who have been
financially empowered through our initiatives, products and services.

B. Accumulated figure since 2019. In 2020, the perimeter of the information was expanded to include information from Santander Consumer Finance Nordic and
Santander Consumer Finance Portugal.

Our strategy targets the unbanked and underserved; In 2020, we focused on addressing the impact of the covid-19
individuals and SMEs across Europe, Latin America and the US pandemic, especially on the most vulnerable groups.

who face difficulties obtaining credit; have limited financial

understanding; or are in financial distress.

In Latin America, we focus on giving people access to the
financial system. In mature markets, we seek to ensure that
no one needs to leave the financial system.

88



Responsible Corporate
banking governance
Access

We aim to make sure everyone can access basic financial
services by promoting the use of payment digital platforms
that make transactions easier, giving access to financial
propositions targeted at the base of the pyramid, providing
cash in/cash out services in remote areas and small
communities, and offering targeted financial support.

Supporting access to the banking system and payment
accounts.

We help financially underserved people access the banking
system through digital platforms so they can make payments,
use basic, tailored financial services, overcome barriers, take
greater control of their finances and enjoy faster and more
secure transactions.

Economic

Risk management
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and compliance

825 thousand

people empowered
through access
initiatives in 2020

Superdigital - banking without a bank

Superdigital is Grupo Santander's flagship mobile platform
for cash deposits, withdrawals and payments, driving
sustainable financial inclusion among the unbanked and
underserved in Brazil, Mexico and Chile. Developed with our
own technology, building on growing smartphone ownership
and better network coverage in Latin America, it helps
communities through basic, user-friendly products that give
customers a unique banking experience.

Our aimis for it to have five million customers by 2023 in
Latin America. So far, it has financially empowered 197,026A
people, allowing those without a bank account to make
online financial transactions, split bills with others and
receive automated alerts about their finances.

Its largest market is Brazil, where users range from micro-
entrepreneurs who can pay suppliers and receive payments
from customers, to companies with sizeable headcounts that
large banks tend not to serve. In 2020, Santander Brasil
allocated BRL 7 million (more than EUR 1 million) to
Superdigital to give support to 20,000 households.

s superdigital

«» Santander Finance for All

Superdigital Mexico and

Find out more at Superdigital Brazil
% Superdigital Chile.

A. Not all Superdigital customers are counted as financially empowered. Only
those with a reported income below the country's minimum salary are
considered.

Other products and services that help us uplift those at the “base of the pyramid”

“ Cuenta Life

Since 2018, the Cuenta Life account has been opening up
banking to everyone, serving 370,000 people. It drives
financial inclusion through special products for the
underserved, and its revamped value proposition features
a life cycle that better suits young and elderly customers,
with better prices and tailored customer content and
perks. In 2020, Cuenta Life assisted more than 232,470
people.

M Empowering the base of the pyramid

Santander Mexico's banking services financially empower the
elderly and retirees with income of less than MXN 11,000 a
month (EUR 190). It tailors products and services to their
needs, including consumer credit with custom insurance,
fraud monitoring, and a separate credit admission policy and
sales channel, fostering the financial inclusion of more than
955 customers.
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Guaranteeing access to financial inclusion

Grupo Santander seeks to provide access to basic products
while making sure customers know how to use them. We

have cash-in/cash-out services in place and offer financial
support to special groups.

Cash-in/cash-out services help achieve financial inclusion in
remote and sparsely populated areas through our dedicated
branches. Also, our agreements with private and state-run
entities widen our footprint to ensure underserved
communities can have bank accounts and get cash virtually
anywhere.

Branches in underbanked and remote regions

{0

Contents

.‘@: Financial inclusion branches

. Branches in sparsely
@»” and remote agents

populated regions

Our eight financial inclusion branches 694 agent offices, 504 branches and

serve 23,000 people in underbanked
neighbourhoods in Buenos Aires that

ATMs provide access to finance and
fight social exclusion in communities
with under 10,000 inhabitants.

Branches in small
villages

We have 79 branches in small
towns. They provided financial
services to 37,224 customers in
2020. 27 branches are in the Azores

previously had no banking services,
including Santa Maria, Castelar Sur, La
Juanita and Don Orione. These basic
services now benefit 250,000 people
daily, helping fight social exclusion.

Partnerships to reach unserved communities.

and Madeira archipelagos, serving
15,192 customers.

Correos postal service

Our collaboration with Correos, the state-run postal service,
sets up basic financial services at 4,675 rural post offices.
From January 2021, customers can withdraw and deposit
cash, and postal workers deliver money to any address in
Spain. Through this service, Grupo Santander reaches 75%
more branchless towns of fewer than 1,000 people and
66% more customers who previously didn't have cash
services nearby.

Promotion and training in the use of digital channels

M Partnered retailers

Santander's partnerships with retailers let customers carry
out basic transactions in more than 26,769 convenience
stores, such as 7 Eleven and Oxxo.

).
>

During the covid-19 pandemic, many elderly people became
at risk financially by not being able to visit their branch or
manage their finances as usual. In response, our employees
reached out to make sure they could continue to look after
their finances easily and securely from home.

Branch outbound calling
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° Here & Now

To increase digital literacy among the elderly, our
employees assisted customers in using digital channels to
make payments.
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Grupo Santander seeks to provide tailored finance to those
who have difficulty in accessing credit, and to offer solutions
to individuals and SMEs who are in financial distress.

In Latin America, our microfinance proposals target micro-
entrepreneurs, offering them a complete value proposition. In
mature markets, we support low-income households by
financing their basic needs, such as affordable housing. We
also support SMEs and individuals through debt renegotiation
and cash injections.

Economic
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and compliance

In 2020, the great efforts Banco Santander has made to ease
the covid-19 pandemic, which had a profound effect on
society in 2020, have increased the number of customers
benefitting from our initiatives.

2.3 million

people empowered by
initiatives tailoring financial
solutions to their needs
since January 2019

Finance for SMEs and entrepreneurs with difficulties obtaining credit

Since 2002, we've offered micro-finance services to help
bridge Latin America's significant social divide and promote
financial inclusion. We aspire to help low-income and
underbanked entrepreneurs grow their businesses, which
drive the economy and social mobility.

Our micro-finance programmes in Latin America

EUR 231 miltion

outstanding credit to
microentrepreneLArs at the end of
2020 (-17% vs. 2019)

1 1 million

micro-entrepreneurs supported in
2020 (+27% vs 2019)

Our extensive product line includes tailor-made micro-loans
that help micro-entrepreneurs generate income and meet
their working capital needs, as well as savings products,
current accounts, cards and micro-insurance.

A large part of our lending goes to women, who are less likely
to obtain financial services in developing countries.

------ tuiio

o Santander Microfinance

PROSPERA

& Santander Microfinance

PROSPERA

& Santander Microfinance

59%

of microentrepreneurs
supported are women

A. The year-end total outstanding loan volume declined due to the exchange rate effect. Nonetheless, outstanding loans with each microfinance programme grew at

year-end in local currency (e.g., 8.4% in Brazil and 7.7% in Mexico).
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Prospera Santander helps micro-businesses and other small
enterprises grow, benefitting low-income communities. It
grants income-generating loans to micro-entrepreneurs, who
collectively share the obligation to repay them. A team of
loan officers who live in the community provide financial
advice to guide borrowers throughout the term of their loans.
With 99 branches, it plans to open 30 more and take on 300
employees in the first months of 2021.

All Prospera products have a digital component, making
borrowers' operations more efficient while improving
customer experience. For example, customers can get loan
applications approved in under 10 minutes.

‘9 Tuiio

In the first wave of covid-19, Prospera's programmes, such as
eight-week payment deferrals (in March and April) and
Seguro Responsa micro-insurance, gave customers extra
support to cope with not being able to work.

When businesses reopened in Q4, Prospera achieved a new
accounts record (+18,000 in October), with over 540,000
active customers. It also granted BRL 2 billion in loans in
2020.

More details at
% www.santander.com.br/

campanhas/microcredito

In Mexico, Tuiio offers low-income households and the
underbanked digital services and products, including tailor-
made loans, savings accounts and insurance. It has 85
branches and more than 72,000 customers in the
communities it serves.

In 2020, Tuiio launched a new medical assistance proposition
to help build a culture of prevention is the best cure, and to
facilitate access to specialist doctors. It also helped its
customers mitigate the effects of the pandemic by granting
grace periods of up to eight weeks and loan term extensions
from the previous four months to eight months, as well as
keeping life and health insurance premiums at low prices for
32 weeks.

% More details at

www.tuiio.com.mx/

International Finance Magazine named
Santander Best Bank for Financial
Inclusion in Mexico for Tuiio
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Q Mercedes Cruz

After the pandemic left her jobless, Mercedes Cruz, a cook,
set up a kitchen with her mother-in-law to sell food door-to-
door. Tuiio gave her a loan and financial education to start her
venture, El Sazén de Angel, and generate income to support
her Family.

"What we like most about Tuiio is that they gave us a debit
card so we can save, buy goods and keep making headway.
Knowing I have money on the card, | don't have to worry.
Without this loan, we couldn't have got business off the
ground. We started from scratch with that money. | would like
to thank you for helping us build something and move
forward."


www.tuiio.com.mx
www.santander.com.br

Responsible Corporate
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— Prospera

Prospera was launched in Uruguay in 2019 as a pilot
programme in the Salto region, offering loans and insurance
to local entrepreneurs, and has since expanded throughout
the country. Its value proposition features "Recommended
Client", in which past Prosperda customers refer new
entrepreneurs, thereby generating an interconnected
entrepreneurship ecosystem. It also offers savings accounts,
payment solutions and other products and services. Due to
covid-19, Prospera deferred fees and debt financing for
entrepreneurs, and set up remote management services.

Other local initiatives

Economic
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and financial review

and compliance

% Small business administration loans

Santander US' "Inclusive Communities” plan provides
financial assistance to struggling communities. It will
mobilize USD 11 billion in loans, investments and charity
donations from 2017 through 2021. Its lines of action
include the Small Business Administration Loans initiative
to fund small businesses with less restrictive requirements.
In 2020, Santander lent more than USD 1.2 billion through
the Small Business Administration's Paycheck Protection
Programme (PPP), which helped save over 126,000 jobs.

Loans backed by MGls for SMEs with
limited means

In Spain, Banco Santander works with mutual guarantee
institutions (MGls) to lend to SMEs and entrepreneurs with
limited means and help them secure lines of credit. In 2020,
each MGl ran covid-19 relief initiatives.

'?' Superclub Comprometidos, Via Bana, Formar
"  and Potrero Digital

In Argentina, Banco Santander empowers customers and non-
customers financially through Superclub Comprometidos, a
loyalty programme where customers can connect to sell
social and environmentally-friendly products; Via Bana social
ice cream parlours that offer basic banking and financial
services and financial education; and Formar and Potrero
Digital, two digital financial education programmes aimed at
young people in vulnerable communities.
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Financing basic needs for low-income households
We offer products and services that enable low-income
households to access housing and meet other basic financial
needs.
T
| |
— Affordable housing programmes \ " Social housing fund
Santander US's Inclusive Communities plan includes Banco Santander currently has 1,594 social homes for rent
affordable housing and home improvement programmes that in Spain, of which 1,364 are allocated to the Fondo de
help over 39,000 people though low-interest mortgages, Viviendas Sociales (Social Housing Fund). In addition, we
lender-paid mortgage insurance and investment in projects have 624 homes available to rent at reduced rates.
for low-income homebuyers.
Special programmes for SMEs and individuals in financial distress
|ff\| IRIS solutions to Agreements Wit.h.
- Payment holidays . manage impairments multilateral entities
Since 2012, we've undertaken more than 69,000 Our IRIS debt renegotiation In Brazil, Spain, Poland and
social and mortgage debtor protection actions; programme analyses the Portugal, the bank has signed
granted 12,163 mortgages under the Code of situation of customers who are agreements with entities such
Good Practice (which includes debt restructuring struggling financially and lends as the EIB, EIF and IFC to offer
and deed in lieu of foreclosure); renegotiated them a hand to meet their lines of credit with
27,457 mortgages under the loan repayment payment obligations. Since advantageous conditions to help
moratorium; and suspended 10,966 foreclosures 2019, we've renegotiated the mitigate the effects of the
(we haven't repossessed any homes since debt of 28,875 customers and pandemic (see more in 'Meeting
November 2012). supported 51,250 customers the needs of society' in this
During the 2020 crisis, we offered our customers with our payment holiday chapter).
solutions in a proactive way, often taking a more solutions.
flexible approach than the authorities. We
suspended payments on 207,000 loans
(including 160,000 within the sector agreement).
Further collaboration: investing in fintechs
Through Mouro Capital (formerly Santander Innoventures) we + ePesos. Founded in 2014 as a digital project of Mexican
support the growth of startups whose business models target microfinance company Quantum Capital, it provides
emerging markets and people without access to financial financial services to those most excluded by Mexico's
services. In recent years, we've invested in the following banking system. It focuses on creating new payment
companies, among others: methods for individuals and companies with few financial
) ) ) ) ) services, while offering low-cost lines of credit without the
- PayJoy. Founded in 2015 in San Francisco (US), it provides need for a bank account. In 2017, it offered the first salary
access to smartphones and basic consumer financial advance, and since then has been helping Mexican
services to reduce the number of underbanked and companies take better care of their employees' finances.

underserved communities in emerging markets. It aims to
spread the use of digital tools and technology to remove the
need for cash and to fight predatory lending. the needs of everyone in sociely’
in this chapter.

% For more details, see 'Meeting
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Promoting financial education

We believe education is part and parcel of financial inclusion
and customer protection, which is why it's at the core of our
Responsible Banking agenda. In 2020, we committed more
than EUR 3 million to 61 initiatives that helped financially
empower 716,000 people in the countries where we operate.

To fulfil our goals of making financial concepts easier to
understand, protecting the most vulnerable through special
tactics, and promoting market stability, our programmes
include content on financial and money management, digital
banking, training for SMEs, behavioural economics and other
topics for all groups (especially children, young people, senior
citizens and vulnerable customers). We run programmes
through face to face education, websites, videos, simulators,
contests and games. We are using apps and other channels
to make financial education more accessible and to maximize
the impact of our initiatives.

In 2020, we launched a global financial education page on
our corporate website. It showcases our learning initiatives
from across the world under a common narrative and
approach. It has a broad variety of contents and resources to
help users make informed financial decisions and better their
financial management.

Economic
and financial review

Risk management
and compliance

716,000

people helped from
financial education
initiatives in 2020

61

initiatives supported in
2020

Content type

-> Basic financial concepts

- Products and services

-> Personal finance management

- Digital banking

- Entrepreneurship/training for SMEs
= Sustainable finance

-> Behavioural economics

Target audience

-> General public

= Children (up to 13 years old)

- Adolescents and young adults (14-20 years old)
- Elderly people (from 65 years old)

= University students

-> Santander employees

= Vulnerable customers

-> SMEs and entrepreneurs

South America

finance management.

In South America, our initiatives — which aim to serve everyone - put special focus on vulnerable groups,
university students and persons with disabilities. They include Fundacién Techo in Chile and Via Bana in
Argentina. Mostly run online, their most popular topics include basic financial concepts and personal

Europe

0 )

In Europe, most initiatives cater for the general public, especially young people. Online initiatives
increased amid covid-19, and many of them are now hybrid. Digital is one of the most popular topics, with
special initiatives aimed at the elderly, such as Formacién Pioneros in Spain and Go Digital in the UK.

North America

initiatives in a safe environment.

In North America, we focus on contents about personal finance management. Our initiatives, which
prioritize vulnerable groups, include Tuiio for low-income households in Mexico and Santander US'
volunteer service to boost financial empowerment. In 2020, we shifted to a virtual service model to run our
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-
Pioneros

This initiative in Spain trains customer
service and branch employees online on
teaching elderly customers at branches
to use our app and go digital.

(2) Tuiio

Anti-fraud training
workshops

Santander Scam Avoidance School
(SAS) is a unique programme in the UK
designed to equip customers with the
tools to detect and prevent common
acts of fraud. Before moving online via
webinars due to covid, it was run in-
branch by trained employees, and
covers scams, the digital footprint,
online safety and other topics.

Tuiio in Mexico runs several initiatives to promote customers' financial education. In
2020, it launched its own financial education website using content and materials
developed in-house. Since the beginning of the pandemic, Tuiio has shared advice on
financial management in times of crisis, health tips and audio stories for children,
among others, through instant messaging platforms, social media and the website.
Through this initiative, it has financially empowered almost 200,000 people.

financiera for more details.

% Visit tuiio.com.mx/educacion-

-

w» CAMPUS-Santander

This site runs several financial
education initiatives for customers in
Argentina, including Cuenta Blanca for
health workers, Duo for finance and
business, and Nova on daily life skills. It
also provides finance courses aimed at
women, SMEs and students.

online/campus-santander for
more details.

% Visit santander.com.ar/banco/
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.m Akana

SCF in Spain launched Akana, a tool for
customers to check their finances
easily. It analyses their transaction
data and gives them tips to improve
their finances, regardless of their
bank.

home for more details.

% Visit www.akana.es/FRONT/#/

‘ Santander Life

Santander Life is an innovative value
proposition promoting good
financial conduct among customers.
It rewards correct answers about
banking commitments with merits
for customers to access payment
deferrals, lower fees, payment date
changes and other benefits.

. Avancar

Avancar is an entrepreneurial
programme with an exclusive value
proposition for customers. Its web
platform provides SMEs with
contents and solutions relating to
management and innovation,
internationalization, team building
and other relevant topics.

Visit
% santandernegocioseempresas.c

om.br/ for more details.

° Financial literacy blog

Santander Portugal's new financial
literacy blog offers articles and tips
to help customers make more
informed decisions about their
finances. Topics include how to save
better and how to draw up a
budget.

ordem for more details.

% Visit santander.pt/conta-em-
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Forging partnerships to boost financial
inclusion

Our global networks consist of partnerships to further embed
financial inclusion across our footprint. Those partnerships
are important for sharing knowledge, learning best practices,
and developing innovative approaches to bridging the
financial inclusion gap. Alongside the CEO Partnership for
Financial Inclusion (CEOP), we made progress on a number of
initiatives that can help expand financial services at scale.

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

CEO Partnership for Economic Inclusion

Founded by the United Nations Secretary-General's Special
Advocate for Inclusive Finance for Development, Her Majesty
Queen Maxima of the Netherlands, the CEOP brings together
an influential group of CEOs from a variety of industries who
work together to boost financial inclusion around the world.

Santander BEST Africa

Q

Santander BEST (Building Equality through Sustainable
Tourism) Africa, is the first development cooperation
programme promoted by Fundacion Santander. This initiative
seeks to contribute to social and economic development in
Africa by supporting women entrepreneurs and their local
areas in the tourist industry, which has been severely
impacted by the covid-19 crisis.

Santander BEST Africa fosters a sustainable tourism network
based on providing technical and financial assistance to
entrepreneurship aimed at promoting and employing women,
as well as environmental and social sustainability. The
programme looked to secure the continuity of businesses and
employment through the pandemic, and to encourage
knowledge sharing and training between female
entrepreneurs to strengthen the future economic
sustainability of their industry.

Many of the beneficiaries are vulnerable women who
promote or participate in the entrepreneurship selected by
Santander BEST Africa due to their contribution to the
preservation of the environment and the inclusive
development of the community.

The programme is founded on two premises: the direct link

between gender equality and sustainable development, and
the potential of responsible tourism as a driver of economic

and social progress in Africa post-covid-19.

Since its launch in October 2020, 17 projects across Gambia,
Senegal and Morocco have received economic and technical
support from Santander BEST Africa.
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ESG investment in Wealth
Management & Insurance

Our aim is to become the best responsible wealth manager in Europe and
Latin America based on a sustainable value proposition for customers,
active engagement and the highest international ESG standards.

In the past few years, ESG (environmental, social and
governance) has become increasingly important in
investment. More and more investors' assessments of risk-
adjusted medium- to long-term returns are taking
environment and social issues into consideration, while
interest in ESG solutions among clients, employees and other
stakeholders is also growing.

We have been embedding ESG factors into our decision-
making for some time and, in 2020, reinforced our ESG
strategy.

Santander Asset Management (SAM)

As a signatory to the UN Principles for Responsible
Investment (PRI) and the Institutional Investors Group on
Climate Change (IIGCC), we follow high-level international
criteria and standards. We are also the only asset manager in
Spain with a team exclusively dedicated to ESG in our
investment unit.

We have developed our own ESG methodology, which we
extended to Private Banking and Insurance. This helps us
assign most of our funds a rating, based on the data of 15,000
companies and 190 governments. We also embedded ESG
criteria in our investment, voting and engagement policies.

We offer a complete line of ESG products, holding around EUR
6.9 billion in assets under management in 27 ESG products
and 50 mandates in six countries. Over the last six years, our
solidarity funds have donated more than EUR 18 million.

In addition, Santander GO, a collection of products managed
by external investment managers through partnerships,
includes the Santander Global Equities ESG sustainable fund
(managed by Boston Partners - Robeco). Also, we're working
to apply ESG criteria to all our individual and collective
pension funds and plans, which add up to EUR 20 billion.

We also engage with several companies to improve their
transparency and ESG performance.
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SAM ESG Product offering
Best-in-class ESG products in our core geographies
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In 2021, SAM signed up to Climate Action 100+, an
investor-led initiative that aims to promote
cooperative dialogue urging the world's largest
corporate greenhouse gas emitters to take action on
climate change. It is coordinated by five regional
investor networks, including two to which SAM is a
signatory: Institutional Investors Group on Climate
Change (IIGCC) and Principles for Responsible
Investment (PRI).

For more details, see
www.santanderassetmanagement.es
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Private banking

In private banking, we aim to embed ESG in our advisory
services, as we have done with investment, risks and other
areas. In 2020, our bankers and advisers across our footprint
(over 1,100 experts), received special ESG training from our
ESG dedicated team in SAM and Private Banking Global Team.

Our wide range of ESG products includes funds, alternative
products, and ETFs. We are working on adding new products
across all asset classes while we are developing an impact
investment offering, in order to round off our value
proposition. In addition, Private Banking has launched Future
Wealth, a joint initiative with SAM, our thematic investment
approach focusing on the trends with the strongest tailwinds,
with environment as one of the key elements. On this sense,
Future Wealth, offers our clients a complement to traditional
investing strategies by seeking to capture innovative sources
for growth and performance based on sustainability plus
innovation.

It is important to note that SAM's ESG methodology allows us
to also analyze 100% of the third- party funds we market.

Furthermore, we are also providing tailored-made ESG
reports to our clients, providing a powerful portfolio look
through, including information about their investments CO,
and water consumption footprint, as well as how it performs
according to our internal ESG methodology

Insurance

We focused our efforts on two main actions: working with our
JVs to maximize the portion of our life-savings premiums
invested under the ESG standards set by SAM; and working
with our partners to adopt the UN's Principles for Sustainable
Insurance (PSI) and to develop specific strategies in financial
education and inclusion-related issues in the geographies
where we operate.

Economic
and financial review

&

For details on private banking, visit
www.pb-santander.com

Risk management
and compliance
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Supporting communities

In addition to support through business solutions, we also drive inclusive
and sustainable growth through education, social entrepreneurship,
employability and wellbeing initiatives in the communities we serve.

Our commitment and progress

Support higher education

Y

156,748

scholarships and grants

EUR1 1 0 million
: invested
Our 2019-2021 commitment

- To finance 200,000 scholarships/internships and
programmes for entrepreneurs.

Community investment

000

2 .4 million

people helped

EU R94 million

invested

Our 2019-2021 commitment

- To help four million people through various social
action programmes. :

Covid-19 response in communities

—

+

more than1 05 mn

invested to help tackle the pandemicA

As a bank, we commit to sustainable economic and social
development to build more balanced and inclusive societies.

Grupo Santander provides more support to higher education
than any other private company in the world. Through
Santander Universities, we have created a unique network of
more than 1,300 universities to help students, researchers
and entrepreneurs.

We also promote and participate in numerous initiatives with
the third sector (NGOs and other social organizations) and run
the majority of them locally to adapt to the circumstances and
reality of each region.

As part of this work, and through contributions from the
group's senior managers, employees and customers, we
mobilized EUR 105 million worldwide to support initiatives in
the fight against covid-19.

A. This amount incorporates part of the bank's contribution to community investment and part of the bank's contribution to its commitment to higher education, plus

contributions from third parties such as employees and customers.
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Over EUR 105 million to solidarity initiatives to help combat the covid-19 pandemic

We mobilized over EUR 105 million worldwide to fund initiatives to combat covid-19. The funds are being used throughout our
core markets to provide essential medical equipment and supplies, to support vulnerable communities and to support research
into the virus through collaboration with universities and other bodies.

All Together Fund to support the health crisis

employee and customer donations.

Spain

Masks, non-invasive ventilators,
blankets, protective clothing, etc.
for various hospitals and
government bodies.

° Portugal

Joined the Portuguese Banking
Association initiative to donate
100 ventilators and 100
monitors to the national health
service.

@ Brazil

Five million rapid tests, CT scanners
and 200 ventilators, with the support
of two other banks.

W Poland

Support to hospitals dedicated to
treating covid-19 patients by
purchasing equipment and material
(ventilators, tests, masks, sanitizers,
etc.).

Santander raised EUR 54 million to provide essential materials to support the global effort to fight the pandemic.
The funds came from senior managers' salary reductions and board compensation, direct donations from the bank and

M Mexico

Alliance with five other companies
and donation to the Héroes con
Bata initiative (INER and Fundacion
Gigante).

“ Chile

Support to the Confederation of
Production and Trade (CPC)
through donations of medical
supplies such as diagnosis tests,
hospital equipment, etc.

Further efforts to support vulnerable communities

As part of their community support plans, our local units redirected EUR 21 million to support communities and
vulnerable groups particularly affected by covid-19. For more details, see the ‘Community investment' section.

Santander Universities

Through its agreements with more than 1,000 higher education institutions, Santander Universities allocated more
than EUR 30 million of its annual budget to support their response to covid-19 (health, education and social issues);
to promote online education; and to mobilize entrepreneurs to identify solutions to the challenges posed by the
pandemic. For more details, see the 'Supporting higher education’ section.

Digital solutions

the pandemic.

Overcome Together

circulating local authority advice.

An open space for individuals and companies with
information and resources to support the fight against
covid-19, as well as country-specific websites

Covid-19 platform

An app and dashboard developed to help governments and
companies make informed decisions in managing covid-19
contagion with real-time data. Adapted for the Mexican

We developed various platforms, digital repositories and apps to support and keep society safe and informed during

Government, Spanish regional governments and the

general public.
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Supporting higher education

Banco Santander is one of the private companies that most supports higher
education in the world. We harness our efforts through Santander
Universities, a unique and pioneering global programme with educational,

entrepreneurial and vocational opportunities for students.

110 1,432

partner universities and
institutes in 31
countries

million euros to
universities

156,748

internships and

beneficiaries of scholarships,

entrepreneurial programmes

We focus on three areas:

Education

™0

We support university students
and graduates in developing
their skills.

48,804

Santander Scholarship
beneficiaries

We believe that education is the bedrock of a fair
society and strong economy. Through our world
leading Universities programme, we aim to fund
200,000 scholarships, internships and

Entrepreneurship

>

We help university
entrepreneurs share solutions,
give visibility to new projects,
find investors, etc.
32,707 university students
supported and around 224
programmes and awards

pm—
U

Progress

entrepreneurship programmes between 2019 and

2021.

2019

Employability
00

We offer internships, training
programmes and career
guidance services to university
students.

75,237

beneficiaries of internship grants

Scholarships, internships
and entrepreneurship programmes

200k
2021

A. The sharp increase compared to 2019 is due to the impact of the covid-19 pandemic, which led to a change of focus in Santander Universities' 2020 roadmap.
Traditional scholarships (face-to-face studies) and mobility grants were replaced by online scholarships, with much greater reach.

102



Responsible
banking

Corporate
governance

Covid-19 response

As covid-19 tested universities' ability to safely continue
teaching and supporting students during the pandemic, we
launched several initiatives to help them. So far, more than
100,000 people have benefited from the work carried out by
Santander Universities, backed by EUR 30 million in funding.

Economic

Risk management
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Fondo Supera covid-19 allocated EUR 8.5 million to projects
on virus research and prevention, social impact and enhancing
ICT capacity to reduce the digital divide between students. We
also awarded 30,435 scholarships to vulnerable young people
and to boost the employability and development of students
and professionals affected by the pandemic.

Q

Santander Scholarships in response to covid-19

Some students’ courses were suspended and their job
prospects affected. To overcome those challenges, we ran
several initiatives in collaboration with universities.

Boosting employability and development

In 2020, we launched Santander Scholarships for the online
training initiatives #YoMeQuedoEnCasa and #InvierteEnTi,
benefiting 23,725 students and graduates. The aim was to
support the development of digital skills, women leadership,
languages and soft skills to heighten their future
employability. It also helped professors deliver virtual
lectures through the #YoMeQuedoEnCasa programme.

Supporting students affected by the covid crisis

Over 2,000 people received assistance from

° Santander Universities in Portugal thanks to the e
Bolsas Santander Digitalizacao to help those
affected by the covid-19 crisis.

Superamos Juntos supported more than 1,000
& Brazilian students in financial difficulty.

initiative, we awarded 5,800 scholarships to 1,435
projects at 340 universities to tackle the health
crisis and support the worst-hit communities.

M Through the Ponte la Verde ante la covid-19

Entrepreneurship: post covid-19 solutions

IT and data reinforcement plans for universities

computers and 10,000 Internet connectivity
solutions and webcams to university students.

In Spain, Fondo Supera helped supply around 5,000

In Argentina, around 30% of Santander Universities'
funds were allocated to covid initiatives such as
connectivity scholarships for students, programmes
to provide teachers with remote tools and IT
security, and research scholarships.

A
L& )
-

™ In Chile, more than 46,226 people were helped
‘ with connectivity scholarships to continue their
studies online from home. Besides, 2,400
computers and tablets were provided to students in
disadvantaged areas.

"We have supported not only teachers, so they can learn
new educational approaches, but also students. Even if
they're digital natives, they're unaware of how to
enhance their technological knowledge to improve
learning" Oscar Jerez, Director of the Centre for Teaching and
Learning, School of Business and Economics, Universidad de
Chile. Senior Advisor on Innovation in Higher Education,
LASPAU affiliated to Harvard University.

Santander X Tomorrow Challenge

We committed EUR 400,000 in awards and other benefits to
20 entrepreneurial projects from many countries. They came
up with innovative solutions to soften the pandemic's blow to
society and the economy. The four challenges involved
developing new job skills, creating jobs, adapting business
models, reopening businesses and finding real market
opportunities, including:
- Re-Skill category: Edward Espinoza, CEO and co-founder of
Arcux. E-learning in architecture, design and construction.

- Re-Invent category: Sascha Kaczmarek, CCO and co-
founder of Motion Miners. Analysis of manual process
automation through sensors and artificial intelligence.

For more information on the other two challenges, please see
the 'Entrepreneurship' section below.

“It helped us position ourselves in our industry and in
the entire entrepreneurial ecosystem, and we're
confident this award will help us seize other
opportunities to grow". Edward Espinoza, co-founder/CEO
of Arcux, winner of the Re-Skill category.

“We're confident Santander will also be a great ally in
the post-launch phase." Sascha Kaczmarek, co-founder/
CEO of Motion Miners, winner of the Re-Invent category
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Santander Scholarships

Although many scholarship programmes have been disrupted
by the pandemic, Santander Universities continued to fulfil
(and even raise) its commitment to training university
students and young professionals, facilitating their access to
higher education and promoting excellence, equal
opportunities and employability.

The scholarships are divided into seven categories:

- Santander Tech, to promote new technology-based
learning, programming and innovation to gain an
understanding of digital languages and technology such as
blockchain, machine learning, cloud & DevOps and product
design strategies.

-> Santander Skills, to promote the development of cross-
cutting skills (soft and hard skills) that are essential to
making headway in the job market.

-> Santander Women, to promote the professional
development, leadership and negotiation skills of the next
generation of women leaders.

-> Santander Studies, to help students complete their studies
through grants to strike a balance between academic
excellence and a lack of resources.

- Santander Language, to strengthen the command of
foreign languages in working environments.

- Santander Internship, to drive students' employability
through internships and offer recent graduates
opportunities to find a good-quality first job.

- Santander Research, to give undergraduates,
postgraduates and PhD students the means to start or
continue their research plans.

Julia Prieto, Santander IE Digital DNA Scholarship, Spain

"Who doesn't need basic information on how to go
digital? | would recommend this a thousand times to all
students who have an ambition to be part of the digital
and technological revolution we're set to witness in the
coming years".
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Scholarships platform

The scholarships we offer, in collaboration with universities
and higher education institutions, can be found at
www.becas-santander.com. In 2020, there were 323,591
applications and 43,704,351 visits registered on the platform.
Our programmes included:

@l Bolsas Graduacao

One of Brazil's benchmark programmes, it provides financial
support to university students in vulnerable situations, so
they can continue their studies (tuition fees, educational
materials, food, transportation, etc.).

P
( )
& Santander Idiomas Scholarship | English Up

Thanks to collaboration between Banco Santander and the
British Council, 11,100 Spanish university students can enjoy
the online and in-person programmes on offer at British
universities. The aim of this initiative is to acknowledge
academic excellence and foster the employability of students
through English learning.

Santander for MIT Leading Digital
Transformation Scholarships

In 2020, 2,500 scholarships were handed out to provide
specialized training and develop digital skills in collaboration
with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), which
is considered one of the world's best universities.

Lisa Moutinho Teixeira, Bolsa Santander Ibero Americana,
Portugal

"Soft skills, resilience and self-confidence are key to
creating teachers with strong values and greater
problem-solving and team-working capacities, as a way
of meeting our professional and daily objectives".


www.becas-santander.com
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Global initiatives

Banco Santander upholds its commitment to high-impact
student entrepreneurship through its international Santander
X project. It sets out to guide and support young
entrepreneurs on their journey. In 2020, it launched three
global initiatives.

Santander X Global Award
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The top award for student entrepreneurs received 500
submissions from five countries. Winners included high-
impact projects that sought to accelerate growth and new
solutions in the early stages of business development. The two
winners were awarded USD 150,000 and USD 50,000,
respectively, plus guidance from expert mentors.

- Best ScaleUp category: Miguel Angel Torrero, COO and co-
founder of Rated Power. pvDesign software for designing
utility-scale photovoltaic plants.

- Best StartUp category: José Luis Ayala, CEO of BrainGuard.
Digital solution for predicting migraine attacks

Young People with Solutions Explorer Lab

“Our idea was long-term development, but
this award has given us a great push to
become the go-to software in the
international photovoltaic industry”.

Miguel Angel Torrero, co-founder/COO of Rated
Power, winner of Best ScaleUp.

This training programme helps potential entrepreneurs create a
sustainable, viable and robust solution to problems addressed
by the United Nations' SDGs.

Ecosystem Mapping workshops in collaboration
with the MIT D-Lab

In collaboration with the MIT D-Lab department and the Global

Ecosystem Dynamics Initiative, Santander Universities took part
in mapping the most promising start-ups in the local innovation

ecosystems of six different countries.

“We were very excited when we brought the
team together, but we didn't know how to
manage it. Everyone at Explorer helped us
find our way with their support, closeness
and care, making for an incredible
experience".

Carlos Garces Garcia, co-founder/CEO of Shellock.

Monitors maritime containers, in real time, through
reusable geolocation stamps.
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Local initiatives

To promote innovative startups with high growth potential,
we held five local award events in Argentina, Mexico, the UK,
Chile and Uruguay, which had received more than 1,500
projects submitted by student entrepreneurs from over 300
universities.

(& )
@ XVI Entrepreneur X Award
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M XV Santander X Award for Business Innovation

"Virtual reality was already here, but the pandemic
caused us to move faster. My team and | now want to
take it to the next level to help people improve their
personal and working lives".

Tomas Malio, CEO and

co-founder of COVREL, a virtual reality training platform.

* X Santander Universities Entrepreneurship
» Awards

Jamie Bankhead, CEO of Konglomerate Games,
development of healthcare-related video games

“We are so pleased to have won the Santander
Universities Entrepreneurship Award. It was such a
fantastic competition, and the prize will enable us to
focus on developing our project”.

Lewis Loane, founder of Torann, which is developing a
device that provides the highest sound quality for
musicians who play amplified instruments.

"The support from the Santander Universities Emerging
Entrepreneurs programme has allowed us to sharpen
our business model and strengthen our business plan”.
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“This award is a huge step that will give us invaluable
resources to press ahead with our research and achieve
our aims”.

Arian Marin, CEO of Bifrost Biotech, which develops an
artificial cornea for use in transplants.

‘ Il Santander Ideas X award

David Jerez, founder and creator of X- Torch,
technological solutions for individuals and companies

"The funds we received from Santander X enabled us to
maximize our online presence and reduce costs by 60%,
all while enhancing the technology we use."

Ricardo Flores ,CEO of Body Defense, an educational
video game that integrates biological and
pedagogical methodologies.

“Our Ideas X mentor was pivotal to the process. The

footing, sales and partnerships we've gained are all
down to this programme”.
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Founded 20 years ago, Universia is now the world's largest network of

universities, involving 822 institutes from 27 countries.

Academic guidance

This online service gives students and professionals advice on their education
and training. It's a one-stop shop for internships, job postings, specialist
courses and information on universities and programmes the world over.

Employment

We strive to become the benchmark in managing young talent digitally by
overseeing the relationship between universities and companies, opening up
to international job options and providing support both online and through
other means to smooth the transition into the world of work. We run several

initiatives to achieve this:

« Universia Jobs: a job posting and internship platform available in seven

countries.

- #jobstogether: a knowledge sharing movement to boost candidates'
chances of landing a job through direct contact between students,

universities and companies.

Digitalization at universities

It has taken just two years for MetaRed to become the largest network of

Economic
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uni>grsEa

A tu lado en la etapa
universitaria

Universia launches new website with
Spain's most sophisticated search
function

Banco Santander and the CRUE association's
new university portal enables users to
search for over 19,000 degrees, master's
degrees, courses and internships. The site is
Spain's biggest gateway to information on
education and employment for
undergraduates, graduates, lecturers and
researchers.

For more details, visist www.universia.net.

university IT leads, involving over 1,500 professionals at more than 800
universities across Spain, Portugal and Latin America. The project has so far
helped train over 500 middle-managers, held over 50 webinars and assessed

the IT skills of more than 10,000 university lecturers.

Fundacion Universia

Fundacion Universia is a not-for-profit organization that
works to forge inter-university and job networks with a
special focus on educational advice, diversity, equality and
developing IT skills.

It is a leading light in graduate employment and placing
burgeoning, diverse talent in companies that champion
inclusive and sustainable growth. It also promotes
continuous, experiential, digital and global learning geared
towards the transition to the job market.

Its strategy centres around these three Sustainable
Development Goals: Quality Education (SDG 4), Decent Work
and Economic Growth (SDG 8) and Partnerships for the Goals
(SDG 17).

619 70 82

scholarships persons grants
to students with with disability to sole traders
disabilities placed in on disability
companies grounds

Q Diana de Arias, overcoming the odds

For more details, visit www.universia.net.

At just 23, Diana de Arias suffered a stroke that resulted in
an acquired brain injury. After gruelling rehabilitation, she
created Decedario, a tool to help improve the lives of
persons with disabilities. Thanks to Fundacion Universia's
aid programme for self-employed persons with disabilities,
she's now boosting her company's digital footprint through
aninitiative featured in Forbes' list of alternative top 100
fortunes in Spain.

Despite the daily efforts of people like Diana, the covid-19
pandemic has left many SMEs in dire straits. Launched in
May 2020, the aid programme promotes sustainability and
inclusivity in Spain with equal opportunity and diversity.

So far, Fundacion Universia and Banco Santander have
offered robust and innovative solutions to 80 self-employed
men and women in Spain, aspiring to uplift one of the
groups hit hardest by the pandemic.
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We foster inclusive and sustainable growth through initiatives that
support access to education, social entrepreneurship, employability
and welfare in the communities we serve.
5 = 0!
an
EUR 94 million 2,366 2.4 22,630
in community investment  partnerships with NGOs million people volunteers”
and social welfare helped
institutions
A. Refer to Challenge 1 for more details about volunteers and volunteering hours.
Main lines of action
Support for Support for Support for the
children’s education social wellfare arts and culture
We support various projects to We promote and collaborate We encourage culture and
provide equal opportunities with numerous programmes knowledge through programmes
and access to quality that aim to impove the lives and initiatives that promote art,
education, especially in Latin of people at risk of exclusion, literature, education and talent.
America. poverty and vulnerability.
sy
O
Target Progress
We believe we can play a major role in improving People helpgd . -
R . .. . through community investment (millions)
lives in the communities where we operate, and aim .

to help four million people through our community 4mn
programmes between 2019 and 2021.°

4 mn
2019 2021
B. The bank devised a methodology tailored to its requirements and C. Cumulative figure since 2019. In 2020, the scope was expanded by
specific model to contribute to society. Reviewed by an external auditor, incorporating information from Santander Consumer Finance Benelux,
it identifies a series of principles, definitions and criteria to consistently Santander Consumer Finance Nordic and Santander Consumer Finance
track those who have benefitted from the community investment Portugal.

programmes we promote. The nhumber of people helped though art and
culture programmes is excluded.
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Key initiatives by country

We maintained most of our programmes during the health
crisis, while also allocating resources to new projects and
adapting some initiatives to the new landscape.

Commitment to child and youth education

Education is at the core of our social investment strategy. In
addition to supporting university and financial education, we
run programmes that mainly focus on promoting equal
opportunities and access to quality education for children and
the youth.

Fundacion Belén
Educa

' Korky.tv

Korki.tv is an educational TV
programme aimed at final-year
high school students. It was
created to help young people
prepare for exams during the
pandemic, using advanced
teaching methods.

In Chile, we collaborate with
Fundacién Belén Educa on
various initiatives that foster
educational excellence for
children and young people.

Economic
and financial review

470 thousand

children helped by
education programmes

Amigo do Valor

Special Edition

65 projects to support children
and adolescents. Due to the
pandemic, the programme
coined a new version, Amigo de
Valor covid, aimed at
supporting five hospitals in Sdo
Paulo and Rio de Janeiro.

Risk management
and compliance

° Design the Future

We promote a digital guidance
platform that cross-references
young people's profiles with
training and academic courses to
help them choose the best
options.

Social welfare support

We run initiatives to improve the quality of life of those facing
hardship due to age, ill-health, disability, financial difficulty,
etc.

— AJ® Alzheimer Society

iﬁ- Santander Ayuda <l» and Age UK

We launched a special edition
to find 20 NGOs working with
the most vulnerable groups
during the crisis. Each NGO will
receive EUR 5,000.

The Santander Foundation
donated GBP 3m split equally
between the Alzheimer's
Society and Age UK, enabling
them to continue providing
support for those in need during
the pandemic.

1.8 million

people helped by social welfare

programmes
Fundacion AMA -

‘_@. Familias

=¥ vulnerables

This programme aimed to help
more than 15,500 people who
were affected by the pandemic,
providing them with personal
hygiene kits and food supplies
throughout June.

@ Communities
— impacted by covid
Santander US is committed to
supporting our communities
impacted by the covid-19
pandemic, mobilizing USD 15
million in donations to support
non-profit partners that
provide essential services.

Promoting culture

Banco Santander recognizes art and culture as essential
elements to support people's all-round development.

Fundacién Banco
w» Santander

% Santander Argentina

Works to build a more equitable, inclusive
and sustainable society. With this premise,
it develops projects that cover three main
lines of action: culture, environment and
research and social action.

It launched Santander BEST Africa, a
development cooperation programme to
support African enterprises that promote
the employment of women and contribute
to community progression.

More details at
www.fundacionbancosantander.com

.C Farol Santander

Cultural and entrepreneurial centres in Sao
Paulo and Porto Alegre. It promotes
contemporary art exhibitions, some of
which are interactive, to raise awareness
of community issues, as well as discussion
forums and events related to start-ups and
innovation.

More details at
www.farolsantander.com.br

‘s Foundation

The foundation works on the promotion
and development of art and culture, and to
bring them closer to the community. In the
so-called Arts District, the foundation runs
a multidisciplinary programme with
exhibitions and seminars.

More details at www.santander.com.ar/
banco/online/fundacion-santander
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We pay our fair share of tax in the markets we operate in.

Grupo Santander pays its fair share of taxes in the
jurisdictions where we operate. Our board-approved tax

strategy (available online) sets out the principles that apply to

the entire organization.

All the group's entities must comply with its tax risk
management and control system in accordance with the
internal control model.

Since 2010, we've abided by the Code of Good Tax Practices in

Spain and by the Code of Practice on Taxation for Banks in the
United Kingdom. Furthermore, we've participated in
cooperative compliance initiatives led by various tax
authorities. Since 2015, we've voluntarily submitted the
annual Tax Transparency Report to Spain's Tax Authority.

Tax contribution

To contribute to the communities in our geographies, we pay
all taxes borne directly by the group (taxes paid by the
groupA) and collect others' taxes originating from our
business operations (taxes from third parties").

In 2020, our tax contribution totalled EUR 14,496 million,
including EUR 6,443 million in taxes directly paid by the

group.

For every 100 euros in total income, EUR 33 are taxed,
including:

+ EUR 18 in taxes collected from third parties;

« EUR 15 in taxes paid directly by Santander.

A. Including net corporation tax payments, VAT and other non-recoverable
indirect taxes, employer's social security contributions and other withholding
taxes, as well as other charges and tariffs.

B. Including net payments for salary withholdings and employees' social
security contributions, recoverable VAT, tax deducted at source on capital,
non-resident taxes and others.
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For more details on Grupo Santander's tax
% strategy, visit our Corporate Website.

Core principles of Grupo Santander’s tax strategy

- Satisfy our tax obligations based on a reasonable
interpretation of tax laws, grounded on their spirit and
intention.

-> Respect the rules on transfer pricing and pay taxes in each
jurisdiction in accordance with our functions, assumed risks
and profits.

- Not give customers tax advice or planning strategies when
marketing and selling financial products and services.

-> Communicate Santander's total tax contribution clearly,
distinguishing between taxes borne by the group and by
third parties for each jurisdiction.

- Not create or acquire entities registered in offshore
jurisdictions without board of directors' approval; and
adequately monitor and gradually reduce the group's
operations in such territories.

- Maintain a good working relationship with tax authorities
based on the principles of transparency and mutual trust to
avoid disputes and minimize litigation.

C. By the end of 2020, we had two subsidiaries and three branches in offshore
jurisdictions, having liquidated a subsidiary in Jersey and closed a branch in
the Cayman Islands. See detailed information on offshore entities in note 3 ¢)
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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The taxes recorded in our annual income statement mainly
stem from corporation tax accrued during the accounting
period (EUR 5,632 million in 2020 or, deducting the
extraordinary results, EUR 3,516 millionD). They also include
non-recoverable VAT, employers' social security contributions
and other charges. These taxes are recorded as they are
generated, irrespective of when payment is made.

The taxes Grupo Santander pays directly (see the table below)
are included in the cash flow statement. In addition to
corporation tax, the total taxes the group pays include non-
recoverable indirect taxes, contributions to social security
services and taxes that are exclusively levied on banks and
financial transactions (such as in Spain, the UK, Poland,
Portugal, Brazil and Argentina, amongst others).

Tax disclosure by jurisdiction

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

The taxes we accrue and the amounts we pay do not usually
match because the laws in some countries dictate a different
payment date than when income was generated or an
operation was taxed.

We pay taxes in the jurisdictions where we earn a profit. Thus,
the profits obtained, and the taxes accrued and paid,
correspond to the countries where we operate.

D. See notes 27 and 51c of the consolidated annual accounts.

EUR million
Total

Corporate Other taxes paid by the Third-party Total
Jurisdiction income tax taxes paid Group taxes contribution
Spain 342 1,210 1,552 1,483 3,035
UK 204 453 657 435 1,092
Portugal 175 184 359 251 610
Poland 267 207 474 149 623
Germany 161 54 215 117 332
Rest of Europe 333 250 583 55 638
Total Europe 1,482 2,358 3,840 2,490 6,330
Brazil 764 374 1,138 1,392 2,530
Mexico 189 239 428 795 1,223
Chile 365 64 429 231 660
Argentina 104 285 389 2,236 2,625
Uruguay 30 71 101 30 131
Rest of Latin America 22 5 27 8 35
Total Latin America 1,474 1,038 2,512 4,692 7,204
United States (14) 99 85 866 951
Other 4 2 6 5 11
TOTAL 2,946 3,497 6,443 8,053 14,496
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A. Indicators' regional distribution was modified in 2020 to adapt to the Group's regional distribution. As a consequence, the break-down of data is now Europe/North
America and South America, instead of Continental Europe, United Kingdom and Latin America and other regions

Employees

1. Employees by geographies and genderA

N° employees % men % women % graduates
Geographies 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Spain 29,504 29,078 52 52 48 48 69 70
Brazil 42,767 46,248 46 43 54 57 66 72
Chile 10,491 11,267 46 46 54 54 41 56
Poland 10,388 10,902 31 31 69 69 85 82
ArgentinaB 9,058 8,254 53 49 47 51 53 40
Mexico® 21,572 19,673 45 45 55 55 56 61
Portugal 6,015 6,255 54 54 46 46 57 55
UK 20,945 22,561 43 41 57 59 18 16
USA 15,677 17,005 42 43 58 57 11 15
SCF 13,359 12,406 47 47 53 53 31 34
Others 11,413 12,770 53 51 47 49 49 46
Total 191,189 196,419 46 45 54 55 51 53

A. Data at year end. The employee data presented is broken down according to the criteria of legal entities, and is therefore not comparable to that found in the
Auditors' report and annual consolidated accounts, which are presented by management criteria.
B. The number of Santander Argentina employees increased between 2019 and 2020 because it added new companies into its reporting perimeter.
C.The number of Santander México employees increased between 2019 and 2020 because it added new companies into its reporting perimeter and included
outsourcing among its own staff.

2.1 Functional distribution by gender 2019*

Senior managers

Other managers

Other employees

Men Women Total Men Women Total Men Women Total

Europe 1,030 76.5% 316 23.5% 1,346 7,201 63.8% 4,078 36.2% 11,279 33,954 441% 43,095 559% 77,049

North America 246 82.0% 54 18.0% 300 983 69.1% 439  30.9% 1,422 15,467 42.9% 20,593 57.1% 36,060

South America 284 76.6% 87 23.5% 371 3,550 59.8% 2,389 40.2% 5,939 26,192 41.8% 36,461 58.2% 62,653

Group total 1,560 77.3% 457 22.7% 2,017 11,734 63.0% 6,906 37.1% 18,640 75,613 43.0% 100,149 57.0% 175,762
2.2 Functional distribution by gender 2020*

Senior mcmqgersB Other managers Other employees

Men Women Total Men Women Total Men Women Total

Europe 1,115 75.3% 365 24.7% 1,480 7,350 63.1% 4,290 36.9% 11,640 32,937 44.0% 41,998 56.1% 74,935

North America 228 82.0% 50 18.0% 278 956 67.9% 453 32.2% 1,409 15,816  43.1% 20,875 56.9% 36,691

South America 319 76.0% 101 24.1% 420 3,247 59.0% 2,257 41.0% 5,504 26,614 45.2% 32,218 54.8% 58,832

Group total 1,662 76.3% 516 23.7% 2,178 11,553 62.3% 7,000 37.7% 18,553 75,367 44.2% 95,091 55.8% 170,458

A. Data at year end.

B. The higher number of women classified as Senior Managers is the result of the progress made on the public commitment of Responsible Banking on women in
leadership roles, which aims for 30% of senior managers to be women by 2025.
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Number and % of total

aged <=25 aged 26 - 35 aged 36 - 45 aged 46 - 50 age over 50
Europe 6,195 6.91% 18,696  20.85% 32,609 36.36% 13,492 15.05% 18,682  20.83%
North America 4,203  11.12% 15,714  41.59% 8,932 23.64% 3,290 8.71% 5643  14.94%
South America 6,129 8.89% 32,324 46.87% 20,494  29.72% 4,756 6.90% 5,260 7.63%
Group total 16,527 8.41% 66,734 33.98% 62,035 31.58% 21,538 10.97% 29,585 15.06%
3.2. Workforce distribution by age bracket 2020*
Number and % of total
aged <= 25 aged 26 - 35 aged 36 - 45 aged 46 - 50 age over 50
Europe 4,871 5.53% 17,996 20.44% 31,827 36.14% 13,484 1531% 19,877 22.57%
North America 4,704  12.26% 15,597  40.64% 9,317 24.28% 3,279 8.54% 5,481 14.28%
South America 4,141 6.39% 29,498  45.55% 20,796  32.11% 5,072 7.83% 5,249 8.11%
Group total 13,716 7.17% 63,091 33,00% 61,940 32.40% 21,835 11.42% 30,607 16.01%
A. Data at year end.The under-25 age group declined between 2019 and 2020 because of few new hires and the higher average age.
4.1. Distribution by type of contract 201 9"
Permanent / Full time Permanent / Part-time
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 39,976 51.1% 38,329 49.0% 78,305 847 11.2% 6,747 88.9% 7,594
North America 16,479 44.6% 20,476 55.4% 36,955 158 22.4% 547 77.6% 705
South America 29,718 43.8% 38,140 56.2% 67,858 255 26.6% 704 73.4% 959
Group total 86,173 47.1% 96,945 52.9% 183,118 1,260 13.6% 7,998 86.4% 9,258
Temporary / Full time Temporary / Part-time
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 1,166 37.6% 1,936 62.4% 3,102 196 29.1% 477 70.8% 673
North America 57 46.7% 65 53.3% 122 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0
South America 54 37.5% 90 62.5% 144 1 50.0% 1 50.0% 2
Group total 1,277 37.9% 2,091 62.1% 3,368 197 29.2% 478 70.8% 675
4.2. Distribution by type of contract 2020"
Permanent / Full time Permanent / Part-time
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 39,325 50.9% 37,957 49.1% 77,282 874 11.7% 6,576 88.3% 7,450
North America 16,681 44.9% 20,500 55.1% 37,181 135 24.9% 499 78.7% 634
South America 29,927 46.9% 33,861 53.1% 63,788 232 25.6% 676 74.4% 908
Group total 85,933 48.2% 92,318 51.8% 178,251 1,241 13.8% 7,751 86.2% 8,992
Temporary / Full time Temporary / Part-time
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 992 37.4% 1,658 62.6% 2,650 211 31.4% 462 69.0% 673
United Kingdom 184 32.7% 379 67.3% 563 0 0% 0 0% 0
South America 21 35.0% 39 65.0% 60 0 0% 0 0% 0
Group total 1,197 36.6% 2,076 63.4% 3,273 211 31.4% 462 69.0% 673

A. Data at year end. There were fewer temporary employment contracts in Latin America and elsewhere between 2019 and 2020 because of changes to hiring policies
in Mexico requiring new contracts to be permanent, barring certain cases.
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5. Annual rate of contracts by gender
2020 2019
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Employees with permanent /full time contract 85,796 94,435 180,231 87,111 97,701 184,813
Employees with permanent/part-time contracts 1,155 7,717 8,872 1,251 8,075 9,326
Employees with temporary/full-time contracts 1,441 2,291 3,732 1,813 2,761 4,574
Employees with temporary/part-time contracts 211 470 681 225 526 752
Group Total 88,603 104,913 193,516 90,401 109,064 199,465
6.1. Annual rate of contracts by age bracket 2019
aged<=25 aged26-35 aged36-45 aged46-50 agedover 50 Total
Employees with permanent /full time contract 12,787 60,831 59,303 20,586 31,307 184,813
Employees with permanent/part-time contracts 1,200 2,635 2,534 902 2,056 9,326
Employees with temporary/full-time contracts 1,294 3,854 745 174 325 4,574
Employees with temporary/part-time contracts 247 269 151 32 53 752
Group Total 15,527 65,771 62,733 21,694 33,740 199,465
6.2. Annual rate of contracts by age bracket 2020
aged<=25 aged26-35 aged36-45 aged46-50 agedover 50 Total
Employees with permanent /full time contract 10,668 58,474 59,343 20,825 30,922 180,231
Employees with permanent/part-time contracts 1,099 2,360 2,426 887 2,100 8,872
Employees with temporary/full-time contracts 1,001 1,621 652 159 298 3,732
Employees with temporary/part-time contracts 209 252 143 26 51 681
Group Total 12,977 62,707 62,564 21,898 33,370 193,516
7. Annual rate of contract by category
2020 2019
Senior Other Other Senior Other Other
Managers Managers employees Total Managers Managers Employees Total
Employees with permanent /full time contract 2,150 18,911 159,169 180,231 2,022 18,418 164,373 184,813
Employees with permanent/part-time
contracts 7 154 8,711 8,872 227 9,095 9,326
Employees with temporary/full-time contracts 13 83 3,636 3,732 12 88 4,474 4,574
Employees with temporary/part-time
contracts 0 16 665 681 0 165 587 752
Total Grupo 2,170 19,164 172,182 193,516 2,038 18,898 178,528 199,465
8. Employees who work in their home countryA‘B
%
Managers Other employees Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Europe 88.45 88.24 95.38 96.13 95.27 96.02
North America 91.01 89.86 99.75 98.92 99.69 98.85
South America 91.19 90.96 98.25 98.03 98.21 98.00
Group total 89.30 89.09 97.24 97.34 97.15 97.26

A. Data at year end.
B. Data from US is not included as it is confidential information.
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9.1 Differently-abled employees ratio by regionA’B

% 2020 2019
Europe 1.64 1.63
North America 0.21 0.20
South America 3.27 3.19
Group total 1.90 1.84
9.2. Differently-abled employeesA'B

Number of employees 2020 2019
Spain 386 361
Rest of the Group 3,191 3,223
Total Group 3,577 3,584

A. Data at year end.
B. Data from Mexico not included as it is confidential information.

10. Coverage of the workforce by collective cugreementA
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and compliance

2020 2019
Countries % N° Employees % N° Employees
Spain 99.80 29,444 96.20 27,961
Brazil 99.19 42,422 98.80 45,674
Chile 100.00 10,491 100.00 11,267
Poland 0.00 0 0.00 0
ArgentinaB 72.64 6,580 99.20 8,188
Mexico® 30.34 6,544 22.50 4,429
Portugal 99.14 5,963 99.10 6,197
UK 100.00 20,945 94.40 21,294
us 0.00 0 0.00 0
SCF 98,63 13,176 94.00 11,663
Other business units 60.01 6,849 66.20 8,459
Total Group 74.49 142,414 73.70 144,800

A. Data at year end.

B.The decrease in the variation between 2019 and 2020 in the number of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements in Santander Argentina is due to the
inclusion of new companies in the perimeter that do not have collective bargaining agreements.
C.The increase in the variation between 2019 and 2020 in the number of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements in Santander Mexico is due to the
incorporation of new companies in the reporting perimeter, as well as the integration of outsourced personnel as part of the bank’s own staff.

11.1. Distribution of new hires by age bracket 2019

% of total

aged <=25 aged 26-35 aged 36-45 aged over 45 aged > 50
Europe 41.43 35.42 14.30 4.40 4.46
North America 30.78 36.64 15.42 5.12 12.04
South America 22.95 54.73 18.71 2.19 1.42
Group total 31.84 42.62 16.18 3.82 5.53
11.2. Distribution of new hires by age bracket 2020"
% of total

aged <=25 aged 26-35 aged 36-45 aged over 45 aged > 50
Europe 25.93 39.57 23.55 6.13 4.82
North America 36.49 39.29 14.75 4.50 4.97
South America 19.67 50.67 22.18 3.97 3.51
Group total 28.84 42.05 19.58 4.95 4.58

A. New hires declined between 2019 and 2020 as a result of the covid-19 pandemic.
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11.3. Distribution of new hires by gender
2020 2019
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 7.79% 6.24% 6.97% 10.56% 9.50% 9.98%
North America 18.14% 19.55% 18.92% 18.62% 18.69% 18.66%
South America 9.03% 3.98% 6.34% 15.76% 10.48% 12.78%
Group total 10.20% 8.25% 9.15% 13.67% 11.78% 12.63%
12. Distribution of dismissals *
by gender 2020 2019
Men % \Women %" Total %" Men % \Women %" Total %"
Senior managers 30 1.81% 4 0.78% 34 1.56% 45 2.88% 12 2.63% 57  2.82%
Other managers 470 4.07% 225 3.21% 695 3.75% 752 6.4% 342 4.95% 1,094  5.86%
Other employees 4,267 5.66% 5,466 5.75% 9,733 5.71% 6,945 9.19% 8,245 823% 15190 8.64%
Total Group 4,767 5.38% 5,695 5.55% 10,462 5.47% 7,742 8.71% 8,599 8% 16,341 8.32%
by age 2020 2019
Men Women Total Men Women Total
aged <=25 342 363 705 451 535 986
aged 26-35 1,502 1,878 3,380 1,963 2,603 4,566
aged 36-45 1,286 1,932 3,218 1,878 2,710 4,588
aged 46-50 499 553 1,052 696 866 1,562
aged >50 1,137 970 2,107 2,754 1,885 4,639
Total Group 4,766 5,696 10.462° 7,742 8,599 16,341

A. Dismissal: unilateral termination decided by the company of an employment contract not subject to term expiration. The concept includes encouraged redundancies

within the context of restructuring processes.
B. Percentage expressing the number of dismissals over the total number of employees in each group.
C. Dismissals declined between 2019 and 2020 because of Banco Santander's commitment to maintaining employment during the coronavirus outbreak, barring

certain cases with due justification.

13. External turnover rate by genderA

% of total 2020 2019

Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 8.71 9.46 9.11 16.61 16.23 16.40
North America 19.92 16.88 18.22 23.27 21.76 22.43
South America 14.54 14.11 14.31 18.16 15.38 16.62
Group total 12.77 12.51 12.63° 18.38 16.99 17.61

A. Excludes temporary leaves of absence and transfers to other Group companies.
B. The rate of rotation was smaller between 2019 and 2020 because the covid-19 pandemic caused voluntary and involuntary rotation to decline in Banco Santander.

14.1 External turnover rate by age bracket” 2019

% of total

aged <= 25 aged 26-35 aged 36-45 aged 46-50 aged over 50 Total
Europe 39.37 18.55 10.43 7.77 22.84 16.40
North America 38.64 24.60 15.73 18.43 18.01 22.43
South America 16.30 15.09 14.91 17.02 31.43 16.62
Group total 30.39 18.31 12.75 11.56 23.52 17.61

A. Excludes temporary leaves of absence and transfers to other Group companies.
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14.2. External turnover rate by age bracket” 2020

% of total

aged <=25 aged 26-35 aged 36-45 aged 46-50 aged over 50 Total
Europe 26.36 10.58 6.17 5.48 10.58 9.11
North America 32.53 17.52 14.91 13.45 16.38 18.22
South America 15.50 14.15 12.96 12.91 20.88 14.31
Group total 25.20 13.83 9.76 8.40 13.38 12.63

A. Excludes temporary leaves of absence and transfers to other Group companies.

15. By function, gender and regionA

Senior managers 8 Other managers ¢
GPG ratio GPG Ratio
Men Women (Median) ® Men Women (Median)®
Europe 432,989 323,492 19.00% 118,418 89,361 16.2%
North America 580,190 460,619 9.70% 184,548 149,855 15.6%
South America 404,829 221,953 29.00% 70,366 52,097 26.5%
Group total 446,707 318,957 24.60% 117,441 90,286 17.2%
. A
Total remuneration (average) 415,975 107,477
Group Total 2019 408,598 101,520
Variation 2020 vs 2019 1.8% 5.9%

Other employees ¢

Ratio GPG GPG Ratio Total
Men Women (Median)® Men Women (Median)® employees
Europe 50,980 38,524 20.7% 69,701 44,070 23.6% 56,050
North America 45,344 33,125 17.6% 63,805 38,437 21.6% 49,626
South America 24,032 19,153 15.2% 31,064 20,628 18.9% 25,269
Group total 40,145 30,295 26.3% 55,151 34,476 31.7% 43,867
Total remuneration (average)" 34,602 55,151 34,476 31.7 % 43,867
Group Total 2019 34,372 54,123 34,273 30.8 % 43,262
Variation 2020 vs 2019 0.7 % 19 % 0.6 % 1.4%
By Age Brackets
aged <= 25 aged 26-35 aged 36-45 aged 46-50 aged over 50 Total
Total remuneration (aV&fage)A 16,140 26,943 47,253 64,868 69,482 43,867
Group Total 2019 17,597 27,563 47,221 62,574 66,216 43,262
Variation 2020 vs 2019 (8.30) (2.20) 0.10 3.70 4.90 1.40

A. Data at 2020 year-end. Employees' average total remuneration includes their annual base salary, pensions and variable remuneration paid in the year.
B. Includes group sr. executive vp, executive vp and vice-president.

C. The variation includes the effect of internal reclassification between employee categories in different geographies.

D. GPG Ratio (median) includes annual base salary and variable remuneration paid in the year.

16. Average remuneration Senior officers

Thousands euros 2020 2019

Men Women Total Men Women Total
Executive officers 6,247 7,239 6,743 6,571 9,952 7,698
Non-executive officers 239 207 227 354 251 292
Senior officers 3,610 2,288 3,362 3,693 3,902 3,740
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16.1 Ratio between the Bank’s minimum annual salary and the legal minimum

annual salary by country and gender 2019

% Legal Minimum Wage

% legal minimum

Men Women wage
Germany 225.00% 193.00% 209.00%
Argentina 338.00% 338.00% 338.00%
Brazil 182.00% 182.00% 182.00%
Chile 175.00% 136.00% 155.43%
us 207.00% 207.00% 206.00%
Spain 176.00% 176.00% 176.00%
Mexico 128.00% 128.00% 128.00%
Poland 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Portugal 200.00% 200.00% 200.00%
UK 130.00% 130.00% 130.00%

16.2 Ratio between the Bank’s minimum annual salary and the legal minimum

annual salary by country and gender 2020

% Legal Minimum Wage

% legal minimum

Men Women wage
Germany 100.32% 100.32% 100.32%
Argentina 380.69% 380.69% 380.69%
Brazil 178.62% 178.62% 178.62%
Chile 179.14% 144.15% 161.64%
us 236.45% 236.45% 236.45%
Spain 175.29% 175.29% 175.29%
Mexico 160.09% 160.09% 160.09%
Poland 101.54% 100.00% 100.77%
Portugal 188.98% 188.98% 188.98%
UK 176.26% 176.26% 176.26%
17. TrcliningA
2020 2019
Total hours of training 5,913,435.04 8,002,784
% employees trained 100.00 100.0
Total attendees 5,939,158 6,024,981
Hours of training per employee 30.93 40.70
Total investment in training 61,304,729 102,586,146
Investment per employee 320.65 522.28
Cost per hour 10.37 12.82
% female participants 53.66 54.2
% of e-learning training attendees 91.97 84.6
% of e-learning hours 48.06 48.1
Employee satisfaction (up to 10) 8.18 9.3

A.There were fewer hours of training in 2020 than in 2019 because the covid-19 pandemic forced
in-person courses (which accounted for most training hours until 2019) to be cancelled.

18. Hours of training by category

2020 2019
Hours Average Hours Average
Senior officers 65,274 29.97 77,861 38.6
Managers 940,619 50.7 678,335 36.39
Other employees 4,907,542 28.79 7,246,558 41.23
Group total 5,913,435 30.93 8,002,784 40.74
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19. Hours of training by gender

2020 2019

Average Average

Men 31.76 41.49
Women 30.21 40.13
Group total 30.93 40.74

20. Absenteeism by gender and regionA'B P
2020 2019
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europe 2.60 5.00 3.89 2.55 5.44 4.14
North America 0.81 1.56 1.23 0.71 1.88 1.36
South America 2.07 3.99 3.12 1.62 3.26 2.53
Group total 2.08 3.97 3.11 1.90 4.00 3.06

A.Days missed due to occupational accidents. non-work related illness and non-work related accident for every 100 days worked.

B. Santander UK oes not count hours not worked due to covid-19 as absences so they will not affect the remuneration objectives set prior to the health crisis.

C. The sick leave employees took because of covid-19 led to a higher rate of absences in 2020 than in 2019.

D. Banco Santander Brazil only considers the accidents that after an internal specialist investigation were recognized as work-related and had a Communication of
work-related accident ("CAT") registered in the Brazilian Social Security in 2020. Likewise, this indicator only considers the cases that had 15 or more days of
absence due to non-work-related accidents or common illness.

21. Accident rate™®

% 2020 2019

Men Women Total Men Women Total
Europa 0.04 0.12 0.08 0.08 0.20 0.14
Norteamérica 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02
Sudamérica 0.02 0.05 0.04 0.27 0.48 0.39
Group total 0.03 0.07 0.05 0.14 0.27 0.21

A. Hours missed due to occupational accident involving leave between the number of total hours worked. The hours worked are theoretical hours. This includes
accidents in [tinere.

B. Banco Santander Brazil only considers the accidents that after an internal specialist investigation were recognized as work-related and had a Communication of
work-related accident ("CAT") registered in the Brazilian Social Security in 2020Banco Santander Brazil only considers the accidents that after an internal specialist
investigation were recognized as work-related and had a Communication of work-related accident ("CAT") registered in the Brazilian Social Security in 2020

22. Occupational health and s«:lfetyA'B'c

2020 2019
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Frequency rate’ 1 2 2 1.61 2.41 1.77
Severity rate” 0.03 0.1 0.07 0.14 0.27 0.21
No. of fatal occupational accidents 1 0 1 0 1 1
Work related illness’ 0 0 0 0 0 0

A.The 2019 figure is an estimation. The number of accidents and working hours will be reported in the next accounting period.

B.Recordable work-related injuries are reported without distinguishing cases with major consequences.

C. Banco Santander Brazil only considers the accidents that after an internal specialist investigation were recognized as work-related and had a Communication of
work-related accident ("CAT") registered in the Brazilian Social Security in 2020.

D. Days not worked due to accidents at work with and without leave for every 1,000 hours worked. The hours worked are theoretical hours. In itinere accidents are
included.

E. Days not worked due to work accident with leave for every 1,000 hours worked. The hours worked are theoretical hours. In itinere accidents are included.

F. No member of the group's staff is exposed to occupational diseases, given that the activity carried out by Santander professionals and the sector in which they
operate is not recognized in Royal Decree 1299/2006.
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Customers

23. Group customers”

2020 2019 var.
Europa 65,080,571 66,278,825 (2)%
Espafa 13,970,512 13,711,173 2%
Portugal 3,047,020 3,062,608 (1)%
Reino Unido® 25,156,638 25,078,945 —%
Polonia 5,213,476 5,047,909 3%
SCF-P 17,598,056 19,286,148 (9)%
Resto Europa 94,869 92,042 3%
Norte América 24,034,601 23,395,482 3%
México 18,898,106 18,134,468 4%
Estados Unidos 5,136,495 5,261,014 (2)%
Sudameérica 56,929,320 53,933,059 6%
Brasil 48,347,665 46,089,431 5%
Chile 3,605,104 3,415,807 6%
Argentina 3,913,086 3,548,366 10%
Resto Sudamérica 1,063,465 879,455 21%
SGP* 2,211,543 1,187,935 86%
Total 148,256,035 144,795,301 2%

A. Figures corresponding to total customers, understood as the first holder of at least one product
or service with a current contract. Of the European countries listed, except for the United
Kingdom, the customers of Santander Consumer Finance are included under "Rest of Europe".

B. Includes SCF.
C. SCF includes all European countries, except UK.

D.The decrease in SCF customers is mainly due to three countries:
-SC Spain reported that the decline in customers is due to the COVID-19 effect and the termination of Orange's direct product.
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-SC Poland: the decrease is mainly due to a change in methodology (terminated contracts not taken into account in 2020 onwards) and decrease in PLN portfolio

causing a decrease in the number of active contracts.

-SC Germany: the decrease is due to a reduction in auto and durables.

E. The annual variation in SGP is due to the incorporation of Superdigital, which was previously in Brazil.

24. Dialogue by channel

2020 2019 Var.2020/2019 %.
Branches
Number of branches 11,236 11,952 (6.0)%
ATMs
N° ATMs 40,451 39,593 2.2 %
Digital banking”
Users 42.36 36.8 15.1 %
Visits 9,860 7,907 24.7 %
Monetary transactions’ 2,803 2,251 24.5 %

A. Santander Consumer Finance not included.

B. Counts once for users of both Internet and mobile banking.

C. Millions.

120



Risk management
and compliance

Responsible Corporate Economic

banking governance and financial review
25. Total complaints received

2020 2019 2018

SpainA 150,298 91,046 85,519
PortugalB 4,036 4,655 4,298
United Kindom® 22,625 30,298 33,797
Poland 6,057 6,193 4,480
Brazil 146,067 133,841 111,829
Mexico 80,031 75,459 60,740
Chile” 8,328 6,474 6,171
ArgentinakE 3,512 4,106 5,464
us 4,292 4,097 4,160
SCF 39,064 30,535 29,067

Compliance metrics according to group-wide criteria, which may not match local criteria such as
that of the UK's Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) or in Brazil.

A.In December 2020, the number of claims increased significantly, affecting the total number of
claims received throughout the year. This was due to a public notice that made reference to the
publication by the Ministry of consumption that the deadline to claim the mortgage expenses
ended on 27 January 2021.

B. The fall was due to improvements to systems, customer reporting and controls that enable the
close monitoring of customer issues.

C. The decline was the result of initiatives to improve complaints handling (resolution at touch
points, enhanced root cause analysis, etc.) as well as fewer transactions due to the pandemic.
Personal protection insurance (SPP) claims are not included.

D. In Chile, the rise in complaints was due to the effects of covid-19, particularly in loan
restructuring and customers’ understanding of certain campaigns and relief measures.

E. In Argentina, the drop owed mainly to root-cause action plans, including improvements to self-
service complaints handling and resolution, and preventive system maintenance.

F. The increase stemmed from finance industry issues in Italy and Poland relating to the refund of
interest on early loan repayments.
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Environment and climate change
26. Environmental footprint 2019-2020"

2020 2019 Var. 2019-2020 (%)
Consumption
Water (m’)° 2,064,113 2,938,024 -29.7
Water (m’/employee) 11.07 15.20 -27.1
Normal electricity (millions of kwh) 395 548 -27.9
Green electricity (millions of kwh) 526 517 1.8
Total electricity (millions of kwh) 920 1,064 -13.5
Total internal energy consumption (GJ)° 3,758,225 4,322,838 -13.1
Total internal energy consumption (GJ/employee) 20.16 22.37 -9.9
Total paper (t) 8,902 16,497 -46.0
Recycled or certified paper (t) 7,348 13,784 -46.7
Total paper (t/employee) 0.05 0.09 -44.1
Waste —
Paper and cardboard waste (kg)” 5,926,139 9,705,579 -2.1
Paper and cardboard waste (kg/employee) 31.79 50.22 -1.7
Greenhouse gas emissions -
Direct emissions (CO, teq)™ 24,818 27,673 -103
Indirect electricity emissions (CO, teq)-MARKET BASED® 128,633 183,745 -30.0
Indirect electricity emissions (CO, teq)-LOCATION BASED 282,216 322,414 -12.5
Indirect emissions from displacement of employees (CO, teq)H'I 40,708 120,969 -66.3
Total emissions (CO, teq)- MARKET BASED 194,159 332,387 -41.6
Total emissions (CO, teq/employee) 1.04 1.72 -39.4
Average number of employees 186,429 193,261 -3.5

A. The scope of information includes the main countries of operation: Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Germany, Mexico, Poland, Portugal, Spain, United Kingdom and United
States (excluding Puerto Rico and Miami). The decreases in consumption, waste generation and emissions data have been mainly caused by the pandemic covid-19
situation.

B. Information is provided exclusively on water withdrawal from the public network.

C. Itis also reported that the external energy consumption resulting from employee travel and business trips has been: 579,155 GJ in 2020 and 1,721,139 GJ in 2019.

D. The data for 2019 and 2020 do not include waste from the commercial network in Brazil. Also, the data for 2019 do not include waste for Argentina.

E. These emissions include those derived from the direct consumption of energy (natural gas and diesel, and additionally, in the particular case of Mexico, gasoline and
diesel for automobiles and LPG) and correspond to scope 1, defined by the GHG Protocol standard. To calculate these emissions, the emission factors DEFRA 2020
for 2020 and DEFRA 2019 for 2019 were applied

F. These emissions include those derived from electricity consumption and correspond to the scope 2 defined by the GHG Protocol standard. In both 2020 and 2019
the IEA (International Energy Agency) emission factors for 2017 have been used.

- Indirect Electricity Emissions - Market-based: zero emissions have been considered for green electricity consumed in Germany, Spain, Portugal and UK; also, it has
been considered that in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Poland and USA, part of electricity consumption is green energy. This altogether has meant a reduction of 153,582
tons of CO2 equivalent in 2020 and 138,660 in 2019. For the rest of the electrical energy consumed, the emission factor of the IEA corresponding to each country
has been applied.

- Indirect emissions of electricity - Location-based: the emission factor of the IEA corresponding to each country has been applied to the total electricity consumed,
regardless of its source (renewable or non-renewable).

G. The reduction in indirect electricity emissions has been mainly due to the increase in the purchase of green energy in 2020 in the countries that make up the G10

H. These emissions include emissions from employees travelling from central services in each country to their workplaces by individual car, collective vehicle and rail,

and from employees' business travel by air and car. The distribution of employees by type of travel has been made on the basis of surveys or other estimates. The
conversion factors DEFRA 2020 for 2020 and DEFRA 2019 for 2019 were used to calculate emissions from employee travel. - The number of employees travelling
to work in their own vehicles was estimated taking into account only the number of parking spaces in the central services buildings in each country and the diesel/
petrol consumption mix of the vehicle fleet in each country. Data on employee travel by individual vehicle from Argentina, Poland and the United Kingdom are not
reported, as the information is not available. - Employees' journeys in collective vehicles were calculated on the basis of the average distance travelled by the
vehicles rented by Grupo Santander for collective transport of its employees in the following countries: Germany, Brazil, the US, Spain, Mexico, Poland, Consumer
and Portugal, and within the central services of Spain (CGS) and Luca de Tena - Data on business trips by car from USA Consumer are not reported, as the
information is not available. - Emissions derived from the use of courier services are not included, nor are those derived from the transport of funds, nor those from
any other purchase of products or services, nor those indirect ones caused by the financial services provided.

. Indirect emissions from displacement of employees have suffered a significant decrease. The main factors for this decrease are the reduction in mobility because of
the covid-19 pandemic, as well as the development of teleworking among employees at the most critical moments of the pandemic.
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This Responsible banking chapter constitutes the traditional
sustainability report that the Group prepares and is one of the
main tools used by the Group to report on sustainability issues.

International standards and response to
legislation in preparing this Responsible
banking chapter

Santander has relied on internationally recognized standards
such as the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) in the preparation
of its successive Sustainability Reports. This chapter has been
prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards
(Comprehensive option) and the Financial Services sector
disclosures of the GRI G4 guidelines. Furthermore, we also
applied the 2018-10 industry standards of the Sustainabilty
Accounting Standards Board (SASB) for the first time.

Additionally, in this chapter detailed information is provided
to respond to the Law 11/2018, which transposes to the
Spanish legal order the Directive 2014/95/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 22 October 2074 amending
Directive 2013/34/EU as regards disclosure of non-financial
and diversity information.

Scope

This chapter is the eighteenth annual document that
Santander Group has published, giving account of its
sustainability commitments, and refers to the period from 1
January to 31 December 2020. This report has been verified
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., and independent
firm which also audited the Group’s annual financial
statements for the year.

This report also covers the Group’s relevant activities in the
geographical areas in which it is present: Continental Europe,
the United Kingdom, the United States and Latin America. The
economic information is presented according to the definition
used by the Group for accounting purposes; the social and
environmental information has been prepared according to
the same definition, wherever this is available.

Data contained in this chapter covers Banco Santander SA.
and subsidiaries (for more information see notes 3 and 52 to
the consolidated financial statements and sections 3 and 4 of
the economic and financial chapter).

When the limitations and scope of the information, and the
changes in criteria applied with respect to the to the 2019
sustainability report are significant, these are reflected in the
corresponding section of the report and the GRI Content
Index.

Material aspects and stakeholder
involvement

The Group maintains active dialogue with its stakeholders in
order to identify those issues that concern them. In addition, a
survey was conducted to determine the most relevant aspects
to be addressed in this sustainability report. The Group also
closely monitors the questionnaires and recommendations of
the main sustainability indexes (Dow Jones, FTSE4Good, etc.)
and the various international sustainability initiatives to which
the Group is party, such as the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD).

In flagging and identifying content to be included in the
report, and in addition to the materiality study conducted, the
sustainability context of the Group at both the global and
local level was considered. Moreover, and insofar as there
was sufficient available information, the impacts both within
and outside the Bank were addressed.

The details of this process, as well as the results of the
materiality study, can be found on section "What our
stakeholders tell us' of this document.

In addition, as part of our commitment to transparency, we
have committed to begin reporting under the International
Business Council of the World Economic Forum's (IBC-WEF)
Stakeholder Capitalism metrics for the 20217 annual report.

The use by Banco Santander SA of any MSCI ESG RESEARCH LLC or its affiliates
(“MSCI") data, and the use of MSCI logos, trademarks, service marks or index
names herein, do not constitute a sponsorship, endorsement, recommendation,
or promotion of Banco Santander SA by MSCI. MSCl services and data are the
property of MSCl or its information providers, and are provided ‘as-is’ and
without warranty. MSCI names and logos are trademarks or service marks of
MSCI.
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Non-financial information
L tent ind
Equivalent table of legal disclosure requirements under Spanish law 11/2018
Description of the metric/concept included in the 11/2018 Chapters/section of the Consolidated directors ~ Correspondence
Law to be disclosed report where the info is available with GRI indicators
GRI102-1
o . o GRI102-2
Short description of the Group's business model (it will GRI102-3
include its business environment, its organisation and . B
structure, the markets in which it operates, its objectives thl?asl‘gﬁZfdnqudtillfﬂg strategy, What our gg: 183_2
and strategies, and the main factors and trends that may ’
affect its future performance). GRI102-7
GRI102-14
GRI102-15
A description of the policies that the Group applies, o )
which will include: the due diligence procedures applied ~ Governance and priorities. Environmental
for the identification, assessment, prevention and and social risk analysis GRI 103-2
mitigation of risks and significant impacts and of GRI103-3
verification and control, including the measures in which
they have been adopted):
The results of these policies, including key indicators of ~ Challenge 2: Inclusive and sustainable
relevant non-financial results that allow the monitoring ~ growth. CRIT03.
and evaluation of progress and that favour the . -
comparability between companies and sectors, in A talented and motivated team. GRI103-3
0. General accordance with national, European or international Governance and priorities. Responsible
Information frameworks of reference used for each matter. business practices.
The main risks related to these matters associated
with the Group's activities (business relationships,
products or services) that may have a negative effect in
these areas, and how the Group manages these risks, Supporting the green transition, Acting
explaining the procedures used to detect and assess responsibly towards customers, GRI 102-15
them in accordance with national, European or Environmental and social risk analysis. Risk GRI 102-30
international frameworks of reference for each matter. It management and compliance chapter.
must include information about the impacts that have
been detected, offering a breakdown, in particular of the
main risks in the short, medium and long term.
GRI1102-29
GRI102-31
GRI1201-2

Detailed information on the current and foreseeable
effects of the activities of the company in the
environment and, where appropriate, health and safety,
environmental evaluation or certification procedures;
the resources dedicated to the prevention of
environmental risks; the application of the principle of
caution, the amount of provisions and guarantees for
environmental risks.

Supporting the green transition

GRI 103-2 (GRI of
environmental

dimension)
. . GRI'102-11

Environmental footprint. GRI 102-29
Environmental and social risks analysis GRI102-11
At the end of the 2020 financial year, no
significant account is presented in the
Consolidated Annual Accounts of the Group
that should be included in this chapter

GRI'102-11

regarding environmental provisions or
guarantees.

124



Responsible Corporate Economic Risk management
banking governance and financial review and compliance
Description of the metric/concept included in the 11/2018 Chapters/section of the Consolidated directors ~ Correspondence
Law to be disclosed report where the info is available with GRI indicators
Contamination:
Measures to prevent, reduce or repair CO, emissions (
that seriously affect the environment, taking into . : GRI103-2 (GRI 302
account any form of air pollution, including noise and Environmental footprint. y 305)
light pollution.
Circular economy and waste prevention and
management:
. . GRI103-2
Waste prevention measures, waste recycling (GRI 306)
measures, waste reuse measures; other forms of Environmental footprint. GRI301-2
waste recovery and reuse; actions against food waste.
GRI'306-1
Sustainable use of resources:
Use and supply of water according to local limitations ~ Environmental footprint. Key metrics GRI 303-5
GRI103-2
Consumption of raw materials and measures taken to . . . (GRI'301)
improve the efficiency of its use. Environmental footprint. Key metrics GRI301-1
GRI301-2
. - . GRI103-2
1. Energy: direct and indirect consumption, measures (GRI302)
Environmental taken to improve energy efficiency, use of renewable  Environmental footprint. Key metrics GRI 302-1
Information energies GRI302-3
Climate change:
GRI103-2
. (GRI305)
Important elements of greenhouse gas emissions GRI 305-1
generated as a business activity (including goods and  Environmental footprint. Key metrics GRI 305-2
services produced) CRI305-3
GRI 305-4
. . GRI103-2
Measures taken to adapt to the consequences of Supporting the green transition., (GRI 305)
climate change Environmental footprint. GRI 207-2
Reduction targets voluntarily established in the GRI 103-2
medium and long term to reduce greenhouse gas Environmental footprint. (GRI 305)

emissions and means implemented for this purpose.

Protection of biodiversity:

Measures taken to preserve or restore biodiversity

The impacts caused by the direct activities of
Banco Santander on biodiversity are not

Impacts caused by the activities or operations of
protected areas

material due to the financial activity carried
out by the entity.
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Description of the metric/concept included in the 11/2018
Law to be disclosed

Chapters/section of the Consolidated directors
report where the info is available
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Contents

Correspondence
with GRI indicators

2. Social

Employment:

GRI103-2
Total number and distribution of employees by gender, Kev Metrics (GRI401)
age, country and professional classification y ’ GRI 102-8
GRI 405-1
Total number and distribution of contracts modes and
annual average of undefined contracts, temporary Kev Metrics GRI102-8
contracts, and part-time contracts by: sex, age and Y ’ GRI405-1
professional classification.
Number of dismissals by: gender, age and professional . ~
classification. Key Metrics. GRI401-1
Average remuneration and its progression broken down ’ R
by gender, age and professional classification Key Metrics. GRI405-2
Salary gap and remuneration of equal or average jobsin A talented and motivated team, Diversity and (GGRRII1£03’>5-)2
society Inclusion section. GRI 405-2
Average remuneration of directors and executives GRI 102-35
(including variable remuneration, allowances, GRI 102-36
compensation, payment to long-term savings forecast Key Metrics. GRI 103-2
systems and any other payment broken down by
gender) (GRI 405)
Implementation of work disconnection policies evéa\tsgrtlfgeacrgﬁ)?otivated team, 3. The way (GGRRII-?;’{)Z
Employees with disabilities Key metrics. A talented ;”d motivated team,  ;pj 405.1
Organisation of work:
Organisation of work time évgabsgrtlfgeacrtlﬁ)motivated team, 3. The way ?GRRIITOE'.I-)Z
Key Metrics. A talented and motivated team, -
Number of absent hours section 5: Our wellbeing. GRI403-9
Measures designed to facilitate work-Life balance and .
- : : Atalented and motivated team, 3. Theway  GRI 103-2
encourage a jointly responsible use of said measures by h !
parents we work section. (GRI'401)
Health and safety:
Conditions of health and safety in the workplace élﬁ?l\'/avr:l?ge?r?g motivated team, section 5: GRI1102-41
Occupational accidents, in particular their frequency and Ke . . ~
- - - y Metrics. A talented and motivated team, GRI403-9
;e;/v;erlr%/,ezs.s well as occupational illnesses. Brokendown 2.0 e o1 o wellbeing. GRI 403-10
Social relations:
What our stakeholders tell us. A talented and
Organisation of social dialogue (including proceduresto  motivated team, Social dialogue and GRI103-2
inform and consult staff and negotiate with them) restructuring section. Acting responsibly (GRI1'402)
towards customers
Percentage of employees covered by collective . ~
bargaining agreements by country Key Metrics. CGRITO2-41
Balance of the collective bargaining agreements . . . _
(particularly in the field of health and safety in the éﬁ?l\?vgtlfge?:d motivated team, section 5: gs: :8?—8
workplace) 9-
Training:
. GRI103-2
The policies implemented in the field of training ﬁqga;:ng:r(]:leanntdsggtcl)\r/]ated team, Talent (GRI1404)
9 ’ GRI 404-2
Total number of hours of training by professional : ~
categories. Key Metrics. GRI 404-1
Accessibility:
A talented and motivated team, People with GRI 103-2
Universal accessibility of people disabilities section. Acting responsibly (GRI 405)

towards customers. Higher education.

Equality:

Measures taken to promote equal treatment and
opportunities between women and men, Equality plans
(Chapter Il of Organic Law 3/2007, of 22 March, for the
effective equality of women and men), measures taken
to promote employment, protocols against sexual and
gender-based harassment, Policy against all types of
discrimination and, where appropriate, integration of
protocols against sexual and gender-based harassment
and protocols against all types of discrimination and,
where appropriate, management of diversity

A talented and motivated team, Diversity and

Inclusion section.

Higher education.

GRI 103-2 (GRI 405
and 406)
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Description of the metric/concept included in the 11/2018 Chapters/section of the Consolidated directors ~ Correspondence
Law to be disclosed report where the info is available with GRI indicators
I ; GRI102-16
I . : : Governance and priorities. Environmental
Application of due diligence procedures in the field of P h - GRI1102-17
Human Rights g?gci?glr?]ler:]stk analysis. Responsible GRI 103-2
’ (GRI1412)
Prevention of the risks of Human Rights violations and, Governance and priorities. Environmental GRI'410-1
where appropriate, measures to mitigate, manage and and social risk analysis. Responsible GRI 412-1
repair any possible abuses committed Procurement. GRI 412-3
3. Human
Rights Atalented and motivated team, , 1.
Complaints about cases of human rights violations Speaking up, active listening and taking GRI 406-1
action.
Promotion and compliance with the provisions of the
fundamental conventions of the International Labour A talented and motivated team, Social GRI103-2
Organisation regarding respect for freedom of dialogue and restructuring section (GRI 406)
association and the right to collective bargaining.
Governance and priorities. Risk
’ . management and compliance chapter, GRI 102-16
Measures taken to prevent corruption and bribery section 7.2 Compliance and conduct risk GRI'T102-17
management
4. Fight against
corruption Governance and priorities. Risk ?GRRII120035-)2
: management and compliance chapter, K
Measures to combat money laundering section 7.2 Compliance and conduct risk gs: ggg_;
management GRI 205-3
Contributions to non-profit foundations and entities Community investment. GRI413-1
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5.Information
on the
company

Commitments of the company to sustainable
development:

GRI103-2
The impact of the company's activity on employment Higher education. Community investment. (GGRTIZZOO;—)‘I
and local development Financial inclusion and empowerment. GRI 203-2
GRI1413-1
GRI103-2
The impact of the company's activity on local towns Higher education. Community investment. (GGRRIIZZOOS%)‘I
and villages and in the country. Financial inclusion and empowerment. GRI 203-2
GRI1413-1
Relations maintained with the representatives of local GRI'102-43
communities and the modalities of dialogue with them. What our stakeholders tell us. GRI1413-1
Association or sponsorship actions Higher education. Community investment. EE: }85::}%
Outsourcing and suppliers:
Inclusion of social, gender equality and environmental : GRI103-2 (GRI
issues in the procurement policy Responsible procurement. 204,308 and 414)
GRI102-9
GRI103-2 (GRI )
Consideration in relations with suppliers and . 204,308 and 414,
subcontractors of their responsibility Responsible procurement. GRI 204-1
GRI308-1
GRI1414-1
- . . . GRI103-2
Supervision and audit systems and resolution thereof Responsible procurement. (GRI 204)
Consumers:
Acting responsibly towards customers. Risk 2%12.?;2&(1%%'” 8)
management and compliance chapter, e
Measures for the health and safety of consumers section 7.2 Compliance and conduct risk 85: ?Ijl g—jl
management G4-FS15
Acting responsibly towards customers. gs: 185:;7(GRI
Key metrics. Risk management and 416,417 and 418)
Systems for complaints received and resolution thereof complince chapter, section 7.2 Compliance GRI 416-2
and conduct risk management. GRI content GRI 417-2
index. GRI418-1
Tax information:
The profits obtained country by country ggféﬁ?{ti report and annual consolidate GRI 103-2
: GRI 201
Taxes earned on benefits paid Tax contribution. ( )
Public grants received GRI content index. GRI 201-4

Any other relevant information:

*NB: The data to report this indicator could be quantitative or qualitative
In addition to the contents mentioned in the previous table, the consolidated non-financial information statement of Banco Santander includes the following contents:
102-5, 102-9, 102-10, 102-12, 102-13, 102-18, 102-19, 102-20, 102-21, 102-22, 102-23, 102-24, 102-25, 102-26, 102-27, 102-28, 102-32, 102-33, 102-34,

102-37,102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44, 102-45, 102-46, 102-47, 102-48, 102-49, 102-50, 102-51, 102-52, 102-53, 102-54, 102-55, 102-56, 201-1, 201-3, 202-1,
202-2,203-1, 203-2, 206-1, 207-1, 207-2, 207-3, 207-4, 302-1, 302-3, 303-1, 307-1, 308-2, 401-2, 402-1, 403-1, 403-2, 403-3, 403-4, 403-5, 403-8, 404-3, 405-2,
411-1,414-2,415-1,417-3,419-1.
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UNEP FI Principles for Responsible
Banking reporting index

Reference(s)/

Link(s) to bank's full
Reporting and Self-Assessment response/ relevant
Requirements High-level summary of bank’s response information

Principle 1: Alignment

We will align our business strategy to be consistent with and contribute to individuals' needs and society's goals, as expressed in
the Sustainable Development Goals, the Paris Climate Agreement and relevant national and regional frameworks.

1.17. Describe (high-level) your bank's business
model, including the main customer segments
served, types of products and services provided, the
main sectors and types of activities, and where
relevant the technologies financed across the main
geographies in which your bank has operations or

Corporate website:
www.santander.com
« About us

+ Our approach

Santander is a retail bank operating in 3 geographies
(Europe, North America and South America) and in 10
main markets. Furthermore, we have global businesses
like Santander Corporate & Investment Banking; Wealth

Management & Insurance; or Santander Global 2020 Annual Report:

4 h Platform.

provides products and services. . - QOur approach
Our purpose as a company is to help people and
businesses prosper. - Business model and
Our aim is to be the best open financial services strategy
platform, by acting responsibly and earning the lasting
loyalty of our people, customers, shareholders and Other references:
communities. Corporate website:

« Financial report 2020
+ 2020 Earnings
Presentation

To this end, we integrate environmental, social and
corporate governance (ESG) criteria into our business
model.

Our business model is based on three pillars:
= Our scale provides potential for organic growth.

o Unique personal banking relationships strengthen
customer loyalty.

o Our geographic and business diversification and our
subsidiaries’ model, which make us more resilient
under adverse circumstances.

Building on our technology to further strengthen our
customers’ loyalty and access new fee-based revenue
pools.

Our value proposition includes a broad variety of
solutions. Products and services are tailored to meet the
needs of our customers, taking advantage of global best
practices, but adapted to local singularities.

We strive to exceed our stakeholders” expectations and
carry out our activity in a responsible way.

Our activity allow us to contribute to several of the UN
Sustainable Development Goals and support the Paris
Agreement to fight climate change.

In order to contribute effectively to their achievement,
we have carried out an analysis to identify and align our
strategy with the SDGs on which Banco Santander has
the greatest impact. This analysis has highlighted the
most relevant goals for Grupo Santander, both in terms

1.2. Describe how your bank has aligned and/or is of its activity, commitments and strategic focus, as well
planning to align its strategy to be consistent with as the different external factors considered. We have
and contribute to society's goals, as expressed in identified six SDGs in which the Group has the greatest
the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), the impact (7, 8,10, 11, 13 and 16) and four more to which
Paris Climate Agreement, and relevant nationaland ~ we also make a very significant contribution through our
regional frameworks. activity and our social programmes (1, 4, 5, 17)
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Principle 2: Impact and Target Setting

We will continuously increase our positive impacts while reducing the negative impacts on, and managing the risks to, people and
environment resulting from our activities, products and services. To this end, we will set and publish targets where we can have the

most significant impacts.

2.1. Impact Analysis:

Show that your bank has identified the areas in
which it has its most significant (potential) positive
and negative impact through an impact analysis
that fulfills the following elements:

a) Scope: The bank's core business areas, products/
services across the main geographies that the bank
operates in have been as described under 1.1. have
been considered in the scope of the analysis.

b) Scale of Exposure: In identifying its areas of most
significant impact the bank has considered where its
core business/its major activities lie in terms of
industries, technologies and geographies.

¢) Context & Relevance: Your bank has taken into
account the most relevant challenges and priorities
related to sustainable development in the countries/
regions in which it operates.

d) Scale and intensity/salience of impact: In
identifying its areas of most significant impact, the
bank has considered the scale and intensity/salience
of the (potential) social, economic and
environmental impacts resulting from the bank’s
activities and provision of products and services.

(your bank should have engaged with relevant
stakeholders to help inform your analysis under
elements c) and d))

Show that building on this analysis, the bank has:

+ -identified and disclosed its areas of most
significant (potential) positive and negative impact.

+ -identified strategic business opportunities in
relation to the increase of positive impacts /
reduction of negative impacts.

Grupo Santander runs a systematic analysis to identify
the social, environmental and ethical aspects that are
most relevant to its various stakeholders all along its
value chain.

This study consists of a detailed quantitative and
qualitative analysis based both internal and external
sources.

+ Internal sources: employee and senior management
views.

« External sources: shareholders, investors, customers,
regulators, agencies and society in general

In 2020, this assessment identified 15 material issues

for the bank'’s responsible banking agenda. It is worth

highlighting:

+ Funding of activities with environmental and climate
impact

+ Ethical behaviour and risk management
« Diversity
+ Customer satisfaction metrics

To address these issues, two main challenges have been
identified:

1) Adapting to the new business environment.

2) Contributing to a more inclusive and sustainable
growth, that allows to build more inclusive and equal
economies and societies, while at the same supporting
the transition to a low carbon economy.

This annual report discloses information on progress
and plans relating to addressing these two challenges.

In particular, in 2020 we have focused on: incorporating
responsible business practices; tackling climate change
and supporting the ecological transition; enhancing
financial empowerment and inclusion proposal and
fostering a diverse and skilled team of professionals.

In particular with regard to climate change, we have
developed a climate risk heatmap including both
transitional and physical risks on a five-point scale in
order to measure the materiality of the sectors on the
Group's balance sheet.

In addition, aligning with the Group's control and
management risk practices, potential threats that may
affect the development of the strategic plan are
identified, valued and controlled, through periodic
evaluation of the top risks under different stress
scenarios. The main strategic risks identified by the
Group are regularly monitored by senior management,
including their respective mitigation measures.

2020 Annual Report-
Responsible banking
chapter

- What our
stakeholders tell us
Challenges and
opportunities

Supporting green
transition

Environmental and
social risk analysis

2019 Annual Report

Risk management and

compliance chapter

- 1.2 Santander Top
and emerging risks

Other references:
Stakeholder
engagement &
materiAal concerns
report
Culture report
Financial
empowerment
report

ClimatBe finance
report

A

A. (These reports are from
2019 and are available
in our Corporate
Website)

B. (This report is produced
after the Annual Report
and will be available
throughout the month
of June 2021)

Please provide your bank’s conclusion/statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Impact Analysis.
We will continue to improve our materiality analysis and while further exploring and integrating recognised impact methodologies as

started this year for our infrastructure operations.
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2.2. Target Setting

Show that the bank has set and published a
minimum of two Specific, Measurable (can be
qualitative or quantitative), Achievable, Relevant
and Time-bound (SMART) targets, which address at
least two of the identified “areas of most significant
impact”, resulting from the bank's activities and
provision of products and services.

Show that these targets are linked to and drive
alignment with and greater contribution to
appropriate Sustainable Development Goals, the
goals of the Paris Agreement, and other relevant
international, national or regional frameworks. The
bank should have identified a baseline (assessed
against a particular year) and have set targets
against this baseline.

Show that the bank has analysed and
acknowledged significant (potential) negative
impacts of the set targets on other dimensions of
the SDG/climate change/society's goals and that it
has set out relevant actions to mitigate those as far
as feasible to maximize the net positive impact of
the set targets.

To meet the identified challenges, we have set 11 §020 A"%TalBRe?Prt'
targets which reflect our commitment to building a cﬁasgge”rs' € banking

more responsible bank. These objectives include,
amongst others, the commitment to facilitate the
mobilisation of €120 billion of green finance between
2079 and 2025, as well as to financially empower 10
million people in the same period, through increasing

-2020 highlights
-Supporting the green

transition
-Environmental and

social risk analysis

microfinance activities, financial education programmes
and other tools that give access to financial services.

Other commitments to highlight:
+ To have between 40-60% of women on our board by

2027 and to have at least 30% of women in senior
leadership positions by 2025.

To eliminate the equal pay gap by 2025.

To use 100% of our electricity from renewable
sources in all countries by 2025.

To fund 200,000 scholarships, internships and
entrepreneur programmes between 2019 and 2021.
To help 4 million people through our community
programmes between 2019 and 2021.

Additionally we updated our climate strategy,
committing to: i) aligning our power generation
portfolio with the Paris Agreement by 2030; ii) stop
providing financial services to power generation
customers with a revenue dependency on coal of over
10% in 2030; iii) reduce our worldwide exposure to coal
mining production to zero by 2030; iv) and the ambition
to be net zero carbon emissions by 2050.

Please provide your bank’s conclusion/statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Target Setting.

The Bank has established priority areas for improvement in the short and medium term, specific metrics have been defined for their
monitoring, and progress is disclosed in our annual report. We will continue working on further understanding the impacts from our
activities including those related to our targets and where relevant set mitigating actions.

2.3 Plans for Target Implementation and
Monitoring

Show that your bank has defined actions and
milestones to meet the set targets.

Show that your bank has put in place the means to
measure and monitor progress against the set
targets. Definitions of key performance indicators,
any changes in these definitions, and any rebasing
of baselines should be transparent.

The Responsible Banking unit and its network, in

b - - . 2020 Annual Report-
collaboration with the remaining areas and local units, Responsible Bankin
defines short, medium and long term action plans to _p—q'chagter

achieve the objectives. These actions are described
through the different sections of the Responsible
Banking chapter.

The monitoring and follow-up of these actions is carried
out through the KPIs defined in these plans.

Commitments are embedded and part of the Group
financial planning, which a three year plan with yearly
forecast.

Please provide your bank’s conclusion/statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Plans for Target Implementation and Monitoring.

Grupo Santander has defined at corporate and local level, various action plans to boost our commitments.
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2.4. Progress on Implementing Targets
For each target separately:

Show that your bank has implemented the actions it
had previously defined to meet the set target.

Or explain why actions could not be implemented /
needed to be changed and how your bank is
adapting its plan to meet its set target.

Report on your bank's progress over the last 12
months (up to 18 months in your first reporting
after becoming a signatory) towards achieving each
of the set targets and the impact your progress
resulted in. (where feasible and appropriate, banks
should include quantitative disclosures)

Grupo Santander reports, annually, the achievements
and scopes of its responsible banking strategy and
targets.

In 2020, we made significant progress, achieving carbon
neutrality and fulfilling four of our 2021 commitments
one year early. Here is a summary of the 2020 results of
each of the 11 targets set:

- To be one of the top 10 companies to work for in at
least six of the core geographies where we operate by
2021.1n 2020: Top 10 in 6 geographies.

+ To have between 40-60% women on our board by
2021.1n 2020: 40%

+ To have 30% women in our senior leadership
positions by 2025. In 2020: 23.7%

+ To eliminate the equal pay gap by 2025. In 2020: 1.5%

+ To financially empower 10 million people between
2019 and 2025. Since 2019: 4.9 million

+ To finance or facilitate mobilization of €120 billion
between 2019 and 2025 to tackle climate change.
Since 2019: 33,800 billion

+ To use 100% of our electricity from renewable
sources in our buildings by 2025. In 2020: 57%

+ To eliminate unnecessary single use plastic in our
branches and corporate buildings by 2021. In 2020:
98% of reduction.

+ Carbon neutral in our own operations in 2020

+ To fund 200,000 scholarships, internships and
entrepreneur programmes between 2019 and 2021.
Since 2019: 225,000 scholarships

+ To help four million people through our community

programmes between 2019 and 2021. Since 2019: 4
million

2020 Annual Report-
Responsible Banking
chapter - 2020
highlights

Please provide your bank's conclusion/statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Progress on Implementing Targets
In 2020 the Group has made positive progress in achieving the various commitments made
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Principle 3: Clients and Customers

We will work responsibly with our clients and our customers to encourage sustainable practices and enable economic activities that
create shared prosperity for current and future generations.

3.1.Provide an overview of the policies and
practices your bank has in place and/or is planning
to put in place to promote responsible
relationships with its customers. This should
include high-level information on any programmes
and actions implemented (and/or planned), their
scale and, where possible, the results thereof.

3.2. Describe how your bank has worked with
and/or is planning to work with its clients and
customers to encourage sustainable practices and
enable sustainable economic activities. This should
include information on actions planned/
implemented, products and services developed,
and, where possible, the impacts achieved.

Being responsible means offering our customers products Corporate website

and services that are Simple, Personal and Fair. www.santander.com
« Policies

All our activity is guided by policies, principles and

frameworks to ensure we behave responsibly in everything ~ Annual report 2020 -

we do. As far as our customers are concerned: Responsible banking
chapter
R ) - + What our.

+ The general sustainability policy sets out principles and stakeholders tell us
commitments focused on adding value to our main . Governance and
stakeholders. priorities

+ The consumer protection policy sets out the specific + Acting responsible

criteria to identify, organise and execute the principles of towards customers
consumer protection for our customers. Supporting the green

-+ The sector policies stipulate the criteria governing the . tErggﬂrf\lloegtment in
Group's financial activity in the defence, energy, mining/ Wealth Management
metals and agricultural raw materials (like palm oil, soya 9

and Insurance
and wood) sectors. Financial inclusion

-+ The sensitive sectors policy establishes guidelines for the and empowerment
evaluation and decision making on participation of the
Group in certain sectors, which could lead to reputational
risks.

Customers are at the heart of everything we do. We use all
the interactive channels we have to listen and understand
our customers better. Our Product Governance & Consumer
Protection function, within our Compliance and Conduct
area, is responsible for ensuring appropriate management
and control in relation to products and services and
consumer protection. Within this function, the Product
Governance Forum protects customers by validating
products and services and preventing the launch of
inappropriate ones.

Additionally, the Group has worked on standards and good
practices when dealing with vulnerable customers.

The Group also has a procedure for complaint management
and analysis aimed at adequately handling any complaints
submitted, ensuring compliance with the local and industry
regulations applicable.

We increasingly incorporate ESG criteria within our SCIB and
commercial customer conversations and product offering.
We develop various environmental and social value-added
products and services. We are a leader in renewable energy
financing, and have various microfinance and financial
empowerment programmes.
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Principle 4: Stakeholders
We will proactively and responsibly consult, engage and partner with relevant stakeholders to achieve society's goals.

Our strategy is based on a virtuous circle centred on
4.1. Describe which stakeholders (or groups/types  trust and loyalty of our employees, customers, Annual report 2020 -
of stakeholders) your bank has consulted, shareholders and communities. To achieve this we Responsible banking
engaged, collaborated or partnered with for the promote the active listening of our stakeholders. chapter
purpose of implementing these Principles and Listening, analysing, assessing and responding to their - Governance and
improving your bank’s impacts. This should include  opinions and concerns we not only identify issues, we priorities
a high-level overview of how your bank has also spot opportunities, which allows us to guarantee - What our

identified relevant stakeholders and what issues
were addressed/results achieved.

our activity and to maintain the right functioning of the
entire value chain.

In addition, we also regularly analyse the most relevant
environmental, social and governance issues demands
of analysts and investors. And we continuously monitor
the emergence of new standards and good practice at
international level. Actively participating in the
consultation processes of both authorities and sectoral
associations and other organizations that influence the
development of relevant policies on the sustainable
development agenda.

We are also part of the main and most important local
and global initiatives to support the inclusive and
sustainable growth. Some examples are UNEP FI; World
Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD); Banking Environment Initiative (BEI); UN
Global Compact, CEO Partnership for Financial Inclusion;
or Equator Principles.

stakeholders tell us

Other references:

- Stakeholder
engagement & material
concerns report

A. (These report is from
2019 and is available in
our Corporate Website.)
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Principle 5: Governance & Culture

We will implement our commitment to these Principles through effective governance and a culture of responsible banking

5.1. Describe the relevant governance structures,
policies and procedures your bank has in place/is
planning to put in place to manage significant
positive and negative (potential) impacts and
support effective implementation of the
Principles.

5.2. Describe the initiatives and measures your
bank has implemented or is planning to
implement to foster a culture of responsible
banking among its employees. This should include
a high-level overview of capacity building, inclusion
in remuneration structures and performance
management and leadership communication,
amongst others.

5.3 Governance Structure for Implementation of
the Principles

Show that your bank has a governance structure in
place for the implementation of the PRB, including:

a) target-setting and actions to achieve targets set
b) remedial action in the event of targets or
milestones not being achieved or unexpected
negative impacts being detected.

All our activity is guided by policies, principles and
frameworks to ensure we behave responsibly in everything
we do.

The responsible banking, sustainability and culture
committee assists the board of directors in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities with respect to the Group's
responsible banking strategy, sustainability and culture
issues.

The committee is supported by the culture steering group
and the inclusive and sustainable banking steering group.
The culture steering group ensures we embed our culture,
the Santander Way across the organisation, coordinating
corporate and local actions. Our inclusive and sustainable
banking steering group promotes responsible products,
services and procedures to support small businesses to
create new jobs, improve financial empowerment, support
funding the low carbon economy and to foster sustainable
consumption.

To complete this corporate governance and drive progress
on the responsible banking agenda, there is a Responsible
Banking unit supported by a senior advisor on responsible
business practices reporting directly to the Group's executive
chairman.

The culture and sustainability local units coordinate and
foster their sustainable banking agenda, ensuring that they
are aligned with the corporate strategy and policies.
Likewise, each subsidiary has appointed a senior responsible
for the sustainable banking function.

Our strong corporate culture, The Santander Way, is fully
aligned to our corporate strategy. It includes our purpose,
our aim, and how we conduct business. It is the bedrock of
our bank, a responsible bank.

Actively listening to our stakeholders and using the
materiality assessment, we have identified two main
challenges: adapting to the new business environment and
contributing to an inclusive and sustainable growth.

Corporate website:
www.santander.com
-About us

-Our approach

2020 Annual Report-
Responsible Banking
chapter

-What our stakeholders
tellus

-Challenges and
Opportunities
-Governance and
priorities

-A strong and inclusive
culture

2020Annual Report-
Corporate Governance
chapter

-Responsible Banking,
sustainability and
culture, Committee
activities

Other references:
-2019 Stakeholder
engagement & material
concerns report
-20'I9ACulture thematic
report

A. (These reports are from
2019 and are available in
our corporate website:
www.santander.com)

Please provide your bank's conclusion/ statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Governance Structure for Implementation of the

Principles.

The Group has a solid and well-structured responsible banking governance model to meet future challenges and implement
necessary measures that allow us to develop our activity in a responsible and sustainable way.
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Principle 6: Transparency & Accountability
We will periodically review our individual and collective implementation of these Principles and be transparent about and
accountable for our positive and negative impacts and our contribution to society's goals.
6.1 Progress on Implementing the Principles for ~ The Responsible Banking chapter of our 2020 Annual report 2020 Annual Report-
Responsible Banking is our consolidated non-financial information statement. Responsible Banking

This is the eighteenth annual document the Santander Group chapter
Show that your bank has progressed on publishes to diclose its sustainability commitments. This -Governance and
implementing the six Principles over the last 12 chapter includes information for the period: from 1 January  priorities

months (up to 18 months in your first reporting
after becoming a signatory) in addition to the
setting and implementation of targets in minimum
two areas (see 2.1-2.4).

Show that your bank has considered existing and
emerging international/regional good practices
relevant for the implementation of the six Principles
for Responsible Banking. Based on this, it has
defined priorities and ambitions to align with good
practice.

Show that your bank has implemented/is working
on implementing changes in existing practices to
reflect and be in line with existing and emerging
international/regional good practices and has made
progress on its implementation of these Principles.

to 371 December 2020.

This chapter has been verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Auditores, S.L., the independent firm which also audited the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year.

Santander has relied on internationally recognized
standards such as the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI
and Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB
in its preparation. This chapter has been prepared in
accordance with the GRI Standards: Comprehensive
option.

Additionally, in this chapter detailed information is provided
to respond to the Law 11/2018, which transposes to the
Spanish legal system the Directive 2014/95/ EU of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 22 October 2014
amending Directive 2013/34/ EU as regards disclosure of
non-financial and diversity information.

We actively participate and we are part of the main
initiatives and working groups that foster responsible
business practices at local and international level. Some
examples are:

« UNEP Flnance initiative. We are one of the founding
signatories to the he UN Principles for Responsible
Banking. We have also continued our participation in the

TCFD Pilot Il following the first pilot which started back in

2017.

+ World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD). We are part of the Future of Work, which
supports companies in adapting their own business and

human resources strategy to evolve in line with the digital

age.

+ Banking Environment Initiative (BEI). We participate in
two initiatives related to climate, the Soft Commodities
Compact and the new Bank 2030 initiative.

« CEO Partnership for Financial Inclusion. We are part of the

private sector partnership for financial inclusion.

+ Equator Principles. We analyse the environmental and
social risks of all our funding transactions that fall under
the scope of the Equator Principles.

-Further information

Other references:
-2019 Stakeholder
engagement & material
concerns report

A. (These report is from
2019 and is available at
our Corporate Website.)

Please provide your bank’s conclusion/statement if it has fulfilled the requirements regarding Progress on Implementing the Principles for

Responsible Banking

Through the responsible banking chapter of the Annual Report we give accounts of all our commitments related sustainability and
responsible banking. We participate actively and we are part of the main initiatives and working groups that foster responsible business

practices at local and international level.
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GRI Standard Disclosure Page Omission

GRI 101: FOUNDATION

GRI 102: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
102-1 Name of the organization Business model and strategy -
;((e)r%/-iseéctivities, brands, products, and Business model and strategy -
102-3 Location of headquarters Business model and strategy -
102-4 Location of operations Business model and strategy -
102-5 Ownership and legal form Business model and strategy -
102-6 Markets served Business model and strategy -
102-7 Scale of the organization Business model and strategy. Key Metrics -
102-8 Information on employees and other 1

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

workers

Key metrics

102-9 Supply chain

Responsible procurement

102-10 Significant changes to the
organization and its supply chain

Responsible procurement

102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach

Environmental and social risk analysis,
Environmental and social risk management
policy section

102-12 External initiatives

Governance and priorities, Joint initiatives to

promote our agenda section. Shareholder value,

ESG indices and analysts section.

102-13 Membership of associations

Santander participates in industry associations

representing financial activity in the countries

where it operates, as the AEB in the case of Spain

STRATEGY

102-14 Statement from senior decision-
maker

Chairman's letter.

102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

A strong and inclusive culture: The Santander

Way. What our stakeholders tell us. Supporting

the green transition. Risk management and
compliance chapter.

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

102-16 Values, principles, standards, and
norms of behaviour

Governance and priorities. A strong and inclusive
culture: The Santander Way. Acting responsibly

towards customers.

102-17 Mechanisms for advice and concerns
about ethics

A talented and engaged team, section 1.

Speaking up, active listening and taking action.

Acting responsibly towards customers. Risk
management and compliance.
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102-18 Governance structure Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report. -
102-19 Delegating authority Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report. -
102-20 Executive-level responsibility for economic, B
environmental, and social topics Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report.
~ ] . Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report.
102. 21 Consulting stakgeholde;rs 0on economic, Auditor's report and annual consolidated accounts. -
environmental, and social topics What our stakeholders tell us
102-22 Composition of the highest governance body B
and its committees Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report.
What our stakeholders tell us. Shareholder value.
102-23 Chair of the highest governance body Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report. -
Auditor's report and consolidated annual accounts.

- . . What our stakeholders tell us. Shareholder value.
133éffaﬂgggggtmg and selecting the highest Corporate Governance chapter of the annual report. -
9 Y Auditor's report and consolidated annual accounts.

What our stakeholders tell us. Corporate Governance
102-25 Conflicts of interest chapter of the annual report. Auditor's report and -
consolidated annual accounts.
~ : : : Shareholder value. Corporate Governance chapter of
;SfpggeRsilfgshg:giirgact’gg;nance body in setting the annual report. Auditor's report and consolidated -
! ' annual accounts.
B . . Shareholder value. Corporate Governance chapter of
ggé 27 Collective knowledge of highest governance the annual report. Auditor's report and consolidated -
y annual accounts.
- . . . Shareholder value. Corporate Governance chapter of
123f02r§1g\:]a221at|ng the highest governance body's the annual report. Auditor's report and consolidated -
GOVERNANCE P annual accounts.
P . ) Auditor's report and consolidated annual accounts.
102-29 Identifying and managing economic, . . . B
environmental, and social impacts giﬁ?ﬁgﬁgﬁ?gﬁnt and compliance. Supporting the
~ ] N Challenge2: Inclusive and sustainable growth. Risk -
102-30 Effectiveness of risk management processes management and compliance chapter.
102-31 Omission of economic, environmental, and Risk management and compliance chapter. Auditor's B
social topics report and consolidated annual accounts.
Santander’s Board approved this report on February,
102-32 Highest governance body's role in 23th 2021 related to the 2020 period, and the B
sustainability reporting Corporate Governance Chapter of the Annual Report
published in 2021.
102-33 Communicating critical concerns Auditor's report and consolidated annual accounts. -
102-34 Nature and total number of critical concerns cP;lsrlgr[;‘lee?Sand governance. Acting responsibly towards -
Atalented and engaged team, Diversity and inclusion
102-35 Remuneration policies section, equal pay subsection. Corporate Governance -
chapter of the Annual Report.
What our stakeholders tell us. Shareholder's
- s . value.Corporate Governance Chapter of the Annual -
102-36 Process for determining remuneration Report. Report of the supervisory, risk and regulations
committee.
What our stakeholders tell us. Shareholder's value.
~ r : . Corporate Governance Chapter of the Annual Report. B
102-37 Stakeholders’ involvement in remuneration Report of the supervisory, risk and regulations
committee.
102-38 Annual total compensation ratio Atalented and engaged team. 2
102-39 Percentage increase in annual total
compensation ratio Atalented and engaged team. 2
102-40 List of stakeholder groups What our stakeholders tell us. -
102-41 Collective bargaining agreements What our stakeholders tell us. -
E-II:IAGI,(A%HE(K/%EDI\IIE'? 102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders What our stakeholders tell us. -

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement

What our stakeholders tell us.

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised

What our stakeholders tell us.
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REPORTING
PRACTICE

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial
statements

Further information section of this chapter. Auditor's
report and consolidated annual accounts.

102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries

Our approach. Further information sections of this
chapter.

102-47 List of material topics

What our stakeholders tell us.

102-48 Restatements of information

Further information section of this chapter

102-49 Changes in reporting

Further information section of this chapter

102-50 Reporting period

Further information section of this chapter

102-517 Date of most recent report

Further information section of this chapter

102-52 Reporting cycle

Further information section of this chapter

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the
report

General information chapter.

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI
Standards

Further information section of this chapter

102-55 GRI content index

GRI Content Index.

102-56 External assurance

Further information section of this chapter.
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Material
Identified aspect
material aspect  boundary GRI Standard Disclosure Page Scope Omission
ECONOMIC STANDARDS
ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
103-1 Explanation of ~ What our stakeholders tell us.
the material topicand "Material aspect boundary" of GRI - -
its boundary Content Index
GRI103: 'ImOa3n—aZ E:ﬁent Principles and governance "Page”
MANAGEMENT approgch and its of the GRI 207: Economic - -
APPROACH components Performance
103-3 Evaluation of Principles and governance "Page"
the management of the GRI 201: Economic - -
approach Performance”
€ million 2020
Economic value generated1 44,543
Gross income 44,600
Net loss on discontinued operations 0
Gains/(losses) on disposal of assets
not classified as non-current held 114
Ethical for sale
Iraitsellzawour and Gains/(losses) on disposal of assets
t classified as discontinued =171
management / notcta
Compliance and Lr:(tteérrr;‘aalland operations
adapting to Economic value distributed 24,156
regulatory —
changes Dividends 0
Other administrative expenses
GRI 201: (except taxes) 7,537
ECONOMIC
PERFORMANCE Personnel expenses 10,783
Income tax and other taxes 5,632
CSRinvestment 204
tze?cjr;grﬁiizicatlue Economic value retained
enerated and (economic value generated less 20,387
gistributed economic value distributed) Group B

1. Gross income plus net gains on asset
disposals.

2. Only includes income tax on profits
accrued and taxes recognised during
the period. The chapter on Community
Investment provides additional
information on the taxes paid.
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GRI Standards: Topic-specific diclosures

Material
Identified aspect
material aspect  boundary GRI Standard Disclosure Page Scope Omission
201-2 Financial
Lrizleélg?]tcllons and other Supporting the green transition. -
opportunities due to Key metrics Group
climate change
The liability for provisions for
pensions and similar obligations at
2020 year-end amounted to EUR
. . 3,976 million. Endowments and
2&1n-itl))lff£ﬁ>dngi?§m contributions to the pension funds Grou B
gther retigrement lans in the 2020 financial year have P
P1aNS amounted to EUR 359 million. The
detail may be consulted in Auditor’s
report and annual consolidated
accounts.
The Bank has not received
207-4 Financial significant subsidies or public aids
assistance received during 2020. The detail may be Group -
from government consulted in Auditor’s report and
annual consolidated accounts.
MARKET PRESENCE
103-1 Explanation of ~ What our stakeholders tell us and
the material topicand column "Material aspect boundary" - -
its boundary of GRI Content Index.
103-2 The A strong and inclusive culture:
GRI103: management The Santander Way Column “Page” ~ -
MANAGEMENT approach and its of the GRI 201: Economic
APPROACH components Performance.
) _ . A strong and inclusive culture:
f‘étt;?rfitr"ng and gr?e3rr?ai\;al:?nt:aonr; of The Santander Way. Column ~ -
talent/g a roachg “Page” of the GRI 201: Economic
Diversity / Internal PP Performance.
Community 202-1 Ratios of
investment standard entry level
wage by gender Key metrics. Group -
compared to local
GRI 202: minimum wage
e K trics. The G C t
PRESENCE - : ey metrics . The Group Corporate
i?r%iozr ggﬁ:rgﬁ‘eﬂi Human Resources Model aims to Group
hired from tr?e local attract and retain the best excluding -
communit professionals in the countries in USA
Y which it operates.
INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT
103-1 Explanation of ~ What our stakeholders tell us and
the material topicand column "Material aspect boundary" - -
its boundary of GRI Content Index.
GRI 103: 103-2The Financial inclusion and
MANAGEMENT approgch and its empowerment Community - -
APPROACH components investment.
Community External 103-3 Evaluation of Financial inclusion and
investment the management empowerment Community - -
approach investment.
GRI203: 203-1 Infrastructure ; ’ ’
INDIRECT investments and .I'rll'gheJnEd#tcat'on' Community Group -
ECONOMIC services supported investment.
IMPACT P
izn?j?;gcfgcnciggan:itc Higher education. Community Group B

impacts investment.
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GRI Standards: Topic-specific diclosures
Material
Identified aspect
material aspect  boundary GRI Standard Disclosure Page Scope Omission
PROCUREMENT PRACTICES
103-1 Explanation of ~ What our stakeholders tell us and
. the material topicand column "Material aspect boundary" - -
Ethical GRI 103: its boundary of GRI Content Index.
behaviourand gyternal  MANAGEMENT 7033 The
APPROACH management .
management approach and its Responsible procurement. - -
components
103-3 Evaluation of
Ethical GRI 204 the management Responsible procurement. - -
i : approach
behaviourand  gyrernal  PROCUREMENT —o0 ,
rs PRACTICES 204-1 Proportion of
management spending on local Responsible procurement. Group 3
suppliers
ANTI-CORRUPTION
103-1 Explanation of ~ What our stakeholders tell us and
the material topicand column "Material aspect boundary" - -
its boundary of GRI Content Index.
GRI 103: ;lnoa3n-§g-|:r]§ent 2020 highlights. A strong and
MANAGEMENT approach and its inclusive culture: The Santander - -
tE)tr;]ica_l g APPROACH components Way
ehaviour an
risk viod 103-3 Evaluation of 2020 highlights. A strong and
management / ghe g:gﬁgement ivr\llclusive culture: The Santander - -
i a
ggg:)pt)ilr'%ntcg and Internal and 222 10 e y
- ration . .
regulato?/ External assessedp?o? rlics)k: er]sk rtnanagement and compliance Group B
Egincg)re;te related to corruption ~ €N@Pter
goernance— 205-2 Qo‘mmunication
transparency GRI 205: ANT|-  2nd training about Risk management and compliance
; anti-corruption Group -
CORRUPTION policies and chapter
procedures
205-3 Confirmed . .
incidents of corruption Risk management and compliance Group 4

and actions taken

chapter
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ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOR
;??ﬁ; E,Ixaptfr?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column ) )
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content
boundary Index.
GRI103: 103-2 The 2020 highlights. A strong and inclusive - -
MANAGEMENT management culture: The Santander Way, and column
APPROACH approachandits  “Page” of the GRI 206: Anti-competitive
components Behaviour.
103-3 Evaluation 2020 highlights. A strong and inclusive - -
of the culture: The Santander Way, and column
management “Page” of the GRI 206: Anti-competitive
approach Behaviour.
+ The Italian Competition Authority (“ICA")
has imposed Banca PSA Italia a fine of
EUR 6,077,606 as part of an
investigation against the Captive Banks
for running an unlawful cartel from
2003 to April 2017, aimed at
exchanging sensitive commercial
information in the car financing market
in Italy, in order to restrict competition
for the sale of financed cars, in violation
of Article 107 TFEU. Decision was
. . appealed before the administrative
Ethical behaviour court in 2019,
and risk
management Internal and
Comp?iance ar{d external On 21 October 2020, the administrative
adapting to court of Lazio has annulled in its entirety
regulatory changes the ICA’s decision about the car financing
206-1 Legal cartel. As a result of this judgement, the
actions for anti- decision is annulled in its entirety, and
GRI 206: ANTI- competitive all charges against PSA and against SCF
COMPETITIVE behaviour, anti- Italy are no longer valid. ICA has Group 5
BEHAVIOUR trust, antj appealed before the Consiglio di Stato.
pmrggtci)?:sy The possible appeal decision would be

issued by Q4 2021.

+ On 23rd September 2020 the UOKiK
(office of competition and consumer
protection in Poland) published its
decision in which a clause used by
Santander Bank Poland in annexes to
agreements on residential mortgage
loans indexed to foreign currencies, was
declared abusive. The clause relates to
FX exchange rate (method of its
determination). Fine: EUR 5,2 million.
The bank has appealed decision.

In addition, information on litigation and
other Group contingencies can be found in
Auditor's report and annual consolidated
accounts.
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103-1 Explanation

of the material What our stakeholders tell us and column

"Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -

topic and its
boundary Index.
GRI103: 132 The 2020 highlights. A strong and inclusive
MANAGEMENT approgch and its culture: The Santander Way,and column - -
APPROACH components Page” of the GRI 207: Tax.
;'93;2 Evaluation 2020 highlights. A strong and inclusive
management culture: The Santander Way,and column - -
approach Page” of the GRI 207: Tax.
Compliance and
: Internal and 207-1 Approach to - ~
Etsﬁigfzggﬁg\r/rilggrt/ external tax Tax contribution Group
207-2 Tax
governance, _— B
control, and risk Tax contribution Group
management
GRI 207: TAX 207-3 Stakeholder
engagement and
management of Tax contribution Group -
concerns related
to tax
Information breakdown is not available,
207-4 Country-by- iy i’ inder way to present this - -
country reporting information.
ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS
MATERIALS
;??ﬁ; Eq);[atfrrilaaltion What our stakeholders tell us, and column
topi ; "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
opic and its Index
boundary :
103-2 The
Internal GRI103: : .
. Internal and management Supporting the green transition. B B
tfeggtlrc;ir:qTental external RAP/'}:,’;AOGAEMENT approach andits  Environmental footprint.
P components
103-3 Evaluation
of the Supporting the green transition. B B
management Environmental footprint.
approach
301-1 Materials
used by weight or  Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group 6
volume
The percentage of the environmentally-
Internal 301-2 Recycled friendly paper consumption with respect to
environmental Internal and GRI'301: input materials the total consumption is 83%. This Group 6
footprint external MATERIALS used percentage includes both recycled and

certified paper.

307-3 Reclaimed

products and their Not applicable due to the type of Group
packaging financial activity.

materials

Group -

144



Responsible
banking

Identified material

Material aspect

Corporate
governance

Economic
and financial review

Risk management
and compliance

aspect oundary tandar: isclosure age cope mission
bound GRI Standard Discl P S Omissi
ENERGY
103-1 Explanation What our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material "Material t boundarv" of GRI Content
topic and its I da erial aspect boundary" o onten -
boundary naex.
GRI 103 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management Supporting the green transition. ~
APPROACH approachandits  Environmental footprint.
components
103-3 Evaluation
of the Supporting the green transition. B
management Environmental footprint.
approach
302-1 Energy
consumption . . .
Internal | within the Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group
environmental nternal and organization
f . external
ootprint 302-2 Energy
consumption .
outside gf the Key metrics. Group
organization
302-3 Energy .
GRI302: ENERGY  intensity Key metrics. Group
302-4 Reduction  An specific analysis of cause and effect
of energy relation for the implemented measures Grou
consumption and of the obtained reduction is not P
available.
302-5 Reductions
In energy Not applicable due to the type of Group
requirements of financial activity. Group
products and
services
WATER
;?tah-; Eq);ptl:r?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topi : "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content -
pic and its Index
boundary ’
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management Supporting the green transition. ~
APPROACH approachandits  Environmental footprint.
components
103-3 Evaluation
of the Supporting the green transition. ~
management Environmental footprint.
Internal approach
environmental Intternalland 303-1 Interactions ' .
footprint externa with water as a Environmental footprint. Group
shared resource
303-2
Management of Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou
water discharge-  financial activity. P
GRI 303: WATER related impacts
AND EFFLUENTS
\?;\/?t?’r;(?rz\xagfr Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group
303-4 Water Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou
discharge financial activity. P
303-5 Water Environmental footprint. Group

consumption
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BIODIVERSITY

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

Not material - -

103-2 The
management
approach and its
components

Not material - -

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Not material - -

304-1 Operational

sites owned,

leased, managed

in, or adjacent to,

protected areas Not material Group -
and areas of high

biodiversity value

outside protected

areas

304-2 Significant
impacts of
activities,
products, and
services on
biodiversity

Not material Group -

304-3 Habitats
protected or Not material Group -
restored

304-4 IUCN Red
List species and
national
conservation list
species with
habitats in areas
affected by
operations

Not material Group -

EMISSIONS

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

What our stakeholders tell us and column
"Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
Index.

GRI 103 103-2 The
Internal and MANAGEMENT management Supporting the green transition.
external APPROACH approachandits  Environmental footprint.
components

Internal
environmental
footprint

103-3 Evaluation

of the Supporting the green transition.
management Environmental footprint.
approach
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305-1 Direct
(Scope 1) GHG Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group 6
emissions
305-2 Energy
indirect (Scope 2)  Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group 6
GHG emissions
305-3 Other
indirect (Scope 3)  Environmental footprint. Key metrics. Group 6
GHG emissions
305-4 GHG
emissions Key metrics. Group 6
Internal intensity
environmental Ier:(tteerrr:]zlland (EJI\RAIIggl%NS 305-5 Reduction  An specific analysis of cause and effect
footprint of GHG emissions  relation for the implemented measures Grou ~
and of the obtained reduction is not P
available.
305-6 Emissions
of ozone- Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou ~
depleting financial activity. P
substances (ODS)
305-7 Nitrogen
oxides (NOX%,
sulfur oxides Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou -
(SOX), and other financial activity. P
significant air
emissions
EFFLUENTS AND WASTE
1031 Explanation What our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material "Material boundarv” of GRI C.
topic and its | daterla aspect boundary"” o ontent - -
boundary naex.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management Supporting the green transition. - ~
APPROACH approachandits  Environmental footprint.
components
103-3 Evaluation
of the Supporting the green transition. ~ ~
management Environmental footprint.
approach
Internal 306-1 Water
environmental Internal and discharge by Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou _
footprint external quality and financial activity. P
destination
306-2 Waste by
type and disposal  Environmental footprint and Key metrics. Group 6
GRI 306: method
EFFLUENTSAND  306-3 Significant  Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou ~
WASTE spills financial activity. P
306-4 Transport of Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou ~
hazardous waste  financial activity. P
306-5 Water
bodies affected by Not applicable due to the type of Group Grou _
water discharges  financial activity. P
and/or runoff
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE
;I)fotsi;; rE]xaptlear?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI103: 103-2 The
. ) MANAGEMENT management A strong and inclusive culture: ~ ~
Ethical behaviour APPROACH approachandits  The Santander Way
and risk components
management / Internal and -
Complianceand  external 103-3 Evaluation ) )
adapting to of the A strong and inclusive culture: ~ ~
regulatory changes management The Santander Way
approach
GRI 307: 307-1 Non- The Bank has not received final
ENVIRONMENTAL compliance with  sanctionsfor this concept. In addition,
COMPLIANCE environmental information on litigation and other Group Group 5

laws and
regulations

contingencies can be found in Auditor's
report and annual consolidated accounts.
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SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

What our stakeholders tell us and column
"Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
Index.

GRI103:
MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

103-2 The
management
approach and its

Responsible procurement.

components

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Ethical behaviour Responsible procurement. - -

and risk Internal and

external

management 308-1 New

suppliers that
were screened
using
GRI 308: SUPPLIER €environmental
ENVIRONMENTAL Criteria

Responsible procurement. Group 3,7

ASSESSMENT 308-2 Negative
environmental
impacts in the
supply chain and
actions taken

Responsible procurement. Group 3,7
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SOCIAL STANDARDS
EMPLOYMENT
l??ﬁ; riéli?r?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management A talented and engaged team, talent ~ ~
APPROACH approach and its management section.
components
103-3 Evaluation
of the A talented and engaged team, talent ~ ~
management management section.
. approach
Attracting and
retaining talent / 401-1 New
Diversity employee hires Atalented and engaged team, talent Grou B
and employee management section. Key metrics. P
turnover
GRI401: 401-2 Benefits
EMPLOYMENT Eiﬁ\e”gﬁf t[g fg(lel; Benefits detailed in "A talented and
that are ﬁoty engaged team", section "Corporate Grou ~
provided to benelﬁts“ are regarding only full-time P
temporary or part- employees.
time employees
401-3 Parental Information breakdown is not available,
leave work is under way to present this Group -
information.
LABOUR/MANAGEMENT
RELATIONS
l??ﬁ; rl}Eq);ptlear?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management Column "Page" of the GRI 402: Labour/ - ~
APPROACH approach and its Management relations"
Attracting and components
retaining talent / 103-3 Evaluation
Diversity of the Column "Page" of the GRI 402: Labour/ ~ B
management Management relations”
approach
402-1 Minimum :
. . : Santander Group has not established any
;\JA',QAIJ\?X%E:—\?EBI\?TR/ pgt;c%ip;‘erlods minimum period to give prior notice Grou B
RELATIONS o geratiogal relating to organisational changes different P
cIEanges from those required by law in each country.
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY
l??ﬁ; rE]Xapt?r?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
Attracting and GRI103: 1m%3n_§ g:sent Atalented and engaged team. Column
retaining talent / MANAGEMENT a rogch and its "Page" of the GRI 403: Occupational Safe - -
Diversity APPROACH cgﬁ]ponents and Safety.

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Atalented and engaged team. Column
"Page" of the GRI 403: Occupational Safe
and Safety.
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403-1 Banco Santander has occupational health
Occupational and safety management systems in place in
health and safety  all the geographies in which it operates, Grou
management complying with the legal requirements of P
system each country regarding occupational risk
prevention.
403-2 Hazard
identification, risk . .
assessment, and élﬁarl\?vgtl?l;je?r?d engaged team, section 5: Group
incident g-
investigation
403-3 .
: Atalented and engaged team, section 5:
Occupational : ! Group
health services Our wellbeing.
403-4 Worker
participation, At Banco Santander SA, the t f Banco
consultation, and S ! percentage of . oo ntander
communication on $gg$.sentat|on in the Security Committee is S.A and
occupational o SCF
health and safety
i GRI 403: 403-5 Worker
Attracting and
retaininggtalent/ Internal OCCUPATIONAL  training on Atalented and engaged team, section 5:
Diversit HEALTH AND occupational Our wellbeing. Group
v SAFETY health and safety
403-6 Promotion A talented and engaged team, section 5: Grou
of worker health Our wellbeing. P
403-7 Prevention
and mitigation of
occupational .
health and safety Pilr?;r?ggtlgca:ltbibeitdue to the type of Group Group
impacts directly Y-
linked by business
relationships
403-8 Workers
g(cj\clﬁrea(zigx:ln 100% of Banco Santander employees are
p covered by health and safety management Group
health and safety svstems at work
management Y :
system
403-9 Work- Atalented and engaged team, section 5: Grou
related injuries Our wellbeing. Key metrics. P
403-10 Work- Key metrics. Group

related ill health
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TRAINING AND EDUCATION
103-1 Explanation What our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material " . f
topic and its Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The P
MANAGEMENT  Management Atalented and engaged team. “Page” of the - B
APPROACH approach and its GRI 404: Training and education.
components
103-3 Evaluation
of the Atalented and engaged team. “Page” of the ~ _
management GRI 404: Training and education.
approach
. 404-1 Average
Attracting and hours of training A talented and engaged team, "Talent Grou .
retaining talent /  Internal per year per management" section. Key metrics. P
Diversity employee
404-2 Programs Banco Santander offers management
for upgrading programmes and continuous training skills
employee skills that foster the employees” employability Grou -
GRI 404: and transition and that, sometimes, help them manage p
TRAINING AND  assistance the end of their professional careers. A
EDUCATION programs talented and engaged team. Key metrics.
404-3 Percentage
of employees "
receivingreguiar  Alented nd engaged tea, Tatnt
performance and 9 -Reg Group -
career performance and career development are
development received by the 100% of the employees.
omissions.
DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
103-T Explanation v ot our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material "Material t boundary" of GRI Content
topic and its | da erial aspect boundary" o onten - -
boundary naex.
Attracting and 103-2 The
retaining talent / GRIT03: management Atalented and engaged team. “Diversity . .
P'Veri.'ty/t. dt Internal QAF;OI‘:,’\&%GAECT'ENT approachandits  and Inclusion" section.
ncentives tied to components
ESG criteria
103-3 Evaluation
of the Atalented and engaged team. "Diversity - B
management and Inclusion” section.
approach
405-1 Diversity of  Atalented and engaged team. "Diversity
) governance bodies and Inclusion” section. Key metrics. G B
Attracting and GRI 405: and employees Corporate governance chapter of the roup
retaining talent / DIVERSITY AND Annual Report.
Diversity / Internal EQUAL -
Incentives tied to OPPORTUNITIES 405-2 Ratio of o
ESG criteria basic salary and Atalented and engaged team. "Diversity Grou 8
remuneration of and Inclusion” section. Key metrics. P
women to men
NON-DISCRIMINATION
l??h_; rE\);%lélr?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
Ethical behaviour EA?AII\-:XS;EMENT ;w%BI;ggLrl]ﬁent Atalented and engaged team. "Diversity ~ ~
and risk APPROACH approach and its and Inclusion” section
management / Internal and components
Compliance and external 103-3 Evaluation
adapting to of the Atalented and engaged team. "Diversity ~ B
regulatory changes management and Inclusion” section.
approach
406-1 Incidents of A talented and engaged team, section 1:
GRI 406: NON- discrintw.inatiotr] and "Speaking up, active listening and taking Group ~
corrective actions

DISCRMINATION

taken

action". Risk management and compliance
chapter.
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FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

GRI103:
MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

Not material Not applicable

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

Not material

103-2 The
management
approach and its
components

Not material

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Not material

GRI 407:
FREEDOM OF
ASSOCIATION
AND COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING

407-1 Operations
and suppliers in
which the right to
freedom of
association and
collective
bargaining may be
at risk

Not material

Group -

CHILD LABOR

GRI103:
MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

Not material Not applicable

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

Not material

103-2 The
management
approach and its
components

Not material

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Not material

GRI 408: CHILD
LABOR

408-1 Operations
and suppliers at
significant risk for
incidents of child
labor

Not material

Group -

Identified material ~ Material aspect
aspect boundary GRI Standard

Disclosure

Page

Scope Omission

FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOR

103-1 Explanation
of the material
topic and its
boundary

Not material

GRI103:
MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

103-2 The
management
approach and its
components

Not material

Not material Not applicable

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Not material

GRI 409:
FORCED OR
COMPULSORY
LABOR

409-1 Operations
and suppliers at
significant risk for
incidents of forced
or compulsory
labor

Not material

Group -
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SECURITY PRACTICES
;P?ﬁ; E]);ptlear?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
Ethical behaviour : management Column "Page" of the GRI 410: Security B _
andl risk vod RAPAP'\:Q%GAECﬂENT approachandits  Practices.
management / Internal and components
Compliance and nternat an - i
p! external 103-3 Evaluation
adapting to " " i
of the Column "Page" of the GRI 410: Security ~ _
regulatory management Practices.
changes approach
410-1 Security . . .
GRI 410: personnel trained Santander requires to its Safety Services Banco
SECUTIRY in human rights suppliers during the hiring process Santander -
PRACTICES policies or Ezmlﬁg?igcniw'th Human Rights S.A.
procedures 9
RIGHTS OF INDIGENOUS PEOPLES
;??ﬁ; E;;ﬁfr?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT  Management Column "Page" of the GRI 411: Rights of B R
Ethical behaviour APPROACH approachandits  Indigenous People
and risk components
management / 103-3 Evaluation
Complianceand  External of the Column "Page” of the GRI 411: Rights of . .
adapting to management Indigenous People.
Ei%l#gaégry approach
The Bank ensures, through social and
: environmental risk assessments in their
GRI 411: RIGHTS \élli'(lj'lla—;liégcsldents of financing operations under the Equator
OF INIDGENOUS involving rights of Principles, that no violations of the Group 9
PEOPLE indi engusg cople indigenous peoples’ rights occur in such
9 peop operations. In 2020, a total of 68
operations were evaluated in this respect.
HUMAN RIGHTS ASSESSMENT
l??ﬁ; rEnxaptfr?:ltlon What our stakeholders tell us and column
toDi : "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
pic and its Index
Ethical behaviour boundary )
and risk
103-2 The
management / GRI 103: mana " " .
A gement Column "Page" of the GRI 412: Human ~ ~
gg;npgil:]antcg and External %&%’%ﬁ%ﬂENT approach and its Rights assessment
regElatgry components
changes 103-3 Evaluation
of the Column "Page" of the GRI 412: Human ~ ~
management Rights assessment
approach
412-1 Operations  All the Bank's financing operations under
that have been the Equator Principles are subject to social
subject to human  and environmental risk assessments Grou 9
rights Omissions  (which includes human rights aspects). In P
orimpact 2020, a total of 68 operations were
assessments evaluated in this respect.
Ethical behaviour 412-2 Employee
and risk training on human A talented and engaged team, Learning Grou 10
management / GRI 412: rights policiesor  and development section. P
Compliance and External HUMAN RIGHTS  procedures
?gaﬁg?grto ASSESSMENT 412-3 Significant  The Third-party Certification policy was
chgan P Y investment Last year, the third-party approval policy
9 agreements and was updated. This policy includes an
contracts that appendix with the "principles of
include human responsible conduct for suppliers". These Group 10

rights clauses or
that underwent
human rights
screening

principles are mandatory for all Banco
Santander suppliers and include human
rights aspects, amongst others.
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LOCAL COMMUNITIES
1031 Explanation What our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material "Materi f
topic and its aterial aspect boundary" of GRI Content Group -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The Financial inclusion and empowerment,
; management Supporting higher education, Community B
%&%@GAECMENT approachandits  investment and Supporting the green Group
components transition.
103-3 Evaluation  Financial inclusion and empowerment,
of the Supporting higher education, Community Grou B
management investment and Supporting the green P
approach transition.
Financial inclusion and empowerment,
Supporting higher education, Community
investment
; The Santander Group has several
%%EsTnl'J\glrE{ External 413-1 Operations  programmes in its ten main countries aim
with local to encourage development and
community participation of local communities, in
GRI413: LOCAL  engagement, which it is carried out an assessment on Grou B
COMMUNITIES  impact people helped, scholarships given through P
assessments, and agreement with Universities, among
development others. Moreover, in the last years the
programs Group has developed different products
and services offering social and/or
environmental added value adapted to
each country where Santander develops its
activities.
413-2 Operations
with significant
Sf)tt%?llt?anliegative Environmental and social risk analysis Group -
impacts on local
communities
SUPPLIER SOCIAL ASSESSMENT
103-1 Explanation What our stakeholders tell us and column
of the material "Material boundarv” of GRI C.
topic and its | aterial aspect boundary" o | Content - -
boundary ndex.
GRIOS et
MANAGEMENT a 9 hand it Responsible procurement. - -
APPROACH pproach and its
components
Control and g?tsr;s Evaluation
management of Internal and management Responsible procurement. - -
risks, ethics and external a rogch
compliance PP
414-1 New
suppliers that
were screened Responsible procurement. Group 3,7
GRI 414: using social
SUPPLIER criteria
SOCIAL -
ASSESSMENT ~ 414-2 Negative
social impacts in Responsible procurement. Group 3,7

the supply chain
and actions taken
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PUBLIC POLICY

Ethical behaviour

GRI103:
MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

103-1 Explanation
of the material

What our stakeholders tell us and column
"Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content

topic and its

boundary Index.

103-2 The 2020 highlights,A strong and inclusive

management culture: The Santander Way. A talented

approachandits  and engaged team. Government and - -
components priorities “Page” of the GRI 415: Public

Policy.

and risk 103-3 Evaluation 2020 highlights,A strong and inclusive
management / Internal and of the culture: The Santander Way. A talented
Compliance and external management and engaged team. Government and - -
?g;&ta"’t‘gr;() approach priorities "Page” of the GRI 415: Public
Policy.
changes |c¥ - -
The vinculation, membership or
collaboration with political parties or with
other kind of entities, institutions or
. - - associations with public purposes, as well
SSII_?C_IYS PUBLIC ?;r?tr?bi?ilgrllcsal as contributions or services to them, Group -
should be done in a way that can assure
the personal character and that avoids any
involvement of the Group, as indicated in
Santander Group General Code of Conduct
CUSTOMER HEALTH SAFETY
l??ﬁ; E:;F;Lar?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI103: ;1%3“-5 Erlﬁent Acting responsibly towards our customers,
MANAGEMENT a rogch and its protecting consumers and helping - -
APPROACH cgr[?\ponents vulnerable customers section
l??ﬁg’ Evaluation Acting responsibly towards our customers,
management protecting consumers and helping - -
Products and approgch vulnerable customers section.
Ef;x;cpe:rgr;?taar]rgz 416-1 Assessment Responsible business practices. The
Fair of the healthand =~ Commercialisation Committee evaluates
safety impacts of  potential impact of all products and
product and services, previously they are launched onto  Group -
service categories  the market. These impacts include, among
GRI 416: others, clients security and compatibility
CUSTOMER with other products.
HEALTHAND = 476-2 Incidents of
SAFETY non-compliance The Bank has not received final sanctions
concerning the for this concept. In addition, information on
health and safety litigation and other Group contingencies Group 5
impacts of can be found in Auditor's report and annual
products and consolidated accounts.
services
MARKETING AND LABELING
;??ﬁg Eq);‘atfr?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
Products and GRI 103: 103-2 The Acting responsibly towards our customers,
services that are Internal and MANAGEMENT management protecting consumers and helping B B
transparent and external APPROACH approach and its vulnerable customers section.
fair components

103-3 Evaluation
of the
management
approach

Acting responsibly towards our customers,
protecting consumers and helping
vulnerable customers section.
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Products and
services that are
transparent and
fair

Internal and
external

GRI417:
MARKETING
AND LABELING

417-1
Requirements for
product and
service
information and
labeling

Responsible business practices. The
Commercialisation Committee evaluates
potential impact of all products and
services, previously they are launched onto
the market. These impacts include, among
others, clients security and compatibility
with other products. In addition, the Bank
is member of the Association for
Commercial Self- Regulation (Autocontrol)
assuming the ethical commitment to be
responsible regarding the freedom of
commercial communication

Group

417-2 Incidents of
non-compliance
concerning
product and
service
information and
labeling

+ Sanction procedure of the National
Securities Market Commission for
violation of the provisions foreseen in
art 214 Law Securities Market, in
relation to the information collected
from retail clients for the evaluation of
convenience.

+ Sanction procedure opened on 2015 by
the Ministry of Economy and
Competitiveness, for the violation of
the Securities Market Law, by the
former Banco Popular: (i) not to act with
transparency and diligence and in the
interest of the clients having charged
commissions not adjusted to the rules Group
(i) recommend to clients financial
instruments not adjusted to their
investment objectives or to their
experience and knowledge. Dismissed
judgment of the National Court notified
on September 30, 2019. Appeal filed
before the Supreme Court has been
dismissed. Fine: 900.000 euro

Sanctioning file of the Basque Consumer
Institute (Kontsumobide) for the alleged
abusiveness of the expense clause of
the mortgage loan contracts. Firm
sanction. Fine: 120.00 euros.

417-3 Incidents of
non-compliance
concerning
marketing
communications

+ In December 2020, Santander Consumer
Finance Oy ("SCF Finland”, a subsidiary
of Santander Consumer Bank AS)
received a request for information from
the Finnish Competition and Consumer
Authority (“FCCA”") related to a
marketing campaign published by a
distributor automobile / automobile
partner of SCF Finland in a Finnish
national newspaper. The FCCA considers
that the advertisement does not comply Group
with the regulatory requirements for
transparency and protection, prior to the
publication of the advertisement. SCF
Finland is required to provide
information in Q1 2021.

In addition, information on litigation and
other Group contingencies can be found in
Auditor’s report and annual consolidated
accounts.
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CUSTOMER PRIVACY
;P?ﬁ; Eq);ﬁlear?;lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
GRI 103: 103-2 The
MANAGEMENT management Acting responsibly towards our customers, ~ -
APPROACH approach and its
components
Measures taken 103-3 Evaluation
For customer Internal and of the Responsible business practices ) B
External
satisfaction management
approach
418-1
Sgr?qs%?;'?;ed The Bank has not received final sanctions
GRI 418: concgzrnin for this concept. In addition, information on
CUSTOMER breaches gf litigation and other Group contingencies Group 5
PRIVACY customer privac can be found in Auditor’s report and annual
and lossespof Y consolidated accounts.
customer data
SOCIOECONOMIC COMPLIANCE
;??ﬁ; E;;ﬁfr?:lt'on What our stakeholders tell us and column
topic and its "Material aspect boundary" of GRI Content - -
boundary Index.
103-2 The 2020 highlights,A strong and inclusive
GRI 103: management culture: The Santander Way. A talented
MANAGEMENT approachandits  and motivated team. Acting responsibly - -
Products and APPROACH components towards customers and column “Page” of
services that are the GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance.
transparentand  Internal and 103-3 Evaluation 2020 highlights,A strong and inclusive
fair /Ethical ~ external of the culture: The Santander Way. A talented
behaviour and risk management and engaged team. Acting responsibly - -
management approach towards customers and column “Page” of
the GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance.
GRI419: 419-1 Non- . . .
B ] The Bank has not received final sanctions
g%%&%{%m%gl fgwsp;'r?gce with for this concept. In addition, information on
requlations in the litigation and other Group contingencies Group 5
so%ial and can be found in Auditor’s report and annual

economic area

consolidated accounts.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTOR DISCLOSURES

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Ethical behaviour

and risk

management /

Compliance and

adapting to

regulator

changes / Products Internal and
and services that  external
are transparent

and fair / Products

and services

offering social and
environmental

added value

FS1

Policies with specific
environmental and
social components
applied to business
lines

Governance and priorities, Supporting the
green transition and Environmental and
social risks analysis.

Group

FS2

Procedures for
assessing and
screening
environmental and
social risks in
business lines

Governance and priorities, Supporting the
green transition and Environmental and
social risks analysis

Group

FS3

Processes for
monitoring clients’
implementation of
and compliance with
environmental and
social requirements
included in
agreements of
transactions

Governance and priorities, Supporting the
green transition and Environmental and
social risks analysis.

Group

FS4

Process(es) for
improving staff
competency to
implement the
environmental and
social policies and
procedures as
applied to business
lines

Supporting the green transition,
Management and staff training section.

Group

FS5

Interactions with
clients/ investees/
business partners
regarding
environmental and
social risks and
opportunities

2020 highlights. Governance and priorities,
Joint initiatives to promote our agenda
section. Shareholder value. Risk
management and compliance chapter.

Group

FS6

Percentage of the
portfolio for
business lines by
specific region, size
(e.g. micro/ SME/
large) and by sector

Acting responsibly towards customers.
Meeting the needs of everyone in society.

Group

FS7

Moneraty value of
products and
services designed to
deliver a specific
social benefit for
each business line
broken down by
purpose

Supporting the green transition. ESG
investment in Wealth Management and
Insurance.

Group

FS8

Monetary value of
products and
servicies designed to
deliver a specific
environmental
benefit foir each
business line broken
down by purpose

Supporting the green transition. ESG
investment in Wealth Management and
Insurance.

Group
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aspect boundary on
AUDIT
The Group's Internal Audit area carries out a
biennial review of the sustainability function
. - Coverage and to evaluate, among other aspects, the
E::jlcriaslkbehawour frequency of audits  degree of compliance with social and
to assess environmental responsibility policies, whic
management / ; ) envi | responsibility polici hich
Compliance and Internal and FS9 implementation of  includes both the review of the Equator Grou
ada Ft):in to external environmentaland  Principles and additional risk assessment P
re Elatc?r social policies and procedures on specific sectors. In addition,
ch%n s y risk assesment during the previous year the first review of
9 procedures the governance and procedures applied by
the corporate function of Responsible
Banking was carried out.
ACTIVE OWNERSHIP
Percentage and
number of
companies held in
the instituition’s
portfolio with which : A :
FS10 the reporting Environmental and social risks analysis Group 9
organization has
interacted on
environmental or
social issues
Percentage of assets
subject to positive
FS11 and negative Environmental and social risks analysis Group 9
environmental or
social screening
Ethical behaviour Voting policy(ies)
and risk applied to The Santander Group has no voting policies
management / environmental or relating to social and/or environmental
Compliance and social issues for matters for entities over which acts as an
adapting to FS12 shares over which advisor. The Santander Employees Pension Grou
regulator the reporting Fund does have a policy of formal vote in P
changes / Products | . L organization hold relation to social and environmental
and services that nterna the right to vote aspects, for shareholder meetings of the
are transparent shares or advises on entities over which it has voting rights
and fair / Products voting
and servicies A ints in low-
offering social and cceslstp%m sintow
environmental ES13 poputated or R )
added value economically Financial inclusion and empowerment Group
disadvantaged areas
by type
Initiatives to
improve access to Financial inclusion and em t
FS14 financial servicies p : powerment, Group
for disadvantaged sustainable finance and Key metrics.
people
Policies for the fair
design and sale of . :
FS15 financial products Acting responsibly towards customers Group
and servicies
Initiatives to
enhance financial ; ;
FS16 literacy by type of Acting responsibly towards customers Group
beneficiary

1.0nly information regarding owned employees is disclosed. 2. The indicator is not reported because it is confidential information. 3. Data refers exclusively to
centralised purchases data in Aquanima. 4. Information is provided on the total number of complaints conflicts of interest and corruption 5. Information is provided
for claims of any type and over €60,000 that may have a significant reputational impact on the Group and/or that there is an accounting provision because it may
materialize in the short, medium or long term. 6. The scope and limitations of this indicator are described on Key Metrics. 7. Only total amount of approved

suppliers is included. 8. Only the ratio for total compensation is reported. 9. Information is only provided on the number of project finance deals of Santander's
Bank, which have been analysed regarding social and environmental risks in Equator Principles’ frame. 10. Only qualitative information is disclosed. 11.

Information is provided on programmes and their direct impacts of the ten main countries of the Group, instead on centres.
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Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board (SASB) content index

This is the first year in which Santander has decided to report
in accordance with the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board (SASB), following its Industry Standards Version
2018-10 issue.

The relevant standards disclosed in this section have been
selected according to a materiality-driven analysis, focusing
on the industries that are most closely aligned with our
businesses within the “Financials sector”: Asset Management
& Custody Activities (FN-AC), Commercial Banks (FN-CB),
Consumer Finance (FN-CF), Investment Banking & Brokerage
(FN-1B).

Sustainability Accounting Metrics

Acknowledging that SASB has a US-based approach, we have
done our best efforts for translating it to our European
standards.

Currently, we do not disclose all metrics included in the
aforementioned industry standards, but we will continue to
evaluate additional metrics in the future, enhancing our
reporting under SASB framework for meeting the needs of
our growing base of stakeholders and investors.

Unless otherwise is noted, all data and descriptions are
reported for the Santander Group, if applicable, on a
consolidated basis, and not just the segments relevant to the
particular industry. The information will refer to the 2020
fiscal year, unless otherwise is specified.

Topic Industry Accounting Metric Code Response
Data Security Commercial (1) Number of data FN-CB-230a.1 Refer to ‘Litigation and other matters'in the
Banks breaches, (2) percentage FN-CF-230a.1 note 25 of the Consolidated accounts in the
involving personally Auditor's report and consolidated financial
Consumer identifiable information statements.
Finance (P11}, (3) number of
account holders affected.
Commercial  Description of approach  FN-CB-230a.2 Refer to ‘Risk Pro’ in section 'A strong and
Banks to identifying and FN-CF-230a.3  inclusive culture' of this chapter; and to
addressing data security ‘Relevant mitigation actions’ in section 6.2 of
Consumer risks. ‘Risk management and compliance chapter'.
Finance
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Financial Commercial (1) Number and (2) FN-CB-240a.1 Refer to ‘Meeting the needs of everyone in

Inclusion & Banks amount of loans society' section of this chapter.

Capacity Building outstanding qyallfled o For more detail see note 10. ‘Loans and
programs designed to i Y
promote small business advances tg customers in the Auditor's report
and community and consolidated financial statements.
development. Additionally, all the information related to

microfinance programmes are available on the
‘Financial inclusion and empowerment' section
of this report.
Commercial (1) Number and (2) FN-CB-240a.2 Refer to ‘Amounts past due' and ‘'Impairment of
Banks amount of past due and financial assets" in 3.4 'Key metrics' section of
nonaccrual loans the Risk management and compliance chapter.
gua.llﬂed to programs Also refer to notes 2.g and 10.d of the
esigned to promote . . -
small business and consolldatgd accognts in the Auditor's report
community and consolidated financial statements.
development.
Commercial ~ Number of no-cost retail FN-CB-240a.3 Refer to 'Financial inclusion and empowerment’
Banks checking accounts section of this chapter.
provided to previously
unbanked or
underbanked customers.
Commercial ~ Number of participants ~ FN-CB-240a.4 In 2020, Grupo Santander has financially
Banks in financial literacy empowered 3.6 million people.
initiatives for unbanked, . . . .
For further information refer to ‘Financial
underbanked, or . . . T
underserved customers. inclusion and empowerment’ section of this
chapter.

Incorporation of  Commercial ~ Commercial and FN-CB-410a.1 Refer to ‘Concentration risk' in section 3.6

Environmental, Banks industrial credit 'Other credit risk details' of the Risk

Social, and exposure, by industry. Management and compliance chapter.

Governance - — - P

Factors in Credit Commercial  Description of approach  FN-CB-410a.2 Refer to the ‘Environmental and social risk

Analysis Banks to incorporation of analysis' section of this chapter, and the
environmental, ‘Environmental and social risk' section of the
social,and governance Risk management and compliance chapter.
gIIEanGlJSFiif:tors incredit For further information see our ‘General

Sustainability Policyc and our ‘Environmental,
social & climate change risk management
Policy’, available both on our corporate website.

Incorporation of  Investment (1) Numberand (2) total FN-IB-410a.2  Refer to ‘Supporting the green transition’

Environmental, Banking & value of investments and section of this chapter.

Social, and Brokerage loans incorporating

Governance integration of

Factors in environmental, social,

investment and governance (ESG)

Banking & factors, by industry.

Brokerage

Activities Investment Description of approach ~ FN-IB-410a.3  Refer to ‘Supporting the green transition’

Banking & to incorporation of section of this chapter.
Brokerage environmental, social,

and governance (ESG)
factors in investment
banking and brokerage
activities.

For further information see our ‘General
Sustainability Policy’, and our ‘Environmental,
social & climate change risk management
policy’, both available on our corporate website.
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Business Ethics Asset Total amount of FN-AC-570a.1 Refer to GRI 206-1 discloses legal actions for
Management monetary losses as a FN-CB-510a.1 anticompetitive behavior, anti-trust, and
& Custody result of legal FN-IB-510a.T  monopoly practices.
Activities proceedings associated For further information, refer to 'Litigation and
. with fraud, insider other matters' section on the Auditor's report
Commercial . . . . : .
Banks tradlng,‘a!ntl—trust, anti- and consolidated financial statements.
competitive
Investment behavior,market
Banking & manipulation,
Brokerage malpractice, or other
related financial industry
laws or regulations.
Asset Description of FN-AC-5170a.2 Refer to ‘Ethical Channels' in the section 'A
Management whistleblower policies ~ FN-CB-510a.2 talented and engaged team' of this chapter.
i‘ C.u.st.ody and procedures. FN-IB-510a.2 For further information, see our ‘General Code
ctivities . .
of Conduct’, available on our website.
Commercial
Banks
Investment
Banking &
Brokerage
Systemic Risk Commercial ~ Global Systemically FN-CB-550a.1. According to the 2020 list of global
Management Banks Important Bank (G-SIB) ~ FN-IB-550a.1. systemically important banks (G-SIBs)' released
score, by category by the Financial Stability Board, Santander’s G-
Investment SIB bufferis 1.0 %. (G-SIBs as of November
Banking & 2020)
Brokerage According to the G-SIB Scores Dashboard from
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
(BCBS), Santander Group's scores are
(end-2019 data):
+ Score: 199
« Complexity: 92
+  Cross-jurisdictional: 480
+ Interconnectedness: 169
+ Size: 194
+  Substitutability: 61
Commercial  Description of approach  FN-CB-550a.2. Refer to ‘Capital planning and stress tests’ in
Banks to incorporation of FN-IB-550a.2. the section 3.5 'Capital management and
results of mandatory and adequacy. Solvency ratios' of the Economic and
Investment voluntary stress tests Financial Review.
Banking & into capital adequacy
Brokerage planning, long-term

corporate strategy, and
other business activities
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Employee Commercial  Percentage of gender FN-AC-330a.1 Refer to 'Key metrics' section of this chapter.

i i i i FN-IB- N L
Dlvers.lty & Banks, and raCIal/thnlc group 330a For further information, refer to ‘Diversity &
Inclusion Investment  representation for (1) Inclusion’ section of ‘A talented and en d

Banking & executive management, ¢ crl:]s,'tc;. Sic '2 ro aenledanc engage
Brokerage (2) non-executive ieam. this chapter.
management, (3) For further information about our diversity and
professionals, and (4) all inclusion principles, see our ‘Corporate Culture
other employees Policy’, available on our corporate website.

Activity metrics  Commercial (1) Number and (2) value FN-CB-000.A  Refer to ‘Consolidated annual accounts' in

Banks of checking and savings Auditor's report and consolidated financial
accounts by segment: (a) statements.
personal and (b) small
business.

Commercial (1) Number and (2) value FN-CB-000.B  Refer to ‘Consolidated annual accounts' in

Banks of loans by segment: (a) Auditor's report and consolidated financial
personal, (b) small statements.
business, and (c)
corporate.
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This version of our report is a free translation of the original, which was prepared in spanish. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an te representation of the original. However,
in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our
report takes precedence over this translation.

Independent verification report

To the shareholders Banco Santander, S.A.:

Pursuant to Article 49 of the Code of Commerce, we have verified, under a limited assurance scope,
the accompanying “Responsible banking” chapter, which corresponds to the attached 2020
Consolidated non-financial information statement (hereinafter “CNFIS") for the year ended 31
December 2020 of Banco Santander, S.A. (the Parent company) and subsidiaries (hereinafter “Banco
Santander") which forms part of Banco Santander's Consolidated Management's Report.

The content of the CNFIS includes additional information to that required by current commercial
legislation on non-financial information reporting which has not been covered by our verification work.
In this respect, our work has been restricted solely to verifying the information identified in the table
included in the section “Non-financial information Law content index” section and in the “Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) content index” of the accompanying CNFIS.

Responsibility of the directors of the Parent company

The preparation of the CNFIS included in Banco Santander's Consolidated Management's Report and
the content thereof are the responsibility of the directors of Banco Santander, S.A. The CNFIS has
been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of current commercial legislation and with the
Sustainability Reporting Standards of the Global Reporting Initiative (hereinafter “GRI Standards”) in
accordance with the Comprehensive option and the Financial Services Sector Disclosures of the GRI
G4 Guidelines, in line with the details provided for each matter in the table included in the section
“Non-financial information Law content index” and in the “Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) content
index” of the aforementioned CNFIS.

This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of the internal control
that is considered necessary to ensure that the CNFIS is free from material misstatement, due to fraud
or error.

The directors of Banco Santander, S.A. are also responsible for defining, implementing, adapting and
maintaining the management systems from which the information required to prepare the CNFIS is
obtained.

Our independence and quality control

We have complied with the independence requirements and other ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants ("IESBA") which is based on the fundamentai principles of integrity, objectivity,
professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., Torre PwC, P° de la Castellana 259 B, 28046 Madrid, Esparia
Tel.: +34 915 684 400 / +34 902 021 111, Fax: +34 915 685 400, www.pwc.es 2|

R. M, Madeid, hoja 87 250-1, folso 75, tnerse 9.267, libeo 8.054, secoién 3*
Tnserita en el LOWA C. con el nineo 50242 - CIF: B-79 031200
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Our firm applies the International Standard on Quality Control 1 (ISQC 1) and therefore has in place a
global quality control system which includes documented policies and procedures related to
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
provisions.

The engagement team has been formed by professionals specialized in Non-Financial Information
reviews and specifically in information on economic, social and environmental performance.

QOur responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express our conclusions in an independent limited assurance verification report
based on the work carried out. Our work has been aligned with the requirements set by the current
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Revised, Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information (ISAE 3000 Revised) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) of the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) and with the Guidelines for verification engagements on non-financial statements
issued by the Spanish Institute of Auditors (“Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de Espana”).

In a limited assurance engagement, the procedures performed vary in terms of their nature and timing
of execution, and are more restricted than those carried out in a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, the assurance obtained is substantially lower.

Our work has consisted of posing questions to management and several of Banco Santander's units
that were involved in the preparation of the CNFIS, in the review of the processes for compiling and
validating the information presented in the CNFIS and in the application of certain analytical
procedures and review sampling tests, as described below:

. Meetings with Banco Santander personnel to ascertain the business model, policies and
management approaches applied and the main risks related to these matters, and to obtain the
information required for the external review.

. Analysis of the scope, relevance and integrity of the content included in the CNFIS for 2020
based on the materiality analysis carried out by Banco Santander and described in the “What
our stakeholders tell us” section and considering the content required under current commercial
legislation.

. Analysis of the procedures used to compile and validate the information presented in the CNFIS
for 2020.

. Review of information conceming risks, policies and management approaches applied in
relation to material issues presented in the CNFIS for 2020.

. Verification, through sample testing, of the information relating to the content of the CNFIS for
2020 and its adequate compilation using data supplied by Banco Santander’s information
sources.

. Obtainment of a management representation letter from the directors and the management of
the Parent company.
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Conclusions

Based on the procedures performed in our verification and the evidence we have obtained, no matters
have come to our attention which may lead us to believe that the “Responsible banking” chapter,
which corresponds to the attached CNFIS of Banco Santander, S.A. and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020 has not been prepared, in all of their significant matters, in accordance with
the provisions of current commercial legislation and with the GRI Standards in accordance with the
Comprehensive Option and the Financial Services Sector Disclosures of the GRI G4 Guidelines, in
line with the details provided for each matter in the table included in the section "Non-financial
information Law content index” and in the “Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) content index” included in
the accompanying CNFIS.

Use and distribution

This report has been drawn up in response to the requirement laid down in current Spanish
commercial legislation and therefore might not be suitable for other purposes or jurisdictions.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L.

Pablo/Bascones llundain

23 February 2021
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A NEW PURPOSE
FOR PEREDA

Our iconic headquarters
in the city of Santander,
Cantabria will become
a modern space for
culture and innovation,
epitomizing the new
Santander. On 22
December, the board
held its last meeting at
the Pereda building.

Corporate
governance
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Responsible Corporate

banking governance

1. 2020 Overview
Statement from Bruce Carnegie-Brown
1.1 Board skills and diversity
1.2 Board effectiveness

1.3 Alignment of executive compensation with the

Group objetives and the covid-19 crisis

1.4 Active shareholder engagement during the
pandemic

1.5 Achievement of our 2020 goals
1.6 Priorities for 2021

2. Ownership structure
2.1 Share capital
2.2 Authority to increase capital
2.3 Significant shareholders
2.4 Shareholders' agreements
2.5 Treasury shares
2.6 Stock market information

3. Shareholders. Engagement
and general meeting
3.1 Shareholder engagement
3.2 Shareholder rights
3.3 Dividends
3.4 April 2020 AGM
3.5 October 2020 AGM
3.6 Ourcoming 2027 AGM

4. Board of directors
4.1 Our directors
4.2 Board composition
4.3 Board functioning and effectiveness
4.4 Executive committee activities in 2020
4.5 Audit committee activities in 2020
4.6 Nomination committee activities in 2020
4.7 Remuneration committee activities in 2020

4.8 Risk supervision, regulation and compliance

committee activities in 2020

4.9 Responsible banking, sustainability and culture

committee activities in 2020

4.10 Innovation and technology committee activities

in 2020
4.11 International advisory board

4.12 Related-party transactions and conflicts
of interest

Structure of our corporate governance report

On 12 June 2018, the CNMV (Spanish stock market authority)

170
170
170
171

172

173
174

177
177
177
178
178
179
180

182
182
184
185
187
188
189

190
192
198
203
211
212
217
221

225

229

233
235

235

approved new models for annual reports on corporate governance

and remuneration, allowing companies to draft them in an open

format.

Thus, our corporate governance report (comprising this chapter)

follows since then an open format. This includes:

- Legally-required content for the corporate governance report.

- Reports on the activities of board committees. See sections 4.4 to

4.10.

- Annual report on directors’ remuneration, which we are required to

prepare and submit to a non-binding vote at our 2021 annual

general meeting. See section 6 'Remuneration’.

- Directors' remuneration policy. See section 6.4 'Directors’
remuneration policy for 2021, 2022 and 2023 submitted to a

binding shareholder vote'.

Economic Risk management

and financial review and compliance

5. Management team 238

6. Remuneration 241
6.1 Principles of the remuneration policy 241

6.2 Remuneration of directors for supervisory and
collective decision-making duties: policy applied
in 2020 241

6.3 Remuneration of directors for executive duties 244

6.4 Directors' remuneration policy for 2021, 2022
and 2023 submitted to a binding shareholder vote 255

6.5 Preparatory work and decision-making process
with a description of the participation of the

remuneration committee 261

6.6 Remuneration of non-director members of senior
management 261
6.7 Prudentially significant disclosures document 263
7. Group structure and internal governance 264
7.1 Corporate centre 264
7.2 Internal governance 264

8. Internal control over financial reporting

(ICFR) 267
8.1 Control environment 267
8.2 Risk assessment in financial reporting 268
8.3 Control activities 269
8.4 Information and communication 270
8.5 Monitoring 271
8.6 External auditor report 271
9. Other corporate governance information 275

9.1 Reconciliation withw the CNMV's corporate

governance report model 275
9.2 Statistical information on corporate governance

required by the CNMV 279
9.3 Table on compliance with or explanations of

recommendations on corporate governance 300

9.4 Reconciliation to the CNMV's remuneration
report model 302

9.5 Statistical information on remuneration required
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1. 2020 Overview

‘Maintaining high standards of governance is critical to enabling our strategy and long-
term success. The covid-19 global health crisis has resulted in economic and social
distress on a scale that we have not seen in generations. The board acted swiftly and
decisively from the outset of the pandemic in support our customers, maintain the
strength of capital and liquidity position and ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and compliance processes. The response of the Group provided positive
affirmation of its business and governance model in the face of extraordinary challenges

Despite the crisis, we continued to progress our governance goals and preserve strong
governance disciplines demonstrating effective oversight and control across the Group.
Board refreshment continued during the year, strengthening our skills and diversity with
the appointment of Luis Isasi, Sergio Rial, R. Martin Chavez and Gina Diez. On behalf of
the board, | would like to thank Ignacio Benjumea, Esther Giménez-Salinas, Rodrigo
Echenique and Guillermo de la Dehesa for their invaluable service to the board and the
Group.

As part of our commitments of maintaining high governance standards, this year we
engaged an external independent expert to conduct the assessment of the board and its
committees which has provided a fresh perspective on areas for improvement.

Effective succession planning of our board directors and members of senior
management remains a priority. This year we refreshed our senior managers succession
policy and commissioned a review of our succession plans methodology from an
external independent advisor who confirmed that our processes are aligned with best
industry practice.

We introduced new governance models for the One Santander in Europe initiative and
for PagoNxt to promote key strategic goals and support our growth plans.

We will remain committed to working together effectively to improve our governance,
providing robust oversight of the Group to achieve our purpose'.

Bruce Carnegie-Brown, Lead independent director

1.1 Board skills and diversity

Appointments in 2020

In 2020 a number of changes were made to the board’s + Luis Isasi was appointed external director at our annual
composition to further enhance its diversity and strengthen general meeting held on 3 April 2020 (April 2020 AGM) to
its skills, specifically those identified as desirable in prior fill the vacancy left by Guillermo de la Dehesa. See section
board evaluations. As at December 2020, the board 3.4 'April 2020 AGM'. Mr Isasi has a strong track record in
comprised 40% of women, meeting its target of 40-60% finance, retail and investment banking, and capital markets.

minimum and maximum representation of either gender,
ahead of the 2021 timeline. The main board changes in 2020
were as follows:

He held executive roles at JP Morgan in New York and First
National Bank of Chicago in London. In 1987, he joined
Morgan Stanley, where he was managing director of
investment banking for Europe and chairman and country
head for Spain. He has vast experience in many sectors and
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international markets, as well as a wide institutional
network within Spain. See section 4.1 'Our directors'.

Sergio Rial was appointed executive director at the April
2020 AGM to fill the vacancy left by Ignacio Benjumea. See
section 3.4 'April 2020 AGM'.

Mr Rial joined Santander in 2015 as chairman of the board
of directors of Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A. He is currently
the regional head for South America as well as chief
executive officer (CEO) and vice-chairman of Banco
Santander (Brasil), S.A. He brings extensive executive
experience in banking and finance, and has a deep
understanding of Latin American markets, especially Brazil.
His nationality and background in multinational groups
across geographical areas and sectors, such as Cargill Inc.,
Seara Foods and Marfrig Global Foods, increase the board's
international diversity and experience and give it a valuable
perspective on environmental and social issues. See section
4.1 'Our directors'.

R. Martin Chavez was appointed independent director at the
annual general meeting held on 27 October 2020 (October
2020 AGM) to fill the vacancy left by Esther Giménez-
Salinas. See section 3.5 'October 2020 AGM".

Mr Chavez was Chief technology officer (CTO) and co-
founder of Quorum Software Systems, global head of
energy derivatives at Credit Suisse Financial Products and
CEO and co-founder of Kiodex. In 2005, he joined Goldman
Sachs, where he was a partner from 2006 to 2019 and held
various executive positions during his tenure. He brings
extensive knowledge of the global financial and information
technology (IT) sectors to enhance the board's digital
capabilities. He also enhances the geographical and
international diversity. See section 4.1 'Our directors'.

Gina Diez was co-opted as an independent director on 22
December 2020 to fill the vacancy left by external director
Rodrigo Echenique. The board submitted her nomination to
our annual general meeting called for 25 or 26 March 2021,
at first or second call respectively (2021 AGM) for
ratification. See section 3.6 'Our coming 2021 AGM'.

Ms Diez is the founder and president of Grupo Diarq and
Universidad Centro and served as an independent director
of Banco Santander México. She contributes to the board’s
gender and geographic diversity, and brings broad
international experience. She has substantial knowledge of
one of the group’s key strategic markets, Mexico. Her
expertise spans numerous sectors (real estate, education,
banking), and responsible business and sustainability. See
section 4.1 'Our directors'.

The above changes have enhanced the board’s financial,
technological and digital capabilities and international
diversity, bolstering experience in very significant markets for
the group (such as Brazil, the US and Mexico) and ensuring
the board is well placed to deliver on our current and future
strategies.

With the addition of Gina Diez, 40% of the board members
are women, in line with the gender equality target set by the
board for 2021, which was first achieved in 2019. The
proportion of independent board members has risen to
66.67%.

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

Renewal of the board

Stepping down Taking up role

Guillermo de la Dehesa (external)  Luis Isasi (external)

Ignacio Benjumea (external) Sergio Rial (executive)

Esther Giménez-Salinas

(independent) R.Martin Chavez (independent)

Rodrigo Echenique (external) Gina Diez (independent)

The board's renewal is underpinned by a structured induction
programme tailored for each newly appointed director to
support them in assuming their new role in Banco Santander,
whilst addressing any development needs identified, where
applicable, during the recruitment process. See 'Training of
directors and induction programmes for new directors' in
section 4.3.

Strong succession planning

Succession planning is a key element of our good governance
as it ensures orderly leadership transitions, as well as board
continuity and stability. It is a yearly cycle with a well-defined
methodology and timelines, and a clear allocation of
responsibilities. We also use specific performance indicators
and review them each year. The nomination committee and
board provide input to the plans and review performance as
part of regular updates. The strength of the pipeline for each
position is based on the number of candidates and how
immediately qualified they are, with development and
training plans in place where required.

We refreshed our succession policy for managerial roles
throughout the group and our policy for the selection,
suitability assessment and succession of directors. The
changes aim to boost talent pipelines across functions, with
diversity a priority. We also assessed succession plans for key
geographies and implemented a new selection process for
top executives.

Given the importance that the Group places in succession
planning, an external opinion was sought in relation to our
succession policy and associated succession processes. The
review concluded that succession arrangements and
framework for the board and critical roles throughout the
Group meet regulatory requirements and align with industry
best practice. See section 1.5 ‘Achievement of our 2020

goals'.

1.2 Board effectiveness

Covid-19

In 2020, the pandemic’s unprecedented effect on health and
the global economy required a rapid, coordinated and
sustained response from Grupo Santander to safeguard the
interests of our business and broader stakeholders.

The board and its committees, which continued their
oversight of planned business initiatives, held extraordinary
meetings to check on immediate, tactical crisis management
efforts:
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+ The board approved the voluntary 50% reduction of the
chairman and CEO maximum remuneration (salary and
bonus) for 2020 in relation to their remuneration in 2019
and the 20% reduction in board of directors' annual
allotment and attendance fees for the balance of 2020, with
effect from 1 April 2020, with the amounts saved being
allocated to finance relief efforts to address the impact of
covid-19. See section 1.3 'Alignment of executive
compensation with the Group objectives and the covid-19
crisis'.

The board cancelled the final dividend for 2019 and the
dividend policy for 2020 on 2 April, on the European Central
Bank (ECB)'s recommendation to financial institutions amid
unparalleled uncertainty.

Shareholders gave their approval to resume dividend
payments at the October 2020 AGM with a dividend for the
equivalent of EUR 0.10 per share in newly issued shares
against the 2019 results, as well as a payment in 2021 of up
to EUR 0.10 per share as remuneration against 2020. The
latter is contingent on the ECB's approval and
recommendations, a common equity tier 1 (CET1) ratio
maintained within or above our target range of 11-12%,

and the total payment not exceeding 50% of our
consolidated ordinary (underlying) profit. On 3 February
2021, Banco Santander made public its 2020 results and the
board's intention to pay a cash dividend of €2.75 cents per
share as shareholder remuneration for 2020, the maximum
allowed in accordance with the limits set by the ECB
recommendations. This dividend will be paid under the
resolution of the October 2020 AGM mentioned above. See
section 3.3 'Dividends'.

« In June, the audit committee approved the internal audit
covid-19 edition plan. It adds flexibility and rigour to
oversight whilst recognizing the impact of covid-19 on
group-wide internal audit.

Digital transformation

Given the impact of the new disruptive platforms on the
transformation of many industries, Grupo Santander aims to
become the best open financial services platform, acting
responsibly and earning the lasting loyalty of our people,
customers, shareholders and communities in a way that is
Simple, Personal and Fair.

During 2020, we ramped up our digital strategy through the
approval of One Santander, which provides a common, group-
wide business and operational platform with an initial focus
on Europe; and with PagoNxt, which combines our most
disruptive payment businesses into a single, autonomous
company.

Group and subsidiary board connectivity

Strengthening the links between the group board of directors
and the subsidiaries is key to effective governance oversight
and common values, ethics, controls and key business
matters. In 2020, the global pandemic heightened the need
for effective cross-border collaboration, which our proven
Group Subsidiary Governance Model (GSGM) supports. This
governance model is strengthened by the fact that a number
of Group non-executive directors also sit on the boards of our
principal units: Luis Isasi at Santander Espafia, Alvaro Cardoso
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at Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A. Homaira Akbari at Santander
Consumer USA Holdings Inc. and Bruce Carnegie-Brown at
Santander UK plc and Santander UK Group Holdings plc. See
section 7. 'Group structure and internal governance'.

Furthermore, and as in the previous year, the audit committee
chairman held two virtual conventions with fellow committee
members and subsidiary audit committee chairs:

+ On 15 July, the session covered group internal audit
challenges, financial information process and internal
Sarbanes-Oxley control, independent external audit
challenges and reflections on 2021 priorities.

+ On 19 November, the session covered the membership and
profile of group audit committees, risk provisioning and
emerging trends for group audit committees.

Similar meetings followed in previous years with subsidiary
risk committee chairs in September 2018 and audit
committee chairs in May 2019.

Feedback from participants has reinforced the value of the
meetings, confirming that they foster the group’s coordinated
approach and cross-border collaboration on key issues. More
meetings are planned for 2021 onwards.

Action plan 2020 following the board's assessment

The board undergoes a yearly performance review. Its 2019
assessment covered its composition and organization,
dynamics and internal culture, and committees’ performance,
as well as each director’s performance and contribution. The
resulting action plan enhanced the board'’s performance in
2020 with:

More expertise in finance, auditing, technology and
coverage of Latin American markets in its composition.

Balanced focus on regulatory compliance and strategy in an
increasingly demanding and uncertain economic and
geopolitical environment.

The timeliness of circulating relevant documents submitted
to the board for analysis on the board and the committees,
facilitating effective challenge and debate.

Training and upskilling programmes for directors to ensure
the proper performance of their duties and give
opportunities to interact with executives.

+ Optimal contribution from each board committee.
The action plan which was completed in 2020 was supervised

by the nomination committee. The board was regularly
informed about its progress.
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1.3 Alignment of executive compensation
with the Group objectives and the
covid-19 crisis

In 2020, the board of directors worked to ensure that the
Group's financial position was secure, complying with the
regulatory requirements for capital and risk, and at the same
time directly supported the communities in which the Group
is present. As regards compensation, the quantitative and
qualitative metrics in our variable remuneration scorecard
have allowed the Board of directors and the remuneration
committee to fix variable remuneration that is aligned with
the risks, capital, clients’ base and ordinary results situation of
the Group.

In addition, the Group has aligned its governance and
practices in 2020 to ensure that compensation is managed in
a conservative way. The board, upon recommendation from
the remunerations committee, approved the voluntary 50%
reduction of the chairman and CEO maximum remuneration
(salary and bonus) for 2020 in relation to their remuneration
in 2019 and the 20% reduction in board of directors' annual
allotment and attendance fees for the balance of 2020, with
effect from 1 April 2020, with the amounts saved being
allocated to finance relief efforts to address the impact of
covid-19. In addition, to ensure that remuneration aligns with
the results delivered, budget targets and metrics were not
adjusted for covid-19 conditions. This resulted in a 74%
reduction of the executive chairman's variable remuneration
and in a 79% reduction of the chief executive officer's variable
remuneration, after the exceptional adjustment agreed by the
board to comply with the reduction commitment mentioned
above, and 32.6% reduction of bonus pools for the top two
executive segments in the Group (c.250 employees).

1.4 Active shareholder engagement
during the pandemic

Since the beginning of the health crisis we have put in place
mechanisms to enable the full exercise by shareholders of
their rights while at the same time protecting their health and
maintaining engagement with them.

The pandemic struck hard in March, when we had already
called our April 2020 AGM, forcing us to make exceptional
decisions to adapt to the restrictions imposed by the
authorities.

Our board's monitoring of the pandemic, and its speed in
making the right call as restrictions on movement and
meetings were imposed, was key to providing our
shareholders with all necessary April 2020 AGM-related
information.

Economic

Risk management
and financial review

and compliance

The strength and flexibility of our corporate governance,
which has allowed remote attendance at the annual general
meetings since 2005 through our software application, made
it possible to hold the April 2020 AGM exclusively remotely,
avoiding the damage that would have been caused by
cancelling it, as well as complying with all our corporate
obligations without detriment to the rights of our
shareholders. Thanks to this, shareholders were able to
request clarifications, take the floor and put forward
proposals for items not included on the agenda at the April
2020 AGM. See section 3.4 'April 2020 AGM'.

In October 2020, we held another general meeting to approve
the application of the 2019 results. This item was removed
from the April 2020 AGM agenda and deferred to a later
general meeting on the recommendation of the ECB due to
the health and economic crisis. See sections 3.3 'Dividends’
and 3.5 'October 2020 AGM".

The October 2020 AGM was held in a context of restrictions
on capacity, movement and non-essential activities in which
authorities advised against moving around. Although some
shareholders decided to attend in person, the option to do so
remotely allowed them to participate remotely on this
occasion as well with a real-time connection to the meeting
location, as well as to exercise their rights as they saw fit. The
protocol followed at the October 2020 AGM to deal with the
covid-19 restrictions was certified by AENOR.

In addition, shareholders were also able to participate in the
April 2020 AGM and October 2020 AGM (2020 AGMs)
through our channels of proxy-granting and distance voting
by electronic means, which include our digital platform,
mobile application and telephone line, as well as a live
broadcast on our website.

Our digital transformation and advances in IT over recent
years in our remote assistance application and distance
participation channels for the general meetings allowed us to
react to the covid-19 crisis with maximum efficiency.

In addition, during the pandemic we increased our
communication to shareholders through all our information
disclosure channels. The Shareholder and Investor Relations
team organized meetings, virtual events and specific
campaigns with our shareholders to maintain direct
communication with them and encourage their informed
participation in the 2020 AGMs, but at the same time
mitigating their exposure to the health risks of the pandemic.
This allowed us to retain shareholder confidence, as reflected
in the voting on the proposals submitted to the 2020 AGMs.
See sections 3.4 'April 2020 AGM' and 3.5 'October 2020
AGM'.
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1.5 Achievement of our 2020 goals

The 2019 annual report disclosed our corporate governance goals and priorities for 2020. The following chart describes how we

delivered on each priority.

2020 goals

How we have delivered

Santander share

With a view to creating long-term value for
shareholders, the board will supervise and
support the managers in applying our
strategy to make sure total shareholder
returns properly reflect the Group’s
solvency, results, corporate culture and
sustainable growth.

The uncertainty caused by covid-19 had a short-term impact on our share price.
But we delivered solid results thanks to our scale, our focus on customers and
our diversification, highlighting our good credit quality, strong capital
generation capacity and our work to help customers and communities cope with
the crisis.

Amid the pandemic, Banco Santander’s share price fell 29.0%, while the Stoxx
Europe 600 Banks index fell 24.5%. Several vaccines announced since
November brought a wave of optimism, causing investment capital to rotate
towards more cyclical industries, particularly banking. In Q4, the Stoxx Europe
600 Banks index rose 30.9%, with Santander’s share price rising 65.6%.

Strong succession plans

In 2020, succession planning will continue
to be a key priority in order to ensure a
reliable pipeline of candidates at all times.
We will proactively identify successors,
implement any training plans needed to
handle any succession event effectively.
Performance indicators in our succession
plans will continue to help us deliver
intended outcomes and supervise risks
implied in the succession of directors and
other key roles constantly. Regular
reporting to the board keeps it informed
about the process, its risks and its results at
all times.

Succession planning remained a priority in 2020. We reinforced the strength of
the pipeline of candidates to ensure effective and robust succession planning
through the assessment of them in core geographies, refreshing succession
plans for senior managers.

In 2020, key governance bodies held functional succession meetings, building a
strong pipeline of candidates with 24% more women identified as successors
than in 2079. Succession plans were set for 340 roles across the group, up from
335in2079. 89% of the positions covered have a strong succession pipeline (an
increase from 84% in 2019). We have at least two successors who could be
immediately ready, or one successor who could be immediately ready and two
successors who could be ready in one to two years.

A review conducted on board and executive succession planning by an
independent third party confirmed their alignment with regulatory
requirements and industry best practice.

Remuneration policies adapted to the new business environment

The remuneration structures and schemes
for our executives must consider
environmental, social and governance-
related performance indicators that are
simple, transparent, measurable and
aligned with our public responsible
banking commitments.

Remuneration policies that are effective
and adapted to our culture and values as
well as the expectations of investors and
other stakeholders, are essential to our
strategy for sustainable growth.

During 2020 we have maintained a strong governance of remuneration in light
of covid-19 conditions (see section 1.3 'Alignment of executive compensation
with the Group objectives and the covid-19 crisis'). In addition, the remuneration
committee and the board of directors have taken into account responsible
banking factors for setting the 2020 remuneration through the qualitative
adjustments provided for in the remuneration policy.

Likewise, we have simplified the executive compensation framework that will
apply from 2021, by reducing the number of metrics used in the pool calculation
from 7 to 4, combining simplicity with the acknowledgment of the most
relevant aspects for clients, results, financial strength and the appropriate
management of the risk of the entity.
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How we have delivered

Communication with shareholders and investors as part of their engagement with the Group

Closer engagement and dialogue through
the channels and engagement activities
mentioned in our policy on communication
and engagement with shareholders and
investors will both encourage them to
exercise their rights and give them the
information they expect and provide them
with new opportunities to be involved in
our corporate governance in an effective
and sustainable manner in the long term,
in accordance with the laws transposing
the EU directive on shareholders' rights and
related implementing regulations.

If we maximise the disclosure and quality
of the economic-financial information we
publish in a transparent and effective
manner, we can retain the long-term trust
of our investors and society.

The pandemic stood out in our communication and engagement with
shareholders and investors in 2020. In application of our internal policy
(updated in February 2020), we implemented specific actions to meet our retail
and institutional shareholders’ expectations, facilitating their involvement in our
corporate governance despite the circumstances. See section 1.4 'Active
shareholder engagement during the pandemic'.

The nomination committee oversaw communication with shareholders and
proxy advisors, as well as the results of votes at the 2020 AGMs, to further
improve our corporate governance system. Our corporate communication
framework, which establishes the key processes on communication of
economic-financial, non-financial and corporate information throughout Group,
helps maximize the disclosure and quality of the information we make available
to the market. See section 3.1 'Shareholder engagement'.

Strategy to address climate-change risks and opportunities

We will supervise the fulfilment of our
public climate change commitments, add
environmental criteria to the group’s
governance and risk management, and
report on our progress transparently.

Transition towards a green economy by
financing sustainable projects, namely
renewable energy projects, that promote a
low-carbon economy and by supporting
the development of sustainable and smart
infrastructures will be very important in the
board's agenda.

The responsible banking, sustainability and culture committee discussed climate
change throughout 2020 to ensure we were upholding our climate
commitments (see section 'Sustainable finance' in the 'Responsible banking'
chapter). This includes embedding climate change considerations in our risk
management policies and processes, as well as in developing products and
engaging with our customers to support their journey towards a low-carbon
economy.

In particular, the responsible banking, sustainability and culture committee
closely monitored how we were addressing our commitments regarding our
own environmental footprint and green finance, and developing and
implementing a strategy to fulfil the Collective Commitment to Climate Action
to align our portfolios to the Paris Agreement on climate change.

The responsible banking, sustainability and culture committee also oversaw the
definition and implementation of a road map to act on the recommendations
from the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and
supervisors and regulators' expectations and requirements.

See section 4.9 'Responsible banking, sustainability and culture committee
activities in 2020' and the 'Responsible banking' chapter for more details.

At the forefront of the best national and international practices

In 2020, we will continue to heed
recommendations from supervisors and
guidelines of national and international
organizations so that the operations and
internal regulations of our governing
bodies always follow best practice.

In particular, we will review any
amendments to the Spanish Corporate
Governance Code that may be approved. Its
initial proposal is in line with our corporate
governance framework in regard to
communication and engagement with
shareholders and investors, director
diversity and suitability assessments,
executive committee composition, board
organization and sustainability.

We closely followed the recommendations from supervisors and guidelines of
national and international organizations. In particular, we complied with all ECB
recommendations on dividend distribution. See section 3.3 'Dividends’.

Likewise, we adapted our corporate governance framework to the revision of
the Spanish Corporate Governance Code, made in June 2020. Among the salient
actions we carried out were the revision of the Rules and regulations of the
board, and modification of the composition of the responsible banking,
sustainability and culture committee, now formed entirely by non-executive
directors. See 'Rules and regulations of the board' in section 4.3. We also
adapted our whistleblowing channel, now accessible from our website and to
anyone related to Banco Santander.

These actions allowed us to fully comply with 60 of the 61 recommendations of
the Spanish Corporate Governance Code that apply to us, and partial compliance
with the remaining recommendation. See section 9.3 'Table on compliance with
or explanations of recommendations on corporate governance'.
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1.6 Priorities for 2021
Our board'’s priorities for 2021 are:

* Long-term shareholder value

Focusing on long-term shareholder value as well as
supervising and supporting the management team in
implementing our strategy, so that shareholder returns
appropriately reflect the group's solvency, results, corporate
culture and sustainable growth.

+ Covid-19

Overseeing our response to the pandemic and our risk
management of the economic crisis. It will prioritize the
wellbeing of our employees, customers and shareholders by
supporting our communities and continuing to build trust,
underpinned by the strength of our business model, our
strategy and the robust leadership of our teams.

« Strategic growth initiatives

Working on the group’s strategic growth priorities, which are
critical to becoming the world's best open financial services
platform. Our initiatives include: One Santander, which is a
common operational and business model created to
transform the way we serve our customers, providing a
simpler and enhanced customer experience; PagoNxt, which
is an autonomous global payment platform to combine our
payments businesses and banks around the world,
accelerating the deployment of payment solutions to our
customers globally, and is critical to building One Santander;
and the digital consumer bank, integrating our fast-growing
consumer lending business, Santander Consumer Finance
(SCF), with Openbank to transform our digital proposition.

* Responsible Banking - embedding ESG in all we do

Driving Santander’s efforts to deliver profit with a clear
purpose, to help people and businesses prosper in the years
ahead, and to build a more responsible bank. It will also
oversee the implementation of its decisions to support the
Paris Agreement targets and focus on delivering the targets
we set for ourselves; to raise and facilitate EUR 120 billion in
green finance, and to financially empower 10 million people,
by 2025.

* High governance standards

Maintaining high standards of governance to fulfil our
strategy and ensure long-term success. This will help ensure
our ongoing effectiveness and alignment with best practice.
In particular, it will continue to instil strong governance
disciplines as a key enabler to effective oversight and control
across the group, making sure our corporate governance
framework takes into account supervisory body
recommendations as well as national and international
guidelines.
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2. Ownership structure

- Broad and balanced shareholder base

- A single class of shares

- Authorised capital in line with best practices providing the necessary flexibility

2.1 Share capital

Our share capital is represented by ordinary shares, each with
a par value of 0.50 euros. All shares belong to the same class
and carry the same rights, including voting and dividends.

There are no bonds or securities that can be converted into
shares other than contingent convertible preferred securities
(CCPS), which are mentioned in section 2.2 'Authority to
increase capital'.

At 31 December 2020, Banco Santander had a share capital of
EUR 8,670,320,651 represented by 17,340,641,302 shares.

The share capital was amended only once in 2020, through a
capital increase on 3 December to allow for remuneration of
EUR 0.10 per share in newly issued shares. This was
announced by the board on 29 July after it had postponed in
March the decision on the application of results for the 2019
financial year on the ECB’s 27 March recommendation in light
of the covid-19 pandemic. With this increase, which had been
approved at the October 2020 AGM, Banco Santander issued
a total of 722,526,720 new shares representing 4.35% of the
share capital. These new shares began trading on 11
December. See section 3.5 'October 2020 AGM".

We have a broad and balanced shareholder structure. At 31
December 2020, Banco Santander’s had 4,018,817
shareholders, distributed by type of investor, geographic
region and number of shares as follows:

Type of investor

% of share capital

Board" 1.05 %
Institutional 58.10 %
Retail 40.85 %
Total 100 %

A. Shares owned or represented by directors. For further details on shares
owned and represented by directors, see 'Tenure and equity ownership' in
section 4.2 and subsection A.3 in section 9.2 'Statistical information on
corporate governance required by the CNMV'.

Continent

% of share capital
Europe 76.03 %
Americas 22,32%
Rest of the world 1.65 %
Total 100 %
Number of shares

% of share capital
1-3,000 8.76 %
3,001-30,000 17.71 %
30,001-400,000 12.55 %
Over 400,000 60.98 %
Total 100 %

2.2 Authority to increase capital

Under Spanish law, only shareholders at the general meeting
have the authority to increase share capital. However, they
may delegate the authority to approve or execute capital
increases to the board of directors. Our Bylaws are fully
aligned with Spanish law and do not establish any different
conditions for share capital increases.

As of 31 December 2020, our board of directors had received
authorisation from shareholders to approve or carry out the
following capital increases:

+ Authorised capital to 2023: at our April 2020 AGM, the
board was authorised to increase share capital on one or
more occasions by up to EUR 4,154,528,645.50 (50% of
capital at the time of the April 2020 AGM or approximately
8.3 billion shares representing 47.92% of the share capital
at 31 December 2020). The board was granted this
authorisation for three years (until 3 April 2023).

Consequently, the board can issue shares for cash
consideration with or without pre-emptive rights for
shareholders, and for capital increases to back any
convertible bonds or securities issued under its authority
granted by the April 2020 AGM.

Shares without pre-emptive rights under this authority can
be issued up to EUR 830,905,729 (10% of capital at the time
of the April 2020 AGM or approximately 1,661 million
shares representing 9.58% of the share capital at 31
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December 2020). However, this limit on issuing shares
without pre-emptive rights do not apply to capital increases
to convert CCPS (which can only be converted into newly-
issued shares when the CET1 ratio falls below a
predetermined threshold). Thus far, the board has not used
this authority up to date.

Capital increases approved for contingent conversion of
CCPSs: we issued contingent convertible preferred
securities that qualify as regulatory Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
instruments and would be converted into newly-issued
shares if the CET1 ratio fell below a predetermined
threshold. Each issue is therefore backed by a capital
increase approved under the authorisation granted to the
board by shareholders. The chart below shows the
outstanding CCPSs at the time of this report, with details
about the capital increase resolutions that back them. These
capital increases are therefore contingent and have been
delegated to the board of directors. The board of directors is
authorised to issue additional CCPSs and other convertible
securities and instruments in accordance with the annual

Issues of contingent convertible preferred securities

e
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i

Contents

general meeting held on 12 April 2019 (2019 AGM)
resolution that allows convertible instruments and
securities to be issued for up to EUR 10 billion or an
equivalent amount in another currency (of which EUR 1.5 bn
were issued on 14 January 2020 as shown in the table
below). Any capital increase to allow any such CCPS or other
convertible instruments or securities to be converted would
be approved under the authority mentioned in this section
under 'Authorised capital to 2023' or under a future renewal
of such authority.

Scrip dividend authority: at our April 2020 AGM,
shareholders approved a capital increase against reserves
for a potential scrip issue (under the Santander Dividendo
Eleccién scheme) as part of the shareholder remuneration
against 2020 earnings, delegating the power to execute this
increase to the board of directors within one year. As
explained in section 3.3 'Dividends' the remuneration
against 2020 earnings will be in cash. Thus, the board of
directors intention is not to use this authorization and let it
expire on 3 April 2021.

Maximum number
of shares in case

Date of issuance  Nominal amount Discretionary remuneration per annum Conversion of conversion
11/09/2014 EUR 1,500 million 6.25% for the first seven years 299,401,197
25/04/2017 EUR 750 million 6.75% for the first five years 207,125,103
29/09/2017 EUR 1,000 million ~ 5.25% for the first six years If, at any time, the CET1 ratioof 263 852,242
— - Banco Santander or the Group is
19/03/2018 EUR 1,500 million ~ 4.75% for the first seven years less than 5.125% 416,666,666
08/02/2019 USD 1,200 million 7.50% for the first five years 388,349,514
14/01/2020 EUR 1,500 million 4.375% for the first six years 604,594,921

A. The figure corresponds to the maximum number of shares that could be required to cover the conversion of these CCPS, calculated as the quotient (rounded off by
default) of the nominal amount of the CCPS issue divided by the minimum conversion price determined for each CCPS (subject to any antidilution adjustments and

the resulting conversion ratio).

2.3 Significant shareholders

At 371 December 2020, no shareholder held more than 3% of
Banco Santander’s total share capital (which is the threshold
generally provided under Spanish regulations for a significant
holding in a listed company to be disclosed). Even though at
31 December 2020, certain custodians appeared in our
shareholder registry as holding more than 3% of our share
capital, we understand that those shares were held in custody
on behalf of other investors, none of whom exceeded that
threshold individually. These custodians were State Street
Bank (13.54%),The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
(8.25%), Chase Nominees Limited (7.74%), EC Nominees
Limited (3.55%), BNP Paribas (3.07%) and Caceis Bank
(3.01%).

On 24 October 2019 BlackRock Inc., asset manager, reported
to the CNMV its significant holding of voting rights in Banco
Santander (5.426%). It also specified that it was holding
shares on behalf of a number of funds or other investment
entities, none of which exceeded 3% individually. No changes
have been communicated since then. There may be some
overlap in the holdings declared by the above mentioned
custodians and asset manager.
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At 31 December 2020, neither our shareholder registry nor
the CNMV's registry showed any shareholder residing in a tax
haven with a shareholding equal to, or greater than, 1% of
our share capital (which is the other threshold applicable
under Spanish regulations).

Our Bylaws and the Rules and regulations of the board of
directors lay down an appropriate system for analysing and
approving related-party transactions with significant
shareholders. See section 4.12 'Related-party transactions
and conflicts of interest'.

2.4 Shareholders’ agreements

In February 2006, various persons linked to the Botin-Sanz de
Sautuola y O'Shea family entered into a shareholders’
agreement that set up a syndicate for their shares in Banco
Santander. CNMV was informed of this agreement and the
subsequent amendments the parties made. This information
can be found on the CNMV website.

The main provisions of the agreement are:

- Transfer restrictions: except when the transferee is also a
party to the agreement or the Fundacion Botin, any transfer
of Banco Santander shares expressly included in the
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agreement requires prior authorisation from the syndicate
meeting, which can freely authorise or reject it. These
transfer restrictions apply to the shares they expressly cover
under the agreement and to shares subscribed for, or
acquired by, syndicate members in exercising any
subscription, bonus share, grouping or division,
replacement, exchange or conversion rights that pertain or
are attributed to, or derive from, those syndicated shares.

Syndicated voting: under the agreement, the parties will
syndicate and pool the voting rights attached to all their
shares in Banco Santander, so that syndicate members may
exercise them and, in general, act towards Banco Santander
in a concerted manner, in accordance with the instructions
and indications and the voting criteria and orientation
established by the syndicate. This covers the shares subject
to the transfer restrictions mentioned above as well as any
voting rights attached to any other Banco Santander shares
held either directly or indirectly by the parties to the
agreement, and any other voting rights assigned to them by
virtue of usufruct, pledge or any other contractual title, for
as long as they hold those shares or are assigned those
rights. For this purpose, representation of the syndicated
shares is attributed to the chair of the syndicate, who will be
the chairman of the Fundacién Botin (currently, Javier Botin,
one of our directors and our Group executive chairman's
brother).

The agreement initially terminates on 1 January 2056, but
will be automatically extended for additional 10-year periods
unless one of the parties notifies of their intention not to
extend six months before the initial term or extension period
ends. The agreement may only be terminated early if all the
syndicated shareholders agree unanimously.

At 371 December 2020, the parties to the shareholders'
agreement held 100,025,942 shares in Banco Santander
(0.58% of its capital), which were therefore subject to the
voting syndicate. They include 80.355.819 shares (0.46% of
its capital) that are also subject to the transfer restrictions.
Subsection A.7 of section 9.2 'Statistical information on
corporate governance required by the CNMV' contains the list
of parties to the shareholders” agreement and the relevant
information filed with CNMV.

2.5 Treasury shares

Shareholder approval

The acquisition of treasury shares was last authorized at our
April 2020 AGM, for five years and subject to the following
provisions:

« Treasury shares held at any time cannot exceed 10% of
Banco Santander's share capital, which is the legal limit set
under the Ley de Sociedades de Capital (Spanish Companies
Act).

+ The purchase price cannot be lower than the nominal value
of the shares nor exceed 3% of the last trading price in the
Spanish market for any trades in which Banco Santander
does not act on its own behalf.

« The board may establish the purposes for and the
procedures through which the authorization may apply.
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Treasury shares policy

On 27 October 2020, the board approved the current treasury
shares policy, which dictates that treasury share transactions
may be carried out for these purposes:

« Provide liquidity or supply of securities in the market for
Banco Santander shares, which gives this market depth and
minimizes any temporary imbalances in supply and
demand.

- Take advantage for the benefit of all shareholders of
weakness in the share price in relation to its medium-term
outlook.

+ Meet our obligations to deliver shares to our employees and
directors.

« Serve any other purpose authorized by the board within the
limits set at the general meeting.

Among other things, the policy also provides for:

« The principles to uphold in treasury share trades, which
include protecting financial markets' integrity and
prohibiting market manipulation and insider trading.

+ The operating rules on how treasury share trades must be
carried out, unless in exceptional circumstances as per the
policy. These rules include:

+ Responsibility for execution of these trades, which falls
on the Investments and Holdings department, kept
separate from the rest of Santander.

Venues and types of trades. Trades must generally be
carried out in the orders market of the mercado continuo
(continuous market) of Spanish stock exchanges.

Volume limits, which in general must not exceed 15% of
the average daily trading volume for Banco Santander
shares in the previous 30 sessions in the mercado
continuo.

Price limits. In general, (a) buy orders should not exceed
the greater of the price of the last trade in the market
between independent parties or the highest price in a buy
order in the order book and (b) sell orders should not be
lower than the lesser of the price of the last trade in the
market by independent parties and the lowest price in a
sell order in the order book.

Time limits, including a 15-day black-out period that
applies before each quarterly results presentation.

« Disclosure to the markets of treasury shares trading.
The policy applies to the discretionary trading of treasury
shares. It does not apply to transactions in Banco Santander

shares carried out to hedge market risks or provide brokerage
or hedging for customers.

The full treasury shares policy is at Banco Santander's
corporate website.
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Activity in 2020

As of 31 December 2020, Banco Santander and its
subsidiaries held 28,439,022 shares, which represented
0.164% of share capital (compared to 8,430,425 at 31
December 2019, then representing 0.051% of share capital).

The chart below summarizes the monthly average proportion of treasury shares to share capital throughout 2020 and 2019.

Monthly average of daily positions in treasury shares
% of Banco Santander’s share capital at month end

2020 2019
January 0.09% 0.07%
February 0.06% 0.02%
March 0.11% 0.01%
April 0.17% 0.01%
May 0.17% 0.02%
June 0.15% 0.02%
July 0.15% 0.02%
August 0.17% 0.03%
September 0.17% 0.04%
October 0.18% 0.04%
November 0.17% 0.05%
December 0.16% 0.05%
In 2020, the Group's treasury share trades consisted of the following values:
Acquisitions and transfers of treasury shares in 2020

Acquisitions Transfers

EUR (except Average Average
number of Number of Total par Total cash  purchase Number of Total par Total cash purchase  Profit (loss)
shares) shares value amount price shares value amount price  netof taxes
Discretionary
trading 51,678,265 25,839,133 143,415,000 2.83 31,669,373 15,834,687 104,550,000 3.30 1,193,000
Client induced
trading 250,301,349 125,150,675 614,843,000 2.46 250,301,349 125,150,675 614,843,000 2.46 0
Total 301,979,614 150,989,807 758,258,000 2,51 281,970,722 140,985,361 719,393,000 2.56 1,193,000

A. Transactions in Banco Santander shares carried out to hedge market risks or provide brokerage or hedging for customers.

The chart below shows significant changes in treasury shares
that required disclosure to the CNMV in the year. Companies

must report to the CNMV when purchases of treasury shares 2.6 Stock market information
exceed 1% of the total voting rights (without discounting
sales or transfers) or there is a change in the number of total Markets

voting rights.

Significant ch int h in 2020" Banco Santander shares are listed on Spanish stock
ignificant changes in treasury shares in

exchanges (Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia, under the
% of voting rights represented by shares trading symbol 'SAN'), the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)
o held at as American Depositary Shares (ADS) under the trading

acquiredsince  _ transferred  reference date symbol 'SAN' (each ADS represents one Banco Santander

Reported on last notice since last notice of notice .

P - share), the London Stock Exchange as Crest Depositary
25/03/2020 1.032% 0.89% 0.23% Interests (CDI) under trading symbol 'BNC' (each CDI
11/11/2020 1.002% 1.048% 0.185% represents one Banco Sa.ntander shalre), tlhe Mexican Stock

Exchange under the trading symbol 'SAN’, and the Warsaw
21/12/2020 0.162% 0.184% 0.157% Stock Exchange under the trading symbol 'SAN'.
A. Percentages calculated with share capital at the date of disclosure. .
B. This notice was corrected by disclosures dated 26 March 2020 and 11 Share price performance

November 2020. Data shown as corrected.
Government measures to contain the health crisis ensuing

from the rapid spread of covid-19 had a very severe economic
effect that caused GDP to plummet in the first half of the year
like never before. Monetary policies quickly adopted by
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central banks and the fiscal stimulus packages governments
put in place countered the economic slowdown and reduced
financial tensions.

Relaxation of lockdowns helped market confidence and
economic activity recover in the third quarter. Still, activity
was slower than expected owing to new outbreaks and fears
of new lockdown measures, which dragged the stock markets
down.

During the year, the main indices performed better than the
banking sector, which was under the influence of
recommendations the ECB, the Bank of England, the Federal
Reserve and other central banks had issued at the start of the

pandemic to limit dividend payouts and share buybacks.

In this context, the Ibex 35 in Spain declined 15.5%; the DJ
Stoxx 50 in Europe, 8.7%; DJ Banks, 24.5% and the MSCI

World Banks,14.2%.

Market capitalisation and trading

By 31 December 2020, Santander’s market capitalization of
EUR 44,011 million was the second largest in the eurozone
and 32" largest in the world among the financial institutions.

19,080 million shares traded in the year for an effective value
of EUR 45,034 million and a liquidity ratio of 115%.

The Banco Santander share

2020 2019
Shares (million) 17,340.6 16,618.1
Price (EUR)

Closing priceA 2.538 3.575
Change in the price -29.0% -6.1%
Maximum for the periodA 3.799 4.487
Date of maximum for the period 17/2/2020 17/4/2019
Minimum for the periodA 1.439 3.244
Date of minimum for the period 24/9/2020 9/3/2019
Average for the periodA 2.288 3.798
End-of-period market capitalisation 44,011 61,986
(EUR million)

Trading

Total volume of shares traded 19,334 19,334
(million)

Average daily volume of shares traded 74.2 75.8
(million)

Total cash traded (EUR million) 45,034 77,789
Average daily cash traded (EUR 175,2 305,1

million)

A. Data adjusted to the December 2020 capital increase.
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3. Shareholders. Engagement
and general meeting

- One share, one vote, one dividend

- No takeover defences in our Bylaws

- High participation and engagement of shareholders in our general meetings

3.1 Shareholder engagement

Policy on communication and engagement with
shareholders and investors

Banco Santander aims to ensure its interests are in line with
shareholders’, long-term share value and the long-term
confidence of investors and society. We provide information
to shareholders and investors that satisfies their expectations
and upholds our culture and values. We also communicate
and engage with them regularly so that their views will be
considered by senior managers and governance bodies.

On 27 February 2020, the board of directors approved a
review of the policy on communication and engagement with
shareholders and investors. The policy also applies to
relations with the agents shareholders and investors seek for
advice, recommendations or orientation, such as financial,
environmental, social and governance analysts, proxy
advisors and rating agencies, because they are essential to
engaging with shareholders and investors.

Banco Santander’s policy dictates the following principles for
engagement and communication with shareholders and
investors:

Protection of rights and lawful interests of all
shareholders. We facilitate their rights to be exercised,
provide them with information and give them opportunities
to be involved in our corporate governance effectively.

Equal treatment and non-discrimination. We treat
investors equally in accordance with status.

Fair disclosure. We make sure our disclosure of
information in interactions with investors is transparent,
truthful and symmetrical. Any inside or relevant information
given to investors will have been previously disclosed
except when applicable regulation provides otherwise.

Appropriate disclosure of information. We report the right
information to meet our investor's needs and expectations.
We make sure to give investors clear, concise and reliable
information in a way that is tailored to shareholders.

Compliance with our Bylaws and corporate governance
rules, as well as the principles of cooperation and
transparency with the competent regulators and
supervisors, in accordance with internal guidelines. We
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adhere closely to the laws and regulations on insider and
price-sensitive information in addition to our own Code of
Conduct in Securities Markets, the General Code of Conduct
and the Rules and regulations of the board of directors.

The policy further describes:

- The roles and responsibilities of Banco Santander’s main
bodies and functions involved in communication and
engagement with shareholders and investors.

+ The channels for disclosing information and
communicating with shareholders and investors.

« The ways Banco Santander engages with shareholders and
investors, which are covered below.

Our policy on communication and engagement with
shareholders and investors can be found in our corporate
website.

In addition, Banco Santander has board-approved frameworks
on brand, sustainability and communications, and accounting
and financial information and management. They set out the
general principles, roles and key processes on the
communication of economic-financial, non-financial and
corporate information at group level, helping ensure that all
our shareholders and other stakeholders are properly
informed about our strategy, goals and results, as well as
about our culture and values, maximizing the disclosure and
quality of the information available to the market.

Engagement with shareholders in 2020

In keeping with our policy, we engaged with our shareholders
as follows:

+ The annual general meeting. Our annual general meeting
is our most important annual event for our shareholders.
We strive to encourage all our shareholders to be informed,
attend and participate. See 'Participation of shareholders at
general meetings' and 'Right to receive information' in
section 3.2.

At the annual general meeting, the chairman reports on the
year's most significant changes to the group’s corporate
governance, supplementing the corporate governance
report. She also addresses any questions raised by
shareholders about the matters included in the agenda.
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The chairmen of the audit, nomination and remuneration
committees also report to the annual general meeting on
their operations and elaborate on the related information
provided in this chapter.

Shareholders have the right to attend the annual general
meeting in person or remotely. We broadcast our annual
general meeting live on our corporate website. This allows
shareholders not in attendance, investors and all
stakeholders to be fully informed of debates and results.

The outsanding quorum and voting results in our April 2020
AGM show the importance we put on shareholder
engagement through the annual general meetings. See
section 3.4 'April 2020 AGM'.

In 2020 we held another annual general meeting. It also
had a very high quorum and broad support for the proposed

resolutions submitted for approval. See section 3.5 'October

2020 AGM".

Banco Santander's management system for the 2020 AGMs
received AENOR certification for sustainable events in
compliance with the UNE-ISO 20121:2013.

Quarterly results presentations. Every quarter we present
our results on the same day we make them public. Our
presentation can be followed live, via conference call or
webcast. We release the related financial report and
presentation material before market open. During the
presentation, questions can be asked or emailed to:
investor@gruposantander.com.

Our most recent event was our 2020 Results Presentation
on 3 January 2021. In 2020, we gave our first, second and
third quarter results presentations on 28 April, 29 July and
27 October, respectively.

Investor and strategy days. We also organise investor and
strategy days, where senior managers explain our strategy
for investors and stakeholders in a broader context than in
results presentations. Investors can also directly interact
with senior managers and some directors, which is
increasingly important and attests to our strong
governance. As recommended by the CNMV, we publish
announcements about meetings with analysts and investors
and related documentation in advance. We held our last
Investor Day on 3 April 2019 in London. The information
made available during the investor day is not incorporated
by reference in this annual report nor considered part of it.

Meetings and conferences. Our Shareholders and Investors
Relations team discusses financial and other issues at
meetings with investors at conferences organised by third
parties.

Notwithstanding the principle of equal treatment and non-
discrimination, we have learned that one size does not fit all
when engaging with investors. Therefore, we tailor the
following engagements to meet the needs and expectations
of especially our institutional investors, but also fixed-
income investors, analysts and rating agencies, as well as
retail shareholders:

- Lead independent director engagement with key

investors. Our lead independent director, Bruce Carnegie-
Brown, is regularly in contact with investors in Europe and
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North America, particularly in the months prior to our
annual general meeting. We gather their insights and form
an opinion about their concerns, especially regarding our
corporate governance. In 2020 and early 2027, he met with
43 investors, who accounted for 44.58% of share capital, in
eight cities. In our annual board assessment, board
members highly value Mr Carnegie-Brown's role in
integrating new international best practices in corporate
governance, fostering tailored relations with our
institutional investors. The nomination committee considers
the feedback received from investors.

Investor roadshows. Our Shareholders and Investors
Relations department is constantly in direct contact with
institutional investors and analysts to promote all-round
discussion on shareholder value, better governance and
remuneration structures, and sustainability matters.

In 2020 Shareholder and Investor Relations had 1,137
interactions with 473 institutional investors in 139
locations, and 19 meetings focus in environmental, social
and governance aspects. It engaged with 36.96% of share
capital, which is over 65% of the capital held by institutional
investors.

We issued over 1,300 communications in 2020 to increase
dialogue and transparency with shareholders and investors
about the group's performance, results and the Banco
Santander share.

Interaction with retail shareholders. We also offer other
special means of communication for retail shareholders
regardless of the size of their stake. In 2020 the
Shareholders and Investors Relations team organized 210
events with retail shareholders.

The team also responded to 132,857 queries received via
our shareholder and investor helplines, mailboxes,
WhatsApp and bilateral meetings on the Virtual Customer
Channel. Satisfaction surveys revealed 95% would
recommend the attention service.

Lastly, we received 27,446 shareholder and investor
opinions through quality surveys and studies.

Communication with proxy advisors and other analyst and
influencers

Lastly, we have always recognised the value our investors
place on open and proactive dialogue with proxy advisors,
ESG analysts, and other influential entities. We make sure
they understand our corporate governance, responsible
banking and sustainability priorities and messages in order to
convey them properly to the investors.

In particular, the dialogue with proxy advisors is significantly
more important because they are increasingly setting
corporate governance standards. Therefore, we ensure they
have an in-depth understanding of our corporate governance
and remuneration practices and our markets.

In 2020, we had an appropriate communication and
engagement with the main proxy advisors and took into
account their opinions about corporate governance. We duly
reported on and explained proposed resolutions submitted
for the 2020 AGMs so they could make voting
recommendations.
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Corporate website

Our corporate website enables an effective communication
with shareholders and all our global stakeholders. Its design
enables us to be transparent and improves the experience of
users in obtaining quality information about Santander.

Our corporate website includes information on corporate
governance as required by law. In particular, (i) the key
internal regulations of Banco Santander (Bylaws, Rules and
regulations of the board, Rules and regulations for the
general meeting, etc.); (ii) information on the board of
directors and its committees as well as directors' professional
biographies and (iii) information on general meetings.

The address of our information on corporate governance is:
https://www.santander.com/en/shareholders-and- investors/
corporate-governance. (It is included for reference purposes
only. The content of our corporate website is not incorporated
by reference in this annual report or otherwise considered
part of it).

3.2 Shareholder rights

Our Bylaws provide for only one class of share (ordinary
shares) and grants all shareholders the same rights. Each
Banco Santander share entitles holders to one vote.

Banco Santander’s Bylaws do not have any defensive
mechanisms and fully conform to the notion of one share, one
vote, and one dividend.

This section highlights certain key rights our shareholders
have.

No restrictions on voting rights or the free transfer of
shares in our Bylaws

The law and the Bylaws only place restrictions on voting
rights as a result of violation of regulations, as indicated
below.

There are no non-voting or multiple-voting shares, shares
giving preferential treatment in dividend pay-outs, shares
limiting the number of votes a single shareholder can cast, or
quorum requirements or qualified majorities other than those
the law dictates.

There are no restrictions on the free transfer of shares other
than those the law dictates, as indicated further in this
section.

Neither our Bylaws nor any laws or regulations restrict the
transferability of shares. Our Bylaws also do not restrict
voting rights (except if they were acquired in violation the law
or regulations).

Furthermore, our Bylaws do not include any neutralisation
provisions as defined in the Ley del Mercado de Valores
(Spanish Securities Market Act), which would apply in tender
offers or takeover bids.

Please note that the shareholders’ agreement mentioned in
section 2.4 'Shareholders' agreements' contains transfer and
voting restrictions on shares that are subject to it.
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Legal and regulatory restrictions on the acquisition of
significant holdings

There are legal and regulatory provisions applicable to the
Banco Santander because the banking activity is a regulated
sector, which involves that the acquisition of significant
holdings or influence is subject to regulatory approval or non-
objection. As Banco Santander is a listed company, a tender
offer or a takeover bid for its shares must be launched to
acquire control and for other similar transactions.

The acquisition of significant ownership interests is regulated
mainly by:

+ Regulation (EU) 1024/2013 of the Council of 15 October
2013, conferring specific tasks on the ECB relating to the
prudential supervision of credit institutions.

« Spanish Securities Market Act.

+ Act 10/2014, of 26 June, on the organization, supervision
and solvency of credit institutions (articles 16 to 23) and its
implementing regulation, Spanish Royal Decree 84/2015, of
13 February.

The acquisition of a significant stake in Banco Santander may
also require approval by (i) other domestic and foreign
regulators with supervisory powers over Banco Santander or
its subsidiaries' operations, shares listings or other actions
concerning such regulators or subsidiaries and (ii) other
authorities pursuant to foreign investment regulations
(including those imposed due to covid-19) in Spain or other
countries where we operate.

Shareholder participation at general meetings

All registered holders of shares found on record at least five
days prior to the day of general meetings are entitled to
attend. Banco Santander allows shareholders to exercise their
rights to attend, delegate, vote and participate in general
meetings using remote communications systems.

The electronic shareholders' forum is another
communications channel available on Banco Santander’s
website at the time of the meeting. Shareholders can post
items they propose to add to the agenda in the meeting
notice, requests for support for their proposals, initiatives to
reach the percentage required to exercise minority
shareholder rights legally, as well as offers or requests to act
as a voluntary proxy.

Supplement to the annual general meeting notice

Shareholders representing at least 3% of share capital may
request the publication of a supplement to the annual general
meeting notice stating the names of shareholders exercising
this right, the number of shares they hold, as well as any
items to be added to the agenda with an explanation or
substantiated proposal for resolutions and any other relevant
documentation.

Shareholders representing at least 3% of share capital may
also propose reasoned resolutions about any matters that
have been, or should be, added to the agenda of a called
annual general meeting.
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To exercise these rights, shareholders must send a certified
notice to Banco Santander's registered office within five days
after the annual general meeting announcement notice is
posted.

Right to receive information

From the time the general meeting notice is posted until the
fifth day before the general meeting date on first call,
shareholders can submit written requests for information or
clarification, or any written questions they deem relevant to
the items on the meeting agenda. In addition, within the same
period, shareholders can submit written requests for
clarification about price-sensitive information Banco
Santander has furnished for the CNMV since the last general
meeting or about auditor’s reports. Banco Santander posts
any information or answers it provides on its corporate
website.

Shareholders may also exercise their right to receive
information at the meeting. Even if it cannot be asserted in
the course of the meeting, or requests are made by
shareholders attending remotely, they will be given the
appropriate information in writing within seven days after the
general meeting.

Quorum and majorities for passing resolutions at general
meeting

The quorum and majorities set out in our Bylaws and Rules
and regulations for general meeting in order to hold a valid
meeting and adopt corporate resolutions is according to
Spanish law.

On first call, shareholders representing at least 25% of
subscribed share capital with voting rights must be in
attendance (except for certain matters mentioned
subsequently). If a sufficient quorum cannot be
constituted,general meetings will be held on second call,
which does not require a quorum.

In accordance with our Rules and regulations for general
meeting, shareholders voting by mail or electronically before
the meeting are counted as present in order to determine the
general meeting quorum.

With the exception of certain matters mentioned below,
general meeting resolutions pass when shareholders in
attendance or by proxy cast more votes in favour than
against.

The quorum and majorities required to amend the Bylaws,
issue shares and bonds, make structural changes and vote on
other significant resolutions permitted by law are set out
below. Furthermore, laws applying to credit institutions
dictate that, if over 50% of the share capital is present at
general meetings, a qualified two-thirds majority is required
to raise the proportion of variable remuneration components
to fixed components for executive directors and other top
executives above 100% (up to 200%); otherwise, a three-
quarters majority will be necessary.

Our Bylaws do not require shareholder approval at general
meetings for any decisions about acquiring core assets,
selling them off or transferring them to another company or
similar corporate transactions, unless it is required by law.
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Rules for amending our Bylaws

The general meeting is the competent body to approve any
amendment to the Bylaws. However, only the board can
decide to change the registered office within Spain.

The board or, where appropriate, the shareholders who have
drafted a proposed amendment to the Bylaws must write it
out completely, in addition to a report justifying it; and
provide them to shareholders at the time the meeting to
debate proposed amendment is announced.

The general meeting notice must clearly state the items to be
amended as well as the rights of all shareholders to examine
the full text of a proposed amendment and the related report
at Banco Santander's registered office, and order these
documents delivered or sent to them free of charge.

If shareholders are convened to debate amendments to the
Bylaws, the quorum on first call will be constituted if 50% of
subscribed share capital with voting rights is present. If a
sufficient quorum cannot be constituted, the general meeting
will be held on second call, where 25% of subscribed share
capital with voting rights must be present.

When less than 50% of subscribed share capital with voting
rights are present, resolutions on amendments to the Bylaws
can only be validly adopted if two-thirds of shareholders
attending the meeting in person or by proxy vote for them.
However, when 50% or more of subscribed share capital with
voting rights is present, resolutions may validly pass with an
absolute majority.

Resolutions to amend the Bylaws that involve new
obligations for shareholders must be accepted by those
affected.

The Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM) must authorise us
to amend our Bylaws. However, amendments that are
exempt from authorisation but must still be reported to the
SSM include any to change the registered office within Spain,
raise share capital, add imperative or prohibitive laws or
regulations to the wording of the Bylaws, or change the
wording in order to comply with court or administrative
rulings and any others the SSM has declared exempt due to a
lack of materiality in response to prior consultations.

3.3 Dividends

Remuneration against the 2019 results

« Precovid. In February 2019, the board of directors
announced its plans for a mid-term payout ratio of 40-50%
of underlying profit (up from 30-40%); an in-cash dividend
rate not lower than in 2018; and two payments against the
2019 results (as announced at the 2018 annual general
meeting).

Consequently, the board in September 2019 approved an
interim cash dividend of EUR 0.10 per share against the
2019 results, paid on 1 November 2019. Furthermore, in
February 2020, it decided to put to a vote at the April 2020
AGM a second payment against the 2019 results of 0.13
euros per share, with a final cash dividend of 0.10 euros per
share (Final Cash Dividend) and a scrip dividend (under the
Santander Dividendo Eleccion (SDE) scheme) that would pay
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0.03 euros per share in cash to opting-in shareholders (see
'Scrip dividend authority' in section 2.2 and section 3.4 'April
2020 AGM').

If that proposal had been carried out, 46.3% of the 2019
underlying attributable ordinary profit would have been
paid out to shareholders, and the cash dividend rate would
have been 89.6%, assuming 20% of cash options in the SDE
scheme, in line with the objectives announced at the start of
2019. The cash dividend would have increased by 3% year-
on-year, in contrast to the one paid against the 2018 results
(EUR 0.195 per share in 2018 versus EUR 0.20 per share in
2019), even without considering the cash payout under the
SDE scheme.

Covid-19 and the first ECB recommendation. On 27 March
2020 the ECB issued a recommendation for all European
credit institutions under its supervision to refrain from
paying out dividends against the 20719 and 2020 results
until at least 1 October 2020 to preserve capital (ECB
Recommendation ).

Considering the ECB Recommendation | and in view of
Santander’s mission to help people and businesses prosper,
on 2 April 2020 the board of directors cancelled the
payment of the 2019 final dividend and the dividend policy
for 2020, removed the Final Cash Dividend and the SDE
scheme proposals from the agenda for the already
announced April 2020 AGM and deferred the decision on
the application of the 2019 results to a meeting to be held
no later than 31 October 2020.

Second ECB recommendation and October 2020 AGM. On
27 July 2020, the ECB issued a second recommendation
extending the term of ECB Recommendation I. It asked the
European credit institutions under its supervision to refrain
from paying out dividends against the 2019 and 2020
results or from making irrevocable commitments to pay
them until 1 January 2021 (ECB Recommendation II).

In September 2020, the board of directors called the
October 2020 AGM, proposing to the shareholders to (a) in
accordance with ECB Recommendation Il, allocate the
entirety of Banco Santander’s 2019 results to increasing the
voluntary reserve, except for the portion already applied to
pay the interim dividend (which had been paid out before
ECB Recommendation 1) and (b) increase capital with a
charge to reserves to permit a final remuneration for 2019,
in addition to the interim dividend, for the equivalent of
0.70 euro per share in the form of newly-issued shares and
without a cash alternative.

Shareholders approved both proposals at the October 2020
AGM as indicated in section 3.5 'October 2020 AGM'. Thus,
50.6% of our underlying attributable profit in 2019 was
paid out to shareholders, and the proportion of cash over
the total dividend was 49.4%.

Remuneration against the 2020 results

Precovid. The board of directors' originally set about for
remuneration against the 2020 results to maintain the
announced mid-term pay-out ratio target of 40-50% of
underlying profit; make sure the in-cash dividend rate was
no lower than in 2019; and to make two payments against
the 2020 results. The board proposed to shareholders to, at
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our April 2020 AGM, set shareholder remuneration with the
same flexibility as 2019 by (a) retaining the option of using
the SDE scheme (scrip dividend) (in view of its wide
acceptance, especially among our retail shareholders) to
take advantage of profitable growth opportunities in our
markets and (b) renewing the authorization to acquire
treasury shares with the option of running share buy-backs
to reduce outstanding shares under favourable market
conditions. See section 3.4 'April 2020 AGM'.

Covid-19 and ECB Recommendation I. As mentioned above,
ECB Recommendation | led the board of directors to cancel
the dividend policy for 2020 on 2 April 2020.

ECB Recommendation Il and October 2020 AGM.
Following ECB Recommendation Il which extended the term
of ECB Recommendation | to 1 January 2021, the board of
directors proposed to shareholders at the October 2020
AGM a payment in 2027 of up to 0.10 euros per share
against share premium as remuneration against 2020
results, contingent on the ECB's approval and
recommendations, a CET1 ratio maintained within or above
our target range of 11-12%, and the total distribution not
exceeding 50% of our consolidated ordinary (underlying)
profit.

The proposal aimed to apply a 100% cash dividend policy
and to make a payment to shareholders with respect to
2020 in line with the one announced in early 2020 (40-50%
of the group's consolidated ordinary (underlying) profit) as
soon as market conditions normalized and subject to
regulatory recommendations and approvals.

Shareholders approved the proposal at the October 2020
AGM, as indicated in section 3.5 'October 2020 AGM'.

Third ECB recommendation. On 15 December 2020, the
ECB recommended that all credit institutions under its
supervision limit shareholder remuneration until 30
September 2021 to the lowest between 15% of the
adjusted profit for 2020 (and 2019 but only for those
entities that, as opposed to Banco Santander, did not make
any dividend payments against the 2019 results) and the
equivalent of 20 basis points of the CET1 ratio.

On 3 February 2021, Banco Santander made public its 2020
results and the board's intention to pay a cash dividend of
€2.75 cents per share as shareholder remuneration for
2020, the maximum allowed in accordance with the limits
set by the last ECB recommendation. This dividend will be
paid under the resolution of the October 2020 AGM for the
distribution of share premium mentioned above.

Remuneration against the 2021 results

The board aims to restore a payout ratio of 40-50% of
underlying profit, in cash, in the medium term. With respect
to the remuneration against the 2021 earnings, the intention
is to resume payments once the ECB recommendations so
allow. The ECB has said it intends to repeal the
recommendation in September 2021 in the absence of
materially adverse developments. In the meantime, and in
line with the announcement of April 2020, the dividend policy
will remain suspended.
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On 3 April 2020 we held our customary ordinary general
shareholders' meeting which, due to covid-19, was the first
shareholders' meeting of Banco Santander held exclusively by
remote means (see section 1.4 'Active shareholder
engagement during the pandemic'). The pandemic and the
recommendations issued by the ECB as a consequence also
meant that the board of directors had to withdraw, once the
meeting had been called, points 2 (application of results) and
7A (share capital increase to implement a Santander
Dividendo Eleccién scheme) from the agenda (see section 3.3
'Dividends'). The application of results for year 2019 was later
submitted to the October 2020 AGM (see next section 3.5
'October 2020 AGM')

Voting results and resolutions

All items on the agenda (as amended as indicated above)
were approved. Votes in favour of the board's proposals
averaged 98.2%. 99.68% of votes approved corporate
management for 2019 and 93.77% of votes approved the
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Quorum and attendance

The quorum (among shareholders present and represented)
was 65.0% broken down as follows:

Quorum breakdown

In person and virtual attendance 0.091T %
By proxy
Cast by post or direct delivery 49.410 %
By electronic means 13.193 %
Remote voting
Cast by post or direct delivery 0.600 %
By electronic means 1.711 %
Total 65.005 %

2019 annual report on directors' remuneration. None of the
agenda items listed in the notice convening the meeting
received more than 6.93% of votes against.

The following chart summarizes the resolutions approved and voting results:

VOTES "

For® Against® Blank®  Abstention”  Quorum’
1. Annual accounts and corporate management
1A. Annual accounts and directors’ reports for 2019 99.74 0.26 0.03 3.08 65.00
1B. Consolidated statement of non-financial information for 2019 99.75 0.25 0.04 2.86 65.00
1C. Corporate management 2019 99.68 0.32 0.04 3.14 65.00
2. Application of results® - - - - -
3. Appointment, re-election or ratification of directors
3A. Setting of the number of directors 99.64 0.36 0.03 2.89 65.00
3B. Appointment of Luis Isasi Fernandez de Bobadilla 99.38 0.62 0.04 2.92 65.00
3C. Appointment of Sergio Agapito Lires Rial 98.65 1.35 0.04 2.90 65.00
3D. Ratification of the appointment and re-election of Pamela Ann Walkden 99.63 0.37 0.04 2.89 65.00
3E. Re-election of Ana Patricia Botin-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea 98.31 1.69 0.03 2.86 65.00
3F. Re-election of Rodrigo Echenique Gordillo 96.38 3.62 0.04 2.90 65.00
3G. Re-election of Esther Giménez-Salinas i Colomer 99.40 0.60 0.03 2.89 65.00
3F. Re-election of Sol Daurella Comadran 99.21 0.79 0.04 2.88 65.00
4. Re-election of the external auditor for Financial Year 2020 99.73 0.27 0.03 2.85 65.00
5. Authorization to acquire treasury shares 98.03 1.97 0.03 2.87 65.00
6. Authorization granted to the board to increase share capital 93.07 6.93 0.03 2.85 65.00
7A. Increase in share capital. Offer to acquire bonus share rights at a guaranteed priceE - - - - -
7B. Increase in share capital. Offer to acquire bonus share rights at a guaranteed price  99.41 0.59 0.03 2.84 65.00
8. Delegation to the board of the power to increase share capital to issue all kinds of
fixed-income securities, preferred interests or similar, non-convertible similar debt
instruments (including warrants) 99.49 0.51  0.03 2.85 65.00
9. Directors' remuneration policy 94.40 560 0.03 3.28 65.00
10. Maximum total annual remuneration of directors in their capacity as directors 95.87 413 0.03 3.31 65.00
11. Maximum ratio of fixed and variable components in executive directors' total
remuneration 98.78 1.22 0.03 3.28 64.65
12. Remuneration plans that include that inclthe delivery of shares or share options:
12A. Deferred multiyear objectives variable remuneration plan 96.13 3.87 0.03 3.28 65.00
12B. Deferred conditional variable remuneration plan 97.49 2.51 0.03 3.29 65.00
12C. Digital Transformation Award 99.40 0.60 0.03 3.29 65.00
12D. Group buy-out policy 98.89 1.11 0.04 3.32 65.00
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VOTES"

For® AgainstB Blank®  Abstention Quorum®

12E. Plan for employees of Santander UK Group Holdings and other companies of the

Group in the UK 99.26 0.74 0.03 3.28 65.00
13. Authorisation to implement the resolutions approved 99.70 0.30 0.03 2.85 65.00
14. Annual directors' remuneration report 93.77 6.23 0.03 3.45 65.00
15. Corporate action to demand director liabilityF 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.13 62.69
16 to 30. Dismissal and removal of directors® 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.13 62.69

A. Each Banco Santander share grants one vote.

B. Percentage of votes for and against.

C. Percentage of share capital present and attending by proxy at the April 2020 AGM.

D.Percentage of Banco Santander's share capital on the date of the April 2020 AGM.

E. Item withdrawn from the agenda as indicated above.

F. Item not included on the agenda.

G.ltems 16 to 30 (not included on the agenda) were put to a separate vote. Each item refers to the proposal to dismiss and remove each acting director at the April
2020 AGM.

The full texts of the resolutions passed at the April 2020 AGM can be found on our corporate website and on the CNMV'’s website,
as they were filed as other relevant information on 3 April 2020.

3.5 October 2020 AGM

Banco Santander held another ordinary general shareholders' meeting on 27 October 2020 to decide, among other matters, on
the application of results obtained during financial year 2079 which had been deferred after the ECB Recommendation | (see
section 3.3 'Dividends'). This meeting was hybrid, i.e. allowing attendance in person and by remote means (see section 1.4 'Active
shareholder engagement during the pandemic').

Quorum and attendance
The quorum (among shareholders present and represented) was 60.34% broken down as follows:
Quorum breakdown

In person and virtual attendance 0.167 %
By proxy
Cast by post or direct delivery 7.441 %
By electronic means 35.845 %
Remote voting
Cast by post or direct delivery 0.589 %
By electronic means 16.300 %
Total 60.342 %

Voting results and resolutions

All items on the agenda were approved. Votes in favour of the board’s proposals averaged 99.15%. The following chart
summarizes the resolutions approved and voting results:

VOTES*
For’ Against” Blank®  Abstention”  Quorum”

1. Application of results 99.52 0.48 0.06 3.26 60.34
2. Appointment, re-election or ratification of directors

2A. Setting of the number of directors 98.96 1.04  0.09 3.42 60.34
2B. Appointment of R. Martin Chavez Marquez 98.58 1.42 0.10 3.42 60.34
3A. Examination and approval of the balance sheet as at 30 June 2020 99.57 0.43 0.08 3.37 60.34
3B. Increase in share capital with a charge to reserves 98.43 1.57 0.06 3.26 60.34
4. Conditional distribution of share premium reserve 99.41 0.59 0.03 3.18 60.34
5. Authorisation to implement the resolutions approved 99.58 0.42 0.08 3.29 60.34
6 to 20. Dismissal and removal of directors® 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.30 43.45

A Each Banco Santander share affords one vote.

B. Percentage of votes for and against.

C. Percentage of share capital present and attending by proxy at the October 2020 AGM.

D.Percentage of Banco Santander's share capital on the date of the October 2020 AGM.

E. Items 6 to 20 (not included on the agenda) were put to a separate vote. Each item refers to the proposal to dismiss and remove each acting director at the October
2020 AGM.

The full text of the resolutions passed at the October 2020 AGM can be found on our corporate website and on the CNMV's
website, as they were filed as other relevant information on 27 October 2020.
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3.6 Our coming 2027 AGM

The board of directors agreed to call the 2027 AGM for 25 or
26 March on first and second call respectively, with the
following proposed resolutions.

* Annual accounts and corporate management. For approval
of:

« The annual accounts and the directors’ reports of Banco
Santander and its consolidated Group for the financial
year ended on 31 December 2020. For further
information, see 'Consolidated Annual Accounts'.

+ The consolidated non-financial statement for the financial
year ended on 31 December 2020 is part of this
consolidated directors' report. See the 'Responsible

banking' chapter.

« The corporate management for the financial year 2020.

« The application of results obtained during financial year
2020. See section 3.3 'Dividends'.

Appointment of directors.

« Setting the number of directors at 15, within the
maximum and minimum Llimits set in the Bylaws.

« Ratification of the appointment of Gina Diez as an
independent director (see section 1.1 'Board skills and
diversity') and re-electing Homaira Akbari, Alvaro
Cardoso, Javier Botin, Ramiro Mato and Bruce Carnegie-
Brown for a three-year period. See section 4.1 'Our
directors'.

External auditor. Re-electing the firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. as external auditor
for financial year 2021. See 'External auditor' in section 4.5.

Bylaws. Approve these main amendments:

+ To make the board of directors the competent body to
issue non-convertible debt.

+ To make the board of directors the competent body to
approve equity remuneration plans for employees, as
permitted by the Spanish Companies Act since 2015.

« To hold fully-virtual general meetings where permitted by
law.

Rules and regulations of the general meeting. Approve the
amendment of certain articles to coordinate them with the
proposed Bylaw amendments and to incorporate technical
improvements.

Authority to issue non-convertible securities. Delegating
to the board of directors the authority to issue debentures,
bonds, preferred interests and other similar debt
instruments that cannot be converted into shares of Banco
Santander.

Remuneration policy. Approving the director remuneration
policy for 2021, 2022 and 2023. For further information,
see section 6.4 'Directors' remuneration policy for 2021,
2022 and 2023 submitted to a binding shareholder vote'.

Economic Risk management
and financial review and compliance

Director remuneration. Approving director’s fixed annual
remuneration. For further information, see section 6.4
'Directors’ remuneration policy for 2021, 2022 and 2023
submitted to a binding shareholder vote'.

Variable remuneration. Approving a maximum ratio of
200% of variable components to fixed components of total
remuneration for executive directors and certain employees
belonging to professional categories that have a material
impact on the Group's risk profile. For further information,
see section 6.4 'Directors’ remuneration policy for 2021,
2022 and 2023 submitted to a binding shareholder vote'.

Remuneration plans. Approving remuneration plans that
involve the delivery of shares or share options or are share-
value based. For further information, see section 6.4
'Directors’ remuneration policy for 2021, 2022 and 2023
submitted to a binding shareholder vote'.

Annual directors' remuneration report. Holding a non-
binding vote on the annual directors’ remuneration report.
For further information, see section 6. 'Remuneration’.

The related documents and information will be available for
consultation on our corporate website on the date the
meeting notice is published. We will also broadcast our 2021
AGM live, as was done for the 2020 AGMs.

Since attendance at the 2027 AGM is not paid, a general
policy in this regard is not necessary. However, Banco
Santander offers attendees a commemorative courtesy gift,
as has been tradition for decades.
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4. Board of directors
A balanced and diverse board Effective governance
= 15 directors, including 12 non-executive and 3 - Specialised committees advising the board
executive - The responsible banking, sustainability and culture
- Majority of independent directors (66.67%) committee shows the board's commitment to this matter

- Balanced presence of men and women (40%-60%) - Complementary functions and power balance: executive
chairman, CEO and lead independent director

Ramiro Mate Garcia-Ansorena

&1

Homaira Akbari

Ana Botin

190



Responsible Corporate
banking governance

@ Executive committee
® Audit committee
Nomination committee

[ Remuneration committee

R. Martin Chavez
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

HAAP

Henrique de Castro
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

ONA

Luis Isasi
Member
Non-executive director

OHA

Alvaro Cardoso

Economic
and financial review

Risk management
and compliance

A Risk supervision, regulation and compliance

comittee

A Innovation and technology committee
Responsible banking, sustainability
and culture committee

P Chairman of the committee

Belén Romana
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

00 AA

José Antonio Alvarez
Vice chairman and CEO
Executive director

oA

Ana Botin
Executive chairman
Executive director

OP A

Member
Non-executive director
(independent)
AP
Pamela Walkden Bruce Carnegie-Brown
Member Vice chairman and lead
Non-executive director independent director
(independent) Non-executive director
oP (independent)
ONPEPA
Javier Botin
Member

Non-executive director

Ramiro Mato
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

00 A

Homaira Akbari
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

oA

Sergio Rial
Member
Executive director

Sol Daurella
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

Gina Diez
Member
Non-executive director
(independent)

Jaime Pérez Renovales

General secretary and

secretary of the board
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4.1 Our directors

Information is presented as at 31 December 2020.
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Ana
Botin-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea

GROUP EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Executive director

Ms Botin joined the board in 1989.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1960 in Santander, Spain.

Education: Degree in Economics from Bryn Mawr College
(Pennsylvania, United States).

Experience: Ms Botin joined Banco Santander, S.A. after
working at JP Morgan (New York, 1980-1988). In 1992, she
was appointed senior executive vice-president. Between
1992 and 1998, she led Santander's expansion into Latin
America. In 2002, she was appointed executive chairman of
Banco Espariol de Crédito, S.A. Between 2010 and 2014,
she was chief executive officer of Santander UK. In 2014,
she was appointed executive chairman of Santander.

Other positions of note: Ms Botin is a member of the board of
directors of The Coca-Cola Company. She is also founder and
chairman of the CyD Foundation (which supports higher
education) and the Empieza por Educar Foundation (the Spanish
subsidiary of the international NGO, Teach for All), and sits on
the advisory board of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology
(MIT). In February 2021, she was appointed president of the
European Banking Federation.

Positions in other Group companies: Ms Botin is a non-
executive director of Santander UK plc and Santander UK Group
Holdings plc; a non-executive chairman of Universia Espafa Red
de Universidades, S.A. and Universia Holding, S.L; and a non-
executive director of Santander Holding USA, Inc., Santander
Bank, N.A. and PagoNxt, S.L.

Membership of board committees: Executive committee
(chairman), and innovation and technology committee.

Skills and competencies: Extensive international experience in
banking, having held the highest executive roles. She has also
led the transformational, strategic and cultural change of Grupo
Santander. Moreover, she has shown an ongoing commitment
to sustainable and inclusive growth, as demonstrated by her
philanthropic activities.

J’osé Antgnio
Alvarez Alvarez

VICE CHAIRMAN &
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Executive director

Mr Alvarez joined the board in 2015.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1960 in Ledn, Spain.

Education: Degree in Economics and Business
Administration. MBA from the University of Chicago.

Experience: José Antonio Alvarez joined Santander in 2002
and was appointed senior executive vice president of the
Financial Management and Investor Relations division in
2004 (Group chief financial officer). He served as director
at SAM Investments Holdings Limited, Santander
Consumer Finance, S.A. and Santander Holdings US,
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Inc. He also sat on the supervisory boards of Santander
Consumer AG, Santander Consumer Bank GmbH and Santander
Bank Polska, S.A. He was a board member of Bolsas y Mercados
Espaiioles, S.A.

Other positions of note: None.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr Alvarez is non-
executive director of Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A. and PagoNxt,
S.L

Membership of board committees: Executive committee, and
innovation and technology committee.

Skills and competencies: Mr Alvarez is a highly qualified and
talented leader with a distinguished career in banking. He brings
significant strategic and international management expertise, in
particular financial planning, asset management and consumer
finance. He has vast experience with, and a strong reputation
among, key stakeholders such as regulators and investors.
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Bruce
Carnegie-Brown

VICE CHAIRMAN &
LEAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Non-executive director (independent)

Joined the board in 2015.

Nationality: British. Born in 1959 in Freetown, Sierra
Leone.

Education: Master of Arts in English Language and
Literature from the University of Oxford.

Experience: Mr Carnegie-Brown was non-executive
chairman of Moneysupermarket.com Group plc
(2014-2019), non-executive director of Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc (2016-2017) and non-executive chair
of AON UK Ltd (2012-2015). He was the founder and
managing partner of the quoted private equity division of 3i
Group plc, and president and chief executive officer of
Marsh Europe, S.A. He was also lead independent director

at Close Brothers Group plc (2006-2014) and Catlin Group Ltd
(2010-2014). He previously worked at JP Morgan Chase for 18
years and Bank of America for four years.

Other positions of note: Mr Carnegie-Brown is the non-
executive chairman of Lloyd's of London and Cuvva Limited.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr Carnegie-Brown is
non-executive director of Santander UK plc and Santander UK
Group Holdings plc.

Membership of board committees: Executive committee,
nomination committee (chairman), remuneration committee
(chairman), and innovation and technology committee.

Skills and competencies: Mr Carnegie-Brown has a lengthy
background in banking (particularly investment banking) and
considerable expertise in insurance. He also possesses
significant international experience in Europe (UK), the Middle
East and Asia. His top-management insight provides the board
with know-how in regard to remuneration, appointments and
risk. As lead independent director, he has also gained an
excellent understanding of investors' expectations, as well as
managing relations with them and financial entities.

Homaira
Akbari

Non-executive director
(independent)

Ms Akbari joined the board in 2016.

Nationality: American and French. Born in 1961 in Tehran,
Iran.

Education: PhD in Experimental Particle Physics from Tufts
University and MBA from Carnegie Mellon University.

Experience: Homaira Akbari was non-executive director of
Gemalto NV and Veolia Environment, S.A. She was
chairman and CEO of SkyBitz, Inc., managing director of
TruePosition Inc., non-executive director of Covisint

Corporation and US Pack Logistics LLC. She has also held various
posts at Microsoft Corporation and Thales Group.

Other positions of note: Ms Akbari is chief executive officer of
AKnowledge Partners, LLC and an independent director of
Landstar System, Inc. and Temenos, AG.

Positions in other Group companies: Ms Akbari is non-executive
director of Santander Consumer USA Holdings Inc. and PagoNxt,
S.L

Membership of board committees: Audit committee, innovation
and technology committee, and responsible banking,
sustainability and culture committee.

Skills and competencies: Ms Akbari brings significant executive
experience from technology companies. Her knowledge about
digital transformation challenges is an asset to the board. She
also has extensive experience in various geographies and
knowledge about water, energy and waste management and
treatment, which are of particular value to the group.

Javier
Botin-Sanz de Sautuola y O'Shea

Non-executive director

Mr Botin joined the board in 2004.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1973 in Santander, Spain.

Education: Degree in Law from the Complutense University
of Madrid.

Experience: Javier Botin founded JB Capital Markets,
Sociedad de Valores, S.A.U in 2008 and has been its
executive chairman ever since. He was co-founder and
executive director of the equities division of M&B Capital

Advisers, S.V., S.A. (2000-2008). Previously, he had been a legal
adviser within the International Legal Department of Banco
Santander, S.A. (1998-1999).

Other positions of note: In addition to the financial sector, Mr
Botin works with several not-for-profit organisations. He has
been chairman of the Botin Foundation since 2074 and is also a
trustee of the Princess of Girona Foundation.

Positions in other Group companies: None.
Membership of board committees: None.

Skills and competencies: Mr Botin brings international and
managerial expertise to the board, particularly in finance and
banking. He also brings a deep understanding of Grupo
Santander, its operations and its strategy from his tenure as a
non-executive director.
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Alvaro
Cardoso de Souza

Non-executive director
(independent)

Mr de Souza joined the board in 2018.
Nationality: Portuguese. Born in 1948 in Guarda, Portugal.

Education: Degree in Economics and Business
Administration from Pontificia Universidade Catélica de Séo
Paulo, MBA-Management Program for Executives from the
University of Pittsburgh, and a graduate of the Investment
Banking Marketing Program at Wharton Business School.

Experience: Alvaro Cardoso de Souza has held various roles
in Citibank Group, including CEO of Citibank Brazil, as well
as senior roles in the US relating to consumer finance,
private banking and Latin America.

He was a board member at AMBEV. S.A., Gol Linhas Aéreas, S.A.
and Duratex, S.A. He was chairman of WorldWildlife Group
(WWF) Brazil, a board member at WWF International and
chairman and member of the audit and asset management
committees of FUNBIO (Fundo Brasileiro para a Biodiversidade).

Other positions of note: None.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr de Souza is the non-
executive chairman of Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A.

Membership of board committees: Risk supervision, regulation
and compliance committee (chairman), and responsible
banking, sustainability and culture committee.

Skills and competencies: Mr de Souza possesses broad
international experience in banking, particularly in Brazil. He has
a solid understanding of strategy and risk management, which is
key to his role as chairman of our risk supervision, regulation
and compliance committee. In addition, his active involvement
with several environmental foundations and NGOs brings with
him very useful knowledge about sustainability.

Sol
Daurella Comadran

Non-executive director
(independent)

Ms Daurella joined the board in 2015.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1966 in Barcelona, Spain.
Education: Degree in Business and MBA from ESADE.

Experience: Sol Daurella Comadran served on the board of
the Circulo de Economia and was an independent non-
executive director at Banco Sabadell, S.A., Ebro Foods, S.A.
and Acciona, S.A. She has also been the honorary consul-
general of Iceland in Barcelona since 1992.

Other positions of note: Ms Daurella is chairman of

Coca-Cola European Partners plc and executive chairman of
Olive Partners S.A. She also holds several roles at Cobega Group
companies and is chairman of the board of trustees of the FERO
Oncology Research Foundation.

Positions in other Group companies: None.

Membership of board committees: Nomination committee,
remuneration committee, and responsible banking,
sustainability and culture committee.

Skills and competencies: Ms Daurella brings to the board
excellent strategy and high-level management skills from her
international top-executive experience at listed and large
privately-held entities, particularly distributors. She has vast
knowledge of corporate governance as the former chair of
several boards. She also possesses audit experience, having
served on several audit committees. In addition, as a trustee at
various health, education and environmental foundations, Ms
Daurella contributes responsible business and sustainability
insight to the board.

Henrique
de Castro

Non-executive director
(independent)

Joined the board in 2019.
Nationality: Portuguese. Born in 1965 in Lisbon, Portugal.

Education: Degree in Business Administration from the
Lisbon School of Economics & Management (Portugal) and
MBA from the University of Lausanne (Switzerland).

Experience: Henrique de Castro was an independent
director at First Data Corporation and chief operating
officer at Yahoo.
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Previously, he had been the manager of worldwide devices,
media and platforms at Google, European sales and business
development manager at Dell Inc. and a consultant at McKinsey
& Company.

Other positions of note: Mr de Castro is an independent director
of Fiserv Inc.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr de Castro is a non-
executive director of PagoNXxt, S.L.

Membership of board committees: Audit committee,
remuneration committee, and innovation and technology
committee.

Skills and competencies: Due to his executive roles in the
world'’s top technology companies, Mr de Castro brings valuable
experience in technological and digital strategy from a wide
range of geographies.
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Gina
Diez Barroso

Non-executive director
(independent)

Ms Diez joined the board in 2020.
Nationality: Mexican. Born in 1955 in Mexico City, Mexico.

Education: Degree in Design from Centro de Disefio,
Mexico City.

Experience: She has over 20 years' experience in the real
estate and education sectors. Until April 2020, she was an
independent director of Banco Santander México, S.A. and
several Grupo Santander companies in Mexico. She has
been member of the board of directors of Americas

Society/Council of the Americas, Laurel Strategies and Qualitas
of Life Foundation.

Other positions of note: She is the founder and president of
Grupo Diarg, S.A. de C.V. and Centro de Disefio y Comunicacion,
S.C. (Universidad Centro). In addition, she is a member of the
board of Dalia Women, S.A.P.I de C.V. (Dalia Empower), member
of Comité de 200 (C200) and represents Mexico at the W20, the
G20 womens' initiative. She founded and is a trustee of the Pro-
Educacion Centro and Diarq foundations.

Positions in other Group companies: None.
Membership of board committees: None.

Skills and competencies: Ms Diez possesses vast experience in
the real estate and education sectors, and has extensive
knowledge of responsible business and sustainability as a result
of having been a charter member and trustee of foundations
focusing on education, gender diversity and social support.

Luis
Isasi Fernandez de Bobadilla

Non-executive director

Mr Isasi joined the board in 2020.

Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1956 in Jerez de la Frontera,
Spain.

Education: Degree in Economics and Business
Administration and MBA from Columbia Business School.

Experience: With broad experience in the financial and
securities market sectors, Mr Isasi began his career at
Abengoa, before holding various executive positions at JP
Morgan in New York and First National Bank of Chicago in
London.

In 1987, he joined Morgan Stanley as managing director of
investment banking for Europe and, from 1997 to February
2020, held the role of chairman and country head for Spain. He
is now a senior adviser there. He has also been director of
Madrilena Red de Gas, S.A. and Sociedad Rectora de la Bolsa de
Madrid, S.A., as well as an independent director of Grifols, S.A.

Other positions of note: Mr Isasi is a non-executive chair of
Santander Espaiia and an independent director of Comparia de
Distribucién Integral Logista Holdings, S.A. (Logista).

Positions in other Group companies: None.

Membership of board committees: Executive committee,
remuneration committee, and risk supervision, regulation and
compliance committee.

Skills and competencies: Mr Isasi has vast experience in a wide
range of sectors and international markets, as well as a strong
institutional network within Spain.

Ramiro
Mato Garcia-Ansorena

Non-executive director
(independent)

Mr Mato joined the board in 2017.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1952 in Madrid, Spain.

Education: Degree in Economics from the Complutense
University of Madrid and graduate of Harvard Business
School's Management Development Programme.

Experience: Ramiro Mato held several roles in Banque BNP
Paribas, including chairman of BNP Paribas Group in Spain.
Previously, he had held several top roles in Argentaria. He
was a member of the Spanish Banking Association (AEB),

Bolsas y Mercados Espaiioles, S.A. (BME) and the board of
trustees of the Fundacién Espafiola de Banca para Estudios
Financieros (FEBEF).

Other positions of note: Mr Mato is chairman of Ansorena, S.A.
and vice-chairman of the board of trustees of Fundacién
Esperanzay Alegria.

Positions in other Group companies: None.

Membership of board committees: Executive committee, audit
committee, risk supervision, regulation and compliance
committee, and responsible banking, sustainability and culture
committee (chairman).

Skills and competencies: Mr Mato has had an extensive career
in banking and capital markets. He has held senior executive and
non-executive roles and brings considerable expertise in top
management, audit, risk and strategy, mainly within the
financial sector. He has also been active on the boards of
trustees of several education foundations.
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Ramon Martin
Chavez Marquez

Non-executive director
(independent)

Mr Chavez joined the board in 2020.

Nationality: American. Born in 1964 in Alburquerque, New
Mexico (US).

Education: A.B. magna cum laude in Biochemical Sciences
and Master of Computer Science from Harvard University.
PhD in Medical Information Sciences from Stanford
University.

Experience: Mr Chavez was Chief technology officer (CTO)
and co-founder of Quorum Software Systems (1989-1993),
global head of energy derivatives at Credit Suisse Financial
Products (1997-2000) and CEO and co-founder of Kiodex
(2000-2004). In 2005, he joined Goldman Sachs, where he
was a partner from 2006 to 2019 and where he held
various executive positions, including global co-head of the
securities division, Chief information officer (CIO) and CFO.
He was also member of the management committee from
2072 until 2019, when he left the firm.

Furthermore, he has been director of PNM Resources, Inc., the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) and the
Santa Fe Opera, and a member of the board of trustees of
amfAR (the Foundation for AIDS Research).

Other positions of note: Mr Chavez is an independent director
of Recursion Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Paige.Al, Inc. and Mount
Sinai Genomics, Inc. DBA Sema4. He is also member of the
Harvard University Board of Overseers, member of the board of
trustees of the Institute for Advanced Study of Princeton (New
Jersey) and of the Los Angeles Philharmonic, as well as a
member of the Stanford University School of Medicine Board of
Fellows.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr Chavez is a non-
executive director of PagoNxt, S.L.

Membership of board committees: Nomination committee,
remuneration committee, risk supervision, regulation and
compliance committee and innovation and technology
committee (chairman).

Skills and competencies: Mr Chavez brings extensive
experience in the global financial and IT sectors, which will
enhance the board's digital capabilities.

Sergio
Rial

Executive director

Mr Rial joined the board in 2020.

Nationality: Spanish and brazilian. Born in 1960 in Rio de
Janeiro, Brazil.

Education: Degree in Law and Economics and postgraduate
studies from the Instituto Brasileiro do Mercado de
Capitais, Insead, Harvard Business School and Wharton
Business School.

Experience: Mr Rial joined the Group as chairman of the
board of Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A. in 2015, becoming
its CEO and vice-chairman in 2016. He has been a director
of Banco Santander International since 2018 and, since
April 2019, regional head for South America. He held
various executive positions at ABN Amro group between
1982 and 2004, including CEO for Asia and member of the
global ExCo.
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He also held various executive positions at Cargill Inc. between
2004 and 2012, including executive vice-chairman, member of
the board of directors and global CFO. He has also been CEO at
Seara Foods and Marfrig Global Foods and a director of Mosaic
Fertilizers.

Other positions of note: Mr Rial is an independent director of
Delta Airlines Inc. and non-executive chairman of Ebury Partners
Limited.

Positions in other Group companies: Mr Rial is a non-executive
director of Banco Santander International (USA), SAM
Investment Holding Limited, PagoNxt, S.L. and Santander Global
Trade Platforms Solutions, S.L., and non-executive chairman of
Universia Brasil, S.A.

Membership of board committees: None.

Skills and competencies: Mr Rial brings extensive executive
experience in banking and finance. He also has a deep
understanding of Latin American markets, especially Brazil. His
previous experience in multinational groups across geographical
areas and sectors increases the board'’s diversity and gives it a
valuable perspective on environmental and social issues.
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Belén
Romana Garcia

Non-executive director
(independent)

Belén Romana joined the board in 2015.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1965 in Madrid, Spain.

Education: Degree in Economics and Business
Administration from Universidad Auténoma de Madrid and
State Economist.

Experience: Belén Romana was formerly senior executive
vice-president of Economic Policy, director-general of the
Treasury of the Spanish Ministry of Economy, and director
at Banco de Espafia and the CNMV. She was also a director
at the Instituto de Crédito Oficial and other entities on
behalf of the Spanish Ministry of Economy. She served as a
non-executive director at Banco Espariol de Crédito, S.A.
and as executive chairman of Sociedad de Gestién de
Activos Procedentes de la Reestructuracion Bancaria, S.A.
(SAREB).

Other positions of note: Non-executive director of Aviva plc,
London and independent director of SIX Group AG and Bolsas y
Mercados Espafiioles, Sociedad Holding de Mercados y Sistemas
Financieros, S.A.U. Furthermore, she is a member of the board of
trustees of the Rafael del Pino Foundation and co-chair of the
Global Board of Trustees of the Digital Future Society, and
member of the advisory board of GFI, Espafia and TribalData.

Positions in other Group companies: None.

Membership of board committees: Executive committee, audit
committee, risk supervision, regulation and compliance
committee, innovation and technology committee, and
responsible banking, sustainability and culture committee.

Skills and competencies: Given her background as a
government economist and overall executive and non-executive
experience in finance (particularly from serving on the audit
committees of listed companies), Ms Romana is a recognised
financial expert. Having held important positions in Spanish
credit institutions and in the field of capital markets, she can
also provide strategic insights into banking, financial regulations
and government relations.

Pamela
Walkden

Non-executive director
(independent)

Mrs Walkden joined the board in 2019.
Nationality: British. Born in 1960 in Worcester, England.

Education: Master's Degree in Economics from Cambridge
University.

Experience: Pamela Walkden has had an extensive career
in banking. She has served in a number of senior
management positions at Standard Chartered Bank,
including as Group Head of Human Resources, Chief Risk
Officer, Group Treasurer,

Group Head of Asset and Liability Management and Regional
Markets, Group Head of Internal Audit, Group Head of Corporate
Affairs and Group Manager of Investor Relations. In addition, she
served as an independent member of the UK Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA) Regulatory Reform Panel and as
member of the European Banking Authority Stakeholder Group.

Other positions of note: Mrs Walkden is a lay member of the
Welfare and Ethics Committee of the Royal Veterinary College.

Positions in other Group companies: None.

Membership of board committees: Audit committee
(chairman).

Skills and competencies: Ms Walkden is a recognised financial
expert in view of her broad, international experience in banking
and auditing.

Jaime
Pérez Renovales

General secretary and secretary
of the board

Jaime Pérez Renovales joined the group in 2003.
Nationality: Spanish. Born in 1968 in Valladolid, Spain.

Education: Degree in Law and Business Administration
from Universidad Pontificia de Comillas (ICADE E-3) and
state attornev.

Experience: Jaime Pérez Renovales was director of the office of
the second deputy prime minister for Economic Affairs and
Minister of Economy, deputy secretary to the Spanish Prime
Minister, chairman of the Spanish State Official Gazette and the
committee for Government Reform. Previously, he had been vice
general counsel and vice-secretary of the board. He was also
head of Grupo Santander’s legal department, general counsel
and secretary of the board at Banco Espafiol de Crédito, S.A. and
deputy director of legal services at the CNMV. He sits on the jury
for the Princess of Asturias Awards for Social Sciences and is
chairman of the ICADE Business Club.

Mr Pérez is the secretary of all board committees.
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4.2 Board composition

Size

At 31 December 2020, the board of directors was made up of
the 15 members whose profile and background are described
in section 4.1 'Our directors'. The Bylaws allow it to have
between 12 and 17 members.

Composition by type of director

The composition of the board of directors is balanced
between executive and non-executive directors, most of
whom are independent. Each director's status has been
verified by the nomination committee and submitted to the
board.

Executive directors

« Ana Botin, Group executive chairman

- José Antonio Alvarez, Group vice-chairman and chief
executive officer

Section 4.3 provides a more detailed description of their roles
and duties under 'Group executive chairman and chief
executive officer'.

- Sergio Rial
Independent directors
+ Bruce Carnegie-Brown (lead independent director)
+ Homaira Akbari

+ Alvaro Cardoso

+ R. Martin Chavez

+ Sol Daurella

+ Henrique de Castro

+ Gina Diez

+ Ramiro Mato

+ Belén Romana

+ Pamela Walkden

Every year, the nomination committee verifies and informs
the board about the category of independent directors. It
takes all the circumstances of each case into account,
particularly any possible significant business relationships
that could affect their independence. This analysis is
described further in section 4.6 'Nomination committee
activities in 2020'.

Independent non-executive directors account for 66.7% of
board members. This conforms to best corporate governance
practices as well as the board's Rules and regulations, which
require that the board be predominantly made up of non-
executive directors with at least 50% independent directors.

At the end of 2020, the average term of independent non-
executive directors was 3.02 years.

198

~

oy

L J

Contents
Term of independent directors
7.3
3.4 3.56 342
3.0 3.01 3.02

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Other external directors

- Javier Botin
« Luis Isasi

These directors cannot be classified as independent directors
for the following reasons:

+ Mr Botin has been director for over 12 years.

+ Although the nomination committee and the board believe
that Mr Isasi meets the requirements to be classed as an
independent director - in view of his remuneration as non-
executive chair of Santander Espaiia, his entitlements as a
director and the special nature of this body as supervisor of
a business unit without its own corporate identity separate
to Banco Santander - under prudent criteria it is considered
preferable to classify him as an external director. This aligns
to sub-sections 2 to 4 of article 529 duodecies of the
Spanish Companies Act and to article 6.2 of the Rules and
regulations of the board.

Our board composition

Other external
directors
13.33%
Executive
directors Independent
20.00% directors
66.67%
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Tenure and equity ownership
Board of C
directors Tenure Banco Santander shareholding
% of
Date of first Date of last 8 Shares share
appointment  appointment End date Direct Indirect represented Total capital
Executive Ana Boti 04/02/1989  03/04/2020  03/04/2023 1,138,675 28,612,074 29,750,749  0.172%
chairman na Botin /02/ /04/ /04/ ' ' f ' ' ) R o
Vice chairman
223&.'1'.32 José Antonio Alvarez 25/11/2014  12/04/2019  12/04/2022 1,820,754 1,820,754  0.010%
officer
Vice chairman  Bruce 25/11/2014  12/04/2019  12/04/2022 59,940 59,940  0.000%
Carnegie-Brown
Homaira Akbari 27/09/2016  23/03/2018  23/03/2021 67,826 45,913 113,739 0.001%
Javier Botin 25/07/2004  12/04/2019  12/04/2022 5,502,083 19,466,853 123,904,169° 148,873,105 0.858%
Alvaro Cardoso 1/04/2018  01/04/2018  23/03/2021 0 0 0.000%
R. Martin Chévez 27/10/2020  27/10/2020  27/10/2023 0 0 0.000%
Sol Daurella 25/11/2014  03/04/2020  03/04/2023 149,483 476,837 626,320  0.004%
Henrique de Castro 17/07/2019  17/07/2019  12/04/2022 2,982 2,982 0.000%
Members
Gina Diez 22/12/2020  22/12/2020  03/04/2023 0 0 0.000%
Luis Isasi 19/05/2020  19/05/2020  03/04/2023 0 0 0.000%
Ramiro Mato 28/11/2017  12/04/2019  12/04/2022 156,860 156,860  0.001%
Sergio Rial 30/05/2020  30/05/2020  03/04/2023 171,913 171,913 0.001%
Belén Romana 22/12/2015  12/04/2019  12/04/2022 208 4 212 0.000%
Pamela Walkden 29/10/2019 03/04/2020 03/04/2023 2,608 2,608 0.000%
Total 9,073,332 48,601,681 123,904,169 181,579,182 1.047%
General

secretary and
secretary of
the board

Jaime Pérez Renovales

A. Figures from 31 December 2020.

B. For more details, see 'Election, renewal and succession' in section 4.2. The periods provided do not take into account the additional period that may apply under
article 222 of the Spanish Companies Act nor the annual renewal of one-third of the board established in article 27.1 of the Bylaws